Agenda

Meeting:
Date:
Time:

Place:

Metro Technical Advisory Committee (MTAC)
Wednesday, March 15, 2023

9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.

Virtual meeting held via Zoom

Connect with Zoom
Passcode: 863801
Phone: 877-853-5257 (Toll Free)

@ Metro

600 NE Grand Ave.
Portland, OR 97232-2736

9:00 a.m.

9:10 a.m.

9:15 a.m.

9:17 a.m.

9:20 a.m.

10:05 a.m.

10:50 a.m.

12:00 p.m.

Call meeting to order, Declaration of Qquorum and Introductions

Comments from the Chair and Committee Members
e Updates from committee members around the Region (all)

Public communications on agenda items

Consideration of MTAC minutes, January 18, 2023
(action item)

2024 urban growth management decision: development outcomes in
urban centers and past Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) expansion
areas

Purpose: Provide MTAC with information about development outcomes
around the region as background context for the 2024 urban growth
management decision.

Construction Career Pathways Overview & Update

Purpose: Provide an overview of Construction Career Pathways - a
comprehensive policy strategy to create career pathways for BIPOC and
women workers into the construction industry - and the progress the
regional program has made to date.

2023 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Preview of Draft

Chapter 3 (policy)

Purpose: MTAC discussion and feedback on the draft policies proposed for
Chapter 3 of the 2023 RTP.

Adjournment

Chair Kehe

Chair Kehe

Ted Reid, Metro
ECONorthwest
Johnson Economics

Sebrina Owens-Wilson
Andre Bealer, Metro

Kim Ellis, Metro

Chair Kehe


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88551012873?pwd=YTJhVFpvMTVsSjZBejk1VWNKN1J0Zz09

Metro respects civil rights

Metro fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title Il of the Americans with Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act and other
statutes that ban discrimination. If any person believes they have been discriminated against regarding the receipt of benefits or services because of race, color,
national origin, sex, age or disability, they have the right to file a complaint with Metro. For information on Metro’s civil rights program, or to obtain a discrimination
complaint form, visit oregonmetro.gov/civilrights or call 503-797-1890. Metro provides services or accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and
people who need an interpreter at public meetings. If you need a sign language interpreter, communication aid or language assistance, call 503-797-1890 or TDD/TTY
503-797-1804 (8 a.m. to 5 p.m. weekdays) 5 business days before the meeting. All Metro meetings are wheelchair accessible. Individuals with service animals are
welcome at Metro facilities, even where pets are generally prohibited. For up-to-date public transportation information, visit TriMet's website at trimet.org

Théng bdo vé sy Metro khdng ky thi cua

Metro tén trong din quy&n. Muén biét thém théng tin vé chuang trinh din guyén
clia Metro, ho3c mudn I&y don khigu nai v sir ky thi, xin xem trong
www.oregonmetro.govj/civilrights. Néu quy vi can théng dich vién ra ddu bang tay,
trg gitp vé tiép xtc hay ngén ngif, xin goi s6 503-797-1700 (tir & gity sdng dén S gier
chigu vao nhitng ngay thudng) trude budi hop 5 ngay 1am viéc.

MNoeigomneHHs Metro npo 3a60poHy gUCKPUMIHaLT

Metro 3 noBaroto CTaBMTLCA A0 TPOMAAAHCEKKX NPaB. 1A oTpUMaHHA iHGopmMaLi
npo nporpamy Metro i3 3axucTy rpoMaaaHCbKUX Npas abo Gopmu ckapru npo
AWCKPUMIHALO BigBifaiTe cailT www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. abo flkwo sam
notpibeH nepeknagay Ha 36opax, ANA 3340BONEHHA BALWOTo 3anuTy 3atenedoHyite
32 Homepom 503-797-1700 3 8.00 go 17.00 y poboui gHi 3a n'aATe pob6o4ux aHiB A0
36opie.

Metro FR ISR A5

CHERAE - AR Metro R HESTHRATRENY BRI R - SYRITEAE S
www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights » #1 S TR 155 s el » S5r @
HEE BHATS{EE 5 0 #47503-797-

1700 ( TfFH EF8EEET58E) » DUERITHZ a2k -

Ogeysiiska takooris la’aanta ee Metro

Metro waxay ixtiraamtaa xuquugda madaniga. Si aad u heshid macluumaad ku
saabsan barnaamijka xuquugda madaniga ee Metro, ama aad u heshid wargadda ka
cabashada takoorista, boogo www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Haddii aad u baahan
tahay turjubaan si aad uga gaybqaadatid kullan dadweyne, wac 503-797-1700 (8
gallinka hore illaa 5 gallinka dambe maalmaha shagada) shan maalmo shago ka hor
kullanka si loo tixgaliyo codsashadaada.

Metrod] 718 FA] B#d A4

Metro2] A 713 Z &3] )3 AR == 2PE gho) M Al S Yo, i
o] o) gk 272 4151 3 SFwww.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. 41 2] ¢1o

2 gle] B a7, 8l oo ek 5P (.F 54 FF ol 2.7 84])503-797-
17008 &3

Metro®D ZERIIZE - HE40

Metro T XA RIEAMEL TV 2T « MetroDARIEZ O 7 5 AL T DA
(ZD0T ~ EEEREH 7 4 — A8 AT T 5120 - www.oregonmetro.gov/
civilrights » ¥ THEIE ZaWARSHETEEMRELZE L SR 5L -
Metro TEFHICHHILT &5 L 5 - APISOSE R AT £ TI2503-797-

1700 CEAFHisH~F185HF) F THEE 231y -

ieAESSANAA RIS SITaENIUR Metro

FIEINGE NUIRIUN 1 INUFASESHARETSHENUIRIUN Metro
s gumAui s RyuG s gsSIEN Sl
www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights
idhnnsgmEirEausiummsSiinuHg

[USNSIAN: YU SIS NUMIUE 503-797-1700 (ENH 8 [FREM0ENE 5 0N
igiSenn) ooy

igiSen gsigudiSgogisugusuaiafiuainnsgs 4

Metro (e il asny jadl

S p Iy Asad) G sl Metro meli s Jss e ghall (o 1 3all Asiadl G sisll Metro p_sas
dalay =€ o) www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights 5 ASIY! a8 sall 355 (o2 5 « uall 2
i Lalia 8 ALl o) 503-797-1700 <ilgll ad p Lo Jai¥) dlide Cany 3l i B2elis )
B e 50 0 Jae ol (5) fsads 08 (a1 o4 clelins 5 L)

Paunawa ng Metro sa kawalan ng diskriminasyon

Iginagalang ng Metro ang mga karapatang sibil. Para sa impormasyon tungkol sa
programa ng Metro sa mga karapatang sibil, o upang makakuha ng porma ng
reklamo sa diskriminasyon, bisitahin ang www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Kung
kailangan ninyo ng interpreter ng wika sa isang pampublikong pulong, tumawag sa
503-797-1700 (8 a.m. hanggang 5 p.m. Lunes hanggang Biyernes) lima araw ng
trabaho bago ang pulong upang mapagbigyan ang inyong kahilingan.

Notificacién de no discriminacion de Metro

Metro respeta los derechos civiles. Para obtener informacién sobre el programa de
derechos civiles de Metro o para obtener un formulario de reclamo por
discriminacion, ingrese a www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights . Si necesita asistencia
con el idioma, llame al 503-797-1700 (de 8:00 a. m. a 5:00 p. m. los dias de semana)
5 dias laborales antes de la asamblea.

YBeAoMAeHWe 0 HeAONYLWEeHUH AUCKPMMWHALMK OT Metro

Metro yBaaeT rpaxaaHckue npaga. ¥YaHate o nporpamme Metro no cobaiogeHuio
rPaXAAHCKMX NPaB 1 NONYYMTE GOpMY Kanobbl 0 AUCKPUMHMHALUKMIK MOMKHO Ha Beb-
caiite www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Ecnv Bam HymeH nepeBoa4mK Ha
obwecrseHHOM cobpaHuK, OcTasbTe CBOM 3anpoc, NO3BOHKUE No Homepy 503-797-
1700 e pabouure aHu ¢ 8:00 go 17:00 1 3a nATb paboumnx gHel Ao AaTel cOBPaHMA.

Avizul Metro privind nediscriminarea

Metro respecta drepturile civile. Pentru informatii cu privire la programul Metro
pentru drepturi civile sau pentru a obtine un formular de reclamatie impotriva
discrimindrii, vizitati www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Dac3 aveti nevoie de un
interpret de limba la o sedintd publicd, sunati la 503-797-1700 (intre orele 8 5i 5, In
timpul zilelor lucrdtoare) cu cinci zile lucrdtoare inainte de sedint3, pentru a putea sa
va raspunde Tn mod favorabil la cerere.

Metro txoj kev ntxub ntxaug daim ntawv ceeb toom

Metro tributes cai. Rau cov lus ghia txog Metro txoj cai kev pab, los yog kom sau ib
daim ntawv tsis txaus siab, mus saib www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Yog hais tias
koj xav tau lus kev pab, hu rau 503-797-1700 (8 teev sawv ntxov txog 5 teev tsaus
ntuj weekdays) 5 hnub ua hauj lwm ua ntej ntawm lub rooj sib tham.

January 2021



2023 Metro Technical Advisory Committee (MTAC) Work Program
As of 3/8/2023
NOTE: Items in italics are tentative; bold denotes required items
All meetings are scheduled from 9am - noon

MTAC meeting, March 15, 2023
Comments from the Chair
e Committee member updates around the
region (Chair Kehe and all)

Agenda Items

e 2024 urban growth management decision:
development outcomes in urban centers and
past UGB expansion areas (Ted Reid, Metro/
ECONorthwest & Johnson Economics; 45 min)

e Construction Career Pathways Overview &
Update (Sebrina Owens-Wilson, Andre
Bealer, Metro; 45 min)

e 2023 RTP Preview of Draft Chapter 3 (policy)
(Kim Ellis, Metro; 70 min)

MTAC/TPAC joint workshop, April 19, 2023

Agenda Items
e 2023 RTP: Draft high-level project assessment

results (Eliot Rose, Metro; 90 min)

e 2023 RTP: Draft Chapter 3 (Policy) — continue
discussion (Kim Ellis, Metro; 60 min)

e 2024-27 STIP Region 1; 100% project lists and
public comment (Chris Ford, ODOT, 20 min)

MTAC meeting, May 17, 2023
Comments from the Chair

e Committee member updates around the region
(Chair Kehe and all)

Agenda Items
e High Capacity Transit Strategy Update: Draft

Report (Ally Holmqvist, Metro; 30 min)

e Middle Housing Report Update (Ted Reid, Metro/
TBD, EcoNorthwest); 45 min)

e 2023 RTP: Draft system analysis results (Kim Ellis
and Eliot Rose, Metro; 45 min)

MTAC/TPAC joint workshop, June 21, 2023

Agenda Items
e Climate Smart Strategy Discussion (Kim Ellis and

Eliot Rose, Metro; 60 min)
e Possible Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) topic,
(Ted Reid, Metro, 60 min)

MTAC meeting, July 19, 2023
Comments from the Chair
e Committee member updates around the region
(Chair Kehe and all)

Agenda Items
e UGB discussion topics: Employment forecast

process & industrial readiness (Ted Reid, 45 min)
e 2023 RTP update (Kim Ellis, Metro; 45 min)

MTAC/TPAC joint workshop, August 16, 2023

Agenda ltems
e 2023 RTP: Begin discussion on public comments
on Public Review Draft RTP, Project List and
Appendices (Kim Ellis, Metro; 60 min)




MTAC meeting, September 20, 2023

Comments from the Chair

Committee member updates around the region
(Chair Kehe and all)

Agenda Items

Draft regional buildable land inventory (Ted Reid,
Metro; 60 min)

2023 RTP: Draft Public Comment Report and
Recommended Changes (Kim Ellis, Metro; 60
min)

MTAC meeting, October 18, 2023

Comments from the Chair

Committee member updates around the region
(Chair Kehe and all)

Agenda Items

Draft regional buildable land inventory
(continued) (Ted Reid, Metro; 45 min)

23-XXXX - 2023 RTP_Recommendation to MPAC
(Kim Ellis, Metro; 90 min)

MTAC meeting, November 15, 2023

Comments from the Chair

Committee member updates around the region
(Chair Kehe and all)

Agenda Items

UGB discussion topic: Town & regional centers
and CFEC (Update to Title 6) (Ted Reid, Metro; 60
min)

MTAC meeting, December 20, 2023

Comments from the Chair

Committee member updates around the region
(Chair Kehe and all)

Agenda Items

State of the Centers update (Ted Reid, Metro; 60
min)

Parking Lot/Bike Rack: Future Topics (These may be scheduled at either MTAC meetings or combined MTAC/TPAC workshops)

SW Corridor Updates

Status report on equity goals for land use and transportation planning
Regional city reports on community engagement work/grants
Regional development changes reporting on employment/economic and housing as it relates to growth management

Update report on Travel Behavior Survey

Updates on grant funded projects such as Metro’s 2040 grants and DLCD/ODOT’s TGM grants. Recipients of grants.
Transit-Oriented Development (TOD) annual report/project profiles report

Reports from regional service providers affecting land use and transportation, future plans

Best Practices and Data to Support Natural Resources Protection

Employment & industrial lands
2040 grants highlights update
2024 UGB cycle

For MTAC agenda and schedule information, e-mail marie.miller@oregonmetro.gov
In case of inclement weather or cancellations, call 503-797-1700 for building closure announcements.



mailto:marie.miller@oregonmetro.gov

, , @ Metro
Meeting minutes 600 NE Grand Ave.

Meeting: Metro Technical Advisory Committee (MTAC) meeting Portland, OR 87232-2736

Date/time: Wednesday January 18, 2023 | 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.

Place: Virtual video conference call meeting via Zoom

Members Attending
Eryn Kehe, Chair
Carol Chesarek
Tom Armstrong
Aquilla Hurd-Ravich
Anna Slatinsky
Laura Terway
Katherine Kelly
Jamie Stasny

Adam Barber

Chris Deffebach
Gary Albrecht
Neelam Dorman
Laura Kelly

Manuel Contreras, Jr.
Gery Keck

Cindy Detchon
Nina Carlson

Tom Bouillion

Bret Marchant
Preston Korst

Alternate Members Attending
David Berniker
Steve Koper
Martha Fritzie
Sarah Paulus
Theresa Cherniak
Kelly Reid

Fiona Lyon
Aaron Golub
Craig Sheahan
Ryan Ames

Guests Attending
Charles Safley

Elin Michel-Midelfort
Jacqui Treiger
Jessica Pelz

Marc Farrar

Affiliate

Metro

Multnomah County Citizen Representative

Largest City in the Region: Portland

Second Largest City in Clackamas County: Oregon City
Second Largest City in Washington County; Beaverton
Clackamas County: Other Cities, City of Happy Valley
City of Vancouver

Clackamas County

Multnomah County

Washington County

Clark County

Oregon Department of Transportation

Department Land Conservation and Development
Clackamas Water Environmental Services

Tualatin Hills Park & Recreation District

North Clackamas School District

NW Natural

Port of Portland

Greater Portland, Inc.

Home Builders Association of Metropolitan Portland

Affiliate

Multnomah County: Other Cities, City of Troutdale
Washington County: Other Cities, City of Tualatin
Clackamas County

Multnomah County

Washington County

OR Dept. of Land Conservation & Development
TriMet

Portland State University

David Evans & Associates, Inc.

Public Health & Urban Forum, Washington Co.

Affiliate

CBRE

Metropolitan Land Group
Oregon Environmental Council
Washington County
Metropolitan Land Group

MTAC Meeting Minutes from January 18, 2023

Page 1



Guests Attending Affiliate

Max Nonnamaker Multnomah County
Schuyler Warren City of Tigard
Stacie Sanders Housing Oregon

Two unidentified phone callers

Metro Staff Attending

Al Mowbray, Ally Holmqvist, Cindy Pederson, Clint Chiavarini, Daniel Audelo, David Tetrick, Eliot Rose,
Glen Hamburg, Jihoon Son, John Mermin, Kim Ellis, Marie Miller, Matt Bihn, Serah Breakstone, Ted
Reid, Thaya Patton, Tom Kloster

Call to Order, Quorum Declaration and Introductions

Chair Eryn Kehe called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. TPAC Chair handed off the role of MTAC Chair
to Kehe, who introduced herself with the role she filled at Metro. A quorum was declared.
Introductions were made. Zoom logistics and meeting features were reviewed for online raised hands,
renaming yourself, finding attendees and participants, and chat area for messaging and sharing links.

Comments from the Chair and Committee Members
e Updates from committee members around the Region (all) none

Public Communications on Agenda Items - none

Consideration of MTAC minutes November 16, 2022 meeting
Approval of the November 16, 2022 MTAC meeting minutes was given by the committee by majority
vote with no corrections.

High Capacity Transit Strategy Update: Corridor Investment Readiness Tiers (Ally Holmqvist, Metro)
The presentation described the work done to date with partners to revise the draft policy framework,
re-envision the network, and identify corridor investment priorities — milestones for this key policy
focus area for the 2023 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Update. Applying refined High Capacity
Transit policy framework resulted in a refined network vision including new and stronger high

quality transit connections along north-south and east-west corridors in Multnomah, Clackamas,
Washington and Clark Counties.

The scale is consistent with the regional history of success with the Federal Transit Administration’s
Capital Investment Grant Program and the scale of investment of prior plans and also considers
network design and character. This stronger backbone would better support compact land
development, create broader travel connections and mobility options, provide better alternatives to
driving that encourage new ridership in support of our climate goals, and prioritize those who depend
on transit or lack travel options, particularly communities of color and other historically marginalized
communities.

Transit corridors were evaluated for near readiness prioritized to planned regional investment
priorities. Measures used to evaluate readiness criteria was noted on Table 1, page 15 of the packet.
Together, these measures indicated where there is the greatest need for and most potential benefits

MTAC Meeting Minutes from January 18, 2023 Page 2



in making high quality transit investments today versus where there are other opportunities to make
these types of investments in the future. Based on the assessment results, the team grouped the
corridors by readiness into tiers also indicating the location and a representative mode for modeling.

Focusing on Level 2 readiness, maps were shown corridor scores regarding land use supportiveness,
current ridership, car to transit travel time ratio, equity benefit and key destinations, and physical
conditions. Proposed levels 2-4 tiers were presented. Next steps on the project include engagement
meetings and events with stakeholders and public, and draft report for the High Capacity Transit (HCT)
Strategy update.

Comments from the committee:

Carol Chesarek asked if consideration of the effects of proposed tolling were included in the
travel pattern analysis. It was also asked that, with corridor analysis of Highway 26 to
Evergreen and increasing congestion leading to travel diverging on rural roads, has this been
captured in analysis with high capacity transit strategies. Ms. Holmqvist noted that regarding
tolling staff is doing additional modeling for the RTP. Some of the work is just for the HCT
strategy, with other work on tolling assumptions in partnership with ODOT with deeper studies
included in the RTP. ODOT is now working on their public transportation strategy for tolling
modeling, which can give Metro direction on planning investments for HCT strategies and
routes. Future amendments to the RTP on this can be considered later.

Regarding Highway 26 to Evergreen, travel patterns showed these high demands on routes in
the area. The Westside Multimodal Improvement Study was noted where more information
and analysis was being done. The link to this was shared:
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/umo/pages/wmis.aspx

Two links were shared regarding the HCT Storymap shared in the presentation:
Www.oregonmetro.gov/rtp
https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/299c611ee8aed6c6ad7bae62535cca76

Nina Carlson noted a concern with the last 4 and potentially fifth corridors listed lower than 2
in the SW corner of the Metro region that may increase in the Urban Growth Boundary area.
Currently not many transportation investments are there. Clarification was asked on the
modeling used for UGB updates for this strategy. Ms. Holmqvist noted the 2018 RTP model was
used, but the 2040 plan was looked at, and the 2023 RTP update will use the 2045 update.

Concern was noted that with the UBG increase without more transit planned this does not
seem to be tracking on what is being seen on the construction side for planned growth, noting
employment travel and other travel behaviors. It hasn’t shown high on the tier levels with the
evaluation criteria. Ms. Holmqvist agreed the growth on the westside is being seen, but in this
project high capacity transit with higher ridership and meeting eligibility for federal investment
criteria is the focus. Further corridor planning can incorporate transit planning that involve
other types of transit and modes of travel.

MTAC Meeting Minutes from January 18, 2023 Page 3


https://www.oregon.gov/odot/umo/pages/wmis.aspx
http://www.oregonmetro.gov/rtp
https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/299c611ee8ae46c6ad7bae62535cca76

e Jamie Stasny noted a lot of growth happening across Clackamas County with known gaps in
transit service, and together with the tolling proposed on I-205 it was asked how all this ties in
with the transit strategy. From documents and maps shown, there appears to be no near-term
solutions that will help to plan for reliable transit alternatives. Currently we do not have a
viable transit alternative for 1-205 yet.

Ms. Holmqvist noted we have more work to do on tolling impacts and implementation
planning. This is early work from ODOT yet. TriMet has planned corridors with Forward
Together programs and other corridor planning. More work is being developed to make sure
we are making high capacity a priority and benefit where needs are. We plan to find and fill
transit service gaps with prioritized investments. There are challenges to Federal funding
criteria eligibility with certain ridership thresholds required. It may be possible to build on
success from near-term corridors tiers that can show why further investments are needed. It
was added that staff is looking into developing regional centers to be a focus beyond known
town center connections on corridors.

Ms. Stasny noted concern that we are working off dated transportation and land use plans
when many changes and updates have been made since. It was asked when Federal
regulations have changed and to what, as mentioned in the presentation. It is a challenge to
know what current regulations and policies are, and what will apply and when for planning. It
would be helpful to have residents move into areas where transportation choices are known
and planned for with changes that incorporate Federal changes. It was noted we seem to be
prioritizing high capacity transit routes, but there are basic transit service routes missing. It
makes supporting and planning prioritized high capacity when basic service needs are not
considered.

Ms. Holmqvist agreed that the 2040 growth concept needs updating. But many plans and data
with current updates have been looked at when developing this strategy. It was noted that
Federal changes were not so much regulations but grant requirements making it more
competitive with the emphasis on current ridership.

e Chris Deffebach noted the gaps in transit service in the region comes on top of the TriMet
Forward Together proposal plan which shows the significance of these investments in the
region. It appears the list of projects for HC are not coming together to show the transit vision
to grow ridership in the region. It was asked when in the process will these investments be
modeled together, noting tolling has not been modeled yet. Ms. Holmqvist noted right now
staff is doing a run of the network building the model for the 2023 RTP. This is preliminary, with
the tolling assumptions in the broader modeling run that looks beyond HCT with a possible
amendment to the RTP update in 2024. Clarification was noted on modeling now having only
the projects listed in the financial constrained network, but the broad spectrum with modeling
will be added later and shared with the workgroup.

e Fiona Lyon described the TriMet Forward Together program for those not familiar with this.
With changes to ridership over the past few years, TriMet is proposing plans for more frequent
service and changes to ridership. More was shared in chat: Forward Together Plan:

MTAC Meeting Minutes from January 18, 2023 Page 4



https://trimet.org/forward/ Revisions were made in December and are open for comment
right now. Board Approval is anticipated in March or April. Just a reminder that this is a revision
to our system wide service enhancement plan. TriMet Tabling events for 2023 Annual Service
Plan were also shared: http://trimet.org/betterbus/servicechanges-fy24.htm

e (Carol Chesarek looked at the Multimodal Improvement Study webpage noted earlier in the
meeting. The rural roads that drivers are using to escape Highway 26 are outside this study
area and listed as not a problem. There is concern escaped traffic not being considered with
this study will add to the burden of traffic on rural roads.

Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) Decision; background and history (Ted Reid, Metro) The presentation
provided background and history of the Urban Growth Boundary decision, with work planned toward
the next Urban Growth Management Decision by end of 2024. Before expanding the UGB, basic
premises of growth management laws were applied to determine whether more land is needed

because of household and employment growth.

The importance of land readiness was explained. UGB expansions only produce jobs or housing when
governance, infrastructure and market are addressed. Past UGB decisions that did not emphasize
readiness have been slow to produce housing. Metro has improved its growth management

process to focus on readiness.

Elements in the Urban Growth Report include population and employment range forecast, peer review,
buildable land inventory, analysis of employment trends, industrial land readiness, employment site
characteristics, land demand estimates (aspirations and forecasts), and housing development trends,
displacement trends, and housing needs analysis. The 2024 Urban growth management approach will:
* Focus on readiness of cities

e Urban growth report will not provide “the answer”; it will be a support tool.

¢ Differentiate between:

— housing needs and land needs

—employment forecasts and economic development aspirations

New in the 2024 Urban Growth Report are HB 2001 middle housing predictions, focus on housing
needs by income group, existing and future housing needs, and consideration of economic aspirations
and forecasts. The 2024 growth management decision work program review will be coming back to the
committee for input at meetings this year.

Comments from the committee:

e Manuel Contreas asked for information regarding the Governor Executive Order on HB 2001.
Mr. Reid noted a lot of our studies under HB 2001 are now called housing production strategies
which will be used in planning. We are going to differentiate between housing needs and land
needs. As all regions around the county there are housing needs. Metro has a shortage of land
that is ready for housing.

e Fiona Lyon noted being at a loss to communicate the UGB on presentations without better
graphics. It was suggested this be part of the update. Senate Bill 8 with conversion of
commercial land to affordable housing is being looked at, with legislative talk about sending

MTAC Meeting Minutes from January 18, 2023 Page 5


http://trimet.org/betterbus/servicechanges-fy24.htm

this to a workforce housing in the future. It was asked if consideration of this be included in
the UGB. It was noted that in terms of land already developed UBG potential for downtown
centers with land sitting empty might have consideration for concept planning for cities in the
UGB. Chair Kehe noted current Metro grant programs where concept planning is part of
economic development to centers, corridors and employment areas. Mr. Reid added staff is
looking at Senate Bill 8 now. It was thought decisions would be dependent on circumstances
and design specific buildings. More will be discussed on this topic.

e Jamie Stasny appreciated the new approach to readiness. Several key issues have made
growth planning challenging. The Clackamas County Board have discussed the UGB expansion
exchange process and are opposed to this, not because they do not support affordable
housing, but oppose the process Metro is using to bring the proposed land inside UGB. Having
noted the UGB is a support tool is appreciated. If the 2040 plan is to give us direction on where
we grow, this is not a UGB discussion by itself. When it’s time to update the 2040 plan, what
will this process look like and is there opportunity for visioning where changes can be made in
terms of land available and readiness.

Mr. Reid noted that all these issues mentioned, and more are being discussed in the Urban
Growth Management plan. We think of this decision to act as a clearing house, for a gathering
of topics to see addressed. They will be part of the work program. Asked when the process is
planned to start, Chair Kehe noted Metro Council has not given a specific date for the decision,
but staff are eager to start on this work upon completion of the 2040 UGB growth report.

e Preston Korst, on behalf of the Home Builders Association was supportive of the UGB proposed
exchange. It was noted that in this instance with the housing crisis the exchange was justified,
but further considerations should be discussed moving forward. It was asked, with expected
updates coming, what the take on state legislative measures and bills would impact Metro’s
plans. Mr. Reid agreed on this being a bit of a moving target at the moment. Metro recognized
things may change with possible subsequent growth decisions. Asked if engagement sessions
with the committee and public were planned on the legislative session discussions, it was
noted Metro’s Government Affairs team will be contacted and asked to present information for
committee discussion.

e Anna Slatinsky noted in HB 289 provisions allowing for revisions to direction of cities holds
significant impacts and should have further discussion. The basic requirements of planning
currently are exhausting with funding and resources. Readiness to the UGB plan and
expectations from the plan should be weighed against regional issues required. It was
suggested Metro think about the relationship between producing housing and paying for
infrastructure. The issue is not just about boundaries but what it takes to grow efficiently.
Infrastructure pieces in planning have been underestimated, and there is a need to better
understand what readiness means. As the UGB process moves forward it was suggested the
Metro policy level be reviewed to not be in conflict with other goals and strategies being
developed.

e Preston Korst noted that as a region we need to explore innovative and supplemental funding
strategies for infrastructure installation. Without a clear funding path, it will be more and more
difficult to manage growth.

MTAC Meeting Minutes from January 18, 2023 Page 6



e Bret Marchant noted that small cities in the UGB considering expansion may not have the
resources and capacity for planning, and that’s where we are seeing demand for industrial
sites. It was asked what Metro planned with expansions to ensure timelines match city plans.
Mr. Reid noted the expectations from cities for a concept plan are listed in the Urban Growth
Management Functional Plan. The immediate timeline for concept plan proposals will be by
spring of 2024. Mr. Marchant extended an invitation to attend and present to the Greater
Portland Small City Consortium on this information.

e Chris Deffebach agreed on the challenge with financing infrastructure. It was noted that in Title
11 of the Urban Growth Management Functional Plan cities and counties need to work
together on concept plan with service agreements, but the concept level details are not pinned
down yet. More attention at the concept phase regarding infrastructure financing strategy is
suggested. Transit service expectations is not always known or immediately planned. Asked if
the Buildable Land Inventory update was planned, Mr. Reid concurred. It was suggested to
know the conversion rate when commercial land was converted to residential when it wasn’t
zoned residential before.

e Nina Carlson asked what Metro’s thoughts were on the state of rural reserved areas. It was
noted that what was farmland is now agri-tourism. Questions are being raised on production
per acre and what is really viable to consider with agricultural land, or find another designation
for the land. Mr. Reid noted we don’t have a legal right to change the rural reserved
designations. These were set by counties a part of the rural reserved process, initially in 2010,
with a 50-year time plan. Carol Chesarek added that when she asked the end date of the
current rural reserve plan in 2022, this was given as 45 years from that year.

Adjournment

There being no further business, meeting was adjourned by Chair Kehe at 11:04 a.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Marie Miller, MTAC Recorder

MTAC Meeting Minutes from January 18, 2023 Page 7



Attachments to the Public Record, MTAC meeting January 18, 2023

frem DOCUMENT TYPE DOCUMENT
DATE DOCUMENT DESCRIPTION DocumMENT No.
1 Agenda 1/18/2023 1/18/2023 MTAC Meeting Agenda 011823M-01
MTAC Work
2 or 1/10/2023 MTAC Work Program as of 1/10/2023 011823M-02
Program
3 Minutes 11/16/2022 Draft minutes from November 16, 2022 MTAC meeting 011823M-03
TO: MTAC and interested parties
From: Ally Holmqvist, Senior Transportation Planner
4 M 1/18/2023 011823M-04
emo /18/ RE: High Capacity Transit Strategy Update: Corridor
Investment Readiness Tiers
5 Fact sheet N/A ngh 'c‘j:\pauty transit vision & corridor investment 011823M-05
priorities
December Key Meeting Dates and Engagement Activities for Project
6 Handout 2022 Milestones — High Capacity Transit Strategy 011823M-06
TO: Ally Holmgvist, Metro
From: Ryan Farncomb, Kirsten Pennington (KLP
7 Memo 11/17/2022 Consulting), Oren Eshel (Nelson\Nygaard) 011823M-07
RE: Approach to assessing HCT corridor readiness, modes,
and tiering
3 Report December HCT Policy Framework — Regional Transit Network Policy 011823M-08
2022 Review
TO: Ally Holmqvist, Metro
From: Chad Tinsley, Parametrix
Ryan Farncomb, Parametrix
Kelly Betteridge, Parametrix
9 Memo 11/17/2022 Oren Eshel, Nelson/Nygaard 011823M-09
Tomoko Delatorre, Nelson/Nygaard
Paul Lutey, Nelson/Nygaard
RE: HCT Corridor Analysis Approach to Identify “Big
Moves”
10 Presentation 1/18/2023 HCT Strategy Update: Vision & Corridor Readiness Tiers 011823M-10
11 Presentation 1/18/2023 gz:it;ztnfor the 2024 Urban Growth Management 011823M-11

MTAC Meeting Minutes from January 18, 2023

Page 8




Metro’s Construction
Career Pathway
Framework shows how
government agencies

can collaborate with
stakeholders to influence
the culture of an industry
long-considered immune
to change.

oregonmetro.gov

OREGON TRADESWOMEN / DAWN JONES REDSTONE

Construction Career

Pathways Framework
A CASE STUDY IN JOB CREATION FOR A JUST SOCIETY

Diversifying the construction industry will help address
generational labor shortages, control costs for project
owners, and provide economic mobility for women and other
marginalized workers.

Background

Despite economic volatility related to the Covid-19 pandemic, the
construction industry remains a high-growth sector and one of the last
bastions of middle-wage jobs in an era of extreme income polarity. Because of
this, construction careers provide a reliable pathway for younger generations
to achieve economic mobility. The job opportunities in this industry are not,
however, equitably accessible to everyone in the community. Construction
continues to be a male-dominated and racially homogeneous industry. In
2021, nearly 88% of people employed in construction were white, and less
than 4% were women in non-office jobs, according to the U.S. Bureau of Labor
Statistics.

At the same time, construction businesses report a severe shortage in skilled
talent, and foresee a ‘silver tsunami’ of Baby Boomer retirements in the
coming years. This labor shortage reflects not only an age gap, but also gender
and racial inequities. Unwelcoming and often hostile workplace cultures,

as well as a lack of training and on-the-job support, can make it difficult for
women, Black, Indigenous, Latinx, Asian and immigrant workers to succeed
in the construction industry. This occupational segregation is a significant
barrier to economic equity for women and BIPOC communities.



A changing workforce

Construction workers are aging out
of the workforce and younger
workers are not entering the field in
large enough numbers to replace
them. For every five workers
nearing retirement in the Portland
(Oregon) region, only three workers
under 24 years old are entering the
construction workforce®. Left
unaddressed, the shortage of
workers will continue to grow as
current workers age and the
population becomes more diverse.
A smaller pool of skilled
construction labor increases costs
and risks for public project owners.

Government agencies have both the opportunity and the imperative to
invest in robust and equitable labor pathways, and to establish high road
standards in the construction industry. These strategies create multiple
public benefits: to rectify historical inequities and promote shared
prosperity; to make jurisdictions more competitive for federal funding;
to stabilize a volatile labor market; and to transform the construction
industry by normalizing inclusive practices and accountability. Public
project owners further benefit by making costs more predictable,
improving job quality and preventing labor strikes.

Methodology

Having identified a need for 14,000 construction workers on over 80 capital
projects green lighted for building in the Portland Metro Region over the
next ten years, Metro convened a Public Owner Workgroup representing
16 public agencies to develop a roadmap to increase both the supply of and
demand for women and BIPOC workers in the construction industry. This
process was informed by a comprehensive market study* that focused on
the opportunities and challenges facing women and BIPOC workers in the
construction trades, as well as significant input from community advocates
such as Oregon Tradeswomen, construction businesses and labor unions.
With the adoption of the Construction Career Pathway Framework?, the
Portland metro area is the first to use governmental standards to address
worksite culture.

Framework

The Construction Career Pathways Framework is a comprehensive strategy
for aligning public programs with community resources for creating new
employment opportunities, strengthening the workforce contributing to
public capital projects and reducing the long-term cost of construction.

Best Practices for Developing Workforce Equity Policy in Your Jurisdiction

BUILD A FOUNDATION

Build abroad &
inclusive table

Center the experiences
of women & BIPOC

FORMAL COMMITMENTS

ogo
&

Launch a collaboration
table focused on

Get commitments from
agencies toinvest,

> Do amataeuy workers plan and implement implementation
focused on worker « Set goals that push you « Help each other by + Aim to align systems
experience to achieve more sharing best practices and processes

« Partner with together and lessons learned « Dedicate resources to

community and
workforce NGOs early

« Find fellow
governments to work
together

« Prioritize investments
in capacity building and
retention efforts

« Build a durable policy or

¢ Focus on the coalition
of the willing to invest

implementation

e Don'treinvent the
wheel: develop the
model further!

« Build onramps for other
agencies to join

strategy



The framework focuses on:

Setting consistent workforce diversity goals

Investment in recruitment, training, retention

Changing the culture on worksites

Utilizing workforce agreements to establish job quality, job access and
project delivery expectations with union labor partners

» Tracking and measuring diversity outcomes region-wide

The cornerstone of the Construction Career Pathways Framework is
creating demand for a diverse workforce by setting consistent goals
across aregion. Goals are based on the current availability of workers

as well as local demographic data in order to be realistically ambitious.
Inter-agency coordination strengthens the effectiveness of these goals by
establishing consistent standards among public projects.

Robust investment in culturally-relevant recruitment, training and
retention programs helps build a diverse supply of skilled labor for capital
projects, and supports the community as a whole by providing pathways
out of poverty for women and BIPOC communities. Some of these programs
serve girls as young as 8 years old. Data in the Portland region shows that
providing extra support such as childcare and rental assistance to people

in apprenticeship programs significantly boosts the rate at which they
complete their programs. The effect is even greater for women and BIPOC
workers3,

Workforce Agreements that establish job access, project delivery and
compensation standards, and Community Benefit Agreements (CBAs)

that increase stakeholder engagement and define concrete community
improvements can be included in project contracts. Both are legally
binding agreements that hold parties accountable for hiring practices
and worksite conditions. Consistent metrics are defined in a Public Owner
Toolkit and the goal is to create a uniform regional tracking and reporting
system that will readily assess diversity outcomes and provide public
transparency.

Challenges

While the benefits of a stable, skilled and diverse construction workforce
are clear, the project group faced some resistance from partner agencies and
contractors alike. Many conversations were needed to uncover and assuage
concerns about the framework. These concerns included: costs associated
with recruitment, training and retention programs; the intractability of
worksite culture; and the relative market impact of regulating only public
projects.

By focusing on the much greater costs of inaction—both in terms of
community poverty, social injustice, and project labor shortages—
advocates were able to persuade other stakeholders that the proposed
investments will yield high returns in the long term. Community advocates
used testimonials and profiles to show that women and BIPOC apprentices
are well-equipped with both passion and aptitude for construction work,
noting that harassment and discrimination are never acceptable.

Though public project owners represent only a fraction of all construction
job creators, they draw from the same workforce as private projects. An
increased supply of skilled labor will benefit the sector as a whole, and

A new mental model for what
it means to be a “construction
worker”

Biases in the construction industry
are deeply ingrained. In arecent
survey®, nearly half of all women in
local apprenticeship programs
reported receiving unwanted
sexual attention. For this reason, it
is often assumed that construction
jobs “aren’t good” for women and
people of color because of
prejudices about physical
capability and worker attitudes.

In order to meaningfully address
barriers and transform worksite
culture, all stakeholders must
commit to a new mental model of
what it means to be a “construction
worker” and agree on two things:
women and other marginalized
people are capable of any job on a
construction site, and harassment
isn't acceptable in any industry.



Metro is the only directly elected
regional government and
metropolitan planning organization
in the United States. Metro serves
more than 1.5 million people in
Portland, Oregon, and 23 other
cities. Established in 1979, Metro
provides regionwide planning and
coordination to manage growth,
infrastructure and development
issues that cross jurisdictional
boundaries.

Oregon Tradeswomen, Inc. helps
transform lives by building
community and economic
independence through
empowerment, training, career
education, advocacy, and
leadership development for women
and gender non-conforming job
seekers in the skilled trades.

>
Oregon
Tradeswomen

@ Metro

Nickeia's story

During her apprenticeship, Nickeia faced
harassment and discrimination, but she
persevered, and has been a Union Carpenter
since 2011. According to Nickeia, “When we
build each other up by creating respectful
workplaces, it is hard work, but not impossible
4 work. You must support and educate craft
)\1 i workers while creating safe job site
' environments. This means having spaces to
make mistakes, be corrected and educated, not isolated, ridiculed or
alienated.”

Liz's story

After graduating from high school, Liz went to
college because it was what she was
‘'supposed to do.’ But years after earning her
degree, she was still struggling to earn enough
to build her future. “Until | got into the trades, |
didn’t earn a living wage,” she says. “Because
of Oregon Tradeswomen, | now earn a living
wage working a job | love. | cannot overstate
how important this has been to my confidence
and how important it has been to me in my life.”

improvements in worksite conditions in public projects will influence
standards on private worksites. By asserting their authority as public
project owners, government agencies can make progress toward their goals
as responsible stewards of public resources.

Conclusion

Public agencies are accountable to the people they serve. This means
ensuring all of their work—including construction projects—benefits the
community equitably. Investing in workforce equity in the construction
industry is not only the right thing to do; it also makes good business
sense for municipalities needing a steady supply of skilled labor to build
capital projects that fuel economic growth. Government agencies and
community-based organizations can work together to change the culture of
the industry as well as prepare historically marginalized people for middle-
wage careers in construction. Intergovernmental alignment to set high-
road industry standards incentivizes contractors to modernize, and helps
make collective progress toward diversity, equity and inclusion goals.

1 oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2018/07/02/C2P2-regional-construction-workforce-market-study-
executive-summary.pdf

2 oregonmetro.gov/construction-career-pathways

3 Wilkinson, Lindsey and Maura Kelly, 2016. (Still) Building A More Diverse Workforce in the Highway Trades:
2016 Evaluation of the ODOT/BOLI Highway Construction Workforce Development Program.

4 oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2019/11/04/construction-career-pathways-regional-
toolkit-20191029.pdf

5 oregonmetro.gov/news/snapshot-efforts-diversify-greater-portlands-construction-industry

6 Wilkinson and Kelly, 2016.

Printed on recycled-content paper. 22072


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/
https://oregontradeswomen.org/
http://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2018/07/02/C2P2-regional-construction-workforce-market-study-executive-summary.pdf
http://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2018/07/02/C2P2-regional-construction-workforce-market-study-executive-summary.pdf
http://www.oregonmetro.gov/construction-career-pathways
http://archives.pdx.edu/ds/psu/18188
http://archives.pdx.edu/ds/psu/18188
http://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2019/11/04/construction-career-pathways-regional-toolkit-20191029.pdf
http://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2019/11/04/construction-career-pathways-regional-toolkit-20191029.pdf
http://www.oregonmetro.gov/news/snapshot-efforts-diversify-greater-portlands-construction-industry
http://archives.pdx.edu/ds/psu/18188

C2P2 REGIONAL FRAMEWORK

The Construction Career Pathways Project (C2P2) Public Owner Workgroup (Workgroup) is comprised of 16
public agencies tasked with developing a regional approach to recruiting and retaining women and people of color
in the construction trades. Since July 2018, Oregon Metro convened the C2P2 Workgroup to develop a regional
approach to construction workforce equity for the Greater Portland metropolitan area. Over the course of nearly a
year, the Workgroup met as a whole and in subcommittees to identify regional strategies and potential
investments that will grow the number of people of color and women in the construction trades.

This Regional Framework (Framework) summarizes a series of strategies needed for creating and sustaining a
diverse construction workforce. It offers high level guidance to Public Owners committed to fostering the diverse
workforce needed to meet projected construction demand.* The attached toolkit provides Public Owners with
practical approaches to implementing the strategies outlined in this Framework. The Framework and toolkit are
not procurement documents or contracts.

Buy-in from multiple public agencies and cross-sector collaboration with labor, community-based organizations,
contractors, educational institutions, and others, will be essential to ensure impact at a regional scale. The toolkit
provides guidance on how to create impactful partnerships to diversify the workforce. If successful, the
Framework can elevate a truly regional, collaborative approach that will create a robust pipeline of work, a
consistent demand for workers, and an unprecedented opportunity to make transformative investments that will lift
Greater Portland residents out of poverty.

This Framework provides seven essential points Public Owners should integrate into their practices in order to
ensure success and truly move the needle toward achieving construction workforce equity. The accompanying
toolkit provides additional details and guidance to Public Owners as they implement the recommendation their
relevant policies, programs, and procurement practices.

I. SET CLEAR WORKFORCE DIVERSITY GOALS

Public Owners should establish regionwide targeted hire goals to increase diversity in the construction workforce
(see below). The toolkit provides guidance on additional goals Public Owners may consider in order to create a
demand for diverse construction workers, and a ramp up period timeline to ensure success.

A. A minimum of 20% of total work hours in each apprenticeable trade shall be performed by state-
registered apprentices;

B. A minimum of 14% of total work hours shall be performed by women and women-identified persons
— both journey and apprentice-level workers;

C. A minimum of 25% total work hours shall be performed by persons of color — both journey and
apprentice level workers.

! For more information about projected demand, see the Metro Regional Construction Workforce Market Study:
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2018/07/02/C2P2-regional-construction-workforce-market-study-07022018.pdf.

Page 1 of 3


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2018/07/02/C2P2-regional-construction-workforce-market-study-07022018.pdf

C2P2 Regional Framework

Il. SET PROJECT THRESHOLDS

Public Owners will set a project cost threshold to trigger targeted hire goals and set a “tiered” system to determine
tracking requirements. The threshold tiers recommended in the toolkit are based on the Public Owner’s typical
project size and cost. Agencies should consider and adopt the thresholds outlined in the toolkit or set modified
thresholds based on their typical project size and their capacity to monitor compliance.

I1l. TRACK AND REVIEW PROGRESS ON GOALS

Public Owners should utilize a software tracking system — such as Elations, LCPtracker, B2GNow - to streamline
reporting and compliance. Adopting a data-driven approach will facilitate the enforcement of targeted hire goals
and help Developers/Prime Contractors troubleshoot any issues that may arise. Collecting this data regionally
helps to create and allows for monitoring and reassessment of progress towards workforce goals. The toolkit
provides a list of approaches to collecting workforce data, along with a set common data points all Public Owners
should commit to collecting in order monitor their progress towards achieving workforce diversity goals.

IV. DEVELOP A WORKFORCE AGREEMENT

Workforce Agreements are enforceable contracts that govern the terms and conditions of employment for all
workers on a given construction project. They serve as a useful mechanism to align practices to ensure diversity
goals are met and allow for clear tracking and monitoring of contractors by Public Owners, community-based
organizations, and certified firms. Workforce Agreements avoid costly delays due to labor disputes or shortages of
workers, and contractually ensures that publicly funded projects are completed on time and on schedule for the
benefit of taxpayers.2 They offer Public Owners increased oversight of numerous contractors and unions on large
projects. The toolkit contains a series of terms that are critical to achieving workforce diversity goals and should
be considered when negotiating a Workforce Agreement.

V. IMPLEMENT WORKSITE ANTI-HARRASSMENT AND CULTURE CHANGE STRATEGIES

To support, cultivate and grow a positive jobsite culture, Public Owners should require an approved worksite
harassment prevention strategy. Programs such as Alteristic’s Green Dot or the Carpenter’s Positive Jobsite
Culture Training programs ensure all employees, regardless of race, gender, or creed, are guaranteed a safe and
respectful working environment. 2 By working together, Public Owners, trades, and contractors can put practices
in place that can help eliminate hostility and bullying in the construction industry.

VI. COLLECTIVELY INVEST IN WORKFORCE SUPPLY

Public Owners acknowledge that a regionwide workforce diversity policy must be paired with a coordinated
approach to recruitment, training, and retention of women and people of color. Public Owners must engage labor,
industry groups, and community-based organizations to address ongoing barriers that prevent people of color and

2 Labor Agreements, Project Labor Agreements, Community Workforce Agreements, and Community Benefits Agreements are other legally
enforceable contracts that when implemented, can result in diversity outcomes on public projects.

3 Alteristic’s Green Dot Violence Prevention program is a bystander intervention strategy that aims to prevent and reduce power-based
personal violence at school campuses and workplace environments, including sexual harassment and bullying. Green Dot develops
curriculum and training materials using strategic planning, bystander mobilization, interpersonal communication, and coalition building. The
Green Dot program was successfully implemented as part of the project labor agreement for the Multnomah County Central Courthouse and
can be a model adapted for projects and jobsites across the region. More information can be found at: https://alteristic.org/services/green-dot/.

Page 2 of 3


https://alteristic.org/services/green-dot/

C2P2 Regional Framework

women from entering the construction industry. Public Owners should also direct funds towards increasing the
number of qualified women and people of color in the construction industry. The toolkit offers three ways Public
Owners can facilitate a continuous investment in the construction workforce.

VII. ESTABLISH REGIONAL COLLABORATION

The success of the recommendations outlined in this Framework depends on implementation. Public Owners
must institutionalize a coordinated structure and process to get a sense of their collective progress and calibrate
their efforts as needed. Public Owners should also develop clear roles for external stakeholders (trades,
contractors, industry groups, certified firms, and community-based organizations) to ensure efforts are
coordinated, complementary, and not duplicative. The toolkit outlines a process for regional coordination,
including a committee structure and suggested functions.

VIIl. NEXT STEPS

The undersigned agree to participate on a Regional Implementation Committee (Committee) to create an action
plan for adopting and the implementing the recommendations of the Framework within each agency and
coordinating on a regional scale. The Committee will also engage external stakeholders (trades, contractors,
industry groups, certified firms, and community-based organizations) to collaboratively, creatively, and
continuously to truly move the needle on diversifying the construction workforce and placing workers into career
paths that deliver economic prosperity.

Page 3 of 3



2023 Regional Transportation Plan

Every five years, Metro brings together communities across the greater Portland region

to update the region’s shared vision and investment strategy for transportation. The
Regional Transportation Plan is the blueprint that guides investments in all forms of
travel throughout greater Portland—driving, taking transit, biking and walking—and the
movement of goods and services. This plan update will be completed by December 2023.

Why plan?

How people get around shapes

their communities and everyday
lives. The economic prosperity and
quality of life in greater Portland
depend on a transportation system
that provides every person and
business with access to safe, reliable
and affordable ways to get around.

The Regional Transportation
Plan coordinates long-range
transportation planning in the
Portland metropolitan area. It is
required by the State of Oregon
and the Federal Government and
it is an opportunity for all levels
of government to work together
to deliver a better transportation
future for the greater Portland
region.

Draft vision and goals

The 2023 Regional Transportation
Plan is guided by a draft vision and
five goals that have been shaped by
public input and decision-makers.

Vision

Everyone in the greater Portland
region will have safe, reliable,
affordable, efficient, and climate-
friendly travel options that allow
people to choose to drive less and
that support equitable, resilient,
healthy and economically vibrant
communities and region.

Equitable transportation
Transportation system disparities
experienced by Black, Indigenous
and people of color and people with
low incomes, are eliminated. The
disproportionate barriers people

of color, people with low incomes,

people with disabilities, older adults,

youth and other marginalized
communities face in meeting their
travel needs are removed.

Climate action and resilience
People, communities and ecosystems
are protected, healthier and more
resilient and carbon emissions and
other pollution are substantially
reduced as more people travel by

transit, walking and bicycling and
people travel shorter distances to get
where they need to go.

Thriving economy

Centers, ports, industrial areas,
employment areas and other
regional destinations are accessible
through a variety of multimodal
connections that help people,
communities, and businesses thrive
and prosper.

Safe system

Traffic deaths and serious crashes are
eliminated and all people are safe and
secure when traveling in the region.

Mobility options

People and businesses can reach
the jobs, goods, services and
opportunities they need by well-
connected, low-carbon travel
options that are safe, affordable,
convenient, reliable, efficient,
accessible, and welcoming.

February 2023



2023 Regional Transportation Plan timeline

SCOPING PLAN UPDATE ADOPTION

v

e Understand
trends and
challenges

) 24

¢ Refine vision,
values, goals,
objectives,
targets & policies

)4

» Update system
needs

» Update revenue

)

« Update
investment
strategy

« Review vision
& priority
outcomes

forecast

v

e Public review
of draft plan

e« 2023 Plan
considered for
adoption

COMMUNICATIONS & ENGAGEMENT

Oct ‘21- May 22 Jun - Aug ‘22 Sept - Dec 22 Jan-Jun ‘23 Jul-Nov ‘23

Regional Transportation Plan decisions are made together by the Joint Policy Advisory Committee on
Transportation (JPACT) and Metro Council. The update must be completed by December 6, 2023.

To achieve the vision and goals, the
region needs to work together to
address these key questions:

1. What do we need most from our
transportation system - today
and in the future?

2.How do we pay for new projects
while taking care of our existing
roads, bridges, bikeways,
sidewalks and transit services?

3.How do we make progress toward
shared climate, safety, equity,
mobility and economic goals?

What is in the plan?

The plan identifies urgent and
long-term transportation needs,
investments to meet those needs
and the funds the region expects
to have available over the next two
decades.

The policies in the Regional
Transportation Plan provide
guidance for transportation
providers that design and manage
roadways, transit and trails. These
agencies include cities, counties,

the Oregon Department of
Transportation, transit agencies and
the Port of Portland. This guidance
is informed by research, community

engagement, technical analysis, and
Federal and State regulations.

New and updated strategies and
policies being developed for the
2023 Regional Transportation Plan
include:

e Climate Smart Strategy

« High Capacity Transit Strategy
« Regional Mobility Policy

« Regional Pricing Policy

The Regional Transportation

Plan also includes an investment
strategy, often called the project
list, that identifies major local,
regional and state transportation
investment priorities for the next
the next 20+ years. This list will
include investments such as transit,
sidewalk, bridge, bikeway and
roadway projects as well as transit
service and road maintenance and
operations. Among these projects,
some will be prioritized for funding
within the next seven years (by
2030).

A financial plan in the Regional
Transportation Plan identifies
how the region will pay for
transportation investments.

Transportation planning is
about more than deciding
where to build and operate
roads, transit, sidewalks

and bikeways. It is about
connecting people with their
families and friends and to
schools, jobs, parks and other
important places, no matter
where a person lives or where
they are going.

Learn more
oregonmetro.gov/rtp

Email
transportation@oregonmetro.gov

Follow oregonmetro

DNEOAC


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/climate-smart-strategy
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/2023-regional-transportation-plan/transit
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/regional-mobility-policy-update
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/regional-congestion-pricing-study
ellisk
Typewritten Text

ellisk
Typewritten Text
2/8/23


2023 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN UPDATE

Project Timeline and Schedule of Planned Engagement and Metro
Council and Regional Advisory Committees’ Discussions and Actions
\YI-Yddel for 2023

SCOPING PLAN UPDATE PLAN ADOPTION

Approved Initiate Release public Consider
waork plan and Call for review draft adoption of
engagement plan Projects plan and 2023 RTP and

) y appendices appendices

PHASE i PHASE

Oct. 2021 to i January to
June 2023

ENGAGEMENTIEENEEEEEE,, =~ DEneoee, e e

H
-l
=
m
=
m
3
2
5]
=
.
=
(<]
=
=
5]
=
H
&

Understand Trends Refine Vision, Update System Build RTP Public Review of
and Challenges Goals, Objectives, Needs and Revenue  Investment Strategy Draft Plan
Develop Work Plan Targets and Policies Forecast Create Draft Plan Plan Adoption

and Engagement Plan

o Key Milestone * Metro Council decision on JPACT action and MPAC recommendation

e (Call for Projects
o Prepare for Call for Projects: 8/4/22 to 1/6/2023
= 8/4/22to 1/6/2023: Metro works with jurisdictional partners to develop revenue
forecast
= 10/4/22 to 2/17/2023: County coordinating committees and agencies conduct meetings
to develop draft project lists for submission
» Early 2023: Agencies engage governing bodies on process and draft lists
o Conduct Call for Projects: 1/6 to 2/17
= 1/6: RTP Hub open to project partners
=  Metro continues to work with jurisdictional partners to develop draft revenue forecast
= 2/3 TPAC: Update on the schedule, engagement and the Call for Projects
= 2/16 JPACT: Update on the Call for Projects and next steps
= 2/17: RTP Hub information, public engagement form and congestion management
process form(s), if applicable, due
= 2/17: Draft Project Lists from Agencies and County Coordinating Committee Lists due
= 2/17: Submission letters from County Coordinating Committees documenting
coordination and agreement on draft lists due
o Submission of endorsement letters and any proposed refinements to the draft lists
= 1/6to 2/17: Governing bodies review draft project list and submit letter of endorsement
with draft project list by 2/17; if additional time is needed endorsement letters may be
submitted until May 24
= 4/1to5/24: Governing bodies may identify project list refinements and communicate
them to Metro by 5/24 with endorsement letter

oregonmetro.gov/rtp Updated March 8, 2023


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/2023-regional-transportation-plan

2023 RTP Update: Project Timeline and Schedule of Planned Engagement and 3/8/23
Metro Council and Regional Advisory Committees’ Discussions and Actions for 2023

Draft Policy Chapter (Ch. 3)
o Preparedraft-12/22to 2/24
o Discussions: March and April

3/3 TPAC: draft Ch.3 — Introduce draft Ch. 3 and key policy topics (draft mobility policy,
draft pricing policy, possibly others) for more discussion; invite minor “edits” to be
included in public review draft RTP by March 24.

3/8 TPAC workshop: draft Ch.3 — Discuss key policy topics; additional discussions may be
added

3/15 MTAC: draft Ch.3 — Discuss key policy topics; additional discussions may be added
4/19 TPAC/MTAC workshop — discuss updated draft Ch. 3

High-level Assessment of Draft Project List
Prepare for assessment: 1/6 to 2/28

@)

1/6 to 2/28: Develop and test work flow and set up data and tools for assessment
Week of March 6: Develop and test work flow for preparing maps, factsheets and other
communication materials to report results; prepare mockups

Conduct assessment of draft project list across climate, equity, mobility, safety and economy
policy outcomes: 3/10 to 3/17

Conduct high-level environmental assessment of project list: 3/13 to 3/30

Consult with Tribes and federal, state, regional and local resource agencies on results of
environmental assessment and potential mitigation strategies, in coordination with 2024-2027
MTIP consultations: Late March-April

= Consultations with Tribes: March 22, March 30, April 4
» Consultations with Federal and State agencies: April 27

Report results of assessment to policymakers and the public: April

3/30 to 4/30: Online public survey on draft project list and assessment results, public
online survey and other engagement activities

4/1 to 4/26: Report on draft project list through briefings to county coordinating
committees, and other interested parties

Week of April 10: Community Leaders’ Forum

April/May: Business Leaders’ Forum

4/7 TPAC: Report on draft project list across climate, mobility, equity, safety and
economy policy outcomes and preview system analysis approach

4/11 Council: Report on draft project list across climate, mobility, equity, safety and
economy policy outcomes

4/12 Culturally specific community forums: Report on draft project list and assessment
results and receive input on project priorities

4/19 TPAC/MTAC workshop: Report on draft project list across climate, mobility, equity,
safety and economy policy outcomes

4/20 JPACT: Report on draft project list across climate, mobility, equity, safety and
economy policy outcomes

4/26 MPAC: Report on draft project list across climate, mobility, equity, safety and
economy policy outcomes

RTP System Analysis
Conduct system analysis: 2/22 to 4/10
Report results of system analysis: Late April-May

@)
@)

2



2023 RTP Update: Project Timeline and Schedule of Planned Engagement and 3/8/23
Metro Council and Regional Advisory Committees’ Discussions and Actions for 2023

= 5/5TPAC: Report on project list input, consultation meeting(s) and draft system
analysis: climate, equity, mobility, safety and economy policy outcomes

= 5/9 Council: Report on project list input, consultation meeting(s) and draft system
analysis: climate, equity, mobility, safety and economy policy outcomes

= 5/10 TPAC workshop: Report on project list input and draft system analysis: overall
system performance; discuss mobility measures and targets

= 5/11 JPACT/Metro Council workshop: RTP project priorities

= 5/17 MTAC: Report on project list input, consultation meeting(s) and draft system
analysis: climate, equity, mobility, safety and economy policy outcomes

= 5/18 JPACT: Report on project list input, consultation meeting(s) and draft system
analysis: climate, equity, mobility, safety and economy policy outcomes

= 5/24 MPAC: Report on project list input, consultation meeting(s) and draft system
analysis: climate, equity, mobility, safety and economy policy outcomes

e  RTP Public Comment Period
o Prepare public review draft RTP and project list: Jan. to June
o Discussions: July to August (and throughout adoption process)
o 6/2 TPAC: Recommendation to JPACT on release of the draft plan and project list for public
review (by Resolution)
6/12 Metro Council discussion
6/15 JPACT: Consider action on TPAC recommendation (by Resolution)
6/29 Council: Consider action on JPACT recommendation (by Resolution)
7/10 to 8/25: Briefings to Council, Metro technical and policy committees, county coordinating
committees, online public comment survey and hearing(s)

o O O O

e Draft Implementation Chapter (Ch. 8)

o Prepare draft: March to May

o Discussions: July and August
= 7/7 TPAC: Seek feedback on draft Ch.8
= 7/11 Metro Council: Seek feedback on draft Ch.8
= 7/19 MTAC: Seek feedback on draft Ch.8
= 7/20 JPACT: Seek feedback on draft Ch.8
= 7/26 MPAC: Seek feedback on draft Ch.8
= 8/4 TPAC: Continue discussion on draft Ch.8, if needed

e RTP Adoption process

o Prepare draft legislation: July

o Conduct adoption process: 8/4 to 11/30
»= 8/4 TPAC: review draft Ordinance and outline of adoption package
= 9/13 TPAC Workshop: Draft Public Comment Report and Recommended Changes
»= 9/20 MTAC: Draft Public Comment Report and Recommended Changes
» 10/6 TPAC: Draft Public Comment Report and Recommended Changes
= 10/18 MTAC: Recommendation to MPAC
= 10/19 JPACT: Introduce final 2023 RTP action (Ordinance)
= 10/25 MPAC: Recommendation to the Metro Council
= 11/3 TPAC: Recommendation to JPACT
= 11/16 JPACT: Consider final action (by Ordinance)
= 11/30 Metro Council: Consider final action (by Ordinance)

3



2023 RTP Update: Project Timeline and Schedule of Planned Engagement and 3/8/23
Metro Council and Regional Advisory Committees’ Discussions and Actions for 2023

KKK KKK KKK KKK KK KK

Updates to the Regional High Capacity Transit Strategy and the Climate Smart Strategy are occurring
concurrent with the 2023 Regional Transportation Plan update and are anticipated to be considered by
for recommendation by MPAC and adoption by JPACT and the Metro Council as part of the final
adoption package for the 2023 Regional Transportation Plan. A schedule of Metro Council and regional
advisory committees’ discussions in support of these updates follows.

e Update HCT Strategy

o January/early Feb.: High Capacity Transit Strategy business group interviews
1/13 to 2/13: Transit priorities online public survey and other engagement activities
1/17 to 2/1: High Capacity Transit Strategy tabling events with TriMet
1/11 TPAC Workshop: High Capacity Transit Strategy Update: Corridor Investment Readiness
Tiers
1/18 MTAC: High Capacity Transit Strategy Update: Corridor Investment Readiness Tiers
1/19 JPACT: High Capacity Transit Strategy Update: Corridor Investment Readiness Tiers
1/25 MPAC: High Capacity Transit Strategy Update: Corridor Investment Readiness Tiers
1/26 Metro Council: High Capacity Transit Strategy Update: Corridor Investment Readiness Tiers
2/1: High Capacity Transit Strategy online Story Map
5/10 TPAC Workshop: High Capacity Transit Strategy Update: Draft Report
5/17 MTAC: High Capacity Transit Strategy Update: Draft Report
5/18 JPACT: High Capacity Transit Strategy Update: Draft Report
5/24 MPAC: High Capacity Transit Strategy Update: Draft Report
5/30 Metro Council: High Capacity Transit Strategy Update: Draft Report

O O O

O O O 0O 0O O O O O O

¢ Update Climate Smart Strategy*

2/15 TPAC/MTAC Workshop: Climate Smart Strategy discussion

2/16 JPACT: Climate Smart Workshop Recap and discussion of updating strategy
3/8 TPAC Workshop: Climate Smart Strategy discussion

3/15 MTAC: Climate Smart Strategy discussion

5/2 TPAC: Climate Smart Strategy discussion

6/21 TPAC/MTAC Workshop: Climate Smart Strategy discussion

O O O O O O

1 Schedule of discussions to be further refined.



@ Metro
Memo

600 NE Grand Ave.
Portland, OR 97232-2736

Date: March 1, 2023

To: Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee (TPAC), Metro Technical Advisory
Committee (MTAC) and interested parties

From: Kim Ellis, AICP, RTP Project Manager

Subject: 2023 Regional Transportation Plan - Draft Chapter 3 (System Policies) for TPAC and
MTAC Review

PURPOSE
This memo provides an update on work underway to update the policy chapter (Chapter 3) of the
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and next steps. This work will continue through June 2023.

ACTION REQUESTED

Discussion and feedback on the draft policies and draft Chapter 3 provided in Attachments 1 and 2.
In addition to providing feedback at the upcoming meetings, TPAC and MTAC members are invited
to submit additional comments by March 24 to kim.ellis@oregonmetro.gov and
lake.mctighe@oregonmetro.gov. The comments provided by this date will be reported and
discussed at the April 19 workshop.

Questions for discussion:
e Do you have comments on the draft Chapter 3 overall?
e Do you have comments on any individual policy areas in Chapter 3?

Opportunities for TPAC and MTAC discussion are planned for March 8 (TPAC workshop), March 15
MTAC meeting) and April 19 (joint TPAC/MTAC workshop).

A word and/or track changes versions of the Draft Chapter 3 are available upon request.
BACKGROUND

A major update to the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) is underway. The RTP is the state- and
federally-required long-range transportation plan for the Portland metropolitan area. The RTP is
the blueprint for transportation in our region and a key tool for implementing the region’s 2040
Growth Concept and Climate Smart Strategy. Together, these plans will help ensure that greater
Portland thrives by connecting people to their jobs, families, schools and other important
destinations and by allowing business and industry to create jobs and move goods to market.

Chapter 3 of the RTP defines a broad range of policies for transportation equity, safety, , climate,
pricing, and mobility as well as a vision and supporting policies for each component of the
regional transportation system - motor vehicle, transit, freight, bike and pedestrian, and for the
design and management of the system.

RTP policies are informed by stakeholder and community input, research and technical analysis,
and Federal and State regulations, and are a key element of the RTP performance-based planning
and decision making framework shown in Figure 1.


mailto:kim.ellis@oregonmetro.gov
mailto:lake.mctighe@oregonmetro.gov
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/2040-growth-concept
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/2040-growth-concept
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/climate-smart-strategy

2023 RTP: DRAFT CHAPTER 3 (SYSTEM POLICIES) KIM ELLIS 3/1/23
FOR TPAC AND MTAC REVIEW

Figure 1. RTP performance-based planning and decision-making framework

Vision Statement

€ .
Establishes the overarching vision
““ (W of the plan

Goals
Expand on the Vision Statement to
describe outcomes of emphasis

outcomes (Goals and Objectives)

’ Policies and Strategies
\ P Detail an approach to meet desired

Performance Measures

Track progress in achieving the
Objectives

Regional policies guide the transportation agencies that design and manage roadways, transit and
trails to meet the transportation needs and priorities of the region and inform transportation
planning and investment decisions made by the Joint Policy Advisory Committee on
Transportation (JPACT) and the Metro Council as well as state and local partners.

POLICY UPDATES FOR THE 2023 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN

RTP policies are reviewed as part of each update to the plan to determine whether new or
updated policies are needed. The RTP work plan adopted by JPACT and the Metro Council in May
2022 identified several policy updates to be addresed as part of the 2023 RTP update, including
development of new and updated policies relate to pricing, mobility, climate, and high capacity
transit.

In addition, the work plan for the 2023 RTP update called for a specific review of these policies:

e RTP Network Maps: The RTP network maps identify planned regionally-significant
transportation facilities and the plan’s vision for design and each element of the
transportation system.

o Transportation equity policies: Review and update RTP transportation equity policies
and actions related to consideration of affordability and anti-displacement strategies in
transporation planning and project development activities.

e Regional freight policies: Review and update RTP freight policies as needed to address
growth in e-commerce and delivery services and recommendations identified through the
Regional Freight Delay and Commodities Movement Study.

e Transportation System Management and Operations (TSMO) policies: Review and
update RTP TSMO policies to incorporate recommendations from the 2019 Regional
Travel Options (RTO) needs assessment and the 2021 TSMO Strategy.

o Transportation Resilience policies: Review and update resilience related policies to
further address the federal resilience planning factor, incorporate the Phase 1 Regional

2


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/2023-regional-transportation-plan/research
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2019/09/03/Final-Needs-and-Opportunities-Assessment.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2019/09/03/Final-Needs-and-Opportunities-Assessment.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/regional-tsmo-strategy
https://rdpo.net/emergency-transportation-routes

2023 RTP: DRAFT CHAPTER 3 (SYSTEM POLICIES) KIM ELLIS 3/1/23
FOR TPAC AND MTAC REVIEW

Emergency Transportation Routes (ETR) update findings and recommendations accepted
by JPACT and the Metro Council in 2021 (including the updated routes), and consider
green infrastructure policy recommendations identified when the 2018 RTP was adopted
in 2018. This work will also incorporate the Phase 1 ETRs in Chapter 3 of the RTP to
define a network for targeted resiliency mitigation/ management funding.

Since adoption of the work plan in May 2022, TPAC, MTAC, JPACT, MPAC, other stakeholders and
the Metro Council have developed new and updated policies related to pricing, mobility, climate,
and high capacity transit through regular meetings and workshops.

o Draft pricing policies. New pricing policies were developed through a four-step process
from May through December 2022. The process included a review of existing relevant RTP
policies, a review of findings and recommendations from the Regional Congestion Pricing
Study and input from an expert review panel, development of draft pricing policies and
actions, and recommendations for updates to other policies and Chapter 8 in the RTP. The
consolidated elements resulting from this process can be found at:
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files /2023 /02 /24 /Draft-2023-RTP-regional-
pricing-policies-memo-Jan2023.pdf

o Draft high capacity transit strategy policies. Updates to the existing RTP transit policies
were shaped by extensive discussions by Metro technical and policy advisory committees,
county coordinating committees, the Metro Council and a technical work group convened
by Metro in support of the High Capacity Transit Strategy update. More information about
this work can be found at: https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects /2023-regional-
transportation-plan/transit

o Draft regional mobility policies. The draft policies were developed from 2019-2022
through a joint effort of Metro and the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT).
Developed significant input from local, regional and state practitioners, Metro technical and
policy advisory committees, other stakeholders and the Metro Council, In November 2022,
JPACT and the Metro Council accepted the new draft policies and supported further
development of the draft performance measures and targets during 2023 RTP system
analysis. JPACT and the Metro Council also supported development of a clear, inclusive
mobility corridor-based approach for needs and solutions evaluation and identification as
part of the 2023 RTP update. More information about this work, including research that
informed the draft travel speed targets for throughways can be found at:

o https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files /2023 /02 /24 /Draft-2023-RTP-
Regional-mobility-policy-overview-Jan2023.pdf

o https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2023/03/01/Regional-Mobility-
Policy-Update-Reliability-Research-Process 0.pdf and

o project website at: https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/regional-
mobility-policy-update

RTP network maps updates: In summer 2022, Metro staff worked with local, regional and state
agencies to review and begin to update the planned regional design and functional classifications
of transportation facilities identified on the RTP Chapter 3 network mapsfor each of these
networks - motor vehicle, freight, transit, bicycle and pedestrian and transportation system
management and operations (TSMO) - to align local, regional and state classifications. Additional
updates to the network maps have been identified by jurisdictional staff during the Call for
Projects and will be reflected in the maps.


https://rdpo.net/emergency-transportation-routes
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/regional-congestion-pricing-study
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/regional-congestion-pricing-study
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2023/02/24/Draft-2023-RTP-regional-pricing-policies-memo-Jan2023.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2023/02/24/Draft-2023-RTP-regional-pricing-policies-memo-Jan2023.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/2023-regional-transportation-plan/transit
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/2023-regional-transportation-plan/transit
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2023/02/24/Draft-2023-RTP-Regional-mobility-policy-overview-Jan2023.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2023/02/24/Draft-2023-RTP-Regional-mobility-policy-overview-Jan2023.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2023/03/01/Regional-Mobility-Policy-Update-Reliability-Research-Process_0.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2023/03/01/Regional-Mobility-Policy-Update-Reliability-Research-Process_0.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/regional-mobility-policy-update
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/regional-mobility-policy-update

2023 RTP: DRAFT CHAPTER 3 (SYSTEM POLICIES) KIM ELLIS 3/1/23
FOR TPAC AND MTAC REVIEW

Other policy updates: Since December 2022, Metro staff also completed a review of existing
regional transportation policies as part of updating Chapter 3 of the Regional Transportation Plan.
The review was conducted to:

e reconcile inconsistencies and/or duplication across policies;

e update existing policy language, especially related to equity, to provide clarity and be
consistent with current best practices;

e provide a consistent level of detail across all policies; and

e address new and revised Oregon Transportation Planning Rule requirements! that apply to
the RTP and local transportation system plans where appropriate.

NEXT STEPS
March-June 2023 Metro continues to work with technical advisory committees to develop the
2023 RTP Public Draft Plan, including discussion of the draft Chapter 3 and
individual policies at these meetings:
e March 8 TPAC Workshop
e March 15 MTAC meeting
e April 19 TPAC/MTAC workshop
March 24 Deadline for TPAC and MTAC to submit additional comments to
kim.ellis@oregonmetro.gov and lake.mctighe@oregonmetro.gov
June TPAC, JPACT and Metro Council action on release of public review draft RTP
(including Chapter 3)
July 10 to Aug. 25 45-day public comment period on the public review draft RTP with
hearing(s)
Sept.-Nov. 2023 Metro staff document public comments received and work with TPAC and

MTAC to develop recommendations for consideration by MPAC, JPACT and
Metro Council

November 2023 JPACT and Metro Council consider adoption of the 2023 RTP (and updated
project and program priorities)

For more information about the update, visit oregonmetro.gov/rtp.

/Attachment

1. TPAC Review Draft: Draft Policies for the 2023 Regional Transportation Plan (2/24/23)
2. Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Chapter 3 (3/1/23)

! The Land Conservation and Development Commission amended the Oregon Transportation Planning Rule
through the Climate Friendly Communities (CFEC) rulemaking process in 2022.

4


mailto:kim.ellis@oregonmetro.gov
mailto:lake.mctighe@oregonmetro.gov
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/public-projects/2023-regional-transportation-plan

Attachment 1

2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update
TPAC Review Draft

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) Policies
February 24, 2023

This document includes the adopted 2018 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) policies, proposed
changes to those policies, and new draft policies related to mobility, pricing, and high capacity
transit that are proposed for inclusion in Chapter 3 of the 2023 RTP. Chapter 3 provides additional
information on each policy included in this document, including background information and an
explanatory narrative of each policy. Additionally, policies that did not orginate from a separate,
stand-alone plan (such as the equity, mobility and pricing policies) may include a list of
implementing actions. Policies that orginate from a separate planor strategy (such as the safety,
climate smart and freight policies) do not include implementing actions in Chapter 3, as the
implementing actions are captured in the original plan.

Metro staff completed a review of existing and new draft regional transportation policies as part of
updating Chapter 3 of the RTP. The review was conducted to:

e reconcile inconsistencies and/or duplication across policies;

e update existing policy language, especially related to equity, to provide clarity and be
consistent with current best practices;

e provide a consistent level of detail across all policies;

e address new and revised Oregon Transportation Planning Rule requirements! that apply
to the RTP where appropriate.

Proposed changes are shown in blue underscore and blaestrikethreugh.

! The Land Conservation and Development Commission amended the Oregon Transportation Planning Rule

through the Climate Friendly Communities (CFEC) rulemaking process in 2022.



Attachment 1

2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update
TPAC Review Draft
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Policies

Regional Transportation Equity Policies

The RTP team consulted with staff in Metro’s Diversity, Equity and Inclusion department to review
the Equity policies and develop suggested revisions, as directed by the 2023 RTP work plan.

Policy 1

Policy 2

Policy 3

Policy 4

Policy 5

Policy 6

Policy 7

Embed equity into the planning and implementation of transportation projects,
programs, policies and strategies to achieve equitable outcomes by assessing
comprehensivelyconsider the benefits and impacts of transportation and eliminating
eliminate disparities and barriers experienced by histerically marginalized
communities, particularly communities of color and people with low income.

Ensure investments in the transportation system support community stability by
anticipating anticipate and minimize minimizing the effects of displacement and
other affordability impacts on histerieally marginalized communities, with a focus on
communities of color and people with low income.

Prioritize transportation investments that eliminate transportation-related
disparities and barriers for histerically marginalized communities, with a focus on
communities of color and people with low income.

engage eppeiat-u-m-ﬂes—ﬁe# communltles of color people w1th low income and other

histerieally marginalized communities to engage-and participate in the development
and implementation of transportation plans, projects and programs.

Use-engagementand-othermethedste Collect and assess_qualitative and quantitative

data to understand the transportation-related disparities, barriers, needs and
priorities of communities of color, people with low income and other historically
marginalized communities.

Evaluate transportation plans, policies, programs and investments to understand
how they address transportation-related disparities and barriers experienced by
communities of color, people with low income and other historically marginalized
communities and the extent disparities are being eliminated.

tpaﬂspeﬁa%}easysfeem—Create 11v1n£ wage career Dathwavs for people of color and
women into the construction industry and support the growth and participation of
women and people of color owned firms on capital projects throughout the
transportation system.

Policy map: Equity Focus Areas

2 @ Metro



Attachment 1

2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update
TPAC Review Draft
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Policies

Regional Safety and Security Policies

No changes to the policies in this section are proposed.

Policy 1

Policy 2

Policy 3

Policy 4

Policy 5

Policy 6

Policy 7

Policy 8

Policy 9

Focus safety efforts on eliminating traffic deaths and severe injury crashes to achieve
Vision Zero.

Prioritize safety investments, education and equitable enforcement on high injury
and high risk corridors and intersections, with a focus on reducing speeds and
speeding.

Prioritize investments that benefit people with higher risk of being involved in a
serious crash, including people of color, people with low incomes, people with
disabilities, people walking, bicycling, and using motorcycles, people working in the
right-of-way, youth and older adults.

Increase safety for all modes of travel and for all people through the planning, design,
construction, operation and maintenance of the transportation system, with a focus
on reducing vehicle speeds.

Make safety a key consideration in all transportation projects and avoid replicating
or exacerbating a known safety problem with any project or program.

Employ a Safe System approach and use data and analysis tools and performance
monitoring to support data-driven decision-making.

Utilize safety and engineering best practices to identify low-cost and effective
treatments that can be implemented systematically in shorter timeframes than large
capital projects.

Prioritize investments, education and enforcement that increase individual and
public security while traveling by reducing intentional crime, such as harassment,
targeting, and terrorist acts, and prioritize efforts that benefit people of color, people
with low incomes, people with disabilities, women and people walking, bicycling and
taking transit.

Make safety a key consideration when defining system adequacy (or deficiency) for
the purposes of planning or traffic impact analysis.

Policy map: High Injury Corridors and Intersections



Attachment 1
2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update
TPAC Review Draft
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Policies

Climate Smart Strategy Policies

These policies are focused on climate mitigation. Three policies were edited to reflect the top three
climate smart strategy priorities identified by JPACT and the Metro Council during a joint workshop
in November 2022. The TSMO parking management policy was deleted to avoid duplication with
Climate Policy 7. The parking policy language from the TSMO policy was used to replace the Climate
Smart parking policy consistent with new Climate-Friendly and Equitable Communities (CFEC)
rules. Additional work is needed to draft climate resilience related policies.

Policy 1 Implement adopted local and regional land use plans and strategies to reduce
vehicle miles traveled per capita to meet regional targets.

Policy 2 Prioritize transportation investments that make transit convenient, frequent,
accessible and affordable to significantly increase transit ridership.

Policy 3 Prioritize transportation investments that make biking and walking safe and
convenient to significantly increase walking and bicycling mode shares.

Policy 4 Make streets and highways safe, efficient, reliable and connected.

Policy 5 Prioritize use of technology to actively manage the transportation system and
ensure that new and emerging technology affecting the region’s transportation
system supports shared trips and other Climate Smart Strategy policies and
strategies.

Policy 6 Provide information and financial incentives to expand the use of travel options.

Policy 7

reducing theamountofland-dedicated-to-parking: Manage parking in mixed-use
centers and corridors that are served by frequent transit service and good biking
and walking connections to reduce the amount of land dedicated to parking,

encourage parking turnover, increase shared trips, biking, walking and use of
transit, reduce vehicle miles traveled and generate revenue.

\Vi a affician a INg cn a hra
a ° pa oY
5

Policy 8 Support Oregon’s transition to cleaner fuels and more fuel-efficient vehicles in
recognition of the external impacts of carbon and other vehicle emissions.

Policy 9 Secure adequate funding for transportation investments that support the RTP
climate leadership-goal-and-ebjectives implementation of the climate smart strategy.

Policy map: Regional Emergency Transportation Routes

4 @ Metro



Attachment 1
2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update
TPAC Review Draft
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Policies

Draft Regional Mobility Policies (New)

The new draft mobility policies were developed through an extensive three-year process with
significant input from local, regional and state practitioners, Metro technical and policy advisory
committees, other stakeholders and the Metro Council. The new policies were accepted by JPACT
and the Metro Council in December 2022. Further discussion of the mobility performance measures
and targets is recommended following completion of the RTP system analysis in April 2022.

Policy 1 Ensure that land use decisions and investments in the transportation system
enhance efficiency in how people and goods travel to where they need to go.

Policy 2 Provide people and businesses a variety of seamless and well-connected travel
modes and services that increase connectivity, increase choices and access to low
carbon transportation options so that people and businesses can conveniently and
affordably reach the goods, services, places and opportunities they need to thrive.

Policy 3 Create a reliable transportation system that people and businesses can count on to
reach destinations in a predictable and reasonable amount of time.

Policy 4 Prioritize the safety and comfort of travelers by all modes when planning and

implementing mobility solutions.

Policy 5 Prioritize investments that ensure that Black, Indigenous and people of color
(BIPOC) community members and people with low incomes, youth, older adults,
people living with disabilities and other marginalized and underserved populations
have equitable access to safe, reliable, affordable and convenient travel choices that
connect to key destinations.

Policy 6 Use mobility performance measures and targets for system planning and evaluating

the impacts of plan amendments including Vehicle Miles Travelled (VMT) per capita

for home-based trips and VMT /emplovee for commute trips to/from work, system
completeness for all modes, and travel speed reliability on the throughways.

Policy map: No policy map

Draft Regional Pricing Policies (New)

The draft regional pricing policies reflect significant discussion and input from Metro technical and
policy advisory committees and the Metro Council from January to Oct. 2022. A memo documenting
the Sept.-Oct. 2022 feedback and policies reflected below is available on the project website.

Policy 1 Improve reliability and efficiency of the transportation network, reduce VMT per
capita, and increase transportation options through congestion management,
investments in transit, bike, and pedestrian improvements, and transportation
demand management programs.

Policy 2. Center equity and affordability into pricing programs and projects from the outset.

5 @ Metro




Attachment 1
2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update
TPAC Review Draft
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Policies

Policy 3 Address traffic safety and the safety of users of all modes, both on the priced system
and in areas affected by diversion.

Policy 4 Minimize diversion impacts created by pricing programs and projects prior to
implementation and throughout the life of the pricing program or project.

Policy 5 Reduce greenhouse gas emissions and vehicle miles travelled per capita while
increasing access to low-carbon travel options.

Policy 6 Coordinate technologies and pricing programs and projects to make pricing a low-
barrier, seamless experience for everyone who uses the transportation system and to

reduce administrative burdens.

Policy map: No policy map

Regional Design and Placemaking Policies

The policies below are not new. Staff have reformatted existing policy language from the 2018 RTP
and 2019 Metro Designing Livable Streets and Trails Guide into standard policy format used for
other RTP policies.

Policy 1 Design the transportation system to implement the planned land uses and regional
urban form envisioned in the 2040 Growth Concept.

Policy 2 Design a well-connected transportation system that serves all modes of travel.

Policy 3 Use regional street design classifications to guide development of streets that balance

the needs of all users and functions of streets according to planned land use and
desired outcomes.

Policy 4 Use transportation network and street design to help achieve regional goals and
desired outcomes, including environmental and human health, climate action and
resilience, a safe system, equitable transportation, mobility options, vibrant
communities, and a thriving economy.

Policy 5 Avoid, minimize and mitigate environmental impacts of the transportation system
using Green Infrastructure design, street trees, wildlife habitat or waterway crossing

improvements and other approaches to the extent practicable.

Policy 6 Use a performance-based approach and decision-making framework to plan and
design transportation projects and networks.

Policy map: Regional Design Classification Map (note: updates to map are underway, consistent
with changes made to the Motor Vehicle classifications; design classifications correspond to land
use and motor vehicle functional classifications )

6 @ Metro



Attachment 1
2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update
TPAC Review Draft
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Policies

Regional Motor Vehicle Network Policies

Three policies are removed because they are addressed by policies in the Safety and Design policy
sections. Three policies are updated to reflect new policy direction in the pricing policies developed
with significant input from Metro technical and policy advisory committees and the Metro Council
and new requirements related to motor vehicle capacity in Oregon Transportation Planning Rule
(OAR 660-012-0830).

Policy 1 Preserve and maintain the region’s motor vehicle network system in a manner that
improves safety, security and resiliency while minimizing life cycle cost and impact on
the environment.

Policy 2 Use the Congestion Management Process, Regional Mobility Policy, safety and bike
and pedestrian network completion data to identify motor vehicle network
deficiencies.

Policy 3 Actively manage and optimize capacity on the region’s throughway network for
longer, regional, statewide and interstate travel.

Policy 4 Actively manage and optimize arterials according to their planned functions to
improve reliability and safety and maintain mobility and accessibility for all modes of
travel.

Policy 5 Strategically expand the region’s throughway network up to six travel lanes, plusand
auxiliary lanes where appropropriate between interchanges, to maintain mobility and
accessibility and improve reliability for regional, statewide and interstate travel.

Policy 6 In-ecombinationwith-inereased-transitservice,consider If new capacity is being added,
evaluate use of value pricing and increased transit service in conjunction with the new
apac1ty to manage trafflc congestlon and reduce VMT per capita and raise revente

Policy 7*2 Complete a well-connected network of arterial streets ideally spaced at approximately
1-mile apart and planned for up to four travel lanes to maintain transit and freight
mobility and accessibility and prioritize safe pedestrian, bicycle and transit access for
all ages and abilities using Complete Street design approaches.

Policy 8 Complete a well-connected network of collector and local streets that provide for local
circulation and direct vehicle, bicycle and pedestrian access to adjacent land uses and
to transit for all ages and abilities.

2 *Note for Policy 7: The number of through lanes may vary based on right-of-way constraints or other factors.
Some places in the region may require additional lanes due to a lack of network connectivity. Major and minor
arterial streets can either be 2 or 4 lanes with turn lanes as appropriate.

7 @ Metro




Attachment 1

2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update
TPAC Review Draft
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Policies

Policy 329 Prior to adding new threughway capacity beyend-the planned-system-ofmotor-vehiele
threughlanes; demonstrate that system and demand management strategies,

including access management, transit and freight priority, and-eongestien pricing, and
transit service and multimodal connectivity improvements cannot meet regional
mobility, safety, climate, and equity policies consistent with OAR 660-012-0830

asdeguatelyraddress throuchway deficienciesand hettlenechks,

Policy map: Regional Motor Vehicle Network Map

Regional Freight Network Policies

One new policy has been added to address findings from the Regional Freight Delay and
Commodities Movement Study. The new policy is focused on addressing the continued growth in e-
commerce and delivery trips and the need for industrial land that provides for an increase in
distribution centers and fulfillment centers.

Policy 1 Plan and manage our multimodal freight transportation infrastructure using a
systems approach, coordinating regional and local decisions to maintain seamless
freight movement and access to industrial areas and intermodal facilities.

Policy 2 Manage the region’s multimodal freight network to reduce delay, increase reliability
and efficiency, improve safety and provide shipping choices.

Policy 3 Better integrate freight issues in regional and local planning and communication to
inform the public and decision-makers on the importance of freight and goods
movement issues.

Policy 4 Pursue a sustainable multimodal freight transportation system that supports the

health of the economy, communities and the environment through clean, green and
smart technologies and practices.

Policy 5 Protect critical freight corridors and access to industrial lands by integrating freight
mobility and access needs into land use and transportation plans and street design.

Policy 6 Invest in the region’s multimodal freight transportation system, including road, air,
marine and rail facilities, to ensure that the region and its businesses stay
economically competitive.

Policy 7 Eliminate fatalities and serious injuries caused by freight vehicle crashes with
passenger vehicles, bicycles and pedestrians, by improving roadway and freight
operational safety.

Policy 8 Adapt future freight system investments to emerging technologies and shifts in
goods movement, including the emergence of e-commerce and automated delivery

systems.
8 @ Metro




Attachment 1

2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update
TPAC Review Draft
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Policies

Policy map: Regional Freight Network Map

Regional Transit Network Policies

Policy updates were developed by the High Capacity Transit Strategy Work Group with input from
Metro technical and policy advisory committees and the Metro Council as part of the Regional High
Capacity Strategy update.

Policy 1

Policy 2

Policy 3

Provide a high-quality, safe, and accessible system that makes transit a convenient

and comfortable transportation choice for everyone to use. Provide-aseamless;

Ensure that the regional transit network equitably prioritizes service to those who
rely on transit or lack travel options; makes service, amenities, and access safe and
secure; improves quality of life (e.g., air quality) and proactively supports stability of

vulnerable communities, particularly communities of color and other marginalized
communities.

Prioritize our investments to create a transit system that encourages people to ride

Policy-24

Policy 4-5

Policy 3 6

Policy 7

transit rather than drive alone and to support transitioning to a clean fleet that
aspires for net zero GHG emissions, enabling us to meet our state, regional, and local

climate goals.

Preserve and maintain the region’s transit infrastructure in a manner that improves
safety,-seeurity reliability and resiliency while minimizing life-cycle cost and impact
on the environment.

ngh Canac1tv Tran51t Make%%ne%&ee&wemen{—bye*pandmgh@keapae}ty

eeneept— Coleete and strengthen a Well connected hlEh caDac1tV transit network to
serve as the backbone of the transportation system. Corridors should generally be
spaced at least one half-mile to one mile or more apart and serve mobility corridors
with the highest travel demand. High capacity transit prioritizes transit speed and
reliability to connect regional centers with the Central City, link regional centers with
each other, and link regional centers to major town centers.

sewree—tn&n&&t—and—km-pmvﬁﬁeeal—seﬁ%e—tmns%enﬂens— Comblete a Well connected

network of local and regional transit on most arterial streets — prioritizing expandin
all-day frequent service along mobility corridors and main streets linking town
centers to each other and neighborhoods to centers.

Through the Better Bus program, prioritize capital and traffic operational treatments

identified in the Enhanced Transit Toolbox in key locations or corridors to improve
transit speed and reliability for frequent service.

9 @ Metro




Attachment 1

2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update
TPAC Review Draft
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Policies

Policy 58

Policy 6 9

Policy 7210

Policy 8 11

Evaluate and support expanded commuter rail and intercity transit service to
neighboring communities and other destinations outside the region.

Make transit more accessible by improving pedestrian and bicycle access to and
bicycle parking at transit stops and stations and using new mobility services to
improve connections to high-frequency transit when walking, bicycling or local bus
service is not an option.

Use technology to provide better, more efficient transit service - focusing on meeting
the needs of people for whom conventional transit is not an option.

Ensure that transit is affordable, especially for people who depend on transit.

Policy map: Regional Transit Network Map (note: this map is still under development through the
HCT strategy update)

Regional Bicycle Network Policies

No changes to the policies in this section are proposed.

Policy 1

Policy 2

Policy 3

Policy 4

Policy 5

Make bicycling the most convenient, safe and enjoyable transportation choice for
short trips of less than three miles

Complete an interconnected regional network of bicycle routes and districts that is
integrated with transit and nature and prioritizes seamless, safe, convenient and
comfortable access to urban centers and community places, including schools and
jobs, for all ages and abilities.

Complete a green ribbon of bicycle parkways as part of the region’s integrated
mobility strategy.

Improve bike access to transit and community places for people of all ages and
abilities.

Ensure that the regional bicycle network equitably serves all people.

Policy map: Regional Bicycle Network Map

10 @ Metro



Attachment 1
2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update
TPAC Review Draft
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Policies

Regional Pedestrian Network Policies

No changes to the policies in this section are proposed.

Policy 1 Make walking the most convenient, safe and enjoyable transportation choice for short
trips of less than one mile.

Policy 2 Complete a well-connected network of pedestrian routes and safe street crossings
that is integrated with transit and nature that prioritize seamless, safe, convenient
and comfortable access to urban centers and community places, including schools and
jobs, for all ages and abilities.

Policy 3 Create walkable downtowns, centers, main streets and station communities that
prioritize safe, convenient and comfortable pedestrian access for all ages and abilities.

Policy 4 Improve pedestrian access to transit and community places for people of all ages and
abilities.
Policy 5 Ensure that the regional pedestrian network equitably serves all people.

Policy map: Regional Pedestrian Network Map

Transportation System Management and Operations Policies

Changes are recommended to the RTP TSMO policies to align with the 2021 TSMO Strategy,
adopted by JPACT and the Metro Council in 2022. Changes also are made to only include the
references to transportation demand management (TDM) and parking policies as they relate to
TSMO. Pricing, TDM and parking related policies have been moved to other policy sections in
Chapter 3 of the RTP and are noted in those sections. The Oregon Transportation Planning rule, as
amended through the Climate Friendly Communities (CFEC) rulemaking in 2022, was also
reviewed and referenced.

Policy 1

pedestrian-infrastructure—mManage travel demand-on the transportation system in

combination-with-adequate-transit service-options: for the effective and efficient use

of publicly funded transportation assets while supporting mobility, multi-modal
reliability, racial equity, safety and reductions in carbon emissions.

Policy 2

maaage%heﬁanspeﬁaﬂen—sys’eem—Take actlons from the reglonal TSMO Strategv bV

supporting a program that conducts planning for operations, develops new
operational concepts, assesses future needs for capabilities, identifies gaps in data and

establishes a process for listening and accountability.

Policy 3 Optimize operations for reliability and mobility by coordinating and advancin
operator capabilities with shared tools and interoperable technologies.

11 @ Metro




Attachment 1
2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update
TPAC Review Draft
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Policies

Policy 34 Provide eemprehensive-integrated, universally-aceessible-and real-time traveler

information data across devices and at physical locations that is comprehensive in
serving the needs of te people and businesses and freight movement.

Policy 45 Improve incident detection and clearance times on the region’s transit and motor
vehicle networks to reduce the impact of crashes on the transportation system.

Policy map: Regional TSMO Network Map (note: updates to this map are underway)

Transportation Demand Management Policies

Metro staff propose adding a new TDM policy section, separated out from the TSMO policy
section, to provide clearer direction for how TDM helps achieve regional policy and which entities
are responsible for delivering TDM programming. Several TDM-related policies from the TSMO
policy section have been moved into this section with refinements.

Policy 1 Develop and refine regional and local TDM policies and implementation and action
plans to help reach climate, mobility and modal targets.

Policy 2 Ensure adequate TDM resources and programming are deployed to meet the public’s

specific mobility needs for employment, education and essential services.

Policy 3 Provide and deliver TDM programming at a variety of scales; state, regional and

local.

Policy 4 Focus TDM efforts on improving access to travel choices and eliminating barriers for
marginalized communities, with a focus on communities of color and people with

low incomes.

Policy map: No policy map

12 @ Metro



Attachment 1
2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update
TPAC Review Draft
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan Policies
Emerging Technology Policies

No changes to the policies in this section are proposed. The section was moved from the front of
Chapter 3 to the end.

Policy 1 Make emerging technology accessible, available and affordable to all, and use
technology to create more equitable communities.

Policy 2 Use emerging technology to improve transit service, provide shared travel options
throughout the region and support transit, bicycling and walking.

Policy 3 Use the best available data to empower travelers to make travel choices and to plan
and manage the transportation system.

Policy 4 Advance the public interest by anticipating, learning from and adapting to new
developments in technology.

Policy map: No policy map

13 @ Metro



3-1

DRAFT

3/1/2023

Chapter 3
System Policies to Achieve Our Vision
2023 Regional Transportation Plan

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



TABLE OF CONTENTS

0] =1 ] 1= 0 7 1
Q0T oL ' N 1
Purposel
(@ T o1 acT e T a1 - 14 o] o NP SRR 1
3.1 Regional Transportation System COMPONENTS .....cccceucirirenerrinenieriennierernneerernssssrennsseseenssssssensssssens 2
3.2 0verarching System POlICIES .....cceivuueiiiiueiiriiieeerieeeeereraneerernneerenassessennsssseennssssennsssssennsssssennssssenns 3

3.2.1 2040 Growth Concept — an integrated land use and transportation vision and

L L (=T =4V U URRPPPPN 3
3.2.2  Transportation EQUItY POIICIES ...ttt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeann 6
3.2.3  Safety and SECUNitY POIICIES ..cciiiiciiieiie e esrree e e e e s abeeeee s 19
3.2.4  Climate Leadership POLICIES ...uiiiiicuiiiiieeiiciiiieee ettt e e e e e e sbree e e s e s eabaee e e e e e sannees 27
I T o ol oY o ol [PPSR 33
32 S |V, o o111 a2 o] [ ol 1T PRSP 55
3.3  Regional Network Visions, Concepts and POlIiCIes ........ccceveeeiiieeeieiiiencerieenccrreneeerrennsesseennnnns 69
3.3.1 Regional mobility COrridor CONCEPT....ccii et e e e e e araeeas 70
3.3.2 Regional Design and Placemaking Vision and POlIiCIES.........ccooeeiiieccciiiiiirrerreeeee e 73
3.3.3 Regional motor vehicle network vision and poliCies..........ooooviecccciiiiiiiiieeee e 86
3.3.4  Congestion MaNagemMENT PrOCESS. ...cuviuuuueueiieieeeeeeeeerereateraaaeeeeeeeeererrrnrrnrnaeeeeeeerrernrnrnnnnanns 95
3.3.5 Regional transit network vision and POlICIES .......cveciiiiiiiiicie e 97
3.3.6 Regional freight network vison and POlICIES ........ceeeiieiieiiiicceeree e 122
3.3.7 Regional active transportation NetWOrk ViSioNn..........ccuveiiiiiciiiieii e 129
3.3.8 Regional bicycle network concept and PoliCies........ccuuveiiiiiciiiiiei e 131
3.3.9 Regional pedestrian network concept and pPoliCies........ccoveciiieiiiiicciiiiiee e 141
3.3.10 Transportation System Management and Operations Vision and Policies ......ccccccceeeeennnnnnnn. 147
3.3.11 Transportation Demand Management Concept and Policies ........cccccovviiviirieieieeiciceeeeeeeeeen, 153
3.3.12 Emerging TEChNOIOZY POIICIES .. ..ottt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s 157
3-3

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



FIGURES

Figure 3-1 Growth Concept — an integrated land use and transportation vision.........ccccceeeeeeiiiiiininnnnnnnnn. 3
Figure 3-2 Regional equity fOCUS @reas MAP ....ceiiicciiiiiieeeciiiiiee e e e ettt e e e eetre e e e e e ettae e e e e e esabsaeeeeeennsseeeaeans 8
Figure 3-3 Regional transportation safety Strategies .....cccccciiiieiieiiiiieee e 20
Figure 3-4 Components of the Safe System approach ........cc..ueeei i 21
Figure 3-5 Guiding principles of the Safe System approach......cccccccvveiiiiiicii e, 22
Figure 3-6 Regional high injury corridors and intersections........ccocccuveiiiiiiciiieee e 22
Figure 3-7 Regional emergency transportation routes (ETR) Map ..c..eeeeeeeeiiiiieeeeeciiiiieeeeeeeiree e 32
Figure 3-8 Regional Mobility Pricing Project Map as of November 2022.........cccccoeccviieeeieeciieeee e, 42
Figure 3-9 System Planning Process Utilizing the Mobility Policy Measures.........ccccovveeeeeicciieeeeeeeecnienn. 64
Figure 3-10 Guidance for Assessing Plan Amendment IMPacts ......ccvveveeveiiiieeei i 67
Figure 3-11 Plan Amendment Process Utilizing the Mobility Policy Measures .........ccccccevevvvvveeeeeerccneeenn, 68
Figure 3-12 Regional transportation system COMPONENTS .....cuiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e e 70
Figure 3-13 Regional mobility corridor CONCEPL........uuviiiiiiiiiiieiieee e e e e 72
Figure 3-14 Mobility corridors in the Portland metropolitan region.........ccccveeeeiecciiieee e, 72
Figure 3-15 Metro’s Designing Livable Streets and Trails GUIe ..........ceeeeviiiiieee i 73
Figure 3-16 Land use and transportation tranSeCt........ccvuccviieieeiiiiiieee et errree e e e e e s e saaaeee s 75
Figure 3-17 STreet CONNECHIVITY ...uuuiieie e ettt s e s e e e e e e e e et eebb e e e eeaaaaas 76
Figure 3-18 Livable streets and trails fUNCLIONS ...........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 77
Figure 3-19 Examples of how green infrastructure can help achieve regional goals ..........ccccceeeennnneee.n. 84
Figure 3-20 The performance-based design decision-making framework ............cccocveeeiiiiiiiieeee e e, 85
Figure 3-21 Regional design classifications Map ....cc.uveiiiieiiiiiiie e e are e 85
Figure 3-22 Regional motor vehicle network CoNCePt .....cc.evviiiiiicie e 86
Figure 3-23 Collector and local street NEtWOrk CONCEPT ....cevviiiiiriiiiiiiiie et 92
Figure 3-24 Regional motor vehicle NetWOrk Map ......coccciiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee e e e 93
Figure 3-25 Regional transit NEtWOIK CONCEPT ....ccciiiciiiiiie ettt e e e e e e rae e e e e e naees 99
Figure 3-26 Regional transit SPECIIUM .....coiciiiiii it e e e e e e e e e e e s aban e e e e e eeaareees 102
Figure 3-27 Regional transit NEtWOIrK Map.......ceiiiiiiciieiee et e e e e sbaee e e e e e eaareeeas 103
Figure 3-28 Service improvements, capital investments and transit supportive elements..................... 105
Figure 3-29 Tools for building a high quality transit SyStem .........cccciiiiiiiiiiie e, 107
Figure 3-30 High capacity transit Map ....coocciiiiieiieceee e e e e e brre e e s e s enare e e e e e e aneeees 115
Figure 3-31 U.S. High speed intercity passenger rail NetWork.........cccueeeiieeiiieee e, 116

Figure 3-32 Regional freight Network CONCEPL.....ooueiiiii i e 122



Figure 3-33 Regional freight NetWOrk Map ... 128

Figure 3-34 Regional bicycle NetWOrk CONCEPL ..oooeeeeiiiiee e 132
Figure 3-35 Bicycle parkWay CONCEPL.....ccoi ittt e e s e s e e e e s s s snbeeee e e e saaneees 135
Figure 3-36 Regional bicycle NetWOrk Map ...t e e e e e e e e e 139
Figure 3-37 Regional pedestrian NETWOrk CONCEPT ......cviiiiiiiiiiie e 142
Figure 3-38 Regional pedestrian NETWOrk Map .....cccuuiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 146
Figure 3-39 Transportation system management and operations Map......cccccceeeeeeciiieeeeeescineee e e e s 152
TABLES

Table 3-1 Growth concept and 1and USE dESIZN .......uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e e e e e e e e e 4
Table 3-2 Priority infrastructure investment strategies .....uuuuiiiiieeiie i 5
Table 3-3 Pricing and IMplementing AZENCY .......coccuiiiiii et e et e e e e s e e e e e e esaraeeeeeeennsaeeees 35
Table 3-4 Potential Options for Revenue REINVESTMENT ..........coeiiiiiiiiiiiiicciieee e e 39
Table 3-5 Draft mobility policy performance measure targets .......cccveeveeecciieeeeeecccieee e e 59
Table 3-6 Typical design components of regional street design classifications .........cccvevveveveeeeieeiennnnnnnn. 77
Table 3-7 Design characteristics of healthy urban arterials ........ccccoiiiiiiiii e, 80
Table 3-8 Toolbox of strategies to address congestion in the region.........cccceeeeeeciiieee e 95
Table 3-9 Effects of |land USE 0N tranSit SEIVICE......coiuiiiiiiiiieie e e 100
Table 3-10 Better Bus treatments to enhance frequent transit SErvice........cccccveecciieeeeeeccciieeee e, 113
Table 3-11 Examples of TSMO and investments in four strategic areas ........ccccceeecvvieeeeeeiciieee e, 148
Table 3-12 RTP goals and corresponding emerging technology principles ......ccccoeecvieeiiiiiciieeee s, 158
3-5

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



INTRODUCTION

Purpose

Transportation shapes our communities and our daily lives, providing access to opportunities and
to meet daily needs. Chapter 3 provides overarching, network, and system management policies
for the regional transportation system.

These polices support implementation of the vision, goals and objectives for the regional
transportation system defined in Chapter 2 and help the region meet regional performance
targets.

Policies guide the development and implementation of the regional transportation system,
informing transportation planning and investment decisions made by the Joint Policy Advisory
Committee on Transportation (JPACT) and the Metro Council as well as state and local partners.

Chapter organization

This chapter is organized into three sections. Regional partners have developed policies in this
chapter over many decades. As a result, policy sections do not always follow the same format or
include all the same elements. Some policies include more detail and implementing actions for
regional, state, and local agencies and stakeholders. These policies, such as transportation equity,
pricing, and mobility, were developed through the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) update
and do not exist in a separate plan. Implementing actions for policies that are derived from a
separate plan, such as the safety and freight policies, are not included in this chapter. Instead, the
separate plan is referenced in the text.

3.1 Regional transportation system components: This section defines the components of the
regional transportation system.

3.2 Overarching system policies: This section defines overarching policies for the regional
transportation system. Overarching system policies correlate to regional goals and include
policies for implementing the 2040 Growth Concept, advancing transportation equity, improving
safety, climate leadership and resilience, using pricing, and supporting multimodal mobility.
Overarching policies are those policies that impact every part of the transportation system and
are essential to meeting regional goals.

3.3 Regional network visions, concepts and policies: This section provides the vision, network
concepts, and policies and policy maps for regional street design and placemaking, the regional -
motor vehicle, transit, freight, pedestrian and bicycling networks, and for transportation system
management and operations, transportation demand management, and emerging technology.

3-1
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



3.1 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM COMPONENTS

WHAT’S CHANGED? RTP staff moved a graphic of the transportation system networks to Section
3.3 to better link it to the network maps and policies.

The policies in this chapter apply to the regional transportation system of the greater Portland
region. A facility or service is part of the regional transportation system if it provides access to any
activities crucial to the social or economic health of the greater Portland region, including
connecting the region to other parts of the state and Pacific Northwest, or provides access to and
within 2040 Growth Concept centers, main streets, corridors and industrial and employment
areas, as described in Section 3.2.1.

Regional transportation system components

The following facilities and areas make up the regional transportation system. Overarching
system policies in Section 3.2 apply to these facilities.

1. Planned and existing throughways, highways and arterials shown on the regional motor
vehicle network map, including:

o All state-owned transportation facilities: interstate, statewide, regional and district
highways and their bridges, overcrossings and ramps.

o All city- or county-owned arterial roadways and their bridges.

2. All streets and transportation facilities, including bicycle and pedestrian facilities, within 2040
centers, corridors, industrial areas, employment areas, main streets and station communities
shown on the 2040 Growth Concept map.

3. All high capacity transit and regional transit network facilities and their bridges shown on the
regional transit network map.

4. All regional bicycle and pedestrian facilities and their bridges, including regional trails shown
on the regional pedestrian and bicycle network maps.

5. All bridges that cross the Willamette, Columbia, Clackamas, Tualatin or Sandy rivers.

6. All freight and passenger intermodal facilities, airports, rail facilities and marine
transportation facilities and their bridges shown on the regional freight network map.

7. Any other transportation facility, service or strategy that is determined by JPACT and the
Metro Council to be of regional interest because it has a regional need or impact (e.g., transit-
oriented development, transportation system management and demand management
strategies, local street connectivity and culverts that serve as barriers to fish passage).

The RTP designates these facilities on the network maps in this chapter. Together, these facilities
and services constitute an integrated and interconnected system that supports planned land uses
and provides travel options to achieve the goals, objectives, and policies of the RTP.

3-2
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



3.2 OVERARCHING SYSTEM POLICIES

This section defines regional transportation system policies related to land use, transportation
equity, safety, climate protection and resiliency, mobility, and pricing. These policies apply to the
regional transportation system and to the networks in Section 3.3.

3.2.1 2040 Growth Concept — an integrated land use and transportation vision and
strategy

WHAT’S CHANGED? Section 3.2.1 is a new section on the 2040 Growth Concept. RTP staff
propose moving the information in this section from Chapter 2 into this chapter. No changes have
been made to the text that was in Chapter 2. Figure 3.1 will be replaced with the most recently
amended version of the 2040 Growth Concept map.

In 1995, the greater Portland region adopted the 2040 Growth Concept, the long-range strategy
for managing growth that integrates land use and transportation system planning to preserve the
region’s economic health and livability in an equitable, environmentally sound and fiscally
responsible manner.

Figure 3-1 Growth Concept — an integrated land use and transportation vision

/

-

STATION COMMUNITIES
d

—— CENTRAL CITY CENTE! ’F PR P
= ! {
) | | = NEIGHBORHOODS
B

N e 2

£

I X
p

=
N - -
CORRIDORS - ]
X

e

|
PARKS AND NATURAL AREAS

{
4
;\\i Y

EMPLOYMENT & INDUSTRIAL LANDS

Shown in Table 3.1, the 2040 Growth Concept includes land use and transportation building
blocks that express the region’s aspiration to incorporate population growth within existing
urban areas as much as possible and expand the urban growth boundary only when necessary. It
concentrates mixed-use and higher density development in urban centers, station communities,

3-3
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



corridors and main streets that are well served by transit. It envisions a well-connected street
network that supports biking and walking for short trips. Employment lands serve as hubs for
regional commerce and include industrial land and freight facilities for truck, marine, air and rail
cargo sites that enable goods to be generated and moved in and out of the greater Portland region.
Freight access to industrial and employment lands is centered on rail, the freeway system and
other road connections.

Implicit in the 2040 Growth Concept is the understanding that compact development is more
affordable, sustainable, livable and fiscally responsible than urban sprawl, and will help reduce
the region’s carbon footprint. Increased pedestrian and bicycle access and new transit and road
capacity are needed to achieve the 2040 Growth Concept vision and support the region’s
economic vitality.

Transportation and the economy are closely linked and investments that serve certain land uses,
or transportation facilities may have a greater economic return than others. Focusing
transportation investments and other strategies to support the gateway function of our region’s
transportation system. This means ensuring reliable and efficient connections between
intermodal facilities and destinations within and outside the region to promote the region's
function as a gateway for trade and tourism.

3.2.1.1 2040 Growth Concept Land-use Design Types

The 2040 Growth Concept land uses, called 2040 Design Types, are arranged in a hierarchy.
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) investments are typically focused in the primary and
secondary land uses, referred to as 2040 Target Areas. These are the areas expected to absorb a
large share of the region’s future growth. The hierarchy also serves as a framework for
prioritizing RTP investments. Table 3-1 lists the 2040 design types based on this hierarchy.

Table 3-1 Growth concept and land use design

Primary land uses Secondary land uses | Other urban land uses
e  Portland central city e Employment areas | e Neighborhoods
e Regional centers e Town centers
e |ndustrial areas e Station communities Other land uses outside UGB
e  Freight and passenger e Corridors e Urban reserves
intermodal facilities e  Main streets e Rural reserves
e Neighbor cities

Different parts of the region are at different stages of implementing the 2040 Growth Concept. As
a result, different areas may have different transportation investment needs and priorities that
will require substantial public and private investment over the long-term.

3-4
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Table 3-2 Priority infrastructure investment strategies

Infrastructure Investment Strategies

Operations, maintenance
and preservation of existing
transportation assets.

Operations, maintenance
and preservation of existing
transportation assets.

Operations, maintenance
and preservation of existing
transportation assets.

Managing the existing
transportation system to
optimize performance for all
modes of travel.

Preserving right-of-way for
future transportation
system.

Preserving right-of-way for
future transportation
system.

Leveraging infill,
redevelopment and use of
brownfields.

Managing the existing
transportation system to
optimize performance for all
modes of travel.

Providing a multimodal
urban transportation
system.

Addressing bottlenecks and
improving system
connectivity to address
barriers and safety
deficiencies.

Leveraging infill,
redevelopment and use of
brownfields

Managing new
transportation system
investments to optimize
performance for all modes
of travel.

Providing a multimodal
urban transportation
system.

Providing a multimodal
urban transportation
system.

Focusing on bottlenecks and
improving system
connectivity to address
barriers and safety
deficiencies.

Completing local street
connections needed to
complement the arterial
street network.

Focusing on bottlenecks and
improving system
connectivity to address
barriers and safety
deficiencies.

Completing local street
connections needed to
complement the arterial
street network.

Completing local street
connections needed to
complement the arterial
network.

3-5

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023




3.2.2 Transportation Equity Policies
WHAT’S CHANGED? RTP staff proposed the following changes:

e Moved equity policies up in the chapter to directly follow the 2040 Growth Concept, to
lead with equity.

e Consulted with staff in Metro’s Diversity, Equity and Inclusion department to review the
Equity policies and develop suggested revisions, as directed by the 2023 RTP work plan.

e Numbered equity actions to make them easier to reference.

The Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) reflects a regional commitment to plan and invest in the
region’s transportation system to reduce transportation-related disparities and barriers faced by
communities of color and other marginalized communities, regardless of race, language
proficiency, income, age, or ability.

Defining terms

Marginalized communities: Groups who have been denied access and/or suffered past institutional
or structural discrimination in the United States, including people of color, people with low English
proficiency, people with low income, youth, older adults and people living with disabilities

Transportation equity: The removal of barriers to eliminate transportation-related disparities faced
by and improve equitable outcomes for marginalized communities, especially communities of color

Racial equity: The removal of barriers with a specific focus on eliminating disparities faced by and
improving equitable outcomes for communities of color — the foundation of Metro’s adopted equity
strategy with the intent of also effectively identifying solutions and removing barriers for other
disadvantaged groups

Equity focus areas: Census tracts where the rate of people of color, people in poverty and people
with low English proficiency is greater than the regional average and double the density of one or
more of these populations

The policies in this section provide direction to Metro, working in partnership with marginalized
communities, jurisdictions, and other partners, to prioritize racial and transportation equity in
regional transportation planning and decision-making.

Why is a focus on racial equity important?

The goal of a racial equity focus is to reach a time when we no longer use race to predict life
outcomes, and outcomes for all groups are improved. In the transportation context, this means
addressing and closing the disparities gap for marginalized communities, with emphasis on
people of color, English language learners, and people with low incomes, in areas identified by
these communities as priorities for the regional transportation system. These priorities include,
but are not limited to accessibility, mobility, safety, affordability and environmental health.

3-6
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



In order for the greater Portland region to be environmentally sustainable and economically
prosperous, the region must proactively address racial disparities and tackle the most pervasive
challenges not allowing members of the greater Portland region to thrive. Focusing on racial
disparities and barriers will help develop and maintain sustainable economic growth by fostering
greater racial inclusion and smaller racial income gaps.! This, in turn, will allow communities
facing the greatest barriers opportunities to flourish, build generational wealth and, ultimately,
succeed. Policies, projects, and strategies that address these disparities will help other
marginalized groups, including lower-income White households, older adults, youth and people
with disabilities prosper and flourish.

The greater Portland region’s economic prosperity and quality of life depend on an equitable
transportation system that provides every person and business in the region with access to safe,
efficient, reliable, affordable, and healthy travel options and have the fair opportunity to thrive,
regardless of their race or ethnicity. Investment in the region’s transportation system is one
important tool in reducing disparities and barriers experienced by communities of color. But the
tool must be intentional and deployed with focus to be successful in reducing racial disparities
rather than exacerbating disparities.

With a transportation system focused on mobility and access that addresses the transportation
disparities and barriers faced by communities of color, the region’s transportation system has the
ability to open opportunities that can dramatically improve outcomes for all marginalized
communities. While on the surface, a focus on racial equity may seem exclusionary, by addressing
the most challenging shared barriers faced by those communities, outcomes for other
marginalized communities will improve as well.2

3.2.2.1 Metro’s Strategic Plan to Advance Racial Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion (2016)

In 2010, the Metro Council adopted equity as one of the region’s six desired outcomes. Adopted by
the Metro Council in June 2016, Metro’s Strategic Plan to Advance Racial Equity, Diversity, and
Inclusion (Strategic Plan) is a major milestone in the agency’s efforts to define, implement and
measure equity in the greater Portland region.3

The Strategic Plan’s purpose is to provide a strategic approach to incorporating equity into policy,
decision-making and programs. The Strategic Plan provides clarity and direction to Metro’s
different lines of business related to integrating and approaching equity in planning, operations,
and services.

1 Treuhaft, S., Blackwell, A.G., & Pastor, M. (2012). America’s Tomorrow: Equity is the Superior Growth Model. Retrieved January 2016:
www.policylink.org/sites/default/files/SUMMIT_FRAMING_WEB_20120110.PDF

2To learn more about racial equity as an inclusionary strategy to help other marginalized groups (i.e., low-income households, people with
disabilities, older adults), see resources, including Metro’s Strategic Plan to Advance Racial Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion or PolicyLink.

3 https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2016/11/15/Strategic-plan-advance-racial-equity-diversity-inclusion-exec-summary-17063-
20160613.pdf

3-7

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2016/11/15/Strategic-plan-advance-racial-equity-diversity-inclusion-exec-summary-17063-20160613.pdf
chrome-extension://efaidnbmnnnibpcajpcglclefindmkaj/https:/www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2016/11/15/Strategic-plan-advance-racial-equity-diversity-inclusion-exec-summary-17063-20160613.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2016/11/15/Strategic-plan-advance-racial-equity-diversity-inclusion-exec-summary-17063-20160613.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2016/11/15/Strategic-plan-advance-racial-equity-diversity-inclusion-exec-summary-17063-20160613.pdf

The key aspect of the Strategic Plan is its focus and emphasis on deliberately tackling inequities
based on race and ethnicity. The Strategic Plan is organized around five long-term goals.

The goals are:

A. Metro convenes and supports regional partners to advance racial equity;
Metro meaningfully engages communities of color;
Metro hires, trains, and promotes a racially diverse workforce;

Metro creates safe and welcoming services, programs and destinations; and

m o 0w

Metro’s resource allocation advances racial equity.

Each goal area has specific objectives and implementation actions associated to each goal some of
which are internally focused on Metro practices and some of which are externally focused on how
Metro considers and serves the needs of communities of color and will require collaborative effort
with partners.

3.2.2.2 Regional Transportation Plan equity focus areas

The Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) focuses on three marginalized communities:
e People of Color - Persons who identify as non-White.
e English Language Learners - Persons who identify as unable “to speak English very well.”

e People with Lower Incomes - Persons with incomes equal to or less than 200% of the Federal
Poverty Level

These three communities are the emphasis and focus for the Regional Transportation Plan, but
not with exclusivity to the needs of other marginalized communities, including young people,
older adults and people living with disabilities.

Figure 3-2 shows Equity Focus Areas, which are areas with double the regional average density of
any one of the three groups listed above. The RTP directs certain investments toward these areas
where they can benefit as many people in need as possible. More detail on how Metro created this
map and on transportation equity in the region can be found in the Needs Assessment in Chapter
4.

Figure 3-2 Regional equity focus areas map

3-8
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



3.2.2.3 Transportation equity policies

The Transportation Equity policies in this section aim to eliminate transportation-related

disparities and barriers* identified by marginalized communities as priorities to address through
the RTP and regional transportation planning and decision-making processes.

Policy 1

Policy 2

Policy 3

Policy 4

Policy 5

Policy 6

Policy 7

Embed equity into the planning and implementation of transportation projects,
programs, policies, and strategies to achieve equitable outcomes for marginalized
communities, particularly communities of color and people with low incomes.

Ensure investments in the transportation system support community stability by
anticipating and minimizing the effects of displacement and other affordability
impacts on marginalized communities, with a focus on communities of color and
people with low income.

Prioritize transportation investments that eliminate transportation-related
disparities and barriers for marginalized communities, with a focus on communities
of color and people with low income.

Meaningfully engage communities of color and other marginalized communities to
participate in the development and implementation of transportation plans, projects
and programs.

Collect and assess qualitative and quantitative data to understand the
transportation-related disparities, barriers, needs and priorities of communities of
color and other marginalized communities.

Evaluate transportation plans, policies, programs, and investments to understand
how they address transportation-related disparities and barriers experienced by
communities of color, people with low income and other marginalized communities
and the extent disparities are being eliminated.

Create living-wage career pathways for people of color and women into the
construction industry and support the growth and participation of women and
people of color owned firms on capital projects throughout the transportation
system.

The policies provide direction as to how Metro, working in partnership with marginalized

communities, jurisdictions and other partners, will prioritize transportation equity in regional

transportation planning and decision-making. These policies are consistent with Chapter 660

4 Transportation-related disparities and barriers identified by historically marginalized communities as priorities to address include safety,

access, affordability and community health.

3-9

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action?selectedDivision=3062

Division 12 of Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR).5 These rules include additional guidance for
equitable transportation planning and decision-making.

Because the Regional Transportation Equity Policies do not have a separate topical plan, specific
implementing actions are included for each transportation equity policy.

Transportation Equity Policy 1. Embed equity into the planning and implementation of
transportation projects, programs, policies, and strategies to achieve equitable outcomes for
marginalized communities, particularly communities of color and people with low incomes.

Transportation mobility and accessibility plays a significant intersectional role in reducing
disparities, but historically, its development and operation has contributed to unequal benefits.
Using transportation infrastructure projects as an urban renewal mechanism led to the
destruction of thriving communities, particularly communities of color across the nation. In
Portland, the development of the interstate freeway system displaced communities of color and
lower-income homes, most notably the African American community.

Since the asphalt and concrete was poured, the lessons learned from the generational impacts of
the interstate system on marginalized communities necessitates that to achieve the RTP goal of
equitable transportation, embedding equity considerations are essential to each step of the
planning and implementation process for transportation projects, programs, policies and
strategies. Equity considerations must reflect the priorities these marginalized communities
voiced for the transportation, which may include, but not limited to accessibility, safety,
community health, and affordability. To embed equity into planning and implementation requires
a paradigm shift as to how transportation is currently planned, built and operated. This includes
bringing in unheard voices from project or policy inception all the way through construction to
understand the perspective of potential benefits or impacts.

Additionally, transportation investments must consider the different ways in which they can
advance equity. A transportation investment has the ability to provide greater access to support
marginalized communities reach educational facilities or new job opportunities, but a
transportation investment also offers contracting and hiring opportunities. By embedding equity
into transportation comprehensively, a full view and consideration of the benefits and impacts of
transportation can be understood and weighed. A variety of actions can guide agencies in
embedding equity into transportation processes. Many transportation agencies have
organizational level equity policies that can support the implementation and incorporation of
these actions. For example, existing policies and structures can support participation mechanisms,
such as creation of committees in ways that address power imbalances among groups and
stipends for community participation in decision making processes.

To implement Transportation Equity Policy 1 regional partners should take the following actions:

5 See OAR 660-012-0130 (Decision-Making with Underserved Populations), OAR 660-012-0125(Underserved Populations) and OAR 660-012-
0135 (Equity Analysis).https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action?selectedDivision=3062

3-10
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action?selectedDivision=3062
https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action?selectedDivision=3062

1. Examine the structure of decision-making processes, identify who participates (or
doesn’t) in decision making and how their input is linked to the outcomes of the decisions.

a. Change the design of decision-making processes to increase access and
opportunity to those who have been previously excluded. This includes
prioritizing representation from Black, Indigenous and People of Color
communities and equity leaders.

b. Provide opportunities for direct interaction with decision makers and shift power
inequities.

2. Use specific methods, analysis and tools in transportation planning and decision-making
processes to eliminate exclusionary practices. This includes using tools, analysis and
methods to check implicit bias and assess more clearly power dynamics in the effort,
providing distinct participation mechanisms for those most impacted, considering who
benefits and who is most impacted by decisions, and ultimately shifting the way decisions
are made.

a. Data collection and analysis: Assessment of current community conditions that
may be impacted by the proposed decision with attention to demographics and
historical, economic, and environmental conditions.

b. Social and economic power analysis: A social power analysis is a tool that can be
used to determine who has the decision-making power or influence, historically
and today, to inform this decision, as well as who has the power to change this
decision. This analysis is supported by data collection that consider who is
positively and negatively affected by the proposed decision.

c. Appointed representation: Appointed representation is a participation mechanism
for appointing individuals from specific social groups who have the least influence
and are most impacted by the proposed decision.

d. Decision mapping: This tool supports the design of a process to include individuals
and groups that lack access and opportunity to participate in decision making.
Conceptual mapping of a process is used to determine how and when individuals
or a group may be included in decisions and how their input is linked to outcomes.
A key aspect of this is identifying decision points to inform how to situate
participants to influence decisions rather than serve as a review body.

3. Reflective questions: Incorporating specific questions into decision making processes help
address implicit bias and shift the way we make decisions. These may include questions
such as: Who benefits and who is burdened by this decision? In addition, more extensive
and in-depth questions may be tailored to the specific policies and programs.

Transportation Equity Policy 2. Ensure investments in the transportation system support community
stability by anticipating and minimizing the effects of displacement and other affordability impacts
on marginalized communities, with a focus on communities of color and people with low income.

3-11
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



A trend observed across many western U.S. cities is that with a severe deficit of housing supply,
particularly affordable units, the addition of certain transportation projects, such as a new rail line
or a high-quality bicycle/pedestrian trail, can increase surrounding property values and
contribute to displacement. Portland is not immune to these trends. Over time, former ethnic and
new immigrant neighborhoods near the region’s core with great access have gentrified, displacing
a number of communities which have an established a history associated with these places. The
2040 growth centers, as appealing and desirable, are not keeping pace with a mix of affordable
housing to keep existing residents while transportation investments are being made. This creates
a vicious cycle of increased transportation access to those who have the financial means to afford
travel options and the benefits not born to the existing community.

The success, sustainability and prosperity of the region relies on how well the region manages
issue of displacement as infrastructure investments are made. But too often the silos of
transportation and land use prevent coming to agreement on creative solutions which can
mitigate and proactively address displacement. The greater Portland region is renowned for
breaking down the transportation and land use silo, but displacement is a pervasive challenge that
requires further collaboration across disciplines and acknowledgement by all transportation
professionals that they are part of the solution and not an outside observer. To ensure investment
in the transportation system anticipate, affordability impacts and the effects of displacement,
planning and implementation of transportation investments must be coordinated with the
surrounding land use, take extra care and consideration of the demographic factors in the
surrounding area in evaluating the displacement risk, implement land use strategies prior to the
transportation investment, engage the marginalized communities at risk, and imbed funding
commitments.

To implement Transportation Equity Policy 2 regional partners should take the following actions:

1. Plan capital transportation investments to include a compendium of strategies to avoid
and minimize involuntary displacement.

2. Demonstrate how intersectional issues of housing affordability and displacement are
being addressed proactively in plans and programs prior to capital investment in
transportation infrastructure.

a. In compendium, look at the land use solutions and survey what is necessary in
land use policy to avoid and mitigate involuntary displacement.

b. Collect data and build analysis tools that can assess and monitor transportation
and housing affordability issues and share the information to partners in order to
help inform capital investment decisions.

3. Increase the number of units of regulated affordable housing in proximity to frequent
transit service and in 2040 growth centers as well as communities with rich access to
travel options, jobs, and community places.[1]

3-12
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Transportation Equity Policy 3. Prioritize transportation investments that eliminate transportation-
related disparities and barriers for marginalized communities, with a focus on communities of color
and people with low income.

To achieve the RTP goal of equitable transportation, efforts to close the gap marginalized
communities experience relative to outcomes the transportation system contributes to is vital.
Transportation outcomes identified as priorities by marginalized communities include
affordability, safety, access and environmental health. To focus on eliminating disparities is a
paradigm shift in current practices of transportation and means approaching transportation
plans, programs, policies and investments under the lens of fairness rather than equality.

While there is a desire to see the benefits and impacts of transportation distributed equally across
everyone, an approach which does not intentionally focus on equitable outcomes does not help
close the disparities caused by a pervasive system which erected barriers and separated the level
of benefit for certain communities over others. Eliminating the disparities is also a long-term
commitment and significant undertaking as no one project can undo system-wide disparities
which have been compounded over years. Nonetheless, in focusing on eliminating the disparities
brought on by the transportation system’s development and operation, not only will marginalized
communities see the benefits, but the region will see benefits spread across all communities.

To begin to focus on the disparities, it is imperative for marginalized communities to provide the
direction and prioritization of which disparities to tackle first and the best methods to do so.
Through the development of the RTP, engagement with marginalized communities and a
retrospective process of previous engagement efforts elevated the need for the transportation
system to provide greater accessibility, be safer for all users, be more affordable for users, and
finally not detriment the health and well-being of all communities, but particularly marginalized
communities as they have shouldered the brunt of environmental impacts.

As a starting point and a way to begin focusing on addressing the disparities immediately, an
intentional focus is necessary with the prioritization of the allocation of resources to focus on
those outcomes that marginalized communities have identified as the priorities for their
communities and within their communities in the near- and the long-term. This should also be
done with continued engagement through implementation and future prioritization processes to
reflect new priorities or other unforeseen issues. Also see Transportation Equity Policies 4 through
6.

To implement Transportation Equity Policy 3 regional partners should take the following actions:

1. Seek opportunities to restore Black, Indigenous and people of color (BIPOC) and other
marginalized communities harmed by past transportation decisions through collaborative
re-investment and removal of harmful infrastructure.

2. Commit to and focus on systematically addressing disparities for marginalized
communities, and measure and track progress.

3-13
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



3. Actively question and engage impacted communities to understand how the plan,

program, policies, strategies, or action being undertaken contributes to reducing and
eliminating disparities.

4. Actively recognize and put aside implicit partialities and biases.

5. More specifically for the outcomes of safety, access, affordability and public health,
prioritize the following:

a.

Among the multiple priorities for the region’s transportation system, prioritize
and advance the equity elements of the priority. For example, in looking at a
transportation investment focused on safety, advance the element that would
benefit communities of color over a general safety benefit.

Prioritize building out the active transportation infrastructure network in areas
where there are gaps and deficiencies. Focus on completing gaps in communities
of color as a means of prioritizing equity. This includes advancing the completion
of access to transit in marginalized communities.

Implement the Regional Travel Options Strategy, including the new Safe Routes to
School program, with emphasis to support new partnerships with organizations
that serve marginalized communities.

Prioritize the safety of the transportation system, especially in marginalized
communities, but focus on addressing the systemic safety issues on high injury
corridors which marginalized communities’ traverse. Focus on increasing safety in
high-risk locations and on high injury corridors that coincide with higher
residential concentrations of marginalized communities.

Prioritize and focus on increasing active transportation and transit access to jobs
and community places (e.g., libraries, pharmacies, grocery stores, schools, etc.) and
services for marginalized communities. Place an emphasis on connecting
marginalized communities to middle-wage employment opportunities.

6. Focus on different transit solutions transit that serve marginalized communities.

a.

d.

This may include creative solutions such as community and job connector shuttle
services.

Focus increase in service on transit routes that serve a significant portion of
marginalized communities.

While not the most productive and efficient from a strict transit management view,
consider coverage transit service routes to support marginalized communities as
they navigate the shifting housing affordability dynamics.

Support special needs transportation providers.

7. Complement affordable housing and transit-oriented development to support the
integration of land use and transportation where marginalized communities have the
ability to benefit.

3-14

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



a. Ensure the long-term sustainability of programs that make transportation
affordable, including the adult low-income fare and student pass programs on
transit.

b. Complement and cross-implement the strategies in the Coordinated
Transportation Plan for Seniors and People with Disabilities in Appendix G.

8. Document existing disparities in exposure to transportation related air pollutants and
evaluate whether projects reduce or exacerbate disparities.

Transportation Equity Policy 4. Meaningfully engage communities of color and other marginalized
communities to participate in the development and implementation of transportation plans,
projects and programs.

To achieve an equitable transportation system that eliminates disparities and barriers
experienced by marginalized communities, meaningful engagement is critical to understand the
perspectives and experiences of marginalized communities and build plans, projects, and
programs to address these perspectives and experiences.

Meaningful and inclusive engagement takes a significant effort and relies on building relationships
and trust with members of marginalized communities, which is a significant change from the
conventional practices of public involvement in the transportation sector, which places barriers to
being involved. Engagement and inclusion is part of embedding equity by allowing for
marginalized communities to be seen, heard and considered, and allow for their needs and
priorities to influence the planning and decision-making process.

To implement Transportation Equity Policy 4 regional partners should take the following actions:
1. Reduce the barriers to participation in public processes for these communities.

a. Transportation professionals should look to reduce the barriers for marginalized
communities to participate (e.g. go out into the community, offer language
translation and childcare services, provide food and incentives) and reach out to
marginalized communities in meaningful ways (e.g. engaging through a
community liaison, allowing communities to lead the discussion) and at
opportunities to shape and influence transportation plans, policies and program
(e.g. not at a perfunctory time).

2. ldentify funding and contracting opportunities for community outreach liaisons and
community based organizations who are trusted members of marginalized communities
and to help facilitate relationship-building, conversations, and meaningful engagement.

3. Dedicate resources that toward meaningfully engaging marginalized communities in
planning and decision-making processes.

4. Bring in voices from marginalized communities to add perspective and help guide how
equity can be embedded in the planning and decision-making process. Also see
Transportation Equity Policy 4.

3-15
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



5. Look to Climate Friendly Equitable Communities (CFEC) for guidance/rules on inclusive
decision making.

Transportation Equity Policy 5. Collect and assess qualitative and quantitative data to understand
the transportation-related disparities, barriers, needs and priorities of communities of color and
other marginalized communities.

Conventional data sources and analysis practices do not always capture and articulate the nature
of disparities experienced by different marginalized communities. While national datasets or
statewide statistics are able to provide a picture of disparities gaps in local data and information
impacts the ability to assess the performance of transportation plans, programs, and policies on
the outcomes and priorities identified marginalized communities.

The need to collect more disaggregated data with confidence at a localized scale gives the ability
to look in-depth at localized conditions on key transportation outcomes identified as priorities by
marginalized communities — affordability, safety, access, and environmental health - is necessary
to understand the current level of disparities and establish an appropriate baseline. Until the data
need is fulfilled, it is imperative to supplement data collection and assessment with engagement to
gather the qualitative information directly from marginalized communities. The information
collected helps to better represent and articulate the disparities experienced and needs of
marginalized communities to help bring focus.

Additionally, in supplementing engagement as part of data collection, the process helps to confirm
needs, gaps, and deficiencies which may have already been identified. In facilitating greater
attention to data collection and assessment focused on the needs and priorities of marginalized
communities, particular communities of color, transportation professionals have further ability
and information to plan, program, and implement strategies or actions which can better address
the priorities and needs.

To implement Transportation Equity Policy 5 regional partners should take the following actions.:
1. Collect data in a manner that facilitates looking at outcomes with an equity lens.
a. Collectlocalized disaggregated data.
b. Emphasize collecting as much qualitative data as quantitative data.
c. Collect data that is meaningful to marginalized communities.

2. Appropriately resource data collection and assessment to focus on outcomes with an
equity lens.

a. Acknowledge and recognize data collection and assessment methods will be
unfamiliar and new for many project managers and likely to be a necessary but
challenging to break convention.

3. Appropriately resource the development of a disparities baseline looking at measures of
affordability, safety, access, and environmental health to understand disparities of
marginalized communities, in particular people of color.

3-16
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



4. Conduct meaningful engagement with marginalized communities to supplement and
ground truth data and technical analysis findings.

Transportation Equity Policy 6. Evaluate transportation plans, policies, programs, and investments to
understand how they address transportation-related disparities and barriers experienced by
communities of color, people with low income and other marginalized communities and the extent
disparities are being eliminated.

To know and to be accountable to whether transportation plans, programs, policies and strategies
are making progress towards eliminating disparities, particularly in access, safety, affordability,
community health and any other transportation-related priority identified by marginalized
communities, evaluation under the lens of what disparities the plans, policies, programs and
strategies address is just as crucial as engagement, prioritization and mitigation. The assessment
process helps to understand effectiveness, progression, monitoring and accountability in
achieving the equitable transportation and other associations RTP goals and objectives.
Evaluation also provides transparency towards what to expect as a result.

To implement Transportation Equity Policy 6 regional partners should take the following actions:

1. Resource evaluation methodology development appropriately.

a. Disaggregate and evaluate data system-wide, as well as by individual project,
program or community.

b. Let the evaluation be led, guided and verified by marginalized communities and
their lived experiences.

c. Ground truth evaluation results through engagement.
d. Utilize both qualitative and quantitative data in evaluation.
2. Be willing to use non-standard forms of evaluation.

a. Clearly state assumptions and recognize what the method may be testing and the
limitations of the evaluation.

3. Setup along-term feedback loop of evaluation and monitoring.

a. Evaluate at each stage and monitor whether projected outcomes are coming to
fruition and/or whether plans, policies, programs and strategies may need
additional mitigations or a course correction.

Transportation Equity Policy 7. Create living-wage career pathways for people of color and women
into the construction industry and support the growth and participation of women and people of
color owned firms on capital projects throughout the transportation system.

To Be ADDED: A call-out box that provides background on Construction Career Pathways, and/or
link to the Construction Career Pathways webpage.

3-17
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



The construction industry has seen tremendous growth in the last ten years and is one of the
fastest-growing industries in recent years, outpacing the rest of the economy. The median wage
for construction occupations is higher than the median wage across all sectors in the greater
Portland region. It is one of the remaining sectors where workers can make a living-wage income
without a higher education degree. At the same time the construction industry is grappling with
costly workforce shortages driven by an aging workforce and reality that women and people of
color face significant barriers in entering the industry and building their careers.

Construction has been a racially homogenous industry, yet labor market data indicates a shortage
in skilled talent. Diversifying the construction workforce will not only help create a stronger
supply of needed workers for the industry, but it will also directly address issues of poverty and
economic mobility within communities of color and working families in the region.

Transportation infrastructure projects can have a big impact on promoting equitable growth in
the region’s economy by providing job opportunities for people of color in the construction trades.
While federal and state laws have provisions which facilitate greater access for minority, women-
owned and disadvantaged businesses (MWDBE) to be part of these contracting and construction
opportunities, the construction industry has a workforce which is not reflective of demographics.
Yet it remains a sector that provides access to living-wage careers for marginalized communities,
particularly communities of color.

The RTP, is a long-range transportation blueprint for the capital investments needed to
accommodate existing needs and future populations and employment growth. An emphasis on the
construction workforce is relevant to building out the transportation system equitably and
making progress towards reducing the disparities seen among marginalized communities in
terms of living-wage career opportunities and longer-term income stability and affordability. By
focusing public investments to advance contracting and workforce equity in the construction
trades, transportation infrastructure projects can help mitigate wealth disparity gaps experienced
by marginalized communities.

Metro’s Construction Career Pathways is a coordinated strategy for growing and diversifying the

region’s construction workforce. This effort centers on a shared policy framework that provides a
roadmap for public agencies to work with labor unions, workforce development organizations
and contractors to create opportunities for women and people of color in the construction
workforce. As more public agencies in the region join the effort, each agency’s individual
workforce development efforts are better positioned to succeed in cultivating a labor pool that
strengthens their community and reflects the populations they serve.

To implement Transportation Equity Policy 7 regional partners should take the following actions:

1. Formalize reporting of minority, women-owned and disadvantaged businesses construction
contracts and workforce diversity utilization on all Metro-funded transportation projects.

3-18
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/regional-leadership/diversity-equity-and-inclusion/construction-career-pathways

2. For transportation investments programmed within the MTIP, particularly as part of the
construction phases, request from partners information about minority, women-owned and
disadvantaged business contracting and workforce diversity utilization.

3. Through partnership with Metro’s Diversity, Equity and Inclusion program, provide
information and resources to partners on ways to support and advance equity in contracting
and workforce.

4. Develop mechanisms to incentivize partners to pursue recruitment and retention strategies
on transportation projects that help grow and diversify the construction workforce.

5. Encourage apprenticeships with marginalized communities as part of contracts.

6. Partner with workforce development organizations to improve outreach, share information
and leverage resources that support and grow a diverse construction workforce and
contracting community.

3.2.3 Safety and Security Policies

WHAT’S CHANGED? No changes to the policies in this section are proposed.

Eliminating traffic related deaths and life changing injuries (often defined as fatalities, and severe
or serious crashes) and increasing the safety and security of the transportation system is a top
priority of the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), as is prioritizing safety for people of color,
people with low incomes, people with disabilities, people walking, bicycling, and using
motorcycles, youth and older adults.

What do we mean by safety and security?

Transportation safety is protection from death or bodily injury form a motor-vehicle crash while
engaged in travel. Individual and public transportation security is protection from intentional
criminal or antisocial acts while engaged in trip making.

3.2.3.1 Regional Transportation Safety Strategy (2018)

The Regional Transportation Safety Strategy (“Safety Strategy”) identifies data-driven strategies
and actions to address the most common types of crashes and contributing factors.é Key findings
from the analysis of crash data from 206-2020 can are in Chapter 4 of the RTP. More detailed
findings are in the 2018 Metro State of Safety Report and the Safety Strategy.”

The Safety Strategy recommends six strategies to support achieving the region’s adopted Vision
Zero target for 2035, shown in Figure 3-3. Each strategy includes specific actions. The strategies

6 The Regional Transportation Safety Strategy, adopted in December 2018, is a topical plan and appendix of the Regional Transportation Plan.

7 The Regional Transportation Safety Strategy is a topical plan of the Regional Transportation Plan. The 2018 Metro State of Safety Report is an
appendix of the Safety Strategy.

3-19
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



and actions are evidence-based and were identified by the safety work group in response to
analysis of crash data in the 2018 Metro State of Safety Report and other sources. Refer to the
Regional Transportation Safety Strategy for detailed information on each of the strategies and
specific actions.

Figure 3-3 Regional transportation safety strategies

1 - Protect vulnerable users and reduce
disparities

2 - Design roadways for safety

3- Reduce speeds and speeding

4 - Address aggressive and distracted driving

5 - Address impaired driving

6 -Ongoing engagement and coordination

3.2.3.2 Using the Safe System approach

The Safety Strategy employs a Safe System approach with the goal of zero fatal and severe injury
traffic deaths. The Safe System approach originated in Sweden and now other countries and many
U.S. cities are using the framework. Similar frameworks are Vision Zero (Sweden), Toward Zero
Deaths (U.S.), Road to Zero Coalition (National Safety Council), Safe System (New Zealand), and
Sustainable Safety (Denmark).

The Safe System approach involves a holistic view of the transportation system and the
interactions among travel speeds, vehicles, road users and the road itself. It is an inclusive
approach that prioritizes safety for all user groups of the transportation system - drivers,
motorcyclists, passengers, pedestrians, bicyclists, and commercial and heavy vehicle drivers.

Consistent with the region’s long-term safety vision, it acknowledges that people will make
mistakes and may have road crashes—but the system should be designed so that those crashes
should not result in death or serious injury. Design emphasizes separation - between people
walking and bicycling and motor-vehicles, access management and median separation of traffic -
and survivable speeds.

3-20
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Figure 3-4 Components of the Safe System approach

Safe System
Approach

Safe Road®

Source: Metro

Governments using the Safe System approach focus on preventing all fatal and severe injury
crashes. It recognizes that the responsibility for crash prevention resides not only with roadway
users but with transportation professionals and decision makers. Agencies using the Safe System
approach have been more effective in reducing traffic deaths and severe injuries than more
traditional approaches that focus on all crashes.?

The Safe System approach focuses on the following key guiding principles that shape how
stakeholders address transportation safety (Figure 3-5).

8 Sustainable and Safe: A Vision and Guidance for Zero Road Deaths, World Resources Institute, Global Road
Safety Facility (2017)
3-21
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Figure 3-5 Guiding principles of the Safe System approach

Safe System Approach

It is possible to PREVENT ALL
traffic deaths

He

Proactively integrate HUMAN
FAILING into design

FOCUS on analyzing FATAL and
SEVERE CRASHES

&8

PROACTIVELY design a
forgiving system

=
Saving lives is
NOT EXPENSIVE

Source: Metro

Refer to the Regional Transportation Safety Strategy for detailed information on the Safe System
approach.

3.2.3.3 Regional high injury corridors and intersections

Figure 3-6 shows the map of regional high injury corridors overlapping with Equity Focus Areas.
Metro and regional partners identify regional high injury corridors and intersections to help
prioritize safety near term investments. Metro will update this map every five years. In the
interim, transportation agencies and stakeholders may identify other safety investments that
warrant priority based on other data and analysis. The needs assessment in Chapter 4 provides
more detail on how this map was created, along with other safety data.

Figure 3-6 Regional high injury corridors and intersections

3-22
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



NW: Main St

\l X r
- L
\ r<
\ =J D
\ N, N
\\ PNV
/l s
¢
7
< AD
A
LAY 5!
-, 4 =
G,
Z
el
L
= ap
%

% Top 1% High Injury Intersections
® ® eL0 ¢ ¢ - - ® Plai 2 % High Ini -
courth Plain Blvd - ¢ Top 5% High Injury Intersections
Four,
% . ) .
%, NESH === High Injury Corridors
E:Z \\@ RN A N /)’%’ H H
)= \:fiff@ N 7y N Central city; Regional center; Town center
G NN \ N (205)
s b :
5l X 7 RN Employment/Industrial
Vancouver
R\ —--—- County boundary
N \\ r ="
NG . _ 4 Urban growth boundary
I~ N
ST "} Metropolitan Planning A
T | ! Metropolitan Planning Area
\r\ _‘—\\\
3 e ~-
S %, e &
QQ, o MUL\[4RK z
~ 7'/\70\ Co
N 27 yessa Camas
o~
e Sy
7 ~ ne SE 6t
_ “0 N e have Washpugal
94 E ™~ ///~ T~
S, ~ - — \\
z . \ \
% « . > N
O )
o - ab .. 3 o\ ESC’n Blvg /%,//) ( \\
3 \» 84 ©Dr AN :\ SScoe .
< NE Bfoad ! -\-84 ----- v
ejoy St NEWeidler 5t o”@\ f 2
A ] 1
@‘Couch L , 1
Buriside ST&° Ogo ® L e g NG ! o
QO - 7’
S Og<> SE%‘HSOHS{ = : ! -
g SEHGwthome o S - X7
= Y < 2 S !
P S = T |
3 S oo SE Pow ~ 1
= ~ I
E (%Y DS o . 5 Powe - :
< 1205/ " L }
& 2 R [
2 = Foter R < > '
= = (0] = = I I
= 2 S 1 ¢
s = 2 g \
SE Tacomg SP- e S=MULTNOMAH CO @ - £ Blusry
T CLACKAMAS 'cB'“_"*"_"_"—"—”—"_"—,"—_-‘&:0‘-— TR TN L T — e — e —
‘\ ; LN \\ _____ - N
r4§/ \ [
NS g r II : 1
O%' ; } 0:0 | I' P
s > Iy i —
2 -
-L;?o? N 2 SEChmptonRd [ 1=}
\? (5 — wv 1 \ ~
S & ISR
= E Sunp, @ i 2
\93/'0'8 J I @/),
Ry e ! 2 =
, e o z
- Y = =1
(73 L I 5
— g R \\».'« - SEEPIYS) p’o"eerBlvd
. ~/ ] <
M (I I:
L
‘, v \ |
0 La8 [
: & TN
. S -~ T
1 m \ N
I . X 2N
HHIy S Y o _ : / (o} | %@ :C)\O n} '\l
5 v (O S N I 7 | X \gmette ;!
j B a—T D ! |/ e = . -
! S ) S . | N ) N
i LTS T \ Lhigsen R%‘ ] I AT\
= o s :__ -------- 1 - I W
& : T 1S 2 -1 b g
I | 2 . 5 ,.;\1 Lo : rv e o .
2 i B Ij <A 1 --—_;I" | ~-. TS B ' A
o = — < L7 ] 1 ! J (2
S ]—- (%) N ) = 1 g “
H Y, = : ;7 J’J """""""" LAy ) . %%
] 0 o y = PN » » »
: Lty | 2 3 iy R 5 ANSFORTATIC
ancocJ\ £ I Y A\ Wilsonville Rd J-! { Z »
4 7S 5@ X Ve I 2 A
55\"\ 8': So -~ . 9 : %
2\ z E s 1 B 2 P
v, = > ) )
( i\ z SE oo ln = Tpa Al Metro
] v, \ > |o #“CLACKAMAS ¢ 40N T~
- Z " YAMHILL C % s < ititibitaldedelstom ¢ | N ‘-:3
0 O
il e O es: ODOT and etro O



3.2.3.4 Safety and security policies

Regional Transportation Safety and Security Policies reflect the policy framework of the Regional

Transportation Safety Strategy. Implementation of the policies supports achieving the regional
Vision Zero target for 2035 and making travel in the region safer and more secure for all people.

Policy 1

Policy 2

Policy 3

Policy 4

Policy 5

Policy 6

Policy 7

Policy 8

Policy 9

3-24

Focus safety efforts on eliminating traffic deaths and severe injury crashes to
achieve Vision Zero.

Prioritize safety investments, education and equitable enforcement on high injury
and high-risk corridors and intersections, with a focus on reducing speeds and
speeding.

Prioritize investments that benefit people with higher risk of being involved in a
serious crash, including people of color, people with low incomes, people with
disabilities, people walking, bicycling, and using motorcycles, people working in the
right-of-way, youth and older adults.

Increase safety for all modes of travel and for all people through the planning,
design, construction, operation, and maintenance of the transportation system,
with a focus on reducing vehicle speeds.

Make safety a key consideration in all transportation projects and avoid replicating
or exacerbating a known safety problem with any project or program.

Employ a Safe System approach and use data and analysis tools and performance
monitoring to support data-driven decision-making.

Utilize safety and engineering best practices to identify low-cost and effective
treatments that can be implemented systematically in shorter timeframes than
large capital projects.

Prioritize investments, education and enforcement that increase individual and
public security while traveling by reducing intentional crime, such as harassment,
targeting, and terrorist acts, and prioritize efforts that benefit people of color,
people with low incomes, people with disabilities, women and people walking,
bicycling, and taking transit.

Make safety a key consideration when defining system adequacy (or deficiency) for
the purposes of planning or traffic impact analysis.

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Safety Policy 1. Focus safety efforts on eliminating traffic deaths and severe injury crashes to achieve
Vision Zero.

To reach the goal of eliminating deaths and severe injuries from traffic crashes, this policy directs
safety related efforts to focus on fatal and severe injury crashes, as opposed to all crashes.
Focusing on serious crashes is a key tenant of the Safe System approach. It entails identifying
where serious crashes occur and focusing on those locations, identifying the risk factors involved
in serious crashes and addressing and eliminating those risks, focusing enforcement and
education on high-risk behaviors that lead to serious crashes and less or no enforcement or
education on low-risk behaviors. When communities use enforcement, precautions must be
implemented to ensure equitable actions and outcomes.

Safety Policy 2. Prioritize safety investments, education and equitable enforcement on high injury
and high-risk corridors and intersections, with a focus on reducing speeds and speeding.

This policy directs safety investments, education and equitable enforcement to be prioritized on
the corridors where the most serious crashes have occurred or have a risk of occurring (due to
identified risk factors such as lack of roadway separation or excessive speeding). This policy
approach, prioritizing corridors where deadly crashes are or could occur, more effectively uses
limited resources where the most serious issues are. Additionally, this policy emphasizes the
systemic approach to safety to addresses known safety risk factors corridor wide to prevent
serious crashes from occurring in the future.

Safety Policy 3. Prioritize investments that benefit people with higher risk of being involved in a
serious crash, including people of color, people with low incomes, people with disabilities, people
walking, bicycling, and using motorcycles, people working in the right-of-way, youth, and older
adults.

This policy is based on the Safe System approach of prioritizing safety efforts on people with the
highest risk of dying in a traffic crash as a key strategy to eliminating serious crashes overall. This
policy also helps implement Metro’s Strategic Plan for Advancing Equity, Diversity and Inclusion.

Safety Policy 4. Increase safety for all modes of travel and for all people through the planning,
design, construction, operation, and maintenance of the transportation system, with a focus on
reducing vehicle speeds.

This policy requires that stakeholders integrate transportation safety into every aspect of the
transportation system. It is a key element of the Safe System approach which takes a systemic and
holistic approach. Safe travel speeds are a core element of achieving Vision Zero. Speed limits in
Safe System approach are based on aiding crash avoidance and a human body’s limit for physical
trauma. An unprotected pedestrian hit at over 20mph has a significant risk of death or life-
changing injury. A car in a side-on collision can protect its occupants up to around 30mph; a car in
a head-on collision up to around 40mph. Establishing survivable speeds on streets where people
using different modes at variable speeds and with different levels of physical protection are
essential. Additionally, a diversity of users must be taken into account as the system is developed.

3-25
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



For example, people of color, older adults and children may have different needs that must be
addressed at every phase.

Safety Policy 5. Make safety a key consideration in all transportation projects and avoid replicating
or exacerbating a known safety problem with any project or program.

While most policies are proactively focused on improving safety, this policy requires that
transportation projects and programs clearly evaluate the impacts on all users of the
transportation system and do not negatively impact any of those users by either replicating
something which has been shown to increase safety problems for roadway users or making a
current safety issue worse.

Safety Policy 6. Employ a Safe System approach and use data and analysis tools and performance
monitoring to support data-driven decision-making.

Transportation agencies have proven that the Safe System approach reduces serious crashes. The
approach is based on data driven strategies and actions. Collecting, maintaining, and analyzing
data on a regular basis is critical to focusing investments where they will be most effective.
Additionally, monitoring progress and assessing the outcome of investments in safety is crucial to
learning from the past and improving in the future.

Safety Policy 7. Utilize safety and engineering best practices to identify low-cost and effective
treatments that can be implemented systematically in shorter timeframes than large capital
projects.

Many solutions to improve safety are inexpensive. This policy prioritizes addressing safety
problems on a corridor level sooner rather than later to prevent serious crashes from occurring in
the future. Rather than postponing safety interventions until a larger and more expensive project
can be funded this policy directs that low-cost and effective treatments be implemented first.

Safety Policy 8. Prioritize investments, education and equitable enforcement that increase individual
and public security while traveling by reducing intentional crime, such as harassment, targeting, and
terrorist acts, and prioritize efforts that benefit people of color, people with low incomes, people
with disabilities, women and people walking, bicycling, and taking transit.

Individual and personal security while traveling has an important relationship to transportation
safety, especially for people of color. Fear of harassment or being targeted can deter people of
color from walking, bicycling or using transit and may increase the use of motor-vehicle
transportation. Though individual and public security can be challenging to address, a variety of
approaches are needed to create a safe and welcoming transportation system, including:
collecting data, utilizing crime prevention through environmental design, taking into account a
diversity of users when developing and operating the transportation system, educating people to
look out for and care for one another, designing security into projects (such as street lighting,
visibility, call boxes), equity training for public safety and transportation professionals, and
including a wide range of groups in design and decision making.

3-26
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Safety Policy 9. Make safety a key consideration when defining system adequacy (or deficiency) for
the purposes of planning or traffic impact analysis.

This policy specifies that safety data, analytical tools and metrics must be part of the evaluation
when defining the adequacy of capacity on the transportation system.

3.2.4 Climate Leadership Policies

WHAT’S CHANGED? RTP staff reviewed the policies and propose the following changes:
Three policies were edited to reflect the top three climate smart strategy priorities identified by
JPACT and the Metro Council during a joint workshop in November 2022.

The TSMO parking management policy was deleted to avoid duplication with Climate Policy 7,
which was slightly revised to incorporate some of the TSMO policy. The parking policy language
from the TSMO policy was used to replace the Climate Smart parking policy consistent with new
Climate-Friendly and Equitable Communities (CFEC) rules.

Other changes to this section reflect the work done since the 2018 RTP in the Emergency
transportation Routes phase 1 project, including an updated map of regional emergency
transportation routes and State Seismic lifeline routes.

These policies are focused on climate mitigation. Additional work is needed to draft climate
resilience related policies.

Climate change may be the defining challenge of this century. Global climate change poses a
growing threat to our communities, our environment and our economy, creating uncertainties for
the agricultural, forestry and fishing industries as well as winter recreation. The planet is
warming, and we have less and less time to act. Documented effects include warmer temperatures
and sea levels, shrinking glaciers, shifting rainfall patterns and changes to growing seasons and
the distribution of plants and animals.

Warmer temperatures will affect the service life of transportation infrastructure, and the more
severe storms that are predicted will increase the frequency of landslides and flooding.
Consequent damage to roads and rail infrastructure will compromise system safety, disrupt
mobility and hurt the region’s economic competitiveness and quality of life. Our ability to respond
will have unprecedented impacts on our lives and our survival.

Transportation sources account for 34 percent of greenhouse gas emissions in Oregon, largely
made up of carbon dioxide (CO2). Since 2006, the state of Oregon has initiated a number of actions
to respond including directing the greater Portland region to develop and implement a strategy
for reducing greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks.

3.2.4.1 Climate Smart Strategy (2014)

The Regional Transportation Plan is a key tool for the greater Portland region to implement the
adopted Climate Smart Strategy and achieve greenhouse gas emissions reduction targets adopted
by the Land Conservation and Development Commission in 2012, 2017, and 2022.
3-27
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



As directed by the Oregon Legislature in 2009, the Metro Council and the Joint Policy Advisory
Committee on Transportation (JPACT) developed and adopted a regional strategy to reduce per
capita greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks by 2035 to meet state targets.
Adopted in December 2014 with broad support from community, business and elected leaders,
the Climate Smart Strategy relies on policies and investments that have already been identified as
local priorities in communities across the greater Portland region. Adoption of the strategy
affirmed the region’s shared commitment to provide more transportation choices, keep our air
clean, build healthy and equitable communities, and grow our economy - all while reducing
greenhouse gas emissions.

The analysis of the adopted strategy demonstrated that with an increase in transportation funding
for all modes, particularly transit operations, the region can provide more safe and reliable
transportation choices, keep our air clean, build healthy and equitable communities and grow our
economy while reducing greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicles as directed by the
Legislature. It also showed that a lack of investment in needed transportation infrastructure will
result in falling short of our greenhouse gas emissions reduction goal and other desired outcomes.
The Land Conservation and Development Commission approved the region’s strategy in May
2015.

3.2.4.2 Climate Smart Strategy policies

The Climate Smart Strategy is built around nine policies to demonstrate climate leadership by
reducing greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks while making our transportation
system safe, reliable, healthy and affordable. The policies listed below complement other RTP
policies related to transit, biking and walking, use of technology and system and demand
management strategies.

Policy 1 Implement adopted local and regional land use plans and strategies to reduce
vehicle miles traveled per capita to meet regional targets.

Policy 2 Prioritize transportation investments that make transit convenient, frequent,
accessible and affordable to significantly increase transit ridership.

Policy 3 Prioritize transportation investments that make biking and walking safe and
convenient to significantly increase walking and bicycling mode shares.

Policy 4 Make streets and highways safe, efficient, reliable and connected.

Policy 5 Prioritize use of technology to actively manage the transportation system and
ensure that new and emerging technology affecting the region’s transportation
system supports shared trips and other Climate Smart Strategy policies and
strategies.

Policy 6 Provide information and financial incentives to expand the use of travel options.

3-28
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Policy 7 Manage parking in mixed-use centers and corridors that are served by frequent
transit service and good biking and walking connections to reduce the amount of
land dedicated to parking, encourage parking turnover, increase shared trips, biking,
walking and use of transit, reduce vehicle miles traveled and generate revenue.

Policy 8 Support Oregon’s transition to cleaner fuels and more fuel-efficient vehicles in
recognition of the external impacts of carbon and other vehicle emissions.

Policy 9 Secure adequate funding for transportation investments that support the RTP
climate goal and implementation of the climate smart strategy.

3.2.4.3 Climate Smart Strategy toolbox of potential actions

The responsibility of implementation of these policies and the Climate Smart Strategy does not
rest solely with Metro. Continued partnerships, collaboration and increased funding from all
levels of government will be essential. To that end, the Climate Smart Strategy also identified a
comprehensive toolbox of more than 200 specific actions that can be taken by the state of Oregon,
Metro, cities, counties, transit providers and others to support implementation. These supporting
actions are summarized in the Toolbox of Possible Actions (2015-2020) adopted as part of the
Climate Smart Strategy. The actions support implementation of adopted local and regional plans
and, if taken, will reduce greenhouse gas emissions and minimize the region’s contribution to
climate change in ways that support community and economic development goals. The Climate
Smart Strategy’s Toolbox of Possible Actions was developed with the recognition that existing city
and county plans for creating great communities are the foundation for reaching the state target
and that some tools and actions may work better in some locations than others. As such, the
toolbox does not mandate adoption of any particular policy or action. Instead, it emphasizes the
need for many diverse partners to work together to begin implementation of the strategy while
retaining the flexibility and discretion to pursue the actions most appropriate to local needs and
conditions.

3-29
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



tio strategies

High GHG Reduction Impact

Sup!Jort Clean Implement Pricing
Vehicles and Fuels

ﬂ Coordinate Housing, a Invest in Transit
Transportation and Q

SoR AR Community Design

Medium GHG Reduction Impact

Fo— Invest in System

~O= invest in Active Q E] Management and

ﬁ Transportation Operations

? o Invest in Travel

o Information and Incentives

Source: Metro

Local, state, and regional partners are encouraged to review the toolbox and identify actions they
have already taken and any new actions they are willing to consider or commit to in the future.
Updates to local comprehensive plans and development regulations, transit agency plans, port
district plans, and regional growth management and transportation plans present ongoing
opportunities to consider implementing the actions recommended in locally tailored ways.

3.2.4.4 Climate Smart Strategy monitoring

The Climate Smart Strategy also contained performance measures and performance monitoring
targets for tracking implementation and progress. The purpose of the performance measures and
targets is to monitor and assess whether key elements or actions that make up the strategy are
being implemented, and whether the strategy is achieving expected outcomes. If an assessment
finds the region is deviating significantly from the Climate Smart Strategy performance
monitoring targets, then Metro will work with local, regional and state partners to consider the
revision or replacement of policies and actions to ensure the region remains on track with
meeting adopted targets for reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

In 2018, Appendix J reports on implementation progress since 2014, and found the RTP makes
satisfactory progress towards implementing the Climate Smart Strategy and, if fully funded and
implemented, can reasonably be expected to meet the state-mandated targets for reducing per

capita greenhouse gas emissions from passenger cars and small trucks (light-duty vehicles) for
2035 and 2040.

3-30
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



The analysis also found that more investment, actions and resources will be needed to ensure the
region achieves the mandated greenhouse gas emissions reductions defined in OAR 660-044-
0060. Additional funding and prioritization of Climate Smart Strategy investments and policies
that substantially reduce greenhouse gas emissions will be needed.

3.2.4.5 Transportation preparedness and resilience

The topic of preparedness and resilience has broad implications across all sectors of the economy
and communities throughout the region. Natural disaster can happen anytime, affecting multiple
jurisdictions simultaneously. The region needs to be prepared to respond quickly, collaboratively,
and equitably, and the transportation system needs to be prepared to withstand these events and
to provide needed transport for fuel, essential supplies and medical transport. Planning for post-
disaster recovery is also critical to ensure that communities and the region recover and rebuild
important physical structures, infrastructure and services, including transportation - it can make
communities and the region stronger, healthier, safer and more equitable.

What are the risks we face?

Climate change, natural disasters, such as earthquakes, urban wildfires and hazardous incidents,
and extreme weather events present significant and growing risks to the safety, reliability,
effectiveness and sustainability of the region’s transportation infrastructure and services.
Flooding, extreme heat, wildfires and severe storm events endanger the long-term investments
that federal, state, and local governments have made in transportation infrastructure. Changes in
climate have intensified the magnitude, duration, and frequency of these events for many regions
in the United States, a trend that is projected to continue. There is much work going on locally,
regionally, statewide and across the country to address these risks.

Regional collaboration and disaster preparedness

The Regional Disaster Preparedness Organization (RDPO) is a partnership of government
agencies, non-governmental organizations, and private-sector stakeholders in the Portland
metropolitan area collaborating to increase the region’s resilience to disasters. RDPO’s efforts
span across Clackamas, Columbia, Multnomah, and Washington counties in Oregon and Clark
County in Washington.

According to the 2013 Oregon Resilience Plan, Oregon’s buildings, and lifelines (transportation,
energy, telecommunications, and water/ wastewater systems) would be damaged so severely that
it would take three months to a year to restore full service in areas such as the Portland region.
More recently, a 2018 report from the Oregon Department of Geology and Mineral Industries
(DOGAMI) on the Portland region describes significant casualties, economic losses, and disruption
in the event of a large magnitude Cascadia subduction zone (CSZ) earthquake.

While transportation infrastructure is designed to handle a broad range of impacts based on
historic climate patterns, more planning and preparation for climate change, earthquakes and
other natural disasters and extreme weather events is critical to protecting the integrity of the
transportation system and improving resilience for future hazards.
3-31
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



In 2021 the Oregon Transportation Systems project assessed the resilience of Oregon’s roadway,
airport, and maritime port transportation system to a Cascadia Subduction Zone (CSZ)
earthquake, and the ability of those system to support post-disaster response and recovery. A key
finding is that very few airports and marine ports have conducted seismic vulnerability analyses
of their facilities. More analysis is needed to better understand and enhance the resilience of these
facilities in order to more efficiently and effectively support incident response.

Between 2019 and 2021, Metro and RDPO partnered to update the Regional Emergency
Transportation Routes (RETR) for the five-county Portland-Vancouver metropolitan region (last
updated in 2006). Over 300 miles of new routes were added. Regional Emergency Transportation
Routes are travel routes that, in the case of a major regional emergency or natural disaster, would
be prioritized for rapid damage assessment and debris-removal. These routes would be used to
move people, resources, and materials, such as first responders (e.g., police, fire and emergency
medical services), patients, debris, fuel and essential supplies. These routes are also expected to
have a key role in post-disaster recovery efforts.

The project developed a regionally accepted network that provides adequate connectivity to
critical infrastructure and essential facilities, as well as the region’s population centers and
vulnerable communities. Over 75% of state and regional critical infrastructure and essential
facilities are connected. Partners have established a comprehensive regional GIS database and
online RETR viewer for current and future planning and operations. The data and on-line viewer
provide valuable resources to support transportation resilience, recovery, and related initiatives
in the region. See Figure 3-7 which shows a map of the RETRs and State Seismic Lifeline (SSL)
routes. Regional partners identify these routes to help prioritize them for near term investment.

Figure 3-7 Regional emergency transportation routes (ETR) map

Potential opportunities for future regional collaboration in support of transportation
preparedness and resilience include:

e Partner with the RDPO on a second phase of the Regional ETR update to prioritize routes and
develop operational guidelines for owners and operators. See Chapter 8 for more information.

e Consider climate and other natural hazard-related risks during transportation planning,
project development, design, and management processes.

e Conduct a vulnerability assessment for the region, documenting climate and other natural
hazard-related risks to the region’s transportation system and vulnerable populations, and
potential investments, strategies, and actions that the region can implement to reduce the
vulnerability of the existing transportation system and proactively increase the transportation
system’s resiliency.

e Optimize operations and maintenance practices that can help lessen impacts on
transportation from extreme weather events and natural disasters. Examples include more
frequent cleaning of storm drains, improved plans for weather emergencies, closures and

3-32
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



- ~ o~
ejL0 ¢ e
(6) 4
47
&
S P
o r
3
& 3,
S
i st
N\ ,
T AN g
| -
T S s —r R
/! vl ’ Q \r
f N ~\ 7
I R T R
] [FoliestGrove Cornelius ¥ < (v 7
/’/ - Y {1y Ave aseline Setar Hillskboro
o = » ~ -
\ | ey | N
~—— “_ Il L % 3 .
\ ;- L -, v .
| 5 II < l
\ NNy b
) s At
Pl i U
. < N
< 3 .
\é N N'S
o8
er Rd
= ap :
=
&
QQ;
2
a,
uig Il
1 4
1 [ | T N
- i 5 . \
I |
]‘ N\I J S o 2 _ _
s T e ) > ,
E i
7 I {N | ----- 5
L1l my A3 .
~ s [’/ — fi—
RN IS
a Pontland BRSNS
I
I .
[}
(=2
H 2
\ i 3
3 -
jV } A w :
‘ N e
3 ol
% \\ 0
[
2

» e=== Regional Emergency Transportation Routes
[ ] oi0 [ ] [ ) ] = Qregon State Seismic Lifeline Route
oury Central city; Regional center; Town center
q .
=y AN N Orc Employment/Industrial
Ik N, y .
als \ / A —--— County boundary
5z : \ >~ 1 T
----- - 1 iy AN v | Metropolitan Planning Area
LS 4 —_——
' 3\ ! . uver -
! > /! i ~_ 1 Urban growth boundary
Lo\ N K N
! VS SO
] 14
I ’J S Y GRS NE3rd'st
ey o > ~_
| -4 x> . —— "
o= i S T~
[ 130 ~ TN
= | S— -, o = ~ ©
1 L )
5 l L St. Jehns %l\rlwfk’(c
& 1 2, om\:\ Camas
[~ - «\\‘21\\> [T ‘—_1 o & = %
/ N QP:\ Iy L, N - S e
4 S \~4‘¢\-r g l 1 I @{v = \ —_—
T E L i ra % Bl N Nl
= — v\ L ) \5 AN ~ T~
% LR T~ — T - N
< Bethany - = \ T i \ \
= - ~ \
= E._.;:.. L N
HES . ) \
'.u Qril { \\~
Onenco W : = r N
i Lo .. ] Y I
Tangsbourne/Amb CQAAr iy copnell® g Tood Troutdale>. .
anasbourne/Amber ‘Mlil.'l. Cor EqiniET \ |
Sunset i Wooed Village l
g
Transit Gatewaly Rockwood B o\ ] ‘T
-
9 ry S NS
é SE Divi S d : gj 4 :
ivisjon St - ! !
& Gresham Q :
B Wely . I
A Beayvertomn . N '
' Raleigh Bs W ow, . :
#—Hiil ls I ‘% 2 205/ 4 |
< > po Hillsdale E et S, i
-l N PA = 1 i
- [\ . =
o z Rleasant | !
e 2 : o Valley - 9
i : i ) A ~ “aidA R i T 2NN ¥ A MULTNOMAH co - E Blutrip|
1 Washington prs S CLATKAMAE co| - e MRl « A EFE a-—--_.»_,,_f),..,._____
( L __ R N . el
0 . Square ' West A\ . ] ' 3 \‘. T
/ Portland g &, Y- Milwaukie r i :
| (99 3o % ) : |
N Mugr@yg/Scholls |/ " 28 . B> = ) : i !
O \PEEREE L AN = = /- Clackamas b ' -
T \ & < Happy : ) T
o Tigard o R \'/fé‘l'ﬁgg ! 0
-l S i Y
] s Lake Os&ego i I %
- S 2 ' %
L \E a I =
R, . . Lake 212 ’ !
] King City & — ; - .
I - | Grove £50, ! .!/;, \ DT e L
| v ? = 2> el N :
——=. - . [ - g = 4 — T,
N Tualatin §f | . I - T ~s % -
'l_—_ . A - A [ {_\p@ I"‘l £
/1 . - 1
N R - 5w Borl Gladstone o |
s - < %, e ||
I~ 1 5 L
L Sherwood K i ) . o L
por- N 3 . ~~ WestLinn Oregon City
L r <3 ' \205/ A, w” ~
| t S | ¥ S RO Z N
___________ _ I S | ; 5/ | ~- Y I b
: L N @A ] 2 [ A I \ [ . v / — ) !
I 5 " ‘s . Y & | Willamette Y A o o .
: 5 |2 T % R?i 1 ~% > . [ §
I 2 .= _\_A\ _____ - | . 4 St \
|: E IS ) N N ) (e N % 5 ) )
| . -
------- < L= |3 rd 1 - , R N c 1 >
% r ,); - rJ 7 BERPY N e L: | L
i ,’/ ; ~ == rl ‘J—I : ey » I\ . » A
: ot ) A s\ e Fm N ledficiRl
) Witsonyille N Y i
| : §5d \ i » A
‘0 s . }
oY 12 !
. U!: J3 Ty .; oy S --
= =i )24 A 7 ¢ N\
3 SE - Wy — - - Loy IS Beave. N
£} Si¥ )t 0 > I8 RN > @
2, <l JZLACKAMAS co ’ -\ 8 C—
-_—
0 O
= ource: Metro 0

26

Bluff Rd



rerouting, traveler information systems, debris removal, early warning systems, damage
repairs and performance monitoring.

o Integrate green infrastructure into the transportation network when practicable to avoid,
minimize and mitigate negative environmental impacts of climate change, natural disasters,
and extreme weather events.

e Protection and avoidance of natural areas and high value natural resource sites, especially the
urban tree canopy and other green infrastructure, in slowing growth in carbon emissions from
paved streets, parking lots and carbon sequestration and addressing the impacts of climate
change and extreme weather events, such as urban heat island effects and increased flooding.

e Avoidance of transportation-related development in hazard areas such as steep slopes and
floodplains that provide landscape resiliency and which are also likely to increase in hazard
potential as the impacts of climate change increase.

3.2.5 Pricing Policies

WHAT’S CHANGED? This is a new policy section. The draft regional pricing policies reflect
significant discussion and input from Metro technical and policy advisory committees and the
Metro Council from January to Oct. 2022. A memo documenting the Sept.-Oct. 2022 feedback and
policies reflected below is available on the project website.

Transportation pricing is a tool that can help our region reach its goals of better, faster transit,
cleaner air, fewer hours sitting in traffic, and more equitable access to jobs and opportunities. To
realize these outcomes, pricing programs will need to be carefully designed to ensure the process
to develop them is equitable, revenue is reinvested equitably and to support regional goals,
diversion on local streets is mitigated, and pricing strategies are interoperable throughout the
region.

What is transportation pricing?

Transportation pricing is the use of a pricing mechanism, such as tolls or parking fees, to reduce
traffic congestion and greenhouse gas emissions, encourage a shift to travel via different modes, a
different route, or a different time of day, and raise revenue for transportation investments and
mitigation for impacts resulting from pricing.

3-33
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Pricing Strategies

Pricing could include a range of tools, including:

VEHICLE MILES TRAVELED FEE

Drivers pay a fee for every mile they travel

CORDON PRICING

Drivers pay to enter an areaq, like downtown
Portland (and sometimes pay to drive within
that area)

ROADWAY PRICING

Drivers pay a fee or toll to drive on a particular
road, bridge, or highway

PARKING PRICING

0 Drivers pay to park in certain area

Each of these pricing strategies could vary by time of day, by
area, by types of drivers on the road, and by income levels.
Pricing strategies can also take the form of a “program” (i.e.
parking pricing) or a “project” (i.e. the 1-205 toll project).

While parking pricing has proven to be an effective strategy in the region for many years, cordons,
roadway pricing, and other pricing strategies are only beginning to be discussed and implemented
as a strategy in the greater Portland region. However, these strategies have been effective in cities
around the world. For many leaders and government agencies in the Portland metro region
recognized pricing as a needed, high-impact, tool in the 2018 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)
and other plans.?

Table 3-3 outlines which local, regional, and state agencies could potentially implement various
types of pricing strategies based on Oregon state law. Other federal, state, or local laws may
provide additional guidance or restrictions on the use of pricing and the use of pricing revenues.

92018 Regional Transportation Plan, TSMO Strategic Plan (2010), Climate Smart Strategy (2014), The Federal Congestion Management Process,
2021 City of Portland Pricing Options for Equitable Mobility Final Report, 2018 Oregon Department of Transportation Value Pricing Feasibility
Analysis.

3-34
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Table 3-3 Pricing and Implementing Agency

Type of Pricing Implementing Agency

Road User Charge / Drivers pay a fee for every mile they State DOT, potentially local
Vehicle Miles Traveled travel roadway authorities

Fee

Cordon Pricing Drivers pay a fee to enter an area, City, County

like downtown Portland (and
sometimes pay to drive within that

area)
Roadway Pricing and Drivers pay a fee or toll to drive on a Local Roads: City, County
Tolling particular road, bridge, or highway Highways and Freeways: State
DOT
Parking Pricing Drivers pay to park in certain areas Cit()j/, %ouglty, Transit Agency (park-
and-rides

Why is pricing an important strategy for our region?

Congestion is a problem in the Portland metro region as outlined in the RTP Needs Assessment.
Changing travel patterns and a growing population mean more traffic and less freedom to travel
reliably around the region. Congestion can also have significant economic, social, and
environmental impacts.

e Growing single occupancy vehicle miles traveled (VMT) leads to congestion.
e Greenhouse gas emissions are on the rise.

e Congestion impacts Metro’s Equity Focus Areas most significantly.

e Travel patterns for people and goods are unreliable due to congestion.

e QOurregion is growing.

3-35
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



The Cycle of Congestion

—
7 ™

,inonus FILL
[\ WITH CARS
\

s g

CONGESTION

NEW ™\
APACITY \

The Portland metro region can’t f EADDED
build its way out of congestion \ / i\ ]
N

s TN
= i Py
: \ /
[oh:ﬂ?fs%%?asut‘ [ pemane [ "iSEsier |
\ ) | BEHAVIOR | \ —— /
N \ | e N A
\\h ;vif

How can pricing help our region?

Transportation investments in the Portland metro region have a long history of contributing to
racial inequity and neighborhood displacement. Decades ago, public agencies planned and built
new highways that cut through Black communities, splitting neighborhoods, and contributing to
poor air quality, noise pollution and safety issues. Transit investments have also been made
without complementary affordable housing strategies, leading to gentrification and further
displacement.

Today, while the region’s residents all feel the impacts of congestion, historic inequities in the
transportation system amplify impacts on people of color and low-income people:

e Housing costs are increasing faster than incomes, pushing those with lower incomes to seek
housing further away from the center of the region and making travel distances longer for
people of color and low-income people.

e Communities of color and low-income communities have longer commutes that are made
slower and more unreliable when roadways are congested.

e Major roads and freeways often run through communities of color and low-income
communities, resulting in disproportionately high rates of air pollution, chronic illnesses, and
traffic-related injuries and fatalities.

Pricing can be a key tool for jurisdictions as they seek to meet state, regional, and local goals
around mobility, climate, safety, and equity.

Pricing that is designed and implemented through an equity and climate change lens has the
potential to transform transportation in our region in a variety of ways. While pricing programs
introduce new costs to users, they also lead to more efficient use of streets and highways and can
help address current and historic inequities borne by people of color and people with low
incomes.

3-36
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Pricing has been shown to encourage use of transit or other modes and reduce overall vehicle
miles traveled (VMT). Lower VMT results in decreased congestion, reduced travel times for
personal vehicles, freight and buses, lower greenhouse gas emissions, and localized air quality
impacts. Pricing is more likely to be successful in areas where transit service elements are already
well established and is improved in conjunction with pricing.

Pricing can also have positive impacts on safety. A combination of lower VMT as a result of pricing
and reinvestment of pricing revenue in projects that increase safety can, in the long term, lead to
decreases in crashes and injuries in and around priced facilities or areas.

In the Portland
region, average
commute

times for Black
commuters are
13% longer than
white commuters.

The lowest income
households spend
35% of their income
on transportation.
Those with the highest
income spend 13% or
less.

Source: U.S. Bureau of
Transportation Statistlcs

Additionally, for many jurisdictions, pricing may be identified as a tool to raise revenue for
specific projects and be a key element of a funding plan. This could include, for example,
replacement of an aging bridge, or investments in multimodal infrastructure and transit
supportive elements or amenities. However, in addition to raising revenue for specific projects, a
program can successfully meet state, regional, and local goals by:

o Reinvesting revenue where it matters most. If designed thoughtfully, pricing programs that
have built equity into the program can introduce progressive fee structures and reinvest
revenue in the people and places that have historically been, and continue to be, the most
negatively impacted.

e Reinvesting revenue to support our region’s goals. Revenue collected from pricing
programs can be reinvested to enhance transit service elements and access, safety
improvements, and walking and bicycling networks. It can also be used to provide incentives
and subsidies to increase the number of people biking, walking, and taking transit for more
trips. With properly designed pricing programs, our region can have better, faster transit,
cleaner air, fewer hours sitting in traffic, and more equitable access to jobs and opportunities.

3-37
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Benefits to Freight and Businesses

Pricing strategies can help freight and businesses succeed by reducing congestion on highways and local
roads:

Pricing can benefit freight, especially truck transportation, as it supports a more reliable system.

Pricing can encourage people to use other forms of transportation to travel and leave highways
open for people and businesses, like freight, who do not have other options.

Pricing can support lowered cost of doing business —time is money.

3.2.5.1 Best Practices for Revenue Reinvestment

Equitable revenue reinvestment is a critical consideration from the outset of a pricing program.
Reinvestment strategies should be guided by the purpose of the program, the expected costs and
benefits, and input from community members impacted by the program. Revenue reinvestment
should be focused on neighborhoods that do not have or could lose access to the priced facility or
area. Increasing access to the priced facility or area, especially for places with limited access today
or places that would see reduced access without reinvested revenues, should be a focus. Part of
the revenue from pricing may need to be spent on operations, maintenance, and facility
investment.

Key considerations related to revenue reinvestment include:

e Reinvestment should be prioritized in areas designated as Metro’s Equity Focus Areas most
affected by pricing programs.

e Revenues collected through the pricing program should be reinvested in a manner that helps
meet state, regional, and local goals related to reductions in greenhouse gas emissions and
congestion while improving mobility and safety.

e Revenue should not be reinvested in infrastructure solely for single occupancy vehicles but
should be invested to improve the entire multimodal transportation system.

e Revenue should be reinvested in the region.

After paying for the administration and/or operating costs of a pricing program, revenue could be
reinvested in several ways (Table 3-4). Implementing agencies will need to consider any state
constitutional restrictions to revenue reinvestment, or other limitations based on federal or state
funding or program approvals, based on the type of pricing program established. Agencies may
use pricing to raise money for other things, like road improvements, seismic operations, and
operations and maintenance.

3-38
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Table 3-4 Potential Options for Revenue Reinvestment

Category

Transit

Infrastructure & speed and
reliability improvements

Description

Improved facilities, stops,

Target Area or
Population

Regional

passenger amenities, transit
priority freatments, express
services, expanded routes, and
similar improvements

Local communities
especially equity areas, for
example, Metro’s Equity
Focus Areas

Operation and
maintenance

Access to priced facility or
area

Operation and maintenance of
existing and future transit assets
and services

Improved bike, pedestrian, or

Regional

Active Transportation

Regional

micromobility access to transit
or priced facility or area directly

From/to equity zones, for
example, Metro’s Equity
Focus Areas

Neighborhood access

Improved bike, pedestrian, or
micromobility access to transit
or neighborhood activity centers

From equity zones, for
example Metro’s Equity
Focus Areas, to transit or

employment hubs

micromobility access to
employment hubs from transit

such as shopping centers and neighborhood activity
employment hubs centers
First/last mile to key Improved bike, pedestrian, or Regional

Diversion mitigation

Mode Shift and Single Occup

Prioritize safety enhancements
on the high crash network and
transit service elements along

areas impacted by diversion

ancy Vehicle Alternative Programs

Neighborhoods impacted
by diversion

Commuter Credits Benefit to users of the pricing Regional; higher subsidy
system who swipe their transit for transit deprived
card during peak hours rather communities and
than drive vulnerable populations
Free or discounted transit pass Regional; higher subsidy
or cash on transit card, i.e., for transit deprived

Transit subsidy TriMet's Fare Relief Program communities and .

vulnerable populations

Other programs Electric vehicle (EV) carshare Regional; higher subsidy
subsidy, bikeshare subsidy, for transit deprived
micromobility subsidy, carpool

3-39

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan

3/1/2023


https://trimet.org/equity/#farerelief

benefit, benefit to drivers of EV communities and

vehicles vulnerable populations
Priced Facility

Operations and Operations and maintenance of

Maintenance priced road

Infrastructure investment For tolled facilities, designed to
be paid for by the pricing
revenue

Potential Revenue Opportunities and Limitations

Depending on the pricing model, the use of revenue generated from a pricing program may be
subject to legal limits. For example, Oregon Constitution Article IX Section 3a limits the use of
revenue from taxes on motor vehicle use and fuel. The principle underlying this language is that
special taxes paid only by highway users should be used only for highway purposes. Whether a
particular pricing model is subject to this constitutional restriction is determined by Oregon courts
on a case-by-case basis. Recently, the Oregon Supreme Court concluded that Article IX section 3a’s
limit on use of tax revenue does not apply to a privilege tax imposed on vehicle dealers for the
privilege of engaging in the business of selling taxable motor vehicles at retail. The Court found that
the privilege tax was not based on the status of motor vehicle ownership, but rather on the activity
of selling motor vehicles. Jurisdictions considering pricing should review all potential legal limits and
structure the pricing model with these limits in mind.

3.2.5.2 What state and regional pricing work is underway?

Pricing strategies are being considered in the greater Portland Metropolitan Region, within the
City of Portland, and along the Multnomah Falls and the Waterfall Corridor area. They are being
used to combat traffic congestion and greenhouse gas emissions. This section provides a high-
level overview of statewide legislation and rulemaking related to pricing and describes how the
revenue from pricing is intended to support infrastructure in the region.

State Legislation & Rulemaking

House Bill 2017: House Bill 2017 invested millions of dollars to improve Oregon’s transportation
network. Part of that funding was allocated to implementing tolling. This directed the Oregon
Transportation Commission to implement traffic congestion tolls on I-5, I-205, and in the Portland
Metro region.10

House Bill 3055: House Bill 3055 created flexibility in allocating $30 million per year of funds to
projects listed in House Bill 2017 including I-5, Boone Bridge, and toll program implementation.

10 https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/About.aspx

3-40
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



HB 3055 directed that tolling should be used to manage travel demand and congestion, reduce
greenhouse gas emissions, raise revenue, make improvements or fund efforts on the tollway and
on adjacent, connected, or parallel highways, and minimize and mitigate impacts to
underrepresented and disadvantaged communities. It also required that an equitable tolling
strategy be implemented before tolls are assessed, and for a low-income toll report to be provided
to the Joint Transportation Committee and Oregon Transportation Committee.1% 12

Low-Income Toll Report: House Bill (HB) 2017 provided direction to implement tolling on I-5
and [-205 in the Portland metro area, and ODOT’s Toll Program was established to oversee state-
operated toll projects and policies throughout the state. The Low-Income Toll Report for the
Oregon Toll Program was developed by the Oregon Transportation Department (ODOT) at the
direction of the Oregon Legislature. The report presents options for consideration to develop a
low-income toll program as part of the Oregon Toll Program, including:

e Providing significant toll discounts for households with incomes equal to or below 200% of
the federal poverty level

e Providing a smaller, more focused toll discount for households with incomes above 200% and
up to 400% of the federal poverty level

e Using a verification process that leverages existing programs and further explores self-
certification to quality for toll discounts

ODOT, in collaboration with the Oregon Transportation Commission, will identify specific benefits
for people experiencing low incomes to ensure benefits are in place before tolling begins. The
Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee (EMAC) helped inform the report.

2023 Oregon Highway Plan Toll Policy Amendment

In January 2023, the Oregon Transportation Commission adopted an amendment to Goal 6 of the
Oregon Highway Plan, which had last been updated in 2012. The amendment updated state
policies related to tolling and congestion pricing policy, including defining terms and types of road
pricing and clarifying the need and goals for tolling and congestion pricing. It also updated
language related to equity and climate goals and provided guidance on rate setting and the use of
revenues. The amendment will guide multiple major toll projects in the Portland metro region, as
well as statewide rulemaking and toll rate setting.13

Climate-Friendly and Equitable Communities

Parking reform is part of the Oregon Land Conservation and Development Commission’s Climate-
Friendly and Equitable Communities (CFEC) rulemaking. The reform decreased required parking
mandates for new developments near frequent transit and for certain development types with the

11 https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureAnalysisDocument/61936
12 https://olis.oregonlegislature.gov/liz/2021R1/Downloads/MeasureDocument/HB3055/Enrolled
13 https://www.oregon.gov/odot/Planning/Documents/OHP_Goal_6_Policy.pdf
3-41
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



intent of reducing costs. This was accomplished by unbundling parking packages in developments,
implementing parking maximums, and incentivizing active transportation travel options. This
parking mandate reform aimed to decrease congestion by discouraging driving and parking. This
rule was published on July 15, 2022, and enacted for new development as of July 2022 and for
existing developments in 2023.14 This reform also required that parking lots include solar power
or trees, pedestrian-friendly infrastructure, and 50% of new residential parking spaces equipped
with electric vehicle charging. 1

Figure 3-8 Regional Mobility Pricing Project Map as of November 2022

Clark
Vancouver County

Interstate Bridge
Replacement Program

Columbia Riyer

Portland Gresham

Multnomah
County

Beaverton

f

/,\
A

L Regional Mobility
Pricing Project

Lake
Oswego

Tigard Happy Valley

Washington
County

Clackamas

Gladstone County

' West 29
Linn
Oregon

City

Tualatin

Regional Mobility
L Pricing Project

Interstate Bridge
L Replacement Program

1-205 Toll Project

4 Boone Bridge @ o 15 3
Miles

Wilsonville

Pricing Projects and Committees in the Portland Metro Region

ODOT I-205 Toll Project: ODOT is planning to toll drivers on I-205 near the Abernethy and
Tualatin River Bridges. The revenue from these tolls will be used to continue the construction of I-
205 Improvement Project past Phase 1A, which aims to decrease congestion, reduce greenhouse
gas emissions, increase active transportation, and provide facilities that are resilient to

14 https://www.oregon.gov/lcd/CL/Documents/CFECOverviewImplementation.pdf

15 https://www.oregon.gov/lcd/LAR/Pages/CFEC.aspx

3-42
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


https://www.oregon.gov/lcd/CL/Documents/CFECOverviewImplementation.pdf

earthquake damage. As part of a 2018 RTP amendment for this project, ODOT agreed to a series of
commitments that would address regional concerns related to the 1-205 toll project. See Chapter 8
for additional information.

ODOT Regional Mobility Pricing Project: The purpose of the Regional Mobility Pricing Project
(RMPP) is to use congestion pricing on I-5 and I-205 to manage traffic congestion on these
facilities in the Portland, Oregon metropolitan area in a manner that will generate revenue for
transportation system investments (Figure 3)16. The fees would vary depending on time of day,
income level, and type of car and would help fund critical multimodal projects in the region.

ODOT / WSDOT I-5 Bridge Replacement: The Interstate Bridge Replacement Program plans to
toll drivers crossing I-5 as part of the funding to finance a replacement bridge on I-5 between
Portland and Vancouver. The new bridge is intended to address congestion, earthquake
vulnerability, safety, impaired freight movement, inadequate bike and pedestrian paths, and
limited public transportation. Revenue from the tolls would be used to fund construction,
maintenance, and operation of the bridge and associated improvements. 17

ODOT Equity and Mobility Advisory Committee

The Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT)'s

was created to directly advise the Oregon Transportation Commission (OTC) on how

can address impacts and realize benefits for populations that have been

historically and are currently underrepresented or underserved by transportation projects. The committee
was chartered to addresses the following areas: equitable engagement, transit and multimodal access,
affordability and impacts to people experiencing financial hardship, and impacts to neighborhood health
and safety. EMAC and the OTC have established Foundational Statements and a set of recommendations to
guide equity in the development of the projects.

PBOT Pricing Options for Equitable Mobility

Portland Bureau of Transportation (PBOT)’s Pricing Options for Equitable Mobility (POEM) task
force explored if and how new pricing strategies could be used in the City of Portland to improve
mobility, address the climate crisis, and advance equity for people historically underserved by the
transportation system. In October 2021, Portland City Council accepted the POEM Task Force final
recommendation report. This recommendation report includes principles of pricing for equitable

mobility, nearer-term pricing strategies, longer-term pricing recommendations, and a suite of
complementary strategies to advance alongside pricing. The Pricing Strategies explored through
POEM included prices on parking, prices on vehicle-based commercial services (e.g., private for-

16 https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/SiteAssets/Pages/Regional-Mobility-Pricing-Project-
Documents/RMPP_NEPA_Proposed_Action_November_2022.pdf

17 https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/I-5-Tolling.aspx
3-43
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


https://www.portland.gov/sites/default/files/2021/2020_0714_poem_recommendations_adopted.pdf
https://www.portland.gov/sites/default/files/2021/2020_0714_poem_recommendations_adopted.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/Advisory-Committee.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Pages/Advisory-Committee.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/Toll_Projects_Equity_Framework_with_AppendixA.pdf
https://www.oregon.gov/odot/tolling/Documents/Toll_Projects_Equity_Framework_with_AppendixA.pdf

hire trips and urban delivery), highway tolling, cordons or area pricing, and road usage or per-
mile charges.18

Multnomah Falls and the Waterfall Corridor Timed-Use Permits

While outside of the metropolitan planning area, timed-use permits at Multnomah Falls and the
Waterfall Corridor provide a useful example of innovative parking pricing. ODOT, Oregon State
Parks, U.S. Forest Service, and Multnomah County required that personal vehicles pay for a timed-
use permit to access Multnomah Falls and federal lands adjacent to the Waterfall Corridor. The
permits were required from May 24 to September 5, 2022, during peak hours (9am to 6pm) when

data has shown crowds are busiest. The parking pricing strategy was used to limit the number of
personal vehicles that enter the parking lot for environmental, safety, and emergency response
reasons. The fee does not apply to those entering the park through active transportation modes,
before or after peak hours, and same-day passes. The fee was used to pay for the online pricing
system and does not generate additional revenue for other improvements. The Waterfall Corridor
Timed-Use permits apply to visitors that exit 1-84 from exit 28 through exit 35, while the
Multnomah Falls timed-use permit applies to visitors to Multnomah Falls.?

Federal Pricing Programs

Section 129 of Title 23 of the U.S. Code and the Value Pricing Program are examples of pricing
strategies that have worked. Since pricing is new to the Portland area, these two federal examples
show the value of pricing, and how pricing programs can evolve over time.

Section 129: Section 129 of Title 23 of the U.S. Code provides the ability to toll Federal-aid
highways in conjunction with construction, reconstruction, or other capital improvements. Flat
rate tolling and variable pricing strategies are authorized for Section 129 facilities. There are
some limitations to what facilities may be included.!? A new provision within the Infrastructure
Investment and Jobs Act is expanding tolling eligibility requirements.20

Section 166: Section 166 of Title 23 of the U.S. Code provides the ability to create high-occupancy
vehicle (HOV) lanes on Federal-aid highways. Public authorities which have jurisdiction over an
HOV facility have the authority to establish occupancy requirements of vehicles using the facility,
but the minimum is no fewer than two. Certain exceptions are allowed such as motorcycles and
bicycles, public transit vehicles, and low emission vehicles.

Value Pricing Pilot Program

18 https://www.portland.gov/transportation/planning/pricing-options-equitable-mobility-poem
19 https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/ipd/tolling_and_pricing/tolling_pricing/section_129.aspx
20 Regional Toll Advisory Committee Meeting #2, 2022 October 24.

3-44
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Oregon is a participant in the FHWA Value Pricing Pilot Program (VPPP). The VPPP was
established in 1991 (as the Congestion Pricing Pilot Program) to encourage implementation and
evaluation of value pricing pilot projects to manage congestion on highways through tolling and
other pricing mechanisms. The program also sought to test the impact of pricing on driver
behavior, traffic volumes, transit ridership, air quality, and availability of funds for transportation
programs. While the program no longer actively solicits projects, it can still provide tolling
authority to State, regional or local governments to implement congestion pricing applications.
Once all the federal requirements are met, implementing agencies can use the revenue for any
Title 23 project, which is aimed at the Federal-aid highways.?! See
https://ops.fhwa.dot.gov/congestionpricing/value pricing/

What did Metro learn from the Regional Congestion Pricing Study?

In 2021 Metro completed the Regional Congestion Pricing Study (RCPS). Directed by the Joint Policy
Advisory Committee on Transportation (JPACT) and the Metro Council in the 2018 RTP, the study
evaluated a variety of pricing strategies to better understand if the region could benefit from pricing.
The study found that pricing can be an effective strategy for reducing drive-alone trips and overall
VMT, but its impacts can vary widely by geography and demographics, as well as by what specific
strategy is implemented and how it is implemented.

Metro used its travel demand model to conduct in-depth modeling and analysis to help regional
policymakers understand the potential performance of different types of pricing tools (VMT fee,
cordon, parking, and roadway pricing). Each scenario was analyzed for how well it performed relative
to the four regional priorities (safety, equity, congestion, and climate) using performance metrics
grounded in the 2018 RTP.

Summary of Key Findings

The RCPS demonstrated that pricing has the potential to help the greater Portland region meet the
priorities outlined in the 2018 RTP, including reducing congestion and improving mobility, reducing
greenhouse gas emissions, and improving equity and safety outcomes.

All four types of congestion pricing could help address congestion and climate priorities. All eight
scenarios that were tested reduced the drive alone rate, vehicle miles traveled, and greenhouse gas
emissions, and increased daily transit trips. In fact, the projected improvements were comparable to
modeled scenarios with much higher investment in new transportation projects. However, the
geographic distribution of benefits, impacts, and costs varied by scenario.

Traffic diversion, travel time savings, and costs to travelers varied by location and by congestion
pricing tool. For example, the two roadway pricing scenarios, which evaluated a toll on all the
region’s freeways, identified significant traffic diversion onto the arterial network, even as volumes
and delay on the freeways fell. Without changes, some scenarios would have disproportionate
impacts on equity communities and key geographies.

Geographic distributions of benefits and costs can inform where to focus investments and
affordability strategies. In-depth analysis will be necessary to understand benefits (who and where)
and costs (who and where) of any future projects. The study also identified tradeoffs for
implementing pricing scenarios. Overall regional transportation costs and individual traveler costs

21 Regional Toll Advisory Committee Meeting #2, 2022 October 24.
3-45
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


https://ops.fhwa.dot.gov/congestionpricing/value_pricing/

varied by scenario. All eight scenarios that were tested increased the overall cost for travel for the

region, but some scenarios spread the costs widely while others concentrated them on fewer

travelers. Those that spread the costs also had the highest overall cost for travel in the region and
the highest revenue potential. Higher overall transportation costs equal higher revenue, which can
allow for investment in improvements to address safety and equity concerns.

3-46

Pricing and Equity

Today’s transportation system puts more burdens on people of color and people
with low incomes. Gas taxes and motor vehicle fees are not tied to a driver’s ability
to pay. Households with lower incomes spend 22 percent more of their income on
transportation than households with higher incomes. People of color and people
with low incomes are more likely to use transit and more likely to live further from
employment centers. They may also need to commute between more than one job.
Increasing congestion negatively impacts transit speed and reliability as buses sit in
traffic. This increases commute times for transit users. Federal and state funding
prioritizes auto infrastructure over investment in transit, favoring people with higher
means and access to a vehicle.

Today’s Transportation Funding is Inequitable

FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL INFLATION AND | f 1
GAS TAXES AND FEES HIGH-EFFICIENCY VEHICLES | PRESERVING AND TRANSIT, BICYCLE AND
., ) | | | BUILDING STREETS PEDESTRIAN PROJECTS

Pricing can improve or harm equity in the region. A pricing program designed with
the goal of improving equity, rather than attempting mitigations later, has the
potential to produce positive outcomes. Outcomes are determined by the way funds
are collected and where and in whom they are reinvested. The Revenue
Considerations and Policy sections below describe methods that can be used to lead
to equitable outcomes and strategic reinvestment into pricing programs. The
Regional Congestion Pricing Study found that without changes some scenarios
harmed equity by increasing costs and decreasing access. A thoughtful and
community-focused approach will be necessary as our region continues to explore
pricing options.

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan

3/1/2023



3.2.5.4 Pricing policies

Pricing policies apply to the planning, implementation, monitoring and evaluation of pricing
programs and projects in the region, as defined in Section 3.1.

Policy 1 Improve reliability and efficiency of the transportation network, reduce VMT per
capita, and increase transportation options through congestion management,
investments in transit, bike, and pedestrian improvements, and transportation
demand management programs.

Policy 2 Center equity and affordability into pricing programs and projects from the outset.

Policy 3 Address traffic safety and the safety of users of all modes, both on the priced system
and in areas affected by diversion.

Policy 4 Minimize diversion impacts created by pricing programs and projects prior to
implementation and throughout the life of the pricing program or project.

Policy 5 Reduce greenhouse gas emissions and vehicle miles travelled per capita while
increasing access to low-carbon travel options.

Policy 6 Coordinate technologies and pricing programs and projects to make pricing a low-
barrier, seamless experience for everyone who uses the transportation system and
to reduce administrative burdens.

Pricing Policy 1. Mobility: Improve reliability and efficiency of the transportation network, reduce
VMT per capita, and increase transportation options through congestion management, investments
in transit, bike, and pedestrian improvements, and transportation demand management programs.

The Metro Regional Congestion Pricing Study found that pricing has the potential to help the
greater Portland region improve mobility and manage congestion. Pricing programs should be
designed and implemented to maximize benefits related to improved access to jobs and
community places, shift to sustainable modes of travel, and overall affordability.

Investments in transit and transit-supportive elements have been shown to improve regional
mobility, especially in terms of access to jobs. Future transit investments, and investments into
other modal alternatives, should take into consideration the geographic distribution of low-
income populations (who may have less automobile access), existing access to jobs via transit,
people who commute outside of peak periods, and people who trip-chain (i.e.: making multiple
stops during one trip, such as dropping children off at school on the way to work). Policymakers
and future project owners and operators should consider how mobility improvements will be
received by populations and areas that have been historically marginalized. Mobility
improvements can be measured by reduced peak period travel times, reduced daily vehicle miles
traveled (VMT), reduced percentage of total daily trips undertaken by drivers without passengers,
increased number of total daily transit trips, and total vehicle hours of delay during peak PM
periods.

3-47
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



To implement Pricing Policy 1, agencies developing pricing programs or projects should take the
following actions:

1. Setrates for pricing at a level that will manage congestion, reduce VMT per capita, and improve
reliability on the priced facility and in areas affected by diversion.

2. Collaborate with relevant state, regional, and local agencies and communities when setting,
evaluating, and adjusting program or project specific goals.

3. Reinvest a portion of revenues from pricing into modal alternatives both on and off the priced
facility that encourage mode shift and VMT reduction per capita. Examples include, but are not
limited to, transit improvements, bicycle and pedestrian improvements, and improvements to
local circulation.

4. Identify opportunities to partner with other agencies to fund or construct transit, bike, and
pedestrian improvements. Work with transit agencies and other jurisdictional partners,
including consideration of opportunities identified in the High Capacity Transit Strategy and
Regional Transit Strategy, to determine additional revenue needs and pursue funding needed to
develop transit-supportive elements, expand access to transit, and to ensure equitable
investments, particularly in cases where such improvements cannot be funded directly by
pricing revenues due to revenue restrictions.

5. Consider non-infrastructure opportunities to encourage mode shift and reduce VMT per capita,
including commuter credits, funding for transit passes, bikeshare and/or micromobility
subsidies, partnerships with employer commuter programs, and carpooling / vanpooling.
Consider higher benefits, subsidies, discounts or exemptions for people with low-income or
other qualifying factors based on equity analysis.

Pricing Policy 2. Equity: Center equity and affordability into pricing programs and projects from the
outset.

The Metro Regional Congestion Pricing Study found that pricing strategies have the potential to
help the greater Portland region improve racial equity and benefit marginalized communities. Our
current transportation funding system is inequitable. Regressive funding sources such as fixed tax
rates and fees disproportionately impact low-income motorists, and negative health impacts from
high automobile reliance disproportionately harm BIPOC and low-income communities.

Pricing programs with an equity framework should aim to increase access to opportunity, provide
affordable options, create healthier and safer communities, and reduce income inequality and
unemployment. Pricing has the potential to offer a suite of affordability programs, such as rebates,
exemptions, or other investments. Reinvestment should be prioritized in areas designated as
Metro’s Equity Focus Areas most affected by pricing programs.

Policymakers and future project owners and operators should carefully consider how the benefits
and costs of pricing impact different geographic and demographic groups. If not conducted
thoughtfully, pricing could compound past injustices and harm BIPOC and low-income
communities. By focusing engagement at every step in the process on historically impacted
residents, agencies can reduce harm and increase benefits. The policy illustrates how equity can
be incorporated into pricing programs.

3-48
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



To implement Policy 2, agencies developing pricing programs or projects should take the following

actions:

1.

Conduct general public engagement in a variety of formats, including formats that accommodate
all abilities, all levels of access to technology, and languages other than English. Begin
engagement at an early stage and re-engage the public in a meaningful manner at multiple
points throughout the process.

Engage equity groups, people with low-income, and people of color in a co-creation process,
beginning at an early stage, to help shape goals, outcomes, performance metrics, and
reinvestment of revenues.

Use a consistent methodology across implementing agencies for defining equity groups and
equity areas for pricing programs and projects, including but not limited to the methodology
used for establishing the Equity Focus Areas. A consistent methodology for documenting
benefits and burdens of pricing for equity groups, people with low-income, people of color, and
equity areas should also be established across agencies. The methodology should consider a
variety of factors, such as implementing agency, costs to the user, travel options, travel time,
transit reliability and access, diversion and safety, economic impacts to businesses, noise, access
to opportunity, localized impacts to emissions, water and air quality, and visual impacts.

Establish feedback mechanisms, a communication plan, and recurring regular engagement over
time with the public, and with equity groups that were involved in the co-creation process.

Provide a progressive fee structure which includes exemptions, credits, or discounts for
qualified users. Base eligibility on inclusion in one or more population categories, such as low-
income, and minimize barriers to qualification by building on existing programs or partnerships
where applicable. Target outreach for enrollment in a discounts, credits, or exemptions in equity
areas and communities with higher-than-average shares of people with low income and people
of color.

Create varied and accessible means of payment and enrollment, including options for people
without access to the internet or banking services.

Reinvest a portion of revenues from pricing into communities with high proportions of people
with low-income and people of color, and/or in Equity Focus Areas. Use of these revenues
should meet the transportation-related needs identified by the equity communities and people
most impacted. Examples include commuter credits and free or discounted transit passes, or
improved transit facilities, stops, passenger amenities, and transit priority treatments.

Enforcement of pricing and fine structures for non-payment should be designed to reduce the
potential for enforcement bias and to minimize burdens on people with low incomes.

Create a process to measure how pricing programs achieve the actions items listed above to
demonstrate accountability.

Pricing Policy 3. Safety: Address traffic safety and the safety of users of all modes, both on the priced
system and in areas affected by diversion.

The Metro Regional Congestion Pricing Study found that pricing has a strong potential to help the

greater

3-49

Portland region improve safety outcomes and meet the safety priorities outlined in the

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Regional Transportation Plan. Pricing programs can improve safety by reinvesting revenue into
locally supported traffic safety improvements. The study recommends focusing safety
improvements on eliminating traffic deaths and serious injuries on city streets, or a Vision Zero
approach.

Safety challenges vary greatly across the region. Safety improvements should be assessed at a
project scale and built into a pricing programs’ definition to ensure that the core of the project
addresses these community needs. Detailed project-scale analysis should provide insight into
where safety investments are needed and should address any project-related safety concerns.
Safety outcomes of a pricing program can be measured by the level of revenue reinvestment in
improvements that address fatalities and serious injuries on high injury corridors or roadways.

To implement Pricing Policy 3, agencies developing pricing programs or projects should take the
following actions:

1. Collaborate with relevant state, regional, and local agencies and communities when identifying
traffic safety impacts and selecting mitigations associated with pricing.

2. Use a data-driven approach to identify potential traffic safety impacts on the priced system and
in areas affected by diversion both during and after implementation of pricing programs and
projects; monitor with real-time data after implementation.

3. Context-specific monitoring and evaluation programs should be conducted by implementing
agencies in coordination with partner agencies and be on-going and transparent. Establish
feedback mechanisms, incident resources, and a communication plan in advance for the
community and decision makers.

4. Adjust safety strategies in coordination with partner agencies based on monitoring and
evaluation findings.

5. Reinvest a portion of revenues on the priced system and in areas affected by diversion to
manage safety issues caused by pricing programs and projects and to improve safety, for
example, through investments in transit, bike, and pedestrian improvements, or other
investments in known crash reduction factors.

6. Pricing programs and projects should strive to reduce fatalities and serious injuries by aligning
with the RTP's safety and security policies identified in Section 3.2.1.4

Pricing Policy 4. Diversion: Minimize diversion impacts created by pricing programs and projects
prior to implementation and throughout the life of the pricing program or project.

The Metro Regional Congestion Pricing Study found that pricing programs have the potential to
lead to diversion impacts, as drivers shift from the freeway network to the arterials to avoid
charges. Spillover/cut through traffic caused by a pricing program can exacerbate traffic safety
concerns along other streets. Project designers should carefully consider the wide distribution of
diversion impacts that may result from the program, particularly on regional high injury
corridors. Implementing agencies can look to the City of Portland’s identified high crash network
of streets and intersections for which to prioritize safety improvements. It is important for pricing
programs to mitigate the negative impacts of diversion. Diversion onto nearby streets could be

3-50
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



addressed with safety or transit improvements, for example. If pricing programs result in
successful mode shift to transit, diversion impacts can be lessened.

To implement Pricing Policy 4, agencies developing pricing programs or projects should take the
following actions:

1. Collaborate with relevant state, regional, and local agencies and communities when identifying
diversion impacts and selecting mitigations associated with pricing.

2. Use a data-driven approach to define and identify diversion impacts both during and after
implementation of pricing programs and projects. Following implementation monitor with real-
time data.

3. Evaluate localized impacts of diversion including factors such as VMT per capita, VMT per capita
in defined equity areas, noise, economic impacts to businesses, and localized emissions, water
quality, air quality, and the completeness of safety infrastructure and non-vehicular modal
networks

4. Context-specific monitoring and evaluation programs should be conducted by implementing
agencies in coordination with partner agencies and be on-going and transparent. Establish
feedback mechanisms and a communication plan in advance for the community and decision
makers and ensure reinvestment is still applicable when impacted area changes

5. Adjust mitigation strategies based on monitoring and evaluation findings. Areas impacted may
change as the pricing program is implemented and diversion mitigation strategies are put into
place.

6. Reinvest a portion of revenues into areas affected by diversion caused by pricing programs and
projects.

Pricing Policy 5. Climate and Air Quality: Reduce greenhouse gas emissions and vehicle miles
travelled per capita while increasing access to low-carbon travel options.

The Metro Regional Congestion Pricing Study found that pricing has the potential to help the great
Portland region reduce greenhouse gas emissions and achieve Metro’s climate goals. All of the
scenarios tested in the study showed reductions in greenhouse gas emissions through reducing
overall VMT per capita. Pricing policies were found to be effective in encouraging drivers to
change their travel behavior such as using more sustainable travel modes like transit, walking, or
biking. These changes in behavior are key to reducing greenhouse gas emissions in the region.

Pricing programs should be designed to meet climate goals without adversely impacting safety or
equity. Climate improvements can be measured by percent reduction of greenhouse gasses per
capita, percent reduction of criteria pollutants and transportation air toxics, percent reduction of
vehicle miles traveled per capita, and shifts in travel behavior. Implementing agencies should
consider the geographic and demographic distribution of targeted climate improvements,
particularly taking into consideration the health impacts of pollutants and transportation air
toxics that disproportionately harm BIPOC and low-income communities.

To implement Pricing Policy 5, agencies developing pricing programs or projects should take the
following actions:

3-51
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



1. Identify localized air pollutants and greenhouse gas emission impacts due to pricing and identify
strategies for mitigation.
2. Setrates for pricing at a level that will reduce greenhouse gas emissions and improve air quality

by managing congestion and reducing overall VMT per capita on the priced system and in areas

affected by diversion.

3. Reinvest a portion of revenues from pricing into modal alternatives both on and off the priced
facility that can reduce overall emissions by encouraging mode shift and VMT per capita
reduction, including transit improvements as well as bicycle and pedestrian improvements and
improvements to local circulation.

4. Develop and implement pricing so that it addresses and supports the RTP’s Climate Smart

Strategy and RTP policies, including through the Congestion Management Process. Pricing Policy

6. Technology and User Experience: Coordinate technologies and pricing programs and projects
to make pricing a low-barrier, seamless experience for everyone who uses the transportation
system and to reduce administrative burdens.

The Metro Regional Congestion Pricing Study details a wide range of technologies available that
can be used in pricing programs to create a seamless and low-barrier experience. Programs can
use electronic toll collection systems, mobile applications, short-range communication systems
embedded in new vehicles, OReGO technologies that wirelessly connect to a vehicle’s diagnostic
ports, or online portals for self-reporting. The type of technology used will vary depending on the
type of pricing program. Metro’s study recommends a pilot phase for the region to trial one or
more technologies before implementing a region-wide system.

There are several considerations to be taken when using technology in the implementation of a
pricing program. First, emerging technologies can be more expensive than existing ones, yet
existing technologies run the risk of becoming obsolete sooner. Second, some technologies (such
as tolling systems) require a physical footprint that can take up limited physical space and create
a visual aesthetic impact that may need design commission approval in some parts of the city.
Further, technologies such as mobile apps or online portals that require users to take an action
will likely be less accurate and reliable than automatic technologies. These technologies may also
unfairly burden low-income travelers that do not have access to a mobile phone, computer,
internet, or banking system. Technologies that enhance user experience while limiting barriers to
use should be prioritized. Project designers should also consider a program'’s compatibility with
existing pricing technologies used in the region (such as the Hop regional transit fare program or
existing parking payment systems).

To implement Policy 6, agencies developing pricing programs or projects should take the following
actions:

1. Coordinate technologies and user-friendly designs across pricing programs and projects to
reduce burdens on the user and manage the system efficiently, including setting rates,
identifying tolling technology and payment systems, and establishing discounts and exemptions.

2. Create varied and accessible means of payment and enrollment, including options for people
without access to the internet or banking services.

3-52

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



3. Consider the upfront costs of technology investment balanced with long-term operational and
replacement costs compared with expected revenue generation.

Key terms will be included in the RTP glossary.

Pricing: Motorists pay directly for driving on a particular roadway or for driving or parking in a
particular area. Pricing includes pricing different locations using different rate types, such as
variable or dynamic pricing (higher prices under congested conditions and lower prices at less
congested times and conditions), amongst other methods. Rates may vary based on vehicle size or
type, incomes, or other variables. Pricing within the Portland metropolitan context could include
the following methods and pricing strategies. Methods and strategies can be combined in different
ways, such as variable cordon pricing or dynamic roadway pricing. Different types of pricing can
be implemented in coordination with each other to provide greater systemwide benefits. Pricing
can be implemented at the state, regional, or local level.

=  Types of Pricing

— Cordon

— Low Emissions Zone

— Parking
Road Usage Charge / VMT Fee / Mileage Based User Fee
= Roadway Rate Types

— Flat

— Variable

— Dynamic

Road Usage Charge / VMT Fee / Mileage Based User Fee: Motorists are charged for each mile
driven. A road usage charge is often discussed as an alternative to federal, state, and local gas
taxes which have become less relevant to the user-pays principle as more drivers switch to fuel
efficient or electric vehicles. Road usage charges are most often implemented as flat or variable
rate fees.

Cordon Pricing: Motorists are charged to enter a congested area, usually a city center or other
high activity area well served with non-driving transportation options. Cordon pricing is most
often implemented as flat or variable rate fees.

Low Emissions Zone Pricing: Similar to cordon pricing, drivers are charged when they enter a
Low Emissions Zone, unless they have a vehicle that meets the requirements of the Low Emissions
Zone, for example an electric vehicle that does not emit tailpipe emissions when only using
electricity to run.

Parking Pricing: Drivers pay to park in certain areas. Parking pricing may include flat, variable,
or dynamic fee structures. Dynamic pricing involves periodically adjusting parking fees to match
demand, this can be paired with technology which helps drivers find spaces in underused and less
costly areas.

3-53
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Roadway Pricing: Motorists are charged to drive on a particular roadway. Roadway pricing can
be implemented as a flat, variable, or dynamic fee. Roadway prices that vary by time of day can
follow a set fee schedule (variable), or the fee rate can be continually adjusted based on traffic
conditions (dynamic).

Flat Rate Fee (Toll): A flat rate fee, also known as a toll, charged by a toll facility operator in an
amount set by the operator for the privilege of traveling on said toll facility. Tolling is a user fee
system for specific infrastructure such a bridges and tunnels. Toll revenues are used for costs
associated with the tolled infrastructures. This tool is used to raise funds for construction,
operations, maintenance, and administration of specific infrastructure. Flat rate tolling can also
serve as a method for congestion management, though it is not responsive to changing conditions
or time of day. Additionally, flat rate tolling cannot be used for congestion pricing programs or
projects authorized by the Value Pricing Pilot Program or Section 166 on interstate highways
under Federal law.

Variable Rate Fee: With this type of pricing, a variable fee schedule is set so that the fee is higher
during peak travel hours and lower during off-peak or shoulder hours. This encourages motorists
to use the facility or drive less during less congested periods and allows traffic to flow more freely
during peak times. Peak fee rates may be high enough to usually ensure that traffic flow will not
break down, thus offering motorists a reliable and less congested trip in exchange for the higher
peak fee. The current price is often displayed on electronic signs prior to the beginning of the
priced facility.

Dynamic Rate Fee: Fee rates are continually adjusted according to traffic conditions to better
achieve a free-flowing level of traffic. Under this system, fee rates increase when the priced
facilities get relatively full and decrease when the priced facilities get less full. This system is more
complex and less predictable than using a flat or variable rate fee structure, but its flexibility helps
to better achieve the optimal traffic flow by reflecting changes in travel demand. Motorists are
usually guaranteed that they will not be charged more than a pre-set maximum price under any
circumstances. The current price is often displayed on electronic signs prior to the beginning of
the priced facility.

Low-carbon travel options: Low-carbon travel options include walking, rolling, biking, transit,
and electric vehicles.

Transit-supportive elements: Transit-supportive elements include programs, policies, capital
investments and incentives such as Travel Demand Management and physical improvements such
as sidewalks, crossings, and complementary land uses.

Diversion: Diversion is the movement of automobile trips from one facility to another because of
pricing implementation. All trips that change their route in response to pricing are considered
diversion, regardless of length or location of the trip, or whether they divert to or from the priced
facility.

3-54
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



3.2.6 Mobility Policies

WHAT’S CHANGED? This is a new policy section. It updates and replaces the Interim regional
mobility policy (Section 3.5.4 in the 2018 RTP). The new draft mobility policies were developed
through an extensive three-year process with significant input from local, regional and state
practitioners, Metro technical and policy advisory committees, other stakeholders and the Metro
Council. The new policies were accepted by JPACT and the Metro Council in December 2022.
Further discussion of the mobility performance measures and targets is recommended following
completion of the RTP system analysis in April 2022.

Within the Portland metropolitan area, the State of Oregon and Metro have a shared goal of
providing mobility such that people and businesses can safely, affordably, and efficiently reach the
goods, services, places, and opportunities they need to thrive by a variety of seamless and well-
connected travel options and services that are welcoming, convenient, comfortable, and reliable.

The mobility policy is intended to achieve the following outcomes which are in alignment with
ODOT and Metro strategic goals and priorities. They were identified by policymakers and
stakeholders as critical to how we plan for, manage, and operate our transportation system.

3.2.5.1 Mobility policy outcomes and policies

e Equity - Black, Indigenous and people of color (BIPOC) community members and people
with low incomes, youth, older adults, people living with disabilities and other
marginalized and underserved communities experience equitable mobility. BIPOC and
other marginalized communities have often experienced disproportionately negative impacts
from transportation infrastructure as well as disparities in access to safe multimodal travel
options. Addressing these disparities is a priority for ODOT and Metro.

3-55
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



The regional transportation system should

,\\'\‘Y PO“cy Ele

support access to opportunities for everyone, \s) . ’77@

. . . . Q° Equity .
not just people in motor vehicles. Equity can Ly
be enhanced through providing strong

Equitable
multimodal networks with priority provided Taisboristian

to improvements benefitting marginalized
and underserved communities.

Efficiency - Land use and
transportation decisions and
investments contribute to more
efficient use of the transportation
system meaning that trips are shorter

and can be completed by more travel g

modes, reducing space and resources Q . '
dedicated to transportation. Efficiency

in this context means that transportation

requires less space and resources. Efficiency can be improved by shortening travel distances

between destinations. Shorter travel distances to destinations enhance the viability of using
other and more efficient modes of transportation than the automobile and preserves roadway
capacity for transit, freight and goods movement by truck and for longer trips. Efficiently
using land and planning for key destinations in proximity to the where people live and work,
contributes to shorter trip lengths. The transportation efficiency of existing and proposed land
use patterns and transportation systems can be measured by looking at “vehicle miles
traveled (VMT) per capita” for home-based trips or “VMT per employee” for commute trips
to/from work of an area.

Access and Options -People and businesses can conveniently and affordably reach the
goods, services, places, and opportunities they need to thrive. People and businesses
can choose from a variety of seamless and well-connected travel modes and services
that easily get them where they need to go. The viability of trips made by modes other than
automobiles can be increased by investing in a connected, multimodal transportation system.
Multimodal systems serve all people, not just those who have access to vehicles or the ability
to drive them, and provide more route choices, increase safety and efficiency, and increase
reliability. Closing gaps in networks, particularly pedestrian and bicycle networks, and closing
special and temporal gaps in transit networks, can change travel preferences, reducing

VMT /capita. Progress towards well connected, multimodal networks can be measured by
mode with “system completeness.”

Safety - People are able to travel safely and comfortably and feel welcome. Unsafe
transportation facilities can result in injury and loss of life and place a strain on emergency
responders. Both unsafe conditions and perceived unsafe conditions can impact travel
behavior, causing users to choose different routes or modes. Prioritizing investments that
reduce the likelihood of future crashes and that improve safety and comfort for all users will

3-56

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



increase mode choices and improve reliability. System completeness by travel mode is useful
in identifying needs and investments that could enhance safety and comfort.

o Reliability - People and businesses can count on the transportation system to travel
where they need to go reliably and in a reasonable amount of time. In a reliable
transportation system, all users, including people in automobiles and using transit, can
reasonably predict travel time to their destinations. Reliability is impacted by travel
conditions, safety, street connectivity, congestion, and availability of travel options.
Investments in safety, street connectivity, transit, transportation system management and
operations (TSMO), and demand management can yield significant benefits for managing
congestion and increasing reliability for all travelers. System completeness can be used as a
measure of the availability of reliable travel options, including walking and biking. Average
travel speed can be used as a measure to forecast areas of congestion including looking at the
number of hours a facility is congested and the percentage of a facility that is congested for
multiple hours per day. Average travel speed can also be used to look at total travel time
between origin-destination pairs and identify bottlenecks that are most impacting reliability
on key travel routes for vehicle modes, including freight and transit.

For Throughways, the essential function is throughput and mobility for motor vehicle travel,
including transit and freight vehicles, to maximize movement of people and goods.
Throughways serve interregional and interstate trips and travel times are an important factor
in people and businesses being able to make long-distance trips to and through the region and
access destinations of regional and statewide significance in a reasonable and reliable amount
of time.

For most Arterials, depending upon the street design classification and freight network
classification, the essential functions are transit, bicycle and pedestrian travel and access,
while balancing motor vehicle travel and the many other functions of arterials in intensely
developed areas. Transit reliability on arterials can be improved with exclusive bus lanes,
signal priority and other TSMO strategies. Improving automobile reliability through additional
roadway capacity should follow the region’s congestion management process and not come at
the expense of non-motorized modes and achieving system completeness consistent with
modal or design classifications in the RTP or achieving the VMT/capita target for the region or
the jurisdiction.

Within the Portland metropolitan area, the State of Oregon and Metro have a shared goal of
providing mobility such that people and businesses can safely, affordably, and efficiently reach
the goods, services, places, and opportunities they need to thrive by a variety of seamless and
well-connected travel options and services that are welcoming, convenient, comfortable, and
reliable. The following policies aim to achieve these outcomes.

Mobility Policy 1 Ensure that land use decisions and investments in the transportation system
enhance efficiency in how people and goods travel to where they need to go.

Mobility Policy 2 Provide people and businesses a variety of seamless and well-connected
travel modes and services that increase connectivity, increase choices and

3-57
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



access to low carbon transportation options so that people and businesses
can conveniently and affordably reach the goods, services, places and
opportunities they need to thrive.

Mobility Policy 3 Create a reliable transportation system that people, and businesses can
count on to reach destinations in a predictable and reasonable amount of
time.

Mobility Policy 4 Prioritize the safety and comfort of travelers by all modes when planning

and implementing mobility solutions.

Mobility Policy 5 Prioritize investments that ensure that Black, Indigenous and people of color
(BIPOC) community members and people with low incomes, youth, older
adults, people living with disabilities and other marginalized and
underserved populations have equitable access to safe, reliable, affordable,
and convenient travel choices that connect to key destinations.

Mobility Policy 6 Use mobility performance measures and targets for system planning and
evaluating the impacts of plan amendments including Vehicle Miles
Travelled (VMT) per capita for home-based trips and VMT/employee for
commute trips to/from work, system completeness for all modes, and travel
speed reliability on the throughways.

These policies apply to:
e the state highway system within the Portland metropolitan area for

o identifying state highway mobility performance expectations for planning and plan
implementation; and

o evaluating the impacts on state highways of amendments to transportation system
plans, acknowledged comprehensive plans and land use regulations pursuant to the
Transportation Planning Rule (OAR 660-12-0060).

e throughways and arterials designated in the Regional Transportation Plan, which include
state and local jurisdiction facilities, for identifying mobility performance expectations for
planning and plan implementation.

Under this policy, Oregon Highway Plan volume-to-capacity ratio targets still guide operations
decisions such as managing access and traffic control systems and can be used to identify
intersection improvements that would help reduce delay, improve the corridor average travel
speed, and improve safety. Local jurisdiction standards for their facilities still apply for evaluating
impacts of amendments to transportation system plans, acknowledged comprehensive plans and
land use regulations pursuant to the Transportation Planning Rule (OAR 660-12-0060) and
guiding operations decisions.

Three performance measures and targets as described in Table 3-5 will be used to assess the
adequacy of mobility in the Portland metropolitan area for the regional networks based on the

3-58
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



expectations for each facility type, location, and function. These measures will be the initial tools
to identify mobility gaps and deficiencies (needs) and consider solutions to address identified
mobility needs. The subsequent actions describe how to apply these measures to system planning
consistent with OAR 660-012, Sections 3.08.220 and 3.08.510 of the Regional Transportation
Functional Plan (RTFP) and OHP Policy 1.G and assessing plan amendment consistent with OAR

660-012-0060.

Table 3-5 Draft mobility policy performance measure targets

home-based trips
and

VMT/Employee
for commute
trips to/from
work

Measure Application Target
System Planning OAR 660 Division 44 ((Metropolitan Greenhouse Gas (GHG)
Emissions Reduction rule)) and OAR 660 Division 12 set
VMT/capita reduction targets with which the 2023 RTP update
VMT/Capita for and local TSPs will need to comply. The VMT/capita targets are:

20% reduction by 2035, 25% reduction by 2040, 30% reduction by
2045 and 35% reduction by 2050 (from 2005 levels). 6

The 2023 RTP and TSPs that meet this regional target will establish
2045 baseline VMT/capita and VMT/employee. All subsequent
applications of this policy shall not increase VMT/capita or
VMT/employee above the future baseline.

Plan
Amendments1

The plan amendment will have equal to or lower forecast
VMT/capita for home-based trips and equal to or lower forecast
VMT/employee for commute trips to/from work than the
District.2

System
Completeness

System Planning

Complete networks and systems for walking, biking, transit,
vehicles, freight, and implement strategies for managing the
transportation system and travel demand (See Table 3 for
guidance and Table 4 for completeness elements by facility
type).?? (The planned system, Strategic and Financially
Constrained, will be defined in local jurisdiction TSPs and may not
achieve completeness for all modes to target levels but the local
jurisdiction TSP should identify future intent for all facilities given
constraints and tradeoffs.)

Plan 100% of planned system

Amendments Or
Reduced gaps and deficiencies (See Table 5% for guidance)
RTP Motor Vehicle Designation Target®

System Throughways - Expressways * Average speed not

Travel Speed Planning3 1-205 below 35 mph for

-84 more than 4 hours per
I-5 day
OR 217

22 See pages 10-11 of the Memo “Draft Regional Mobility Policy for the 2023 Regional Transportation Plan (10/28/22)”
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2022/12/08/Draft-2023-Regional-mobility-policy-2023-RTP-10-28-2022.pdf Tables will be

added to Appendix X in the final RTP

2 See page 19 of the Memo “Draft Regional Mobility Policy for the 2023 Regional Transportation Plan (10/28/22)”
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2022/12/08/Draft-2023-Regional-mobility-policy-2023-RTP-10-28-2022.pdf Tables will be

added to Appendix X in the final RTP

3-59

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2022/12/08/Draft-2023-Regional-mobility-policy-2023-RTP-10-28-2022.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2022/12/08/Draft-2023-Regional-mobility-policy-2023-RTP-10-28-2022.pdf

US 26 (west of 1-405)

1-405

OR 213 from Beavercreek Road to
1-205

OR 212-Sunrise Expressway

Throughways — Non-Expressways * Average speed not

OR 99W west of Sherwood below 20 mph for

OR 99E Portland to OR 212 more than 4 hours per
OR 99E from south of Oregon City day

OR 213 south of Beavercreek Rd
UsS 30

OR 47

OR 224

OR 212

US 26 south of OR 212

Plan Same as system planning Same as system
Amendments planning

Table notes:

1 Plan amendments that meet this target shall be found to not have a significant impact pursuant to the
Transportation Planning Rule (OAR 660-12-0060).

ZMetro will establish VMT/capita “Districts” that identify TAZ groupings (subareas) with similar land use
characteristics and forecast VMT /Capita. A spreadsheet or similar tool will be developed to help assess
potential changes to VMT/capita and VMT/employee and potential mitigations to minimize the need for
application of the regional travel demand model for all plan amendments.

3 Addressing motor vehicle congestion through additional throughway capacity should follow the RTP
congestion management process, Sections 3.08.220 and 3.08.510 of the Regional Transportation Functional
Plan and OHP Policy 1G, and should not come at the expense of achieving system completeness for non-
motorized modes consistent with regional modal or design classifications or achieving the VMT/capita
target for the region or jurisdiction.

4Throughways are designated in the Regional Transportation Plan and generally correspond to
Expressways designated in the Oregon Highway Plan. Some throughways designated in the RTP are not
Expressways in the Oregon Highway Plan but serve an important statewide function.

5The target is used to identify areas of poor reliability where due to recurring congestion, average travel
speeds drop below specified speed and duration thresholds. It will be used as a target to identify needs
(deficiencies) and to assess the percentage of the throughway that meets the target. It will not be applied as
a standard that creates conflict with meeting OAR 660 Division 44 VMT per capita reduction targets.
Solutions to address identified needs should follow the RTP congestion management process, Sections
3.08.220 and 3.08.510 of the Regional Transportation Functional Plan and OHP Policy 1G, and should not
come at the expense of achieving system completeness for non-motorized modes consistent with regional
modal or design classifications or achieving the VMT /capita target for the region or jurisdiction.

6 Meeting these targets sets the region on a trajectory to meet state goals adopted in 2007 to reduce total
GHG emissions from all sources to 75% below 1990 levels by 2050

How do the measures work together?

VMT //capita will be a controlling measure in both system planning and plan amendments to
ensure that the planned transportation system and changes to the system support reduced

3-60
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2015/02/03/chap308_regional_transportation_functional_plan.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2015/02/03/chap308_regional_transportation_functional_plan.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2015/02/03/chap308_regional_transportation_functional_plan.pdf

VMT /capita by providing travel options that are complete and connected and that changes to land
use reduce the overall need to drive from a regional perspective and are supportive of travel
options.

e For system planning, the final planned system must support OAR 660 Division 44
(Metropolitan Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Reduction rule) and OAR 660 Division 12
VMT reduction targets.

e For plan amendments, VMT /capita will be used to determine if the proposed plan amendment
has a significant impact on regional VMT /capita that needs to be mitigated or not.

System completeness and travel speed reliability on throughways are secondary measures that
will be used to identify needs and inform the development of the planned system. The policy
requires that TSPs define the planned system for each mode using a variety of guidance
documents. Additional RTP and state policies also guide the development of individual modal
systems. [t is important to note that the Regional Mobility Policy is one of many policies that
inform the development of the Regional Transportation Plan and local transportation system
plans in the Portland region.

The regional and local “planned” system may not achieve completeness for all modes but should
identify future needs and expectations for all facilities given constraints and tradeoffs. Similarly,
reliability on throughways will inform state and regional needs of the throughway system, and the
target articulates the desired level of reliability for the throughway system designated in the RTP
and OHP. Identifying solutions for locations that do not meet the throughways travel speed
reliability target shall follow the RTP congestion management processz* and OHP Policy 1G25, and
should not come at the expense of achieving the VMT /capita target.

3.2.5.2 Mobility policy system planning actions

A planned system that can be used to review system completeness is the primary outcome of
system planning. VMT /capita and hours of congestion are applied to system planning to support
the identification of the planned system. The Regional Mobility Policy does not dictate how Metro
or local agencies conduct system planning. It is one tool to be used to identify needs and define the
planned system. System planning includes updates to long-range transportation plans, including
the Regional Transportation Plan and locally adopted transportation system plans. System
planning also includes planning for the transportation system in smaller geographies through
ODOT facility plans, corridor refinement plans as defined in the RTP and OAR 660-012-0190, and
area plans, including concept plans for designated urban reserve areas. The following actions

242018 RTP Chapter 3 (pages 3-71 and 3-72) regarding RTP the Congestion Management Process state that “The RTP calls for implementing
system and demand management strategies and other strategies prior to building new motor vehicle capacity, consistent with the Federal
Congestion Management Process (CMP), Oregon Transportation Plan policies (including Oregon Highway Plan Policy 1G) and Section 3.08.220
of the Regional Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP). Appendix L to the RTP provides more detailed information. Sections 3.08.220 and
3.08.510 of the Regional Transportation Functional Plan further direct how cities and counties implement the CMP in the local system
planning process.

2 Policy 1G (Major Improvements) has the purpose of maintaining highway performance and improving highway safety by improving system
efficiency and management before adding capacity.

3-61
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



describe how each of the performance targets shall be used in tandem in system planning, which
is supported by the flow chart in Figure 3-9.

1.

Division 44 GHG Emissions Reduction Rule) and OAR 660 Division 12 (Transportation
Planning Rule) set a VMT /capita reduction target for the Portland metropolitan area.26
The 2023 RTP will identify the strategies needed to achieve this target and result in 2045
baseline VMT /capita for the region. This future baseline shall be used to estimate future
VMT //capita for home-based trips and VMT/employee for commute trips to/from work at
the TAZ level. The TAZ data shall be aggregated to develop “Districts” 27with similar land
use and VMT characteristics by Metro through the 2023 RTP update and implementation
process. The percent change in VMT /capita for the region must meet the reduction target
in Division 44 (GHG Emissions Reduction Rule), but the percent change in VMT /capita for
each district will vary.

For system planning at the sub-regional, local jurisdiction (TSPs), or subarea levels,
VMT/capita for home-based trips and VMT/employee for commute trips to/from work
shall be measured for the “Districts” covering the plan area to ensure that land use and
transportation plan changes are working in tandem to achieve the region’s VMT/capita
reduction target, resulting in reduced need to drive, improved viability of using other and
more efficient modes of transportation than the automobile, and preserving roadway
capacity for transit, freight and movement of goods and services. At the first major TSP
update after this policy is implemented, system plans shall demonstrate that the planned
transportation system achieves the regional OAR 660 Division 44 (GHG Emissions
Reduction Rule) and OAR 660 Division 12 (Transportation Planning Rule) targets and that
future system plan updates maintain or reduce aggregate VMT /capita for home-based
trips and VMT /employee for commute trips to/from work for the “Districts” in the plan
area compared to the 2045 baseline set in the 2023 RTP. Projections of VMT /capita must
incorporate the best available science on latent and induced travel of additional roadway
capacity consistent with OAR 660-012-0160.

System completeness definitions in guidance documents shall be used to identify needs
and ensure that the planned transportation system is increasing connectivity and
improving safety of the multimodal network. The planned system shall be established in
local transportation system plans consistent with the RTP and RTFP for each facility and
will vary based on the modal functional classification and design classification. Table 328

26 The Division 44 VMT reduction targets cannot currently be measured using Metro’s Regional Travel Demand Model (RTDM); however,

baselines for VMT/capita for home-based trips and VMT/employee for commute trips to/from work can be established from the RTDM for the

RTP scenario that meet the Division 44 VMT reduction targets as measured via a different tool.

27 VMT/capita “Districts” will be established that identify TAZ groupings (subareas) with similar forecast VMT/capita, considering use of RTP

mobility corridor geographies as a starting point.

28 See pg 10 of the Memo “Draft Regional Mobility Policy for the 2023 Regional Transportation Plan (10/28/22)”
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2022/12/08/Draft-2023-Regional-mobility-policy-2023-RTP-10-28-2022.pdf Tables will be

added to Appendix X in the final RTP

3-62

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2022/12/08/Draft-2023-Regional-mobility-policy-2023-RTP-10-28-2022.pdf

provides guidance for defining the planned system and Table 429 identifies the elements
that must be identified for each facility or service type.

Reliability for throughways based on average travel speed targets shall be used to assess
performance of throughway facilities within the system planning study area for safe,
efficient, and reliable speeds. Targets will include a target minimum average travel speed
that shall be maintained for a specific number of hours per day, recognizing that the target
average speed is not likely to be met during a number of peak hours, as described in Table
3-5. The percentage of the throughway system meeting the target may also be considered.
These targets shall inform identification of transportation needs and consideration of
system and demand management strategies and other strategies3? but shall not be used as
standards at the expense of non-motorized modes and achieving system completeness for
other modes consistent with regional modal or design classifications or achieving the

VMT /capita target for the region or jurisdiction. Analysis segmentation of facilities within
the study area will be determined based on the analysis software or modeling tool
utilized.3! Projections of VMT /capita must incorporate the best available science on latent
and induced travel of additional roadway capacity.

Interchanges shall be managed to maintain safe, efficient, and reliable operation of the
mainline for longer trips of regional or statewide purpose through the interchange area.
The main objective is to avoid the formation of traffic queues on off-ramps which back up
into the portions of the ramps needed for safe deceleration from mainline speeds or onto
the mainline itself. This is a significant traffic safety and operational concern as queues
impact mainline operations and crashes affecting reliability. Deceleration space for
vehicles exiting throughway mainlines can be improved by managing throughways for
longer trips resulting in reducing off-ramp traffic volumes and by increasing capacity at
the off-ramp terminal. Throughway off-ramp terminal intersection and deceleration needs
shall be evaluated through system plans such as Interchange Area Management Plans,
Corridor Plans, and Sub-area Plans.

In system plans, when identifying transportation needs and prioritizing investments and
strategies, projects that create greater equity and reduce disparities between “Equity
Focus Areas" and “Non-Equity Focus Areas” shall be prioritized. This action aims to
improve equitable outcomes by burdening underserved populations less than and
benefiting underserved populations as much or more as the study area population as a
whole. Because the Equity Focus Areas as defined by the RTP are based on a regional

29 See pg. 11 of the Memo “Draft Regional Mobility Policy for the 2023 Regional Transportation Plan (10/28/22)”
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2022/12/08/Draft-2023-Regional-mobility-policy-2023-RTP-10-28-2022.pdf Tables will be

added to Appendix X in the final RTP

30 The RTP system sizing policies, regional congestion management process and OHP Policy 1F will be followed to determine mitigations that

support meeting the hours of congestion threshold.

31 Supporting documentation will be needed as part of implementation of the policy to define the segmentation methodologies based on

analysis options.

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2022/12/08/Draft-2023-Regional-mobility-policy-2023-RTP-10-28-2022.pdf

average comparison, local governments shall conduct a more specific equity analysis at
the local TSP scale consistent with OAR 660-012-0135.

Figure 3-9 System Planning Process Utilizing the Mobility Policy Measures

o Determine 2045 Home-based VMT/Capita
and Work-based VMT/Employee Baselines
that meet Region’s Division 44 and
Division 12 VMT Reduction Targets >

Use Metro model to evaluate the
VMT /Capita for home-based trips and
VMT/Employee for commute trips
to/from work under future no-build
conditions

Evaluate under future “complete’”

system conditions

Does the planned system result in

output consistent with Division 44 and

Division 12 VMT reduction targets for

Metro {in RTP) or local agency (in NO
system planning)?

Use as baseline to determine
significant impact during plan
amendment process

3.2.5.3 Mobility policy plan amendment evaluation actions

All three of the mobility policy measures are applied to the evaluation of plan amendments. The
following actions describe how each of the performance targets shall be used in tandem in
evaluating plan amendments consistent with the Transportation Planning Rule (OAR 660-012-
0060) and is supported by the flowchart in Figure 3-9.

3-64
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



3-65

Comprehensive plan amendments that do not surpass the trip generation thresholds in
the Oregon Highway Plan Policy 1F will be found to have no significant impact and are not
required to further evaluate VMT //capita, hours of congestion, or system completeness.

In a jurisdiction with a TSP that has demonstrated compliance with achieving the region’s
Division 44 and Division 12 VMT reduction targets, comprehensive plan amendments that
are forecast to maintain or lower VMT /capita for home-based trips and VMT/employee
for commute trips to/from work compared to their 2045 baseline that achieve Division 44
targets, shall be found to have no significant impact consistent with the Transportation
Planning Rule (OAR 660-12-0060)

Comprehensive plan amendments that have a significant impact because they a) increase
VMT //capita for home-based trips or VMT /employee for commute trips to/from work or
b) the jurisdiction has not demonstrated compliance with OAR 660 Division 44 and
Division 12 VMT reduction targets shall mitigate that impact by adjusting their land use
plan, supporting VMT /capita reduction through enhancing non-vehicular modes beyond
what’s in the financially constrained transportation system plan, and/or committing to
travel demand management. Enhancing non-vehicular modes means increasing system
completeness for non-vehicular modes within the impact area of the plan amendment for
those modes. Within the impact area, the system gaps will be identified based on the
planned system in the TSP.

Large plan amendments will be obligated to develop a funding plan that will address the
system gaps and bring additional projects that support VMT /capita reduction into the
financially constrained transportation system plan and that help the district meet their
VMT //capita target or mitigate the safety impacts of additional vehicle trips. In addition to
addressing system completeness, a large plan amendment that is found have a significant
impact on VMT /capita that cannot be mitigated will be required to review the impact of
the plan amendment on meeting the hours of congestion on Throughways target and
mitigate the impact. Addressing the hours of congestion target shall follow the RTP
congestion management process, Sections 3.08.220 and 3.08.510 of the Regional
Transportation Functional Plan and OHP Policy 1G and shall not come at the expense of
achieving the VMT /capita target for the region.

Small scale plan amendments will need to demonstrate their proportionate impact on
increased VMT /capita in the district and agree to conditions on the plan amendment or
future conditions of development approval consistent with the local jurisdiction
development code and project funding mechanisms to support reduced VMT /capita such
as land use, travel demand management, and/or off-site mitigations to support VMT
reduction or mitigate safety impacts of additional trips.

System completeness assessment of comprehensive plan amendments shall identify the
needs to meet the planned system for each mode, as established in regional and/or local
system plans. For each mode, the completeness impact area will be defined based on

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2015/02/03/chap308_regional_transportation_functional_plan.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2015/02/03/chap308_regional_transportation_functional_plan.pdf

10.

routing from the comprehensive plan amendment site for the specified distances in Table
5 32, Table 5 33 provides guidance for identifying the needs within each modal
completeness impact area. For the comprehensive plan amendment, a proportional share
of additional projects in the unconstrained transportation system plan, not included
financially constrained transportation system plan, will be established based on additional
daily trips for the plan amendment for both multi-modal trips as well as the vehicular trips
for which the increased VMT/capita is being mitigated, as described in Figure 3-10.

Comprehensive plan amendments that demonstrate either of the following for analysis
segments within the vehicular impact area shall be found to require mitigation, and a
proportional share of the identified needs will be established for the comprehensive plan
amendment based on additional daily trips

Degrades the hours of congestion of an existing or planned transportation facility such
that it would not meet the performance target identified Table 3-5; or

Degrades the travel speed of an existing or planned transportation facility that is
otherwise projected to not meet the performance standards identified in Table 3-5.

Interchanges within the vehicular impact area shall be assessed for off-ramp queuing to
maintain safe, efficient and reliable operation of the mainline for longer trips of regional or
statewide purpose through the interchange area under the forecast comprehensive plan
amendment.

32 See pg. 19 of the Memo “Draft Regional Mobility Policy for the 2023 Regional Transportation Plan (10/28/22)”
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2022/12/08/Draft-2023-Regional-mobility-policy-2023-RTP-10-28-2022.pdf Tables will be

added to Appendix X in the final RTP

33 See pg. 19 of the Memo “Draft Regional Mobility Policy for the 2023 Regional Transportation Plan (10/28/22)”
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2022/12/08/Draft-2023-Regional-mobility-policy-2023-RTP-10-28-2022.pdf Tables will be

3-66

added to Appendix X in the final RTP

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2022/12/08/Draft-2023-Regional-mobility-policy-2023-RTP-10-28-2022.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2022/12/08/Draft-2023-Regional-mobility-policy-2023-RTP-10-28-2022.pdf

Figure 3-10 Guidance for Assessing Plan Amendment Impacts

Vehicular trip generation

Apply planned mode splits to determine modal additional daily trips

Assignment of trips on the network

Determine the impact area

Determine locations where the system is not complete

Calculate proportional share

Figure Note: Vehicular trip generation with planned mode splits will be used until or unless mode specific trip generation resources
become available.

3-67
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Figure 3-11 Plan Amendment Process Utilizing the Mobility Policy Measures

Does the trip generation surpass the
significant impact threshold in the OHP?

Does the plan amendment have a significant impact?

Does the amendment increase forecast VMT/capita for home-
hased trips or VMT/capita for work-based trips for the District
above the future baseline set in the RTP?

If there is no future baseline that meets Division 44 VMT
reduction targets, then there is a significant impact even if the
amendment would reduce VMT/capita and YMT/employee.

No additional assessment
required

No Throughway Reliahbility or
System Completeness
assessment required

Identify mitigations by evaluating
the System Completeness impact
area for each mode. Determine
the projects that would mitigate
increased VMT /fcapita (by
providing enhanced travel
options, travel demand
management, or mitigate safety
impacts of additional vehicle
trips). Identify the proportional
share of additional projects that
are needed in the financially
constrained transportation
systemn plan.

WHAT’S CHANGED? Emerging technology policies (what was Section 3.2.4) was moved to later
in the Chapter and is now Section 3.3.12)

3-68

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan

3/1/2023



3.3 REGIONAL NETWORK VISIONS, CONCEPTS AND POLICIES

WHAT’S CHANGED? Section numbers have changed. Changes specific to each policy are
described before the policy.

This section describes a network vision, concept and supporting policies for each component of
the regional transportation system. The network vision, concepts and policies represent a
complete urban transportation system that meets the plan goals and supports local aspirations for
growth.

———

Rendering of a Regional Street
Source: Metro Designing Livable Streets and Trails Guide

The network visions, concepts and policies provide define a seamless and well-connected regional
system of regional throughways and arterial streets, freight networks, transit networks and
services and bicycle and pedestrian facilities. The network policies emphasize safety, access,
mobility and reliability for people and goods and recognize the community-building and
placemaking role of transportation. The network visions, concepts and supporting policies will
guide the development, design, and management of different networks of the regional
transportation system. The transportation system components are shown in Figure 3-12.

Click on 2023 RTP Network Maps [LINK TO BE ADDED] for an online zoomable version of each
map.

3-69
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Figure 3-12 Regional transportation system components

3.3.1 Regional mobility corridor concept

WHAT’S CHANGED? This section was moved up, before the design policies. No other changes are
proposed to this section.

The regional mobility corridor concept envisions regional travel corridors defined by a central
throughway and high capacity transit well supported by a network of arterial streets, frequent bus
routes, freight/passenger rail and bicycle parkways to provide for regional, statewide and

3-70
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



interstate travel. The function of this system of integrated transportation corridors is
metropolitan mobility - moving people and goods between different parts of the region and
connecting the region with the rest of the state and beyond. Mobility corridors also have a
significant influence on the development and function of the land uses they serve. Mobility
corridors are defined by the major centers of the 2040 Growth Concept. The regional mobility
corridor concept calls for the consideration of parallel and interconnected facilities, different
travel modes, and land use when identifying needs and solutions to improve mobility within a
corridor. The concept of a regional mobility corridor is shown in Figure 3-13.

Since the 1980s, regional mobility corridors have had throughway travel supplemented by high
capacity transit service that provides an important passenger alternative. Parallel arterial streets,
heavy rail, bus service, bicycle parkways and pedestrian/bicycle connections to transit also
provide additional capacity in the regional mobility corridors. The full array of regional mobility
corridor facilities should be considered in conjunction with the parallel throughways for system
evaluation and monitoring, system and demand management and phasing of physical investments
in the individual facilities. Bicycle and pedestrian travel and access to transit are also important as
we plan and invest in regional throughways and arterial streets. New throughway and arterial
facilities, such as freeway interchanges or widened arterial streets, should be designed and
constructed in such a manner as to support bicycling, walking and access to transit.

The Mobility Corridor Strategies provided in the Appendix provides a summary of the 24
corridors, describing facilities, functions, land uses, and documenting transportation needs and
strategies for addressing them. Updates to these strategies will be informed by the Regional
Mobility Policy update described in Chapter 8.

3-71
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Figure 3-13 Regional mobility corridor concept

Major Arterial Minor Arterial Bike Minor Arterial Major Arterial
(all modes) (all modes) Parkway ) (all modes) (all modes)
(walk/bike) Rail High Throughway Capacity
Capacity  Capacity (passen%er and
(passenger Transif freight)
and freight)
- 2 Miles: >

Note: Idealized concept for illustrative purposes showing recommended range of system analysis for the
evaluation, monitoring, management and phasing of investments to throughways, arterial streets and transit
service in the broader corridor. The illustration is modeled after the Banfield corridor that links the Portland
central city to the Gateway regional center.

Figure 3-14 shows the general location of mobility corridors in the region.

Figure 3-14 Mobility corridors in the Portland metropolitan region

3-72
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



3.3.2 Regional Design and Placemaking Vision and Policies

WHAT'’S CHANGED? Policies in this section are not new. Metro staff have reformatted existing
policy language from the 2018 RTP and 2019 Metro Designing Livable Streets and Trails Guide
into standard policy format used for all RTP policies. Two existing Motor Vehicle policies were
moved into this section.

Over the next several decades, the challenges faced by communities in greater Portland and the
burdens placed upon the transportation network will multiply in number and complexity.
Greenhouse gas emissions from motor vehicles and serious traffic crashes are two of the most
pressing transportation issues; addressing them will require a transportation system designed to
serve multiple travel modes, especially public transit, walking, and bicycling. Additionally, streets
and trails must function not only as corridors for moving people, goods and services, but also as
stormwater management facilities, community gathering spots and public spaces to enhance
community livability.

The regional transportation system design classifications and policies in this section address
federal, state and regional transportation planning mandates and support implementation of the
2040 Growth Concept.

Figure 3-15 Metro’s Designing Livable Streets and Trails Guide3*

Designing
Livable Streets
and Trails

34 Metro’s Designing Livable Streets and Trails Guide complements existing national, state and local requirements and guidelines, and its
recommendations are allowable under national guidance, including guidelines developed by the American Association of State Highway and
Transportation Officials, the Federal Highway Administration and the National Association of City Transportation Officials. The Designing
Livable Streets and Trails Guide has been developed based on current design guidance, case studies, best practices for urban environments,
research and evaluation of existing designs, and professional review and input. It integrates design guidance for regional streets, regional
trails, stormwater management and Greenstreet treatments into one guide to encourage a holistic and comprehensive approach to designing
a complete transportation system.

3-73
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Metro’s Designing Livable Streets and Trails Guide provides design guidance depending on the
intended functions of the arterial or throughway, the land uses the facility serves and adopted
policy. In the design guidance, consideration is given to various arterial designs, designs for
freight, trails, pedestrians, bicyclists and transit and the link between street design and
stormwater management.3> Design decisions, especially trade-offs in situations of limited road
right-of-way, should use performance-based design and flexibility in design to achieve desired
outcomes.

The purpose of the Guide is to support implementation of the 2040 Growth Concept and the
Regional Transportation Plan. Along with other local and regional plans and policies, this Guide is
aresource for the agencies responsible for designing, constructing, and maintaining the region’s
transportation system. Metro intends the design guidance to assist in designing new and
reconstructed streets and trails but may also be applied to maintenance projects that preserve
and extend the service life of existing streets and structures when minor retrofits are needed.

3.3.1 Design and complete streets policies

Policy 1 Design the transportation system to implement the planned land uses and regional
urban form envisioned in the 2040 Growth Concept.

Policy 2 Design a well-connected transportation system that serves all modes of travel.

Policy 3 Use regional street design classifications to guide development of streets that
balance the needs of all users and functions of streets according to planned land use
and desired outcomes.

Policy 4 Use transportation network and street design to help achieve regional goals and
desired outcomes, including environmental and human health, climate action and
resilience, a safe system, equitable transportation, mobility options, vibrant
communities, and a thriving economy.

Policy 5 Avoid, minimize and mitigate environmental impacts of the transportation system
using Green Infrastructure design, street trees, wildlife habitat or waterway crossing
improvements and other approaches to the extent practicable.

Policy 6 Use a performance-based approach and decision-making framework to plan and
design transportation projects and networks.

Design Policy 1. Design the transportation system to implement the planned land uses and regional
urban form envisioned in the 2040 Growth Concept.

The 2040 Growth Concept directs most new development to mixed-use centers, corridors and
main streets. Realization of the Concept relies on a balanced transportation system that
adequately serves planned uses while reducing vehicle miles traveled. Regional street design

35 Find regional design guidelines and other resources here: https://www.oregonmetro.gov/tools-partners/guides-and-tools/guidelines-
designing-livable-streets-and-trails

3-74
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/tools-partners/guides-and-tools/guidelines-designing-livable-streets-and-trails
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/tools-partners/guides-and-tools/guidelines-designing-livable-streets-and-trails
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/tools-partners/guides-and-tools/guidelines-designing-livable-streets-and-trails

classifications support building and operating streets that are sensitive to the adjacent land use
context, the roadway’s functional classifications and the different needs and abilities of people

traveling.

Figure 3-16 illustrates how the design of transportation facilities should change in response to
the surrounding land use.

Figure 3-16 Land use and transportation transect

_-

LESS DENSIT!

Parks and Neighborhoods Main Town Corridors Station Regional Central Employment and
Natural Areas Streets Centers Communities Centers City Industrial Lands

-

mme
ale employment or

routes that link
d are well

V e

Design Policy 2. Design a well-connected transportation system that serves all modes of travel.

Consistent with the mobility corridor concept, a well-connected network of complete streets
provides multiple and direct routes between destinations for people traveling in a variety of ways.
Figure 3-17 illustrates a well-connected street network.

3-75
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Figure 3-17 Street connectivity

Transit Stop Commercial
P Arterial

—Fark |

Residential
Collector

Discouraged

Core
Commercial Arterial

&

&
Transit —
Stop

Connector

Preferred

Because walking and biking are easier on a connected street network, a connected street network
supports the 20-minute neighborhood concept, where all daily necessities are within a 20-minute
walk of bike ride. Even where less-connected street networks have been established by
jurisdictions, trails, paths, bridges, and midblock street crossings increase connectivity for people
walking and bicycling. Emergency response also benefits from a well-connected street system.

Section 3.3.3.1 of the regional motor vehicle network policies provides regional street spacing
standards. Environmental factors may impact street connectivity in some locations. OQutside of
centers, agencies should design street networks around, rather than through, environmentally
sensitive lands and should mitigate impacts when they cannot be avoided. Street networks should
allow for the preservation of continuous natural areas and parks.

Complete streets are transportation facilities that agencies plan, design, operate, and maintain to
enable safe, convenient, and comfortable travel and access for users of all ages and abilities
regardless of their mode of transportation. Complete Streets serve many functions and allow for
safe travel by those walking, bicycling, driving automobiles, riding public transportation, or
delivering goods. Figure 3-18 illustrates the multiple functions that streets serve.

3-76
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Figure 3-18 Livable streets and trails functions

Pedestrian Bicycle Transit Freight Motor Vehicle g Utility Physical Emergency
v v 'ACCESS AND MOBILITY ACCESS AND MOBIITY. Corridors Activity Response

stre

Every street.

Design Policy 3. Use regional street design classifications to guide development of streets that
balance the needs of all users and functions of streets according to planned land use and desired
outcomes.

Regional street design classifications provide an overall approach to design regional roadways
based on its functional classification, the planned land use context, and achieving desired
outcomes and community needs.

Table 3-6 summarizes typical design elements, including number of lanes and target and design
speed, for different travel modes for each of the regional street design classifications and
illustrates how street design corresponds to 2040 land use design types and motor vehicle
functional classifications.

Table 3-6 Typical design components of regional street design classifications

2040 Land Use | Design Street Prioritized Motorvehicle | Targetand Number of Lanes | Medians and FlexZoneUses | Pedestrian Bikeway Design | TransitDesign | FreightDesign | Green Streets/
DesignType | Classification |Connections | TravelModes |Functional | DesignSpeed Turn Lanes Design Stormwater
Classification Management

Freeways Limited Motorvehicle, ~ Throughway  45to6omph Up to six with Center barrier, Shoulder for Paralll facility; Multiuse path; Buson shoulder Enhanced mobility ~ Vegetated

Grade-separated freight, transit auxiliary lanesin 1o turnlanes emergency use, landscaping and
some places or rail green streets
carpool crossings every 200 treatments to
101200t manage stormwater
Any Highways Limited Motorvehicle, ~ Throughway  35t050 Up tosixwith Median, Shoulder for safety, Parallel facilityor ~ Multiusepathor  Busonshoulder,  Enhanced mobility ~Vegetated
Some grade- freight, transit mph auxiliarylanesin  limitedturnlanes  emergency use, buffered sidewalks;  separated bikeway; ~express bus, light landscaping and
separated, p in i i i rail green streets
signalized carpool orunderpasses;  or underpasses treatments to
crossings every 200 ‘manage stormwater
101,200 ft.
Centers,station ~ Regionaland ~ Manyaccess  Pedestrian, Majorarterial  20t025mph Two to four lanes an desi None, or separ i Separated bikeway; Accessible stations, Access: loadingand  Vegetated
communities community management transit, bicycle;  (regional some turn lanes; bikeway, enhanced  enhanced crossings enhanced crossings priority bus unloading landscaping and
andsomemain  boulevards emphasized access forall boulevard) minimize additional bus, parking green  and accessto treatments as green streets
streets modes Minor arterial crossingwidthat  streets transit; crossings appropriate treatments to
(community intersections every 20010530 ft. manage stormwater
boulevard) (1102 blocks)
Corridors, Regionaland  Someto Balanced and 3 i 30mph Two ian desi None, or sep: Buffered sidewalks, Separated bikeway; Accessible stations, Mobility on freight  Vegetated
neighborhoods,  community many; access modal network  (regional street) some turn lanes; bikeway, enhanced  enhanced crossings enhanced crossings priority bus corridors; access: landscaping and
some main streets managementas priorities minor arterial minimize additional bus, parking green  and accessto treatments as loading and green streets
streets and possible (community crossingwidthat  streets transit; crossings appropriate unloading treatments to
employment and street) intersections every 20010530 ft manage stormwater
industrial areas t02blocks)
and Industrial Freight motor  Majororminor  20t0 40 mph Twotofourlanes  Medianinsome  Nome,separated  Sidewalk with Separated bikeway ~ Accessible stations, ~Priority freight Vegetated
industrialareas ~ streets management  vehicle, transit arterial instances; bikeway or bufferormultiuse  or multiuse path;  priority bus treatments, landscaping and
emphasized some turn lanes iuse pa hanced crossi widerlanesand  green streets
enhanced bus, crossings and appropriate intersections treatments to
parking green ‘access to transit; manage stormwater
streets crossings every 200
t0530ft.
(1to2blocks)

Regional design classifications apply to local transportation system plans throughout greater

3-77
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Portland. Cities or counties may adopt the classifications into their plans or provide a cross-
reference if they use different terms. Regional street design classifications are assigned to all
throughways and major and minor arterials in the regional transportation system as shown in
Table 3-6 and Figure 3-21.

Regional street design concepts promote community livability and reliable travel by balancing all
modes of travel and addressing the function and character of adjacent land uses. Linking land use
and the physical design of transportation facilities is crucial to achieving state goals to limit
reliance on any one mode of travel and to encourage increased walking, bicycling, carpooling,
vanpooling and use of transit.

Freeways and highways

RIGHT-OF-WAY RIGHT-OF-WAY
110"+ 100-135*
= Based on available width = Based on available width

Freeways and highways connect major activity centers, including the central city, regional centers,
industrial and employment areas, and intermodal facilities such as the Port of Portland. Freeways
and highways provide intercity, interregional, and interstate connections. This design
classification prioritizes long-distance and higher speed freight, motor vehicle and transit
mobility. Freeways are grade separated; highways have a mix of grade-separated and at grade
intersections. Freeways and highways cross all types of land uses, and buildings are typically not
oriented to these facilities.

Regional and community boulevards

Regional Boulevard (4 lanes)

RIGHT-OF-WAY RIGHT-OF-WAY
90-120" 60-80"
= Based on available width = Based on available width

Regional Boulevard (2 lanes)

RIGHT-OF-WAY
70-100"

= Based on available width

3-78
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Regional and community boulevards serve the multimodal travel needs of the region’s most
intensely developed and developing activity centers, including the central city, regional centers,
station communities, town centers and some main streets. Adjacent land uses and buildings
should orient directly to the boulevard with ground-floor commercial activity, contributing to a
pedestrian and bicycle-friendly environment. Buildings typically have designs, such as a
storefront or arcade, which provide transition space from the street and support pedestrian
access. Agencies design boulevards to prioritize pedestrian, bicycle, and transit travel.

Regional and community streets

Regional Street (2 lanes) Community Street (2 lanes)

RIGHT-OF-WAY RIGHT-OF-WAY
60-100" 60-80"
= Based on available width = Based on available width

§ED &

Regional Street (4 lanes)

RIGHT-OF-WAY
80'-120"

= Based on available width

Regional and community streets balance the multimodal travel and access needs of corridors,
neighborhoods, and some main streets, along with employment and industrial areas. Regional and
community streets can be located within residential neighborhoods as well as more densely
developed corridors and employment centers. Development can be set back from the street.
Regional and community streets can also serve as main streets with buildings oriented toward
them at major intersections and transit stops.

Figure 3-21 shows design classifications for arterials and throughways.

Design Policy 4. Use transportation network and street design to help achieve regional goals and
desired outcomes, including environmental and human health, climate action and resilience, a safe
system, equitable transportation, mobility options, vibrant communities, and a thriving economy.

Transportation agencies can design facilities to achieve desired outcomes and support the health,
safety, and economic and environmental sustainability of communities in the region. Practitioners
refer to this approach as performance-based design.

Table 3-7 illustrates how design characteristics of urban arterials that can either promote or
hinder desired outcomes.

3-79
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Table 3-7 Design characteristics of healthy urban arterials3®

Health Promoting Design Unhealthy Design
Neighborhood asset for access and commerce Physical barrier that divides neighborhoods
Supports neighborhood social and cultural Exhibits neglect and physical decay
connections
Safe travel speeds for all users Traffic speeds too high to be safe for all users
Comfortable for all users to cross Difficult to cross because of design and traffic
Link within pedestrian and bicycle networks Barrier within pedestrian and bicycle networks
Designed to mitigate noise Source of noise
Designed to mitigate air pollution Near-roadway air pollution
Accessible to users of all abilities Inaccessible to users with disabilities
Supports green infrastructure systems Impervious paving materials, lack of shade
Contributes to revitalization without Location of residential and business gentrification

displacement

Design principles to achieve desired outcomes

Design with a safe system approach: Use the safe systems approach in street design,
managing speeds for safety, lowering speeds in areas where people are walking, bicycling, and
accessing transit and separating users. Separation means creating physical barriers between
people moving at different speeds. As speed differentials increase, so should the level of
separation. Medians, access management treatments, protected bicycle lanes and other street
design elements can minimize crashes.

Design for safe speeds: Design streets to encourage safe speeds for all users - the safe target
speed. Evaluating minimum sight distance, horizontal curvature, vertical curves and other
design factors is based on the design speed. To achieve a safe target speed, the design speed
should align with the target speed. Ultimately, posted speed should also align. Transportation
agencies can achieve a desired target speed by street design elements. Wider, more open
roadways encourage higher operating speeds. Conversely, a roadside with buildings,
separated bikeways, parked cars and street trees can provide cues to drivers to encourage
lower speeds.

Design for all users: Design for people of all ages and abilities, as well as the design vehicle
for a specific facility. Before developing a design, practitioners should consider each of type of
user and how they will navigate the street. Agencies should design streets keeping the green
transportation hierarchy in mind. The hierarchy prioritizes functions for a typical street in
this order: walking, bicycling, transit, freight, carshare/ taxi/commercial transport, and
private automobiles. The selection of a design vehicle is an essential part of developing street
and intersection designs. The design vehicle is the largest vehicle that is anticipated to use the
street or intersection on a regular basis. Because the selection of a design vehicle influences

36 Understanding and Improving Arterial Roads to Support Public Health and Transportation Goals, American Journal of Public Health, August

2017.

3-80

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



street dimensions such as turning radii, which in turn can impact safety and operating speeds,
practitioners should choose the smallest possible design vehicle. Occasional larger vehicles
can still be accommodated in the design by encroaching on opposing lanes or using multiple
point turns. Likewise, agencies can use design features such as speed cushions or truck aprons
to accommodate emergency vehicles and large trucks while providing speed management
treatments that reduce overall traffic speeds.

e Design for personal security and equity: Use design to create streets where people of all
races, genders, ages and abilities feel safe from crime and harassment. Because street design
has been used to oppress and criminalize Black communities, communities must be engaged
in the design process. Streets should be intuitive and easy to use regardless of race, income,
age, ability, cultural background, or language.

e Design to protect the environment: Use green infrastructure design to avoid, minimize and
mitigate the harmful environmental impacts of transportation facilities and achieve a
healthier, more resilient landscape.

o Design for the future: Factor in rapid technological change and innovation. Agencies should
consider allocating street space to the functions that matter most, and not necessarily to the
newest technology. Street designs should also be flexible enough to support piloting new
innovations.

e Design with fiscal stewardship in mind: Use innovative and creative design approaches to
reduce costs and conserve resources for construction and life cycle costs, including operation,
maintenance, and replacement costs. Include external costs, such as climate change impacts,
to capture the full cost of specific design treatments.

3-81
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Design Policy 5. Avoid, minimize and mitigate environmental impacts of the transportation system
using Green Infrastructure design, street trees, wildlife habitat or waterway crossing improvements
and other approaches to the extent practicable.

The effect that transportation infrastructure has on the health of the natural environment,
particularly urban waterways, and habitat connectivity, is well documented. Transportation
infrastructure has the potential to degrade water quality, create barriers to corridors for animal
travel and increase air, noise and light pollution. Projects also have the potential to negatively
impact cultural and historical resources if not planned and implemented carefully.

Projects should be designed to avoid or minimize impact or if avoidance is not possible, to
maximize enhancement, protection, and improvement of natural, community and cultural
resources through the application of Green Infrastructure design treatments.3” The avoid,
minimize, or mitigate approach is known as sequencing and involves understanding the affected
environment and assessing transportation effects throughout the project development process.

The sequencing for projects follows this order:

e Avoiding the impact altogether by not taking a certain action or parts of an action.

e Minimizing impacts by limiting the degree or magnitude of the action and its implementation.
e Rectifying the impact by repairing, rehabilitating, or restoring the affected environment.

e Reducing or eliminating the impact over time by preservation and maintenance operations
during the life of the action or project.

o Compensating for the impact by replacing or providing substitute resources or environments.

All streets and trails must manage stormwater, treating runoff to reduce pollution and infiltrate
water into the ground, limiting how much stormwater and pollutants eventually make their way
into vulnerable natural waterways. By incorporating green infrastructure treatments such as
vegetated medians, planters, curb extensions and street trees, streets and trails can function as
urban green corridors that not only manage stormwater but mitigate the harmful impacts of
transportation on air, water, and wildlife habitat and connectivity. This function of streets and
trails is imperative to human and environmental health.

One of the distinct advantages of having streets and trails function as green streets over “grey
infrastructure” for stormwater management is their superior treatment of pollutants running off
from roadways. While grey infrastructure options may have smaller footprints, they are typically

37 Refer to Appendix F for examples of mitigation strategies for different environmental resource areas. For example, street trees, vegetated
swales and other green street treatments can intercept rainwater and convey stormwater in the public right-of-way, following best practices
to minimize light pollution, installing appropriate wildlife crossings, screening sensitive habitats from noise and light, enhancing vegetation
associated with wetlands and waterways for wildlife, limiting fill within wetlands, constructing bridges or open bottom culverts, creating new
wetland areas, and restoring or rehabilitating damaged wetlands and waterways, using pervious materials and preserving, maintain or
enhancing tree canopy. Refer to Metro’s handbooks Green Streets: Innovative Solutions for Stormwater and Stream Crossings” and “Wildlife
Crossings: Providing safe passage for urban wildlife for more information on these designs.

3-82
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



more expensive to maintain and fail if not maintained. In addition, separate grey infrastructure
elements are almost always needed to manage runoff quality and quantity.

Street trees and other green streets infrastructure provide a wide array of benefits in addition to
stormwater management, offering wildlife habitat, improving air quality, providing shade and
reducing the urban heat island affect, beautifying the surroundings, promoting human well-being
and calming traffic.

On streets with high levels of walking and bicycling, street trees provide buffers from traffic and
air pollution. The green streets function can be further supported by using dark skies approaches
to minimize the impact of street lighting on wildlife, human health, and the natural environment.
Designing streets and trails for stormwater management can also incorporate and enhance other
functions, such as placemaking. Agencies can use green street elements to create a stronger sense
of place and make walking and biking more enjoyable.

The following list identifies the types of environmetal, tribal, cultural and historical data that
transportation agencies consider during development of projects:

e High value fish and wildlife habitat areas and biodiversity corridors

o Threatened and endangered species, including vertebrate species and plants
e Vegetation and wildlife

e Fisheries

e Wetlands and waterways

e Flood hazard areas/floodplains

e Historic resources

e Tribal lands and legacies

e Air quality and greenhouse gas emissions

3-83
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Figure 3-19 Examples of how green infrastructure can help achieve regional goals

RTP Goal Examples of how Green Infrastructure can help achieve regional goals

Thriving Green infrastructure can promote economic growth as a valued public amenity,

Economy create construction and maintenance jobs, add to property value, support
walkable and bikeable communities, businesses, and commercial districts, and
lower the costs associated with climate change.

Protecting the environment and natural resources today can save money for
the future and reduce infrastructure construction and maintenance costs.
Mobility Green streets can promote active travel and access to transit by providing
Options enjoyable routes that are shaded and buffered from traffic. Green
infrastructure treatments, such as access management and medians with
bioswales, can be designed to support reliability and efficiency by reducing
crashes and conflicting movements.

Safe System Street trees and other green infrastructure can help calm traffic to desired
speeds, provide welcoming places that increase security, and improve
resiliency and reduce impacts of major storm events.

Climate Action Trees and green infrastructure can support climate adaptation by cooling

and Resilience streets, parking lots and buildings, better managing stormwater and reducing
the urban heat island effect. Trees and vegetation can be managed to
sequester greenhouse gases to help mitigate climate change.

Green infrastructure can enhance and protect the natural environment by
supporting clean air and water, filtering stormwater runoff, reducing erosion,
protecting, creating, and connecting habitat for birds, fish and other wildlife.
Equitable Clean air and water and access to nature can be improved and habitat can be
Transportation preserved and enhanced when green infrastructure is provided in marginalized
communities.

Green infrastructure can reduce water, air, noise, and light pollution,
encourage active lifestyles and link people to trails, parks and nature that
enhance human health and well-being.

All stakeholders can be represented, including those that cannot speak for
themselves — wildlife and the natural environment. Performance-based
planning includes considering environmental effects throughout the planning
process.

Design Policy 6. Use a performance-based approach and decision-making framework to plan and
design transportation projects and networks.

As the demands on the transportation system increase, so does the need for flexibility in how
roadways are designed. Performance-based planning and design expands design parameters to be
more flexible. Performance-based planning and design incorporates many performance measures
to assess how well a project will achieve desired outcomes. Measures and related goals may be

3-84
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



weighted to ensure that a project supports priority outcomes, for example reducing serious traffic
crashes, identified in adopted plans and policies and through community engagement.

A performance-based design decision-making framework helps practitioners and stakeholders
track decisions throughout the life of a project, as illustrated in Figure 3-20. This documentation
process provides flexibility to choose the best design for a given context, while providing an
effective way to manage risk when designing new or reconstructed roadways. The framework
includes documenting the design considerations, and alternatives that were evaluated, based on
clearly outlined project goals and meanigful stakeholder engagement.

Performance-based planning and design starts with a well-defined project need, accompanied by
goals and related objectives. It then works to align design decisions with the project objectives
and desired systemwide outcomes. This approach relies on developing and comparing design
alternatives, using performance measures and analysis to assess progress toward achieving
project objectives, and applying engineering judgment, informed by a multidisciplinary team, to
reach a preferred design. Refer to Chapter 6 of the Designing Livable Streets and Trails Guide for a
step-by-step guide and tools to address trade-offs and constraints.

Figure 3-20 The performance-based design decision-making framework

A performance-based design decision-making framework contributes
to systemwide networks and regional outcomes.

It starts with a well-defined project need and clear objectives.

PROJECT (1) (4] (5)
START Affirm context Evaluate Refine
& policy direction alternatioves decisions
C >
e S mena N7
. Y
OPTIONAL:
Consider
0 e % additional e
Assess existing conditions Develop alternatives Decide on
& confirm functions alternatives preferred design o
\/ LY Q???F‘/ De\aelo_p final

o

Construct, operate,
PROJECT maintain, & evaluate

FINISH

Figure 3-21 Regional design classifications map - TO BE ADDED

3-85
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


mctighe
Highlight


3.3.3 Regional motor vehicle network vision and policies

WHAT’S CHANGED? Three policies are removed because they are addressed by policies in the
Safety and Design policy sections. Three policies are updated to reflect new policy direction in the
pricing policies developed with significant input from Metro technical and policy advisory
committees and the Metro Council and new requirements related to motor vehicle capacity in
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (OAR 660-012-0830).

Though our region has changed dramatically over the past century, the shape of the major road
network serving our region has not. Most of our regional streets were once farm-to-market roads,
established along Donation Land Claim boundaries at half-mile or mile spacing. The region’s
throughway system evolved from the mid-1930s, when the first highway was built from Portland
to Milwaukie, to the completion of [-205 in the early 1980s. Most of the throughway system was
built along the same Donation Land Claim grid that shapes the regional street network, with most
throughways following older farm-to-market routes or replacing major streets.

This inherited network design has proven to be an adequate match for accommodating the
changing travel demands of our growing region. The Regional Motor Vehicle Network Concept
seeks to apply this proven network design to developing and undeveloped areas in the region,
while seeking opportunities to bring existing urban areas closer to this ideal when possible.

3.3.3.1 Regional motor vehicle network concept

The Regional Motor Vehicle Network Concept shown in Figure 3-22 illustrates policies for
developing a complete and well-connected motor vehicle network that is safe and reliable,
provides adequate capacity and supports all modes of travel.

Figure 3-22 Regional motor vehicle network concept

3-86
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



A

2 Miles:

\/

Throughway

Major Arterial
Collector
Minor Arterial
Collector
Major Arterial
Collector
Minor Arterial <

4———1 Mile——» 4-1/2 Mile—»

Note: Conceptual network, illustrating multimodal transportation corridors and showing ideal spacing of arterial
streets. Most of the region’s travel occurs off the throughway network, on a network of multimodal arterial
streets. The RTP policy places an emphasis on ensuring that arterial networks are fully developed as the region
grows, providing both local circulation and preserving throughway capacity for regional and statewide travel.

3.3.3.2 Regional motor vehicle network policies

Rather than solely relying on levels of congestion to direct how and where to address bottlenecks
and other motor vehicle capacity deficiencies, the regional motor vehicle concept and policies call
for implementing a well-connected network design that is tailored to fit local geography, respect
existing communities and future development and protect the natural environment. Increased
connectivity improves travel reliability through reducing bottlenecks and congestion hotspots and
increasing travel options.

Policy 1 Preserve and maintain the region’s motor vehicle network system in a manner that
improves safety, security and resiliency while minimizing life cycle cost and impact
on the environment.

Policy 2 Use the Congestion Management Process, Regional Mobility Policy, safety and bike
and pedestrian network completion data to identify motor vehicle network
deficiencies.

Policy 3 Actively manage and optimize capacity on the region’s throughway network for
longer, regional, statewide, and interstate travel.

Policy 4 Actively manage and optimize arterials according to their planned functions to
improve reliability and safety and maintain mobility and accessibility for all modes of
travel.

3-87

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Policy 5 Strategically expand the region’s throughway network up to six travel lanes and
auxiliary lanes where appropriate between interchanges to maintain mobility and
accessibility and improve reliability for regional, statewide, and interstate travel.

Policy 6 If new capacity is being added, evaluate use of pricing and increased transit service
in conjunction with new capacity to manage traffic congestion and reduce VMT per
capita.

Policy 7 Complete a well-connected network of arterial streets ideally spaced at

approximately 1-mile apart and planned for up to four travel lanes to maintain
transit and freight mobility and accessibility and prioritize safe pedestrian, bicycle
and transit access for all ages and abilities using Complete Street design
approaches.3®

Policy 8 Complete a well-connected network of collector and local streets that provide for
local circulation and direct vehicle, bicycle and pedestrian access to adjacent land
uses and to transit for all ages and abilities.

Policy 9 Prior to adding new capacity, demonstrate that system and demand management
strategies, including access management, transit and freight priority, pricing, and
transit service and multimodal connectivity improvements cannot meet regional
mobility, safety, climate and equity policies consistent with OAR 660-012-0830.

Network connectivity

A well-connected network of complete streets is critical to achieving the 2040 Growth Concept
vision. In general, the roadway network should be designed to provide for trips through or across
the region on throughways, shorter trips through portions of the region on arterial streets and the
shortest trips on collector and local streets.

This approach results in a street hierarchy of:

e throughways (for example, limited-access facilities such as -84, US 26, I-5, [-205 and 1-405)

e arterial streets (for example, Cornell Road in Washington County, 82rd Avenue in the City of
Portland and Sunnyside Road in Clackamas County)

e collector streets

e Jocal streets

38 The number of through lanes may vary based on right-of-way constraints or other factors. Some places in the region may require additional
lanes due to a lack of network connectivity. Major and minor arterial streets can either be 2 or 4 lanes with turn lanes as appropriate.

3-88
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



The traditional street classifications for throughways, arterial streets and other streets are a good
starting point for distributing traffic in communities to avoid bottlenecks on overburdened routes
or avoid the need to build overly wide streets as a community grows.

Throughways serve only as mobility routes, with little or no property access, and an emphasis on
connecting major destinations across the region. Arterial streets provide both mobility, moving
traffic, goods, and people within the region, and access to property along the street. The degree to
which one of these regional street purposes predominates over the other is determined by the
functional classification.

The RTP presumes that building a regional motor vehicle network to accommodate all motor
vehicle traffic during peak travel periods is not practical nor would it be desirable considering
potential environment and community impacts.

By developing a well-connected network, the region can spread traffic across the entire network,
reducing the need to overburden a few facilities. This will help reduce bottlenecks and congestion
hotspots, decreasing the need to widen roads and intersections beyond their typical design.
Connectivity also supports transit, biking and walking by making trip distances shorter and more
direct and convenient. Improved travel reliability is a key overall outcome of all connectivity-
oriented strategies.

Typical spacing and planned capacity for arterial streets

As aresult, the regional motor vehicle network concept calls for one mile spacing of major arterial
streets, with minor arterial streets or collector streets at half-mile spacing, recognizing that
existing development, streams and other natural features may limit the provision of these
connections. Major and minor arterial streets can be either 2 or 4 lanes with turn lanes as
appropriate. Streets with 4 or more lanes should include medians, where possible, with
appropriate median openings for turning movements and turn lanes. Access management
strategies should be used on arterial streets and all streets with 4 or more lanes.

Shown in Figure 3-22, the illustrative arterial street network is complemented by a well-
connected network of collector streets. This network of arterial and collector streets is multi-
modal in design, serving automobiles, motorcycles, trucks, transit, bicycles and pedestrians. The
regional arterial street design with median reflects an accepted design that can support safe travel
by all of these modes, accommodating urban levels of traffic, while also providing for bicycle and
pedestrian travel and safe crossings at major intersections.

Traffic speeds, access and level of street connectivity vary depending on the function of the street.
The design of transportation facilities should consider the facility’s traffic function, all modes of
travel, and community development goals. As identified in the Regional Active Transportation
Plan and Metro’s livable street design guidelines, traffic speeds, traffic volumes and the volume of
heavy trucks should be considered in the design of pedestrian and bicycle facilities on streets on
the regional network.

3-89
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Research and experience have shown that there are optimal street designs for various types of
roadways. Street design, combined with connectivity help reduce congested hot spots and
improve reliability. Local streets and collectors are planned to consist of 2-lanes with turn lanes
where needed, major arterials are planned to consist of up to 4-lanes with medians and with turn
lanes and access management strategies, throughways are planned to consist of 6-lanes plus
auxiliary lanes with grade separated interchanges or intersections.

Therefore, before adding additional through lanes beyond the planned system, plans and studies
must demonstrate that the additional lanes beyond the planned system do not compromise the
function of the roadway for all modes and that the planned system of through lanes, transit
service, bike, pedestrian and other parallel arterial, operational, system and demand management
solutions do not adequately address transportation needs first, prior to considering widening
beyond the planned system to address capacity concerns.

Throughways

Throughways generally span several jurisdictions and often are of statewide importance linking
the greater Portland area with neighboring cities, other parts of the state, other states and Canada.
Throughways are planned to consist of six through lanes, plus auxiliary lanes, with grade-
separated interchanges or intersections, and serve as the workhorse for regional, statewide and
interstate travel. Additional lanes may be required in some places based on the importance of a
facility to regional and state economic performance, excessive demand and limitations or
constraints that prevent creation of a well-connected street network due to topography, existing
neighborhoods, or natural resource areas. Chapter 8 explores where such conditions may exist
and defines the parameters for future corridor refinement planning work specific to each regional
mobility corridor.

Throughways currently carry between 50,000 to 100,000 vehicles per day, providing for high-
speed travel on longer motor vehicle trips and serving as the primary freight routes, with an
emphasis on mobility. Throughways help serve the need to move both freight trucks and autos
through the region. Throughways connect major activity centers within the region, including the
central city, regional centers, industrial areas and intermodal facilities.

The Throughway functional classification generally corresponds to the Expressways functional
classification in the Oregon Highway Plan. There are two types of Throughway designs as
described in Table 3-6 Freeways - which are limited-access and completely grade separated and
Highways, which include a mix of separate and at-grade access points. Throughway interchanges
should be spaced no less than two miles apart.

3-90
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Arterial streets

Arterial streets are intended to provide general mobility for travel within the region and provide
important connections to the throughway network. Arterial streets connect major commerecial,
residential, industrial and institutional centers with each other and link these areas to the
throughway network. Arterial streets are usually spaced about one mile apart and are designed to
accommodate motor vehicle, truck, bicycle, pedestrian and transit travel.

Arterial streets usually carry between 10,000 and 40,000 vehicles per day. Travel speeds vary
depending on the surrounding and planned land use. Major arterial streets accommodate longer-
distance through trips and serve more of a regional traffic function. Minor arterial streets serve
shorter trips that are localized within a community. As a result, major arterial streets usually
carry more traffic than minor arterial streets. As part of the 2023 RTP update, a policy brief was
developed that highlighted the importance of major arterial streets for equity, safety, land
use/economic development and mobility (especially for transit). It also articulated many funding,
design and policy challenges to improving them. The brief can be downloaded here.3?

Streets designated with an arterial functional classification are shown in Figure 3-24 and include
Boulevard and Streets described in Table 3-6.

Arterial safety

Safety is a primary concern on the regional arterial system, on which approximately 60 percent of
the region’s fatal and severe injury crashes occur. For this reason, much of the focus for achieving
the region’s Vision Zero target will fall upon arterial streets. More attention to designs and
operational strategies that have been demonstrated to improve the safety of the arterial system
could reduce the number of people killed and injured, using national best practices as a guide.
Efforts to substantively improve transportation safety in the region must give arterial roadways
high priority, with a focus on the region’s high injury corridors, and may include:

e proven designs and strategies such as medians, speed management, access management,
improved pedestrian crossings and street lighting, replacing intersections with roundabouts,
reducing speeds to levels which are safe for pedestrians and road diets;

o enforcement actions targeting high-risk behaviors, such as speeding, aggressive driving,
driving under the influence, red-light running, and failure-to-yield at bike and pedestrian
crossings; and

e education initiatives intended to promote safer behavior among all users of the transportation
system.

The safety targets of the RTP will not be met without a concerted effort to make the region’s
arterial roadways substantially safer. The development of an objective metric to measure safety

39 https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2022/10/24/Safe and healthy urban arterials policy brief.pdf
3-91
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2022/10/24/Safe%20and%20healthy%20urban%20arterials%20policy%20brief.pdf

on the region’s arterials, regardless of jurisdiction, should be developed to support prioritization
of corridor safety efforts.

Collector and local street connectivity

Collector and local streets are general access facilities that provide for community and
neighborhood circulation. They are not usually part of the regional transportation system except
when located within designated 2040 areas as described in Section 3.4 (or when they are part of
the Regional Bicycle Network or Regional Pedestrian Network), they play an important
supporting role to the design and optimization of the regional transportation system. When local
travel is restricted by a lack of connecting routes, local trips are forced onto the arterial and/or
throughway networks, in some cases causing congestion on the regional system.

Local jurisdictions are responsible for defining the network of local and collector streets within
the one-mile spacing grid of arterial streets. The Regional Transportation Functional Plan requires
local street spacing of no more than 530 feet in new residential and mixed-use areas, and cul-de-
sacs are limited to 200 feet in length to distribute vehicle movements and provide direct bicycle
and pedestrian routes. More frequent bike and pedestrian connections are required where
collector and local streets cannot be constructed due to existing development or other
topographic or environmental constraints.

A goal of the requirements is to encourage local traffic to use local and collector streets to
minimize local traffic on regional arterial streets. Local street connectivity also benefits
emergency response. Designs should retain the neighborhood character and livability along these
local routes.

Figure 3-23 Collector and local street network concept

] Major Arterial ]
Local Street
Spacing 1/10 5
Mile -F .
T
<
- Park = ==
- -
Collector
= School
g
t
: - |
5 [e]
s 9
= I3
=4
g
| |
C i
| Minor Arterial [ 1] ]
4—— 1/2 Mile ——p
< 1 Mile »

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Note: Idealized concept for illustrative purposes showing desired spacing for collectors and local streets
in residential and mixed-use areas to serve local circulation, walking and bicycling. The illustration is
modeled after neighborhoods in Southeast Portland.

Shown in Figure 3-23, the collector and local street network concept provides for bicycle and
pedestrian travel and provides for direct access from local street networks to community
destinations and transit on regional arterial streets.

Collector streets

Collector streets provide both access and circulation. As such, collectors tend to carry fewer motor
vehicles at lower travel speeds than arterial streets. Collectors may serve as freight access routes,
providing connections from industrial or commercial areas to the arterial network. Collector
streets serve neighborhood traffic. Collectors provide local circulation alternatives to arterial
streets. Collectors provide both circulation and access within residential and commercial areas,
helping to disperse traffic that might otherwise use the arterial network for local travel.

Collectors may also serve as local bike, pedestrian and freight access routes, providing
connections to the arterial and transit network. Collectors usually carry between 1,000 and
10,000 vehicles per day, with volumes varying by jurisdiction. Collector streets are ideally spaced
at half-mile intervals, or midway between arterial streets. Auto speeds and volumes on collector
streets are moderate.

Local streets

Local streets primarily provide direct access to adjacent land uses, and usually between 200-2,000
vehicles per day, with volumes varying by jurisdiction. Vehicle speeds on local streets are
relatively low, which makes them good candidates for bicyclists and walkers traveling within and
between centers.

While local streets are not intended to serve through traffic, the local street network serves an
important role for supporting bicycle and pedestrian travel. As a result, regional local street
connectivity policies require communities to develop a connected network of local streets to
increase access to designated centers and the regional transit network by non-motorized
travelers.

3.3 Regional motor vehicle network classifications and map

The Regional Motor Vehicle Network is shown in Figure 3-24. Click on 2023 RTP Regional
Network Maps for online zoomable version of map.

Figure 3-24 Regional motor vehicle network map

3-93
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


http://drcmetro.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapSeries/index.html?appid=9057331682354a188ecec2688071239f
http://drcmetro.maps.arcgis.com/apps/MapSeries/index.html?appid=9057331682354a188ecec2688071239f

'

Regional Motor Vehicle Network

A

‘5}‘&‘\\\ ~

N N

Q) Y

X | NN =

S\ Vancouver
~

e Throughway
srnnr Proposed Throughway

NE 117th Ave

¢ gourth Plain Blvd == Major arterial
)

: NE 58th St
. Orchards

====21 Proposed Major arterial
== Minor arterial

any WLET N

=222z Proposed Minor arterial
—— Arterial Outside UGB
eeeee Proposed Arterial Outside UGB

Ny (14) Employment/Industrial

NE 242nd Ave

<
N\
4
Vd
/
/

Go,

NW Main St

~ . T~ Central city; Regional center; Town center

©
p‘d’@@

—--— County boundary

)
N/

L _ 1 Urban growth boundary

(8)

-

24

e
TForest/Grove

>
/\j
- \
-
\— L
a
|

Por@@ .
f e3 mq§oum§ I-
W g ¥ mlm S | AVAVA@ )

—/ ?" | vihor

A &
i ,"4'"&‘ / i ’-g
aveton——Raleigh=Hilks:
I ) / | \'
S

Hillserate
)

9

th Ave
>

]
-

he

=

the
¥

b‘a‘&k\\" &

P o

ill Rd
Q\[\ll

SW Unger Rd D iy : i n A N TN A A - — oA

<t
=
—
>

NW-LavejouSt §

NW-18th-Ave

: .
% Eha T 70 Ok | : REGIONAL
N N
e £ \.I
E Hane, = i i ille - = Henrici
= . . X
e - .

wistse % TRANSPORTATION

N Co[lege\g;,

"
‘
o
sS@f“\% S f
Ul
/ r\\ g ;!;
’ \ = E 5
J ) =5
52
|O
|

v ~ S
2,
- *YAMH| z, g \ [ -2 ==
= WARIC — ///% \ ! .
g ION co N & 4 i
/ X etro
; AN S @ NEAmdtF 1 X

Source: Metro 2/13/2023




3.3.4 Congestion management process

WHAT’S CHANGED? No changes have been proposed for this section.

The RTP calls for implementing system and demand management strategies and other strategies
prior to building new motor vehicle capacity, consistent with the Federal Congestion Management
Process (CMP), Oregon Transportation Plan policies (including Oregon Highway Plan Policy 1G)
and Section 3.08.220 of the Regional Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP). In some parts of the
greater Portland region, the transportation system is generally complete, while in other parts of
the region, especially those where new development is planned, significant amounts of
infrastructure will be added. In both contexts, management strategies have great value. Where the
system is already built out, such strategies may be the only ways to manage congestion and
achieve other objectives. Where growth is occurring, system and demand management strategies
can be integrated before and during development to efficiently balance capacity with demand.
New technologies are reducing the cost of demand management and new possibilities are
emerging with autonomous and connected vehicles.

One component of Metro’s Congestion Management Process is a toolbox of congestion reduction
and mobility strategies. This toolbox identifies a suite of strategies to manage congestion and
address mobility needs prior to utilizing traditional roadway widening and other capacity
projects. Prior to adding single occupant vehicle (SOV) capacity, agencies and jurisdictions should
give consideration to the various strategies identified in this section, consistent with FHWA
direction and RTP and OTP policies. Usually, multiple strategies are applicable within a corridor,
while other strategies are intended to be applied region wide.

The CMP toolbox strategies were assembled to provide a wide range of strategies that could be
used to manage congestion region-wide or within congested mobility corridors. They are
arranged so that the strategies are considered in order from first to last. Even with the addition of
capacity, many of the strategies can be implemented with the project to ensure the long-term
management of a capacity project.

The CMP toolbox of strategies is shown in Table 3-8.

Table 3-8 Toolbox of strategies to address congestion in the region

3-95
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



=T~

Emerging

Eﬂﬂﬂlmlﬂﬂ

Community design strategies
o Walkable communities and job centers facilitated by compact land
use in combination with walking, biking and transit connections
e Mixed-used areas and transit-oriented development
e Parking management and pricing

Travel Information and Incentives strategies
e Commuter travel options programs
e Household individualized marketing programs
e Car-sharing and eco-driving techniques
e Safe Routes to School programs
Ridesharing (carpool, vanpool) services
System management and operations strategies
e Real-time variable message signs and speed limits
e Signal timing and ramp metering
e Transit signal priority, bus-only lanes, bus pull-outs
Incident response detection and clearance
e Access management (e.g., turn restrictions, medians)
Congestion pricing strategies
e Peak period pricing
e Managed lanes
e High occupancy toll (HOT) lanes

Active Transportation strategies
e New biking and walking connections to schools, jobs, downtowns
and other community places
e Bicycle infrastructure (e.g., bicycle racks, lockers and other bicycle
amenities at transit stations and other destinations)
e Separated pathways and trails
Transit strategies
e High capacity transit
Expanded transit coverage
Expanded frequency of service
e Improvements in right-of-way to increase speed and reliability of
buses and MAX
e Community and job connector shuttles
e Park-and-ride lots in combination with transit service
Street and throughway capacity strategies
e Local and arterial street connectivity to spread out travel
e Addition of turn lanes at intersections, driveway restrictions and
other geometric designs such as roundabouts
e Road widening to add new lane miles of capacity (e.g., adding
auxiliary lanes, additional general-purpose lanes); pricing is
considered when adding new throughway capacity in the region

The intent of the CMP Toolbox follows FHWA's direction to consider all available solutions before
recommending additional roadway capacity in transportation system planning, corridor

3-96

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



refinement planning and subarea studies. Appendix L describes how this information is used in
the region’s process and RTP updates to identify needs and inform consideration and
prioritization of multimodal strategies and investments to address congestion in the region.

3.3.5 Regional transit network vision and policies

WHAT’S CHANGED? Policy updates were developed by the High Capacity Transit Strategy Work
Group with input from Metro technical and policy advisory committees and the Metro Council as
part of the Regional High Capacity Strategy update.

With continued regional growth, come challenges including more congestion, higher housing
prices, and constrained access to employment and daily needs. Residents, elected officials, and
community organizations view increased transit service as a critical part of the overall solution to
these challenges. But the COVID-19 pandemic disrupted both transit use and service in the region.
To achieve the regional vision in the 2040 Growth Concept and Climate Smart Strategy, we need
to refocus the transit system around how people now travel, while continuing to realize the
Regional Transit Vision to make transit more convenient, accessible, affordable and frequent for
everyone, especially those who rely on it.

What do frequent, convenient, accessible and affordable mean?

Make transit more frequent by aligning frequency and type of transit service to meet existing and
projected demand in support of local and regional land use and transportation visions.

Frequent transit service is defined as service that operates at a maximum of 15 minutes intervals, but
this isn’t the only type of service. Regional and local transit service provides basic service and ensures
that most the region’s population has transit service available to them; service span and frequencies
vary based on the level of demand for the service. Because of limited resources, it is important to
ensure that service meets demand. Frequency therefore means aligning the frequency and type of
service to meet existing and/or projected demand for an area.

Make transit more convenient and competitive with driving by improving transit speed and
reliability through priority treatments and other strategies. Improve transit rider experience by
ensuring seamless connections between various transit providers, including transfers, information,
and payment. Additionally, cities and counties who own the roads used by bus transit could partner
with the transit agencies to implement transit priority treatments.

Make transit more accessible by promoting transit-oriented development of station areas and
ensuring safe and direct biking and walking routes and crossings that connect to stops, as well as
improve accessibility for seniors and persons with disabilities to ensure transit is accessible for
everyone. Accessibility could also include park and ride facilities and drop off/pick up areas. Expand
the system to improve access to jobs and essential destinations and daily needs.

Accessibility refers to two separate but related aspects of transit. One is to ensure that transit is
physically accessible to everyone, regardless of age or ability. All transit users must access transit via
biking or walking, even if stops are mere feet away. Complete sidewalks and bike paths improve
safety and enhance the experience of using transit and the accessible stations are essential to making
transit work for everyone. The first/last mile connection is also an important part of accessibility, as it
often represents the best opportunity for people living in less developed areas, rural towns or
outlying areas to access our transit system.
3-97
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



The second component of accessibility is to ensure that schools, particularly high schools and
colleges, community places, such as grocery stores and medical services, and jobs are accessible by
transit. As the region grows, it’s crucial to continue to expand community and regional transit service
in order to improve access to these daily needs and encourage employers to locate on existing transit
routes.

Making transit affordable is the cornerstone of the other components of our vision. Frequency,
convenience, and accessibility are meaningless if transit is not affordable. Additionally, affordability
ensures that the transit system is equitable for low-income populations, communities of color and
those who rely on transit services rather than private automobiles to meet their daily transportation
needs.

3.3.5.1 Regional transit network concept

The regional street system has carried public transit for more than a century, beginning with the
streetcars of the late 1800s and evolving into a combination of vans, buses, streetcars, and light
rail trains today. The Tri-County Metropolitan Transportation District of Oregon (TriMet) is the
primary public transportation provider for the greater Portland region. The South Metro Area
Regional Transit (SMART) in Wilsonville provides regional transit service connecting Wilsonville
to Portland and communities in Washington and Clackamas counties. Clackamas, Multnomah, and
Washington Counties have also contracted to provide shuttle service to provide service within
regional centers and to regional station areas, town centers, and employment areas.

Bus service in other surrounding areas, all with connections to the regional network, is also
provided by C-TRAN (Clark County, WA), Ride Connection, South Clackamas Transit District
(SCTD), Cherriots (Salem, OR), Tillamook County Transportation District (Tillamook, OR), and
Yamhill County Transit Area (Yamhill County, OR). Just outside of the greater Portland region,
Sandy Area Metro (SAM) and Canby Area Transit (CAT) provide transit service for Sandy and
Canby.

3-98
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Transit is key to supporting the region’s 2040 Growth Concept, which calls for focusing future
growth in regional and town centers, station communities and 2040 corridors. A regional transit
network, coupled with transit-supportive development patterns and policies that support taking
transit, biking, and walking, will be necessary to help the region:

e Dbeless dependent on automobiles

e more equitably serve communities of color and other marginalized communities
e reduce overall transportation and housing costs

e lead healthier lives

e reduce greenhouse gas emissions
As part of the 2040 Growth Concept, transit is critical to connecting centers.

Figure 3-25 shows how the regional transit system concept would connect the 2040 centers.

Figure 3-25 Regional transit network concept

Town Center
Town Center

PG

=M
Employment
Center
=]

PMSEMSEMmEEn

Town Center Regional Center
" Employment
AR Center
— e il £

The 2040 Growth Concept sets forth a vision for connecting the central city to regional centers like Gresham,
Clackamas and Hillsboro with high capacity transit. The RTP expands this vision to include a complete network of
regional transit along most arterial streets to better serve existing and growing communities. Existing land use
mixes and future transit-oriented development potential should be considered and incorporated into service and
station location decisions.

3-99
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



In order to leverage transit investments, it is important to ensure land uses are transit-supportive
and support local and regional land use and transportation plans and visions to leverage and
protect transit investments.

Adjacent land uses, block size, street connectivity, and parking management affect the success of
transit service. Policies and investments that make transit work best can be found in Table 3-9.

Table 3-9 Effects of land use on transit service

Street layout

Pedestrian and bicycle
environment

Source: TriMet

High
Small blocks

Grid system

Mixed use (e.g., commercial,
residential, and office uses)
Wide sidewalks

Slow moving traffic

Street elements (e.g., benches,

street trees, pedestrian-scale
lighting)

Well-marked intersections
with signalized crossings
Bicycle parking

Buildings front the street and
entrances

Limited
Fee-based parking

Transit-supportive development patterns include:

least 18 hours a day.

disabilities, near frequent transit.

3-100

Streets that can accommodate 40-foot buses.

Long, winding streets
Cul-de-sacs, dead-end

Single use (e.g., all
residential, all industrial)
Narrow or no sidewalks
Fast moving traffic

Poor lighting

No intersection markings
and long pedestrian wait
times

Buildings set back from the
street and surrounded by
surface parking

Abundant
Free

A compact urban form that places destinations near transit.

A mix of uses, and a balance of jobs and housing, which creates a place where activity occurs at

Locating a mix of services near transit, including grocery stores and medical clinics.

Locating affordable housing options, particularly for older adults, seniors and people with

Well-designed streets and buildings that encourage pedestrian travel.

Safe and efficient multi-modal interactions at transit stops and stations.

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan

3/1/2023



e Safe, direct and convenient pedestrian and bicycle access, within communities and to transit
stops and stations.

e Street connectivity with good pedestrian and bike connections to extend the effective
coverage of bus and rail service.

e Managed on-street and off-street parking.

Areas with low population and/or employment densities, abundant free parking, and with
difficult access to transit stops generate fewer riders than areas with transit-supportive
development. When fewer riders are generated, it costs more per ride to provide transit service
than it does in transit-supportive areas. Ridership productivity is a key criterion in assessing the
benefits of service improvements and new transit investments.

3.3.5.2 Regional transit network functional classifications and map

The Regional Transit Network includes future regional and local bus, better bus corridors, high
capacity transit and intercity rail, reflecting the region’s future transit vision as identified by
Portland Streetcar System Concept Plan, TriMet’s Service Enhancement Plans, SMART’s 2017
Transit Master Plan (update currently underway), as well as local Transportation System Plans.
Shown in Figure 3-27, the Regional Transit Network map has been updated to include new
connections envisioned in the 2023 High Capacity Transit Strategy update and future transit
service. The map also highlights areas planned to be served by community-job connector shuttles,
including future routes identified in Clackamas and Washington County’s Transit Development
Plans. Click on RTP Regional Network Maps for online zoomable version of map. [LINK TO BE
ADDED]

Our existing and planned system includes a variety of transit modes, each with a special function
in the overall system. Local, regional, and frequent service bus lines are the workhorses of our
transit system. The transit providers plan for improving and expanding transit service through
service enhancement plans, master plans and through annual service planning.

Our bus system operates in mixed traffic and provides service across the region. Alongside our
bus system, we have implemented streetcar and corridor-based rapid bus. These services, along
with frequent bus service, can and do include a variety of transit priority treatments. These tend
to be more frequent and carry more transit riders than the regional and local bus system. The
better bus program, new to our region, provides that transit priority to help improve transit speed
and reliability above traditional transit service.

The region’s high capacity transit system operates with the majority or all of the service in
exclusive guideway. The high capacity transit system is the backbone of the broader
transportation network, meant to connect to regional centers and carry more transit riders than
the local, regional and frequent service transit lines.

The region’s high capacity transit system operates with the majority of all of the service in
exclusive right-of-way, consisting of six lines over a 75-mile network that serves more than 130
stations in the city of Portland, and the communities of Beaverton, Clackamas, Gresham, Hillsboro,

3-101
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



and Milwaukie; and Portland International Airport. Figure 3-26 shows the broad transit
spectrum that exists or is planned for regional transit system.

Figure 3-26 Regional transit spectrum
Mixed traffic Priority treatments Exclusive guideway

ervice Enhancement
Plans/Master Plans

Regional bus

Frequent Service bus '\ EnhancedTransit
1
1

1 \‘
1
L Corridor based Bus Rapid Transit

~ -

Bus Rapid Transit
Rapid Streetcar
Light Rail
High Capacity

~ ‘/

Intercity Rail

Many variables impact decisions about what type of transit mode and frequencies are most
appropriate, including existing and future land uses, transit demand and opportunities and
constraints.

i

3-102
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Figure 3-27 Regional transit network map - TO BE ADDED

3-103
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023


mctighe
Highlight


Implementation of the regional transit vision

The Regional Transit Vision will be implemented through improving service, investing in
infrastructure, collaborating between transit providers and local jurisdictions and expanding

transit supportive elements:

Transit service improvements: local and regional transit service improvements designed to
meet current and projected demand in line with local and regional visions and plans.

Capital investments in transit: new enhanced transit strategies such as signal priority,
dedicated lanes or high capacity transit options such as bus rapid transit, light rail. commuter
rail or high speed rail.

Transit supportive elements: including programs, policies, capital investments and
incentives such as Travel Demand Management and physical improvements such as
sidewalks, crossings, and complementary land uses.

Figure 3-28 shows the relationships between these different types of investments.

Figure 3-28 Service improvements, capital investments and transit supportive elements

enice [OPeratio,,

shuttles

commuter rail

light rail
streetcar

rapid
streetcar

parking
policies

commuter
rail

zoning

bus rapid
transit

light
rail

(,39“3\ Investmg s

employment
areas

Public agencies and transit providers must collaborate in prioritizing transit investments
throughout the region. With the passing of House Bill 2017, the Oregon Legislature identified
transit improvements and service expansion as a priority for the state. With this additional

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



funding, the region will be able to significantly increase and expand transit service. This only
highlights the need to collaborate between transit providers.

3.3.5.3 Regional transit network policies

Regional transit priorities are informed by the following policies which aim to provide transit as
an attractive, convenient, accessible and affordable travel option for all people in the greater
Portland region, optimize existing transit system operations and ensure transit-supportive land
uses are implemented to leverage the region’s current and future transit investments. Together,
these policies support all five RTP goals.

Policy 1

Policy 2

Policy 3

Policy 4

Policy 5

Policy 6

Policy 7

Policy 8

3-106

Provide a high-quality, safe and accessible transit network that makes transit a
convenient and comfortable transportation choice for everyone to use.

Ensure that the regional transit network equitably prioritizes service to those who
rely on transit or lack travel options; makes service, amenities, and access safe and
secure; improves quality of life (e.g., air quality); and proactively supports stability of
vulnerable communities, particularly communities of color and other marginalized
communities.

Prioritize our investments to create a transit system that encourages people to ride
transit rather than drive alone and to support transitioning to a clean fleet that
aspires for net zero GHG emissions, enabling us to meet our state, regional, and local
climate goals.

Preserve and maintain the region’s transit infrastructure in a manner that improves
safety, reliability and resiliency while minimizing life-cycle cost and impact on the
environment.

Complete a well-connected network of local and regional transit on most arterial
streets — prioritizing expanding all-day frequent service along mobility corridors and
main streets linking town centers to each other and neighborhoods to centers.

Complete and strengthen a well-connected high capacity transit network to serve as
the backbone of the transportation system. Corridors should generally be spaced at
least one half-mile to one mile or more apart and serve mobility corridors with the
highest travel demand. High capacity transit prioritizes transit speed and reliability
to connect regional centers with the Central City, link regional centers with each
other, and link regional centers to major town centers

Through the Better Bus concept, prioritize capital and traffic operational treatments
identified in the Enhanced Transit Toolbox in key locations and/or corridors to
improve transit speed and reliability for frequent service.

Evaluate and support expanded commuter rail and intercity transit service to
neighboring communities and other destinations outside the region.

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Policy 9 Make transit more accessible by improving pedestrian and bicycle access to and
bicycle parking at transit stops and stations and using new mobility services to
improve connections to high-frequency transit when walking, bicycling or local bus
service is not an option.

Policy 10 Use technology to provide better, more efficient transit service — focusing on
meeting the needs of people for whom conventional transit is not an option.

Policy 11 Ensure that transit is affordable, especially for people who depend on transit.

Transit Policy 1. Provide a high quality, safe and accessible system that makes transit a convenient
and comfortable transportation choice for everyone to use.

The region’s economic prosperity and quality of life depend on a transportation system that
provides every person and business in the region with access to safe, efficient, reliable, affordable
and healthy travel options. But recovering from the pandemic-era ridership slump and meeting
the region’s transit ridership goals will require broader action, potentially including rethinking
how transit serves the region’s centers, finding resources to increase service, and redesigning
streets to keep buses moving.

Figure 3-29 Tools for building a high quality transit system

[GRAPHIC TO BE ADDED]

Rapid streetcar has less stops and more street priority for regional mobility between centers. Streetcar extends
the reach of the high capacity transit network by facilitating mobility within major centers.

A complete and seamless transit system is based on providing frequent and reliable bus and rail
transit service during all times of the day, every day of the week. This goes far beyond the
responsibility of the transit agencies; it requires actions on behalf of the region and all the
jurisdictions. In order to provide frequent and reliable service, the region needs to partner
together to invest in transit priority treatments and high capacity transit to ensure that transit can
take people where they need to go on time.

All transit trips begin and end with different modes of access even if stations are mere steps from
origins and destinations. Riders access transit via walking, bicycling, bus, rail, carpools, shared
mobility (like Uber and Lyft or Biketown) and private automobiles. Safe and comfortable access to
the stations is critical to the rider’s experience and convenience, but also makes transit fully
accessible to people of all ages and abilities. Every transit rider is a pedestrian first, whether it is
walking to the station, parking their bike and walking to vehicle or walking from the park and ride
to the bus or rail.

Typical fixed route transit service may not make sense for everyone throughout the region. People
may often rely on demand-response transit or infrequent buses that provide slow service and are
costly to operate. New shared mobility models like microtransit could provide better service at
lower cost in these situations. As these options continue to mature, agencies should look for
opportunities to supplement demand response and underperforming service with shared
mobility. This could provide better service for underserved and transit-dependent residents, and
also increase resources available to serve high-demand corridors.
3-107

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan

3/1/2023



Technology is another tool to actively manage the Portland metropolitan region’s transit system.
This means using intelligent transportation systems and services to help improve the speed and
reliability of transit. It also means taking advantage of the growth in personal technology to
efficiently communicate information about transit options and leverage electronic, integrated
ticketing systems.

Transit Policy 2. Ensure that the regional transit network equitably prioritizes service to those who
rely on transit or lack travel options; makes service, amenities, and access safe and secure; improves
quality of life (e.g., air quality); and proactively supports stability of vulnerable communities,
particularly communities of color and other marginalized communities.

As greater Portland continues to grow in both population and diversity, embracing this growing
diversity means providing service that is equitable. The region’s transit and broader
transportation system should provide every person and business with equitable access to have
the same opportunity to thrive, regardless of their race or ethnicity. Ridership during the
pandemic held steadier on routes that have more people of color and people with low incomes
and routes that serve arterials with a mix of jobs, housing, shops and other destinations. Making
these trips more convenient and reliable means that people who are more likely rely on transit
today will have better travel options. A regional transit system focused on mobility and access
that addresses the transportation disparities faced by communities of color has the ability to open
opportunities which can dramatically improve outcomes for people of color. By addressing the
barriers faced by communities of color, outcomes for other disadvantaged communities will
improve as well.

Using equity as a lens to guide decisions more broadly will ensure that the transit system benefits
those who rely on it the most. Beyond network and service improvements, an equity lens can
address disparities in:

e Access: New development and gentrification can lead to displacement, of which people of
color and low-income are disproportionately affected by. As housing and transportation
costs increase, households are being forced to move to areas with less transit service. To
address this, projects should be prioritized in equity focus areas.

e Safety and security: People with low-income and people of color across the country
disproportionately suffer from well-documented racial bias in and bear the burden of
policing. Racial disparities exist in enforcing transportation laws and rules and issuing
penalties for violations. Further, fines are not based on an individual’s ability to pay,
meaning that the penalty has greater impact for people with low-income and could lead to
compounding consequences such as debt. At the same time, people of color are
increasingly likely to be concerned for their safety when traveling due to fear of
harassment and discrimination. Agencies should continue to pursue alternatives to
policing (e.g., TriMet’s Safety Response Team) that discourage harassment without
enforcement.

o Technology: As more transit fare collection systems embrace contactless payment,
accessibility challenges can arise for people, especially people with low incomes or who
are undocumented, underbanked or unbanked. Agencies should continue to monitor and
pursue strategies to reduce barriers to accessing digital fare systems.

3-108
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Offering ample opportunities for meaningful public engagement and input is critical to hearing
diverse perspectives on goals, policies and projects. Continuing to strengthen existing
partnerships with local community organizations can provide more individuals with voices that
may not have had the platform to be heard. Any transit planning effort should directly incorporate
community in the decision-making process.

Further, major infrastructure investments have implications within the communities they are
located. Historic data shows that high capacity transit investments such as light rail contribute to
both positive and negative outcomes for the communities they serve. It is critical during planning
for a new major transit investment that a strategy be developed that considers both the positive
and negative impacts, particularly as it applies to the most at-risk populations who also tend to be
the most transit dependent. Their potential displacement from the economic pressures that the
investment brings ultimately undermines its long-term effectiveness.

Planning for all new high capacity transit connections through an Equitable Development
Framework can potentially lessen the negative impacts of the investment and increase the
benefits to transit-dependent communities — limiting residential and business displacements and
gentrification. The framework will vary for each project and should be developed at the time the
project is being considered through planning, engineering and construction. Key focus areas
should include affordable transit-oriented housing opportunities and contracting and job training
benefits and opportunities for displaced and marginalized populations.

Transit Policy 3. Prioritize our investments to create a transit system that encourages people to ride
transit rather than drive alone and to support transitioning to a clean fleet that aspires for net zero
GHG emissions, enabling us to meet our state, regional, and local climate goals.

Transit is a critical part of meeting regional goals for climate leadership and clean air, and an
integral part of implementing the Climate Smart Strategy. Improving and expanding the transit
system and use of transit in greater Portland will continue to play a significant role in reducing
transportation-related air pollutants, including greenhouse emissions. In order for people to
choose transit over driving, transit must be convenient and reliable. A transit trip needs to get
people to their destination at the scheduled time, consistently, and it must be easy to use. The
route would ideally be a one-seat ride or have seamless connections and fares between trains,
buses, shuttles or streetcar, regardless of the provider. It should be just a short walk or bicycle
ride away via a safe, comfortable connection that is easy to find and navigate. Information about
schedules, transfers and real time arrivals would be readily available and easy to access both on-
board and at stops and stations. Most importantly, it needs to be a viable option in regard to travel
times. The region should continue to pursue strategies that prioritize transit and make the bus
run better (e.g, signal priority and bus lanes), integrate service, information, trip planning, and
payment platforms across transit agencies, improve sidewalk, crossing and bicycle facilities, and
adopt technology to make transit more predictable and user-friendly (e.g., electronic fare and
real-time monitoring systems). By providing both more and better transit connections between
where people live and where they need to go, more people who drive today will be more likely to
choose to use transit to travel instead.

3-109
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Ongoing efforts to convert bus fleets to low and zero-emissions vehicles will further reduce
emissions in the region. Electric trains and hybrid diesel/electric buses have been part of the
regional fleet for many years and battery-electric buses have been added more recently. Both
House Bill 2017 and the Low or No Emissions Buses and the federal Bus Facilities Grant Program
funded by the 2021 Bipartisan Infrastructure Law have provided an opportunity to further invest
in clean vehicles. As transit agencies in the region move toward a fleet without emissions, many
are switching to renewable biodiesel fuel to reduce emissions in the interim. TriMet has pledged
to stop purchasing diesel buses by 2024 toward being net-zero by 2050. Similarly, SMART's fleet
is already composed of 40% alternative fuel vehicles and plans to be net-zero by 2028. C-TRAN
has the goal to be net-zero by 2040. Further, renewable electricity from natural resources like sun
and wind can be used to power both transit vehicles and facilities. Cleaner alternative fuels are the
future of transit, and the region should continue to support the transition to a clean transit fleet
and facilities. As more people are encouraged to ride on an improved and expanded transit
network using clean vehicles, greater Portland will see emissions reduced for the transportation
system more broadly as well.

Transit Policy 4. Preserve and maintain the region’s transit infrastructure in a manner that improves
safety, reliability and resiliency while minimizing life-cycle cost and impact on the environment.

While our transit system is still relatively new, it will become increasingly important to invest in
upkeep as the system ages to maintain a state of good repair. It is critical to ensure that it is well-
maintained and to replace or improve outdated parts of our transit system to preserve its
efficiency. In addition, the Federal Transit Administration’s State of Good Repair program is
dedicated maintenance of our transit system includes incorporating industry best practices and
recommendations related to reliability and safety and supporting TriMet’s implementation of its
Service Enhancement Plans to help transit agencies maintain bus and rail systems as part of the
federal transportation performance management implementation. These grants are distributed to
state and local governments to repair and upgrade rail and bus rapid transit systems that are at
least seven years old.

According to the FTA, the average useful life of a bus, or when it may need to be replaced, is 12
years, or 500,000 miles. In 2002, buses and streetcars close to replacement age in regional fleets
were none for TriMet, 2% for Portland Streetcar, 19% for C-TRAN49, and 43% for SMART.
Another area of investment for TriMet is the MAX system, parts of which are more than 35 years
old. While the FTA’s assigned life expectancy for rail cars is 25 years, industry experience reports
a 30-35-year lifespan in reality. In 2020, about 18% of light rail vehicles were close to
replacement age and about 8% of the tracks were also in need of upgrades.

It’s also important that to plan for the future capacity needs of our transit system. As our region
grows and ridership on our public transportation system is ever increasing, the region is starting
to push the limits of what our existing infrastructure can handle. This creates more transit

40 This number includes vehicles beyond buses.

3-110
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



bottlenecks throughout the region, increasing congestion and decreasing the reliability of our
transit system. Some lines already have many buses running behind schedule due to heavy traffic,
which leads to unpredictable service. Other lines suffer from overcrowding. Popular lines will
always have standees, but some trips have such high ridership that at times, riders are unable to
board and must wait for another vehicle. In order to make transit more reliable and convenient,
these factors must also be addressed.

Transit Policy 5. Complete a well-connected network of local and regional transit on most arterial
streets — prioritizing expanding all-day frequent service along mobility corridors and main streets
linking town centers to each other and neighborhoods to centers.

Improve local service transit

The local transit network provides basic service and access to local destinations and the frequent
and high capacity transit network. Service span and frequencies vary based on the level demand
for the service. The local transit network ensures that the majority of the region’s population has
transit service available to them - varying in type and level based on needs and demand. Beyond
bus service, types of local transit services include para-transit service for people with disabilities,
deviated “On-Demand” routes, shuttles (e.g., community and job connectors, employer-run or
sponsored, community event), and the tram.

Local transit service is appropriate where there is some transit demand, but not enough to
support regional or frequent service. Local transit is designed to provide full transit service
coverage to the region. Transit preferential treatments and passenger facilities are appropriate at
high ridership locations. Sidewalk connectivity, protected crosswalks and bikeways are all
fundamental to making the local transit service elements of the transit network function at its
highest level.

Providing community and job connector shuttles increases the convenience of transit, particularly
for areas without frequent service transit or where traditional transit service is not viable.
Community and job connector shuttles also expand the reach of transit service across the region,
which improves access to jobs and community places and can help facilitate first/last mile
connections where business and or homes are spread out and regional fixed-route bus service is
not cost effective.

One foundational support of the regional transportation system in both urban and rural areas is
the availability of demand-response services. These services provide access to transportation that
“fills in the gaps” where fixed-route transit, complementary paratransit, or deviated fixed-route
“last mile” shuttle services are not the appropriate or most cost-effective tool to meet the need of
low-income individuals, seniors or people with disabilities. Because these services operate in the
background, as a coordinated addition to the total transportation system, they often go unnoticed.
However, they provide a lifeline of service to people who experience barriers to accessing the
transportation system. Each year over 500,000 trips are provided on demand-response services
throughout the region, and current service is still not enough to meet the existing demand or
projected growth in demand concurrent with the region’s growing population.

3-111
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



More focus is needed on the local transit needs of suburban and rural areas of the region -
identifying transit gaps and exploring innovative strategies like microtransit to improve transit
access and reduce service fragmentation. Chapter 8 Moving Forward Together provides more
information about the future Connecting First and Last Mile: Transit Mobility Study.

Expand regional and local frequent service transit

Providing regional transit along most arterial streets is another key piece of a high-quality
network better serving existing and growing communities. In 2040 corridors, main streets and
centers, the RTP recommends supporting transit by providing transit-supportive development
and well-connected street systems to allow convenient bicycle and pedestrian access.

Frequent service transit is defined as wait times of 15 minutes or less from the early morning to
late in the evening, seven days a week. Frequency is especially important for making transit more
competitive with driving for riders who take short, local trips, because the time riders spend
waiting for a bus to take a short trip is a proportionately larger component of the total travel time
than it is for longer trips.

Frequent bus service is appropriate when high ridership demand is demonstrated or projected,
the streets are pedestrian-friendly, there are high proportions of transit-dependent residents, the
lines connect to existing or proposed HCT corridors, and/or it serves multiple centers and major
employers. Exhibiting many of the same service characteristics as frequent bus service, streetcar
service functions primarily as a connection within and between 2040 centers and along corridors
and main streets.

Preferential treatments, such as transit signal priority, covered bus shelters, curb extensions,
special lighting, enhanced sidewalks, protected crosswalks and bikeways, are all fundamental to
making the frequent service bus and streetcars elements of the transit network function at its
highest level. In select locations, park-and-ride facilities may provide vehicular access to the
frequent service network, especially for areas that cannot be well-served by local transit due to
topography, street configuration, or lack of density.

Key considerations for investments in frequent service are ridership, productivity, and lines that
provide marginalized communities access to jobs and other community places. Decisions about
transit investments should be assessed with an equity lens to ensure transit access for our most
vulnerable communities.

Transit Policy 6. Through the regional Better Bus concept, prioritize capital and operational
improvements identified in the Enhanced Transit Toolbox in key locations and/or corridors to
improve transit speed and reliability for frequent service.

In order to meet the region’s environmental, economic, livability and equity goals as we grow over
the next several decades, we need to invest more in our transit system, particularly the frequent
service bus network. There are many ways to increase transit speed and reliability throughout

3-112
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



our system to reduce time spent traveling by transit for people riding. The region should pursue
opportunities as they arise to improve the efficiency of our system to support our transit riders.

The Better Bus program is one way to do this and employs new public partnerships to service
treatments that increase capacity and reliability, yet are relatively low-cost to construct, context-
sensitive, and able to be deployed quickly throughout the region where needed. Better bus would
create more reliable, higher quality transit connections to connect low-income and transit-
dependent riders to jobs, school and services. It would allow for a more fine-grained network of
higher-quality transit service to complement our high capacity transit investments, relieve transit
congestion and grow ridership throughout the region.

Better bus can be implemented through the coordinated investment of multiple partners and has
the potential to provide major improvement over existing service or even our region’s best
frequent service, but less capital-intensive and more quickly implemented than large scale high
capacity transit. Investments would serve our many growing mixed-use centers, corridors, and
employment areas that demand a higher level of transit service but are not seen as short-term
candidates for light-rail or rapid bus (those identified as Developing or Future corridors in the
2023 High Capacity Transit Strategy). This creates a potential path for growing better bus into
high capacity transit over time - starting with incremental, smaller-scale improvements that can
be leveraged later when implementing a large-scale capital infrastructure investment.

Improving the speed and reliability of our frequent service network could be implemented at the
regional scale, along corridors or at “hot spot” locations. Table 3-10 describes the different types
of treatments that have the potential to improve reliability. Providing transit priority on the
roadway and/or at signals that help buses avoid delay and/or bypass traffic mean trips on these
routes stay on schedule and/or are faster. These features, combined with other preferential
treatments, such as covered bus shelters, special lighting, enhanced sidewalks and bicycle
facilities, and protected crosswalks, are fundamental to making the Better Bus network function at
its highest level.

Table 3-10 Better Bus treatments to enhance frequent transit service

Bus on shoulder Dedicated bus lane

Transit signal priority and signal improvements Business access and transit (BAT) lane

Headway management Intersection queue jump/right turn except bus
lane

Level boarding Pro-time (peak period only) transit lane

All door boarding Multi-modal interactions

Bus stop consolidation Curb extension at stops/stations

Rolling stock modification Far-side bus stop placement

Transit signal priority and signal improvements Street design traffic flow modifications

Transit Policy 7. Complete and strengthen a well-connected high capacity transit network to serve as
the backbone of the transportation system. Corridors should generally be spaced at least one half-
3-113
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



mile to one mile or more apart and serve mobility corridors with the highest travel demand. High
capacity transit prioritizes transit speed and reliability to connect regional centers with the Central
City, link regional centers with each other, and link regional centers to major town centers.

High Capacity Transit (HCT) investments help the region concentrate development and growth in
its centers and corridors. It serves as the backbone of the transportation network, connecting
people to the central city, regional centers and major town centers with high-quality service (i.e.,
fast, frequent, safe and reliable). Linking these activity centers and station communities better
connects people with essential jobs, services, commerce and other major destinations (e.g.,
colleges, hospitals, affordable housing). Generally, high capacity transit corridors should be about
a half-mile to a mile apart to make more broad connections across the region where the bus or
other types of transit make connections and provide complementary services to fill in the
network.

This type of service carries more transit riders more quickly, efficiently and comfortably than
local, regional and frequent service transit lines. In the regional transit network concept, high
capacity transit serves regional routes where the most people need to travel to get where they
need to go, often with relatively long trip lengths, to provide a viable alternative to the automobile
in terms of convenience and travel time.

High Capacity Transit...

Central City.

®

- | eET— /\
2l | = e

Is frequent

___ s
Al e o

T o ﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ% =

Has its own track
or bus lane

Ql

High capacity transit has both a level of enhanced amenities and transit priority that work
together to move more people, more comfortably than other types of regional or local transit.
Enhanced amenities refer to features that make high capacity transit more efficient, convenient,
and comfortable: vehicles that are larger and allow boarding from all doors, transit centers and
stations with near-level boarding, and frequent service (striving for frequencies of 10 minutes or
better during the peak hours and 15 minutes during off peak hours). It also refers to transit
centers and stations with covered waiting shelters, benches, schedule and real-time bus and train
arrival information and special lighting. Other amenities could include ticket machines, restroom
facilities, bicycle parking (e.g., bicycle stations or bike & rides), civic art and commercial services.
Enhanced priority investments refer to dedicated tracks or lanes in the street that improve speed

3-114
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



and/or reliability, getting people to destinations faster and on-time. Light rail operates along
dedicated tracks, but rapid buses may operate in a mix of dedicated and shared street space. High
capacity transit operates on a fixed guideway or within an exclusive right-of-way, to the greatest
extent possible. High capacity transit investments take existing strong transit connections to the
next level in accessibility and priority on the roadway and at the signal — while shining a light on
the corridor in which it travels to improve safety, access and livability for current and future
riders.

To be prioritized for high capacity transit in the near-term, a corridor must have a high “activity
density” or people and/or jobs nearby, most of the elements of a transit-supportive environment
(described in Table 3.8 above), a high cost-effectiveness of and potential for funding, and
demonstrated community and stakeholder support and local agency commitment. Together, these
factors indicate where there is the greatest need for and most potential benefit in making higher
cost, higher quality transit investments. The High Capacity Transit Strategy prioritizes
investments over the span of decades - categorizing corridors by their readiness for investment -
where high capacity service supports the cost-effective use of regional resources to build a high
capacity transit system. The high capacity transit assessment and readiness criteria, described in
more detail in Chapter 7 of the Regional Transit Strategy, provides a framework to inform
advancing high capacity transit projects identified in the RTP and Regional Transit Strategy.

The region should continue to pursue coordinated partnerships in planning for and investing in
these major capital improvements that prioritize transit over other modes, construct features that
improve speed, reliability, and access to transit, and address community needs and gaps. Adopted
transit-supportive land use and transportation policies and strategies, such as high-density and
mixed-use zoning, reduced parking requirements, and affordable housing incentives are critical to
ensuring a corridor is ready for high capacity transit investment. To optimize and leverage transit
supportive land uses, alignments and station locations should be oriented towards existing and
future high density, mixed-use development and connect intermodal passenger facilities. To this
end, urban form and connectivity, redevelopment potential, market readiness, public incentives
and infrastructure financing should all be considered during the corridor refinement and
alternatives analysis phases of project development.

Figure 3-30 High capacity transit map

3-115
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



MilllRlain (500

%6 MULTNOMAH
) COUNTY
A

N

(6]

[ |
J-l-‘

v
\
O
205,
7
v
¢

.--...

- =
|
!
WASHINGTON ] N
COUNTY L T
Bethany

n E't

‘-

b

oW mg, -
L4 ‘.. 1
gr'enco ™\ ; 9 i
Forest/Grove  Corneli - Tanasbourne/*~, ~ Cedar ---, ALL Hollyweod -"‘
res rov ) ¢ ills AA i o T B =
ornelius Hillsboro g Amber Glen ey Mill Sunset ‘ r.F--'.""*- . Troutdale
u ~. Transit Gateway YW ood Village

m® ]
.@ Center -“ Rock
o‘ Downtown G woo_d_ Emm -;
, . Portland i

LN
ammmmms® Ve I Gl;e_sLlam
Sy I Rs
..:.'

...-l------- -

4

Lents Pleasant
Valley
b4

PR R R F T
P

|

CLACKAMAS
COUNTY .~

\
\

Mt;rr:r:{ll ) ‘\ i Milwaukie
cholls . =m
‘ » L Clackamas |

= -
Q‘,-- ‘\

-

Se Happ aIIey

-_——

1
[ |
\‘ Damascus
\
|
1
I
I

Gladston .
Ee
Sy,
Sherwood Sa
.'*~.. West Lm’-‘(‘egon
-

....--'

Q9P

Wilsd'nville



Transit Policy 8. Evaluate and support expanded commuter rail and intercity transit service to
neighboring communities and other destinations outside the region.

Intercity passenger rail and bus service to communities outside of the region provides an
important connection to the regional transit network. Current travel patterns are showing a rising
demand for intercity transit service solutions for improving passenger rail in the future in
response to rising demand, while also balancing similarly increasing freight service needs.

The following corridors have a high likelihood to support intercity or commuter rail service in the
future: Portland-Newberg, Portland-Astoria, Portland-California and Chicago to Seattle via Salt
Lake City and Portland (formerly Amtrak Pioneer). Metro, regional partners and corridor
communities should consider right-of-way preservation for these corridors and consider land use
planning activities that focus on transit-supportive development around potential future station
areas.

When developing inter-regional rail service, this corridor alignment should take priority for
improving passenger rail service between Eugene and Portland in the nearer-term future.

In the longer-term future, providing a fast, frequent, reliable and environmentally responsible
high-speed transit connection could serve as a catalyst to transform the Pacific Northwest. The
Pacific Northwest Corridor provides an important intercity rail connection between Eugene,
Oregon and Vancouver, British Columbia. It is one of eleven corridors shown in Figure 3-31
identified for improved inter-city rail connections and potential high-speed rail investments to
better connect communities across the U.S. Ultra-high-speed rail on the corridor should
complement and bolster the broader intercity passenger rail system - for instance, Amtrak
Cascades could connect smaller cities (including Salem and Eugene nearer-term) to the corridor
and the regional hubs connected by it.

In 2021, the Governors of Oregon and Washington and the Premier of British Columbia signed a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to initiate program to advance activities in support of an
ultra-high-speed rail project with speeds up to 250 miles per hour allowing for travel between
each city in under an hour. The agreement established the goal of laying the groundwork for the
creation of a formal, legal entity to continue project development while seeking community
engagement and input, gaining critical support from decision makers, and positioning the corridor
for future funding opportunities and an efficient environmental process. More information about
current efforts to support high speed rail are described in Chapter 8 Moving Forward Together.

Figure 3-31 U.S. High speed intercity passenger rail network

3-116
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



V Montreal ®
. 0
"
Ay
- .,
Y Buffalo'®

Milwaukes
® * ".'Detroit New Haven
i

: e
®lng @' Philadelphia
Sacramento % e i
san Frandgg) O T / @) Baltimore
Washington, D.C"@'
5an Jose'®, Kansas'City hY d o
e st:Lotis . Sy
Fresno o Richimond ® /. %

Sworfolk

gf
85
)
e
7
2
:
g
v

® Raicigh
Los Angeles ...'Rnrzrside Charlotte.@ 1

LEGEND ‘
B Core Express (125-250+mph) Houston__§ :
mm Regional {30-125mph) R G .“ ; Adindo

Feader (up to somph)
—— Existing Intercity Rail Routes
[ States Receiving HSIPR Grants
MiamI

500 miles T

Source: U.S. Department of Transportation (April 2016)

More work is needed to determine what partnerships, infrastructure investments and finance
strategies are needed to support improved intercity passenger service to communities outside the
region more broadly. Additional collaboration and funding are needed to support development of
this level of service.

Transit Policy 9. Make transit more accessible by improving pedestrian and bicycle access to and
bicycle parking at transit stops and stations and using new mobility services to improve connections
to high-frequency transit when walking, bicycling or local bus service is not an option.

Improve pedestrian and bicycle access to and bicycle parking at transit stops and stations

Providing safe and direct walking and biking routes and crossings that connect to transit stops
ensures that transit services are fully accessible to people of all ages and abilities and helps the
transit network function at its highest level. At some point in their trip, all transit riders are
pedestrians. The environment where people walk to and from transit facilities is a significant part
of the overall transit experience. An unattractive or unsafe walking environment discourages
people from using transit, while a safer and more appealing pedestrian environment may increase
ridership. Likewise, high quality local and regional bicycle infrastructure extends the reach of the
transit network, allowing more people to access transit from longer distances. Figure 3-27 depicts
the region’s priorities for providing multi-modal access to the region’s transit system. It
prioritizes walking and biking to transit and deemphasizes driving to transit.

Establishing pedestrian and bicycle connections to bus and train stations and stops helps extend
the reach of the transit network, making trips made by transit feasible and accessible for more
3-117
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



people of all ages and abilities, including seniors and people with disabilities. Transit, pedestrian
and bicycle travel benefit as improvements are made to each of the modes.

Improving pedestrian and bicycle access to transit is accomplished through:

o filling sidewalk gaps within a mile of stops and stations;

o filling bicycle and trail network gaps within three miles of stops and stations;

e integrating trail connections with transit;

e providing shelters, transit tracker information and seating at stops and stations;
e providing bicycle amenities at transit centers such as repair stations and lockers;

e providing pedestrian and bicycle protected crossings at stations and stops where appropriate,
including secured, covered bicycle parking or Bike and Rides at stations and stops;

e allowing bicycles on board transit and exploring the use of apps to let bicycle riders know if a
bus or train has bicycle space available;

e locating transit stops and stations on bicycle and pedestrian maps, integrating biking, walking
and transit on trip planning tools (e.g., Get There Oregon, TriMet’s Trip Planner);

e co-locating bike and scooter sharing facilities at transit stations to improve active
transportation connections;

¢ linking modal systems in regional and local transportation plans; and

e reducing the amount of parking near stations by managing or pricing existing spaces and
reducing the number of spaces that developments near transit are required to provide a safer,
more active transportation-oriented environment near stations. The Climate Friendly and
Equitable Communities (CFEC) rules require many cities in the region to reduce or eliminate
parking requirements and manage or price parking in areas with high levels of transit service.

Explore new ways to improve connections to high frequency transit

Advances in technology have given rise to new transportation services that make it easier for
people to share vehicles and have the potential to work alongside transit to significantly extend
the range and convenience of car-free trips in the region. Many of these options, including ride-
hailing and bike, e-bike, scooter, and car sharing, are available and widely used in certain parts of
the region. These new services can help bridge the gap for first and last-mile high frequency and,
particularly, high capacity transit access. There are several actions that Metro and its
transportation agency partners can take to improve connections and interactions between shared
mobility and transit.

e Ensure designated transit streets are designed and managed to prioritize transit and shared
travel. Ride-hailing and e-commerce delivery vehicles are using an increasing amount of curb
space in some congested areas. Agencies can manage the curbside to prioritize ride-hailing
services carrying more than one passenger and avoid conflicts with transit vehicles.

3-118
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



e Dedicate space for shared mobility at transit stations. Accommodating bike share stations or
pods of car share vehicles at transit stops makes it easy for transit riders to use these options.
Setting aside space for pickups and drop-offs near stations can make it more convenient for
people to access options to transit, as well as improve safety by reducing conflicts between
modes. At stations with parking, reserving premium spaces for carpools or shared vehicles
can provide an incentive for travelers to share trips instead of driving alone.

e Coordinate with shared mobility companies to support shared connections to transit stations.
Several communities already fund vanpools or operate shuttles to and from transit stations.
Similarly, public agencies can partner with microtransit or carsharing, pooled ride-hailing
services or dockless bike/scooter sharing companies to subsidize or promote trips via these
modes to transit stations. The City of Portland’s Transportation Wallet, which offers credits
that people can use to pay for transit and a variety of new mobility services to residents in
Parking Districts, affordable housing sites, and new multi-family buildings. These programs
allow people access to a suite of options that can complement existing options or connect
them to transit when the bus or train only covers part of their journey.

e Make it easy to plan, book, and pay for trips that combine transit and shared mobility.
Smartphone apps are now the most common way for people in the Portland region to access
information about their transportation options, and are well-suited to provide the type of real-
time information that people need to coordinate trips using multiple modes while accounting
for potential transit delays, changes in the availability of shared vehicles, and the changing
landscape of new mobility services in the region. TriMet’s Open Trip Planner integrates data
on transit routes, schedules and real-time arrivals and tracking; bicycling and walking travel
times; and shared mobility options so that riders can easily plan multimodal trips using an
interactive map platform optimized for smartphones. Other private travel information apps
offer similar services; transit agencies can make schedule and route information available in
the format that these tools use to allow their services to how up in these apps.

There are two important issues to consider when integrating transit and shared mobility data.
The first is ensuring that third-party apps use that data in a way that supports transit. No matter
how easy-to-use or informative the apps and websites that public agencies develop are, a
significant number of people will get data from third-party apps. The companies that develop
these apps often monetize transit data by showing advertisements for ride-hailing services that
show how much quicker a rider could reach a destination by paying extra for those services.
These advertisements can draw people away from taking transit, and agencies should consider
whether they want to place conditions on the use of transit data by third parties.

The second is maintaining access for the many people who can’t or don’t access apps or make
online payments, which can include low-income people, undocumented people, people with
disabilities, or people with limited English proficiency—in other words, many of the same
travelers who rely on transit. These travelers often need to overcome both cultural barriers (for
example, limited English proficiency and concerns about personal safety when traveling in public)
and technological ones (such as a lack of access to smart phones or data plans that allow for easy

3-119
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



online access to information from anywhere) in order to access the increasing number of online
travel information and shared transportation services.

As tolling and congestion pricing moves forward in the region, discounts or exemptions should be
considered to incentivize multimodal travel behavior and reduce impacts, including exemptions
for public transit and reduced pricing for higher occupancy vehicles such as shuttles, vanpools,
and carpools (Oregon Highway Plan Policy 6.10).

Transit Policy 10. Use technologies to provide better, more efficient transit service, including
focusing on meeting the needs of people for whom conventional transit is not an option.

Transit is a critical option for those in need, the most efficient way to move people along crowded
streets, and the backbone of many communities. It is difficult to imagine a positive future for the
region without it.

In order to make sure that transit thrives, we need to enhance service on high-ridership lines
while piloting new ways to provide transit (like microtransit or using new mobility services to
connect to stations) in communities that are challenging to serve with large buses traveling on
fixed routes.

Our region is home to many people with disabilities who require specialized vehicles and point-
to-point service, as well as people who depend on transit but live in communities where fixed-
route service does not make sense. These people often rely on demand-response transit or
infrequent buses that provide slow service and are costly to operate. Similarly, people commuting
to employment centers in more suburban or exurban areas at the regional edges also often rely on
slower, often infrequent buses or may not be served by existing bus service. The growth in new
mobility technologies include new real-time fleet management and route optimization tools as
well as trip planning services and ride matching services that can help people identify a
transportation service that meets their needs or someone with whom they can share a ride. These
technologies can be used to increase the quality and/or productivity of infrequent or high-cost
services, or to help people find a service that meets their needs when conventional transit isn’t
available to them.

Transit Policy 11. Ensure that transit is affordable, especially for people who depend on transit.

The cost of transportation burdens many households in the metropolitan region and is usually the
second largest share of household costs (after housing). People of color, with limited English
proficiency, with low-income, with disabilities, age 65 or older and 18 or younger are more
transit-dependent and those most affected by transportation costs. It is therefore important to
ensure that transit is affordable, particularly for the riders that need it the most (i.e., riders who
do not have access to cars and low-income households who often have the longest distances to
travel). Ensuring that transit is affordable alleviates the cost of owning automobiles.

C-TRAN and TriMet offer reduced fares for youth, seniors, people on Medicare, and people with
low incomes. Most SMART buses are free - there is a fee for Dial-a-Ride service and for the 1X to

3-120
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Salem which also offers a reduced fare. Broadening these programs to further reduce or even
eliminate some fares or offering other financial assistance that could be applied to costs of fees
would help alleviate cost-burden for those who rely on transit.

One way to do that is by making transit free for youth - a clear community priority identified
during the Get Moving 2020 transportation funding measure process and something C-TRAN has
already done for local service. Research has shown that people form opinions about transit early
on, with early use being a key indicator of ridership in the future. Austin’s Capital Metro free fare
pilot program for K-12 students both boosted ridership and benefited local communities and was
made permanent in 2020.4! Another way is by allowing more groups to qualify for reduced fare
programs. One example being C-TRAN'’s reduced fare program which also extends to refugees,
attendants assisting honored riders and veterans. Revenue impacts of expanding reduced fare or
fareless programs should be examined collaboratively, including identifying funding to offset any
potential loss of revenue.

Reduced fare programs

Removing barriers to acquiring reduced or free transit fares can make it possible for individuals
with limited access to documents, identification, or internet to receive these benefits. Fare
capping, an approach utilized by TriMet’s Hop Fastpass, allows people to pay for a reduced
monthly pass by the ticket rather than all at once up front. Programs like TriMet’s Access Transit,
which provide fares to non-profit and community-based organizations at lower to no cost to
distribute to clients, help to further increase the reach and accessibility of reduced fare programs.
The region should build partnerships with non-profit and human service providers to support
expanding these types of programs, disseminate more information about reduced fare programs
and work through ways in which these programs can be more effective. The City of Portland’s
BIKETOWN for All program is one example of how access to increase integration of free or
reduced fare programs by including students receiving federal aid (FAFSA) and people receiving
food assistance (Oregon Trail Card, SNAP). This should also include advocating in the state
legislature and to the voters to increase, deepen, and sustain long-term funding for programs
which support keeping transit affordable for riders.

41 Capital Metro. May 11, 2020. Free Faires for K-12 Students Now Permanent.
https://www.capmetro.org/news/details/2020/05/11/free-fares-for-k-12-students-now-permanent
3-121
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



3.3.6 Regional freight network vison and policies

WHAT’S CHANGED? One new policy has been added to address findings from the Regional
Freight Delay and Commodities Movement Study. The new policy is focused on addressing the
continued growth in e-commerce and delivery trips and the need for industrial land that provides
for an increase in distribution centers and fulfillment centers.

Informing the regional framework for freight policy is the understanding that the Portland -
Vancouver region is a globally competitive international gateway and domestic hub for commerce.
The multimodal freight transportation network is a foundation for economic activities, and we
must strategically maintain, operate and expand it in a timely manner to ensure a vital and
healthy economy.

The Regional Freight Strategy addresses the needs for freight through-traffic as well as regional
freight movements, and access to employment and industrial areas, and commercial districts. The
Regional Freight Network Concept contains policy and strategy provisions to develop and
implement a coordinated and integrated freight network that helps the region’s businesses attract
new jobs and remain competitive in the global economy. The transport and distribution of freight
occurs via the regional freight network, a combination of interconnected publicly and privately
owned networks and terminal facilities. The concept in Figure 3-32 shows the components of the
regional freight system and their relationships.

Figure 3-32 Regional freight network concept

3-122
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Intermodal Main N Pipeline NRY

Connector Roadway
Roadway Main and
Connector Branch Rail
? r' ‘
. l I
Man'ne 2040 I
Terminal Genten

- j r [
B i
Intermodal I

Rail Yard | Reload Facility
\ 4

[
« | v

< Industrial >
Area

! A
Pipeline .
<= Terminal Airport

r
A 4 ‘

Rivers, mainline rail, pipeline, air and truck routes and arterial streets and throughways connect
the region to international and domestic markets and suppliers beyond local boundaries. Inside
the region, throughways and arterial streets distribute freight moved by truck to air, marine and
pipeline terminal facilities, rail yards, industrial areas and commercial centers. Rail branch lines
and heavy vehicle corridors connect industrial areas, marine terminals and pipeline terminals to
rail yards and truck terminals. Pipelines transport petroleum products to and from terminal
facilities.

3.3.6.2 Regional freight network policies

The Regional Freight Network Policies reflect the policy framework of the Regional Freight
Strategy. Specific actions that Metro, in partnership with cities, counties, agencies and other
stakeholders can take to implement the policies are identified in Chapter 8 of the Regional Freight
Strategy.

Policy 1 Plan and manage our multimodal freight transportation infrastructure using a
systems approach, coordinating regional and local decisions to maintain seamless
freight movement and access to industrial areas and intermodal facilities.

Policy 2 Manage the region’s multimodal freight network to reduce delay, increase reliability
and efficiency, improve safety and provide shipping choices.

3-123
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Policy 3 Better integrate freight issues in regional and local planning and communication to
inform the public and decision-makers on the importance of freight and goods
movement issues.

Policy 4 Pursue a sustainable multimodal freight transportation system that supports the
health of the economy, communities and the environment through clean, green and
smart technologies and practices.

Policy 5 Protect critical freight corridors and access to industrial lands by integrating freight
mobility and access needs into land use and transportation plans and street design.

Policy 6 Invest in the region’s multimodal freight transportation system, including road, air,
marine and rail facilities, to ensure that the region and its businesses stay
economically competitive.

Policy 7 Eliminate fatalities and serious injuries caused by freight vehicle crashes with
passenger vehicles, bicycles and pedestrians, by improving roadway and freight
operational safety.

Policy 8 Adapt future freight system investments to emerging technologies and shifts in
goods movement, including the emergence of e-commerce and automated delivery
systems.

Freight Policy 1. Plan and manage our multimodal freight transportation infrastructure systems
approach, coordinating regional and local decisions to maintain seamless freight movement and
access to industrial areas and intermodal facilities.

A comprehensive, systems approach is central to planning, managing, and using the region’s
multimodal freight transportation infrastructure. This approach provides a strong foundation for
addressing core throughway network bottlenecks, recognizing and coordinating both regional
and local decisions to maintain the flow and access for freight movement that benefits all.

The transport and distribution of freight occurs via a combination of interconnected publicly and
privately-owned networks and terminal facilities.

Freight Policy 2. Manage the region’s multimodal freight network to reduce delay and increase
reliability and efficiency, improve safety and provide shipping choices.

The 2005 Cost of Congestion to the Economy of the Portland Region Study reported that our
region has a higher-than-average dependency on traded sector industries, particularly
computer/electronic products, wholesale distribution services, metals, forestry/wood/paper
products, and publishing; business sectors that serve broader regional, national, and international
markets and bring outside dollars into the region’s economy.

These industries depend on a well-integrated and well-functioning international and domestic
transportation system to stay competitive in a global economy.

3-124
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



As an international gateway and domestic freight hub, the region is particularly influenced by the
dynamic trends affecting distribution and logistics. As a result of these global trends, U.S.
international and domestic trade volumes are expected to grow at an accelerated rate. The value
of trade in Oregon is expected to double by 2040, to $730 billion.42 The region’s forecasted
population and job growth - an additional 917,000 residents and 597,000 jobs to be added
between 2010 and 204043 - along with the associated boost in the consumption of goods and
services are significant drivers of projected increases in local freight volume.

This policy is the first step to improved freight and goods movement operations on the existing
system and includes preservation, maintenance and operations-focused projects and associated
planning and coordinating activities. It focuses on using the system we have more effectively.

[t is critical to maximize system operations and create first-rate multimodal freight networks that
reduce delay, increase reliability, maintain and improve safety and provide cost-effective choices
to shippers. In industrial and employment areas, the policy emphasizes providing critical freight
access to the interstate highway system to help the region’s businesses and industry in these
areas remain competitive. Providing access and new street connections to support industrial area
access and commercial delivery activities and upgrading main line and rail yard infrastructure in
these areas are also emphasized.

In order to carry out an overall policy of reducing delay and increasing reliability, it will be
necessary to expand the types of programs and amounts of funding for freight transportation
infrastructure to adequately fund and sustain investment in our multimodal freight transportation
network in order to ensure that the region and its businesses stay economically competitive.

Freight Policy 3. Better integrate freight issues in regional and local planning and communication to
inform the public and decision-makers on the importance of freight and goods movement issues.

To gain public support for projects and funding of freight initiatives, and to better inform elected
officials when making land use and transportation decisions, a program that informs the public is
required.

Potential freight impacts should be considered in all modal planning and funding, policy and
project development and implementation and monitoring. This also means better informing the
region’s residents and decision makers about the importance of freight movement on our daily
lives and economic well-being. Metro will work with its transportation partners to improve the
level of freight information available to decision-makers, the business community and the public.

Freight Policy 4. Pursue a sustainable multimodal freight transportation system that supports the
health of the economy, communities and the environment through clean, green and smart
technologies and practices.

42 Federal Highway Administration, Freight Analysis Framework version 3.4, 2013

43 Metro 2040 growth forecast. Represents forecasted population and jobs within 4-county area (Multnomah, Clackamas, Washington and Clark
counties).

3-125
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



This policy deals with traditional nuisance and hot spot issues associated with “smokestack and
tailpipe” problems, but it also recognizes the many current contributions and new opportunities
for the evolving green freight community to be part of the larger environmental and economic
solution set required in these times, including reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

It is important to ensure that the multimodal freight transportation network supports the health
of the economy and the environment by pursuing clean, green and smart technologies and
practices. Details of the most promising innovations and technologies have been developed as
part of the Regional Freight Strategy’s Technology for Sustainable Freight Transport, as identified
in Chapter 6 of the strategy.

Freight Policy 5. Protect critical freight corridors and access to industrial lands by integrating freight
mobility and access needs into land use and transportation plans and street design.

This policy targets land use planning and design issues that can affect the ability of freight, goods
movement and industrial uses to live harmoniously with their neighbors. Freight---sensitive land
use planning includes everything from long-range aspirations for freight and industrial lands to
short-term and smaller scale design and access issues.

It is important to integrate freight mobility and access needs in land use decisions to ensure the
efficient use of prime industrial lands, protection of critical freight corridors and access for
commercial delivery activities. This includes improving and protecting the throughway
interchanges that provide access to major industrial areas, as well as the last-mile arterial
connections to both current and emerging industrial areas and terminals.

Freight Policy 6. Invest in the region’s multimodal freight transportation system, including road, air,
marine and rail facilities, to ensure that the region and its businesses stay economically competitive.

This policy focuses on planning and building capital projects and developing the funding sources,
partnerships, and coordination to implement them.

[t is important to look beyond the roadway network to address needs of the multi-modal and
intermodal system that supports our regional economy. As described in the Regional Freight
Strategy, freight rail capacity is adequate to meet today’s needs but as rail traffic increases
additional investment will be needed in rail mainline, yard and siding capacity.** Whenever right-
of-way is considered for multiple uses such as freight rail, passenger rail and trails, analysis must
include long-term needs for existing freight and freight rail expansion to ensure that necessary
future capacity is not compromised.

In addition, navigation channel depth on the Columbia River continues to be the limiting factor on
the size, and therefore the number, of ships that call on the Portland-Vancouver Harbor.

44 port of Portland, Port of Portland Rail Plan, 2013.

3-126
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Freight Policy 7. Eliminate fatalities and serious injuries caused by freight vehicle crashes with
passenger vehicles, bicycles and pedestrians, by improving roadway and freight operational safety.

This policy and the potential design solutions focuses on addressing the issue of eliminating
fatalities and serious injuries due to freight vehicle crashes with passenger vehicles, bicycles and
pedestrians.

Freight Policy 8. Adapt future freight system investments to emerging technologies and shifts in
goods movement, including the emergence of e-commerce and automated delivery systems.

This policy is focused on addressing the continued growth in e-commerce and delivery trips and
the need for industrial land that provides for an increase in distribution centers and fulfillment
centers.

3.3.6.3 Regional freight network classifications and map

The Regional Freight Network map, shown in Figure 3-33 applies the regional freight network
concept on the ground to identify the transportation networks and facilities that serve the region
and the state’s freight mobility needs. Click on RTP Regional Network Maps for online zoomable
version of map. [LINK TO BE ADDED]

The regional freight network has a functional hierarchy like that of the regional motor vehicle
network. To show the continuity of the freight system in both Oregon and Washington state, the
map shows the freight routes in Clark County, north of the Columbia River and rural freight routes
designated by Clackamas and Washington counties that connect to the regional freight network
designated within the metropolitan planning area boundary. The Regional Freight Network map
also includes six inset maps (brown dotted line boxes) that focus on the key intermodal facilities
(marine terminals, rail yards and pipeline facilities) and rail lines to highlight the importance of
the rail network and have better visibility for the rail lines.

The different functional elements of the regional freight network are:

e Main line rail - Class I rail lines (e.g., Union Pacific and Burlington Northern/Santa Fe).

¢ Branch line rail - Non-Class 1 rail lines, including short lines (e.g., Portland and Western
Railroad).

e Main roadway routes - Designated freights routes that are freeways and highways that
connect major activity centers in the region to other areas in Oregon or other states throughout
the U.S., Mexico and Canada.

¢ Regional Intermodal Connectors - Roads that provide connections between major rail yards,
marine terminals, airports, and other freight intermodal facilities, and the freeway and
highway system. Marine terminals, truck to rail facilities, rail yards, pipeline terminals, and air
freight facilities are the primary types of intermodal terminals and businesses that the tier 1
and NHS intermodal connectors are serving in the Portland region. An example of a NHS
intermodal connector is Marine Drive between the marine terminals (Terminal 5 and 6) and I-
5, which in 2014 had over 4,100 average daily trucks. Another NHS intermodal connector is
Columbia Boulevard between I-5 and OR 213 (82nd Avenue) which had over 3,500 average

3-127
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



daily trucks and is a vital freight connection between the air-freight terminal at Portland
International Airport and both I-5 and I-205. These Regional Intermodal Connectors are
carrying many more trucks than the typical road connectors on the Regional Freight Network
map. They are also of critical importance for carrying commodities that are being exported
from and imported into the state and across the country.

o Roadway connectors - Roads that connect other freight facilities, industrial areas, and 2040
centers to a main roadway route.

e Marine facilities - A facility where freight is transferred between water-based and land-based
modes.

e Rail yards - A rail yard, railway yard or railroad yard is a complex series of railroad tracks for
storing, sorting, or loading and unloading, railroad cars and locomotives. Railroad yards have
many tracks in parallel for keeping rolling stock stored off the mainline, so that they do not
obstruct the flow of traffic.

Figure 3-33 Regional freight network map

3-128
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



’r’ ‘\‘ :uun‘
0 % < <4 . . .
» d E ANE E ======= Main Railroad Railyards
a a a ; g > S . ) .
. . @ . . | % £ = I »w Branch Railroad Marine Facility
Y o, R 2 f .
\ ] . > G Eo thPlaj === Main roadways Employment
2o \ % ===+ Main roadways proposed Industry
z, IS E
=iz / \
I SN 3 = Intermodal connector Urban Centers
L= /N TNy = 205 i
S C N TN E 5 L/ Roadway connector ~ ------ County lines
S IPNG S \\\\ "‘, 3. T : :
X N V I = ===+ Roadway connector proposed | i Metropolitan Planning Area
2 » -———=
N . ) —--3
@ 1 . \,o*\”w : Main roadways outside MPA | - Urban growth boundary
PN < P TTIRAN s Connector outside MPA
Sy, e, ' .,:.l"— \§G ‘w\“ ‘\___‘__:::n...
Ll "'-uu-.--.....u-‘..-- : 30'.*;' >, : \'- =-__NF \\.::..\.'....
% St S &y, i S
[ Y t: Johns ’:Q}VZ r© @ B TGt
(23 N “ra, 3 1 o\
5 26 7 'n\:&f of?;é: < Z { \\ 205
@ f— r .‘3\0 o, Qrd St d, N
S /' : : I : 3 0 v ; (] o)
‘%ﬂ P - </ |( ",\‘gr- - ! ,—l" ! Mo e D ':‘ﬁ'. > 3 .
- N <! : : e, = P
o < —_——— ML _'\J_ .'_\ %, 24 5 S 7
| i ~ \ - sy AW = > oy
® Beth N N ’ = 5 " g
N & ethany 1 L = maal
0,3 R = Ny N
! } <5 1% ' Z “‘P'; \.'-—L—— & o <
/0 o N |\~| \_ 4 1 A ee = ap = = =
Nies Cre . 3 CNEW, } B el 3N,
ok @ -, ; NS 5| -
T e e B S ~ G «CorhedRdl_Orenco rR P L O3 S AN\ thow 49 & N ! =
T\ForestGrove'| & TN S ity Ced - R rdove M3 WY e AU z D e | RO ale s 84
1 = S Corelius | T¥wA i Tanasbourne/Amber edar ! CSERD elop b, T J NE B g > Fairview, 5 i
o ~~APger —olnelius... Hillsboro Vil B L N s o Y |
T \]Pacific Aye“é = o Glen ! ‘, 1.. o NSl EBNTside St Wood Village—= ! i
N U W J A Sunset o S0esRd Portla L e BN oy £ A g
e “‘, 1 : b ~ \\‘ Cr-T,G‘ﬂSit N : = - g J l_/’/_]
\ £ \f\/‘—— 2 . ELS Wthorn§ Blvd teol, o > . = —l ;' 37
| 57 Sew | 5 28 1 fFision St |< (
. ! N s = —— —3 o\ !
\;% ((, i .: 3 SE Powell Blvd | § @ NW Divjsion St NEQivisjon St‘~ i
7 ¢ — 1 |
oY h w vl 7 FRoweg L |'
A A 2 WipNe | h |
v, VS ‘9,9 < 3 B I
25 % = oLefpts L se Foster Rd - ' {
v v 2 o ~ 5 | i
S L g S = 0 Pleasant = o 1
LR g 5‘11 Valley = ?E Lo
S SW Unger Rd 3 TS, i L ot [ MULTNOMAH co ] ™ &
= § R @ SR
= dd wn & \
= = 7. Miljyaukie 5
&, N =1 - > V.
'y 2 = - o eo\‘\% S '%«
N T AN g N LKl T A .. Clackamas
£ ~ - —_ Lo
O,;’ N\ o h % %}‘ ':nﬁs
N KA = & ) Lalke: ==
e 5050y ’ £ S Oswego %)
ey 8 ||'|':",", 3 S . . < 7 =
Vaugh S = King/City > 2 e
néay / = ¢6) in =
- y e m
%, ) - 7 i s e
£ . $ < NE Bropdwoug's X YT T LN i L o) ' yd
5 ) s NE Weidiérst Wl ! e 2, 2 SN S - g
: AN ~ S ! 3 A X E | y
NW Lovejoy St = N7 % 5 - 3 \ —
joy = 2 - :1‘("(( 9 *, ; “_‘,----- 84 ' \ (v//é Gladstone /J :I ‘:
=5 s B (A = 1 — 2 e
= =R R X o O | = \, Z — 1ot
S 8 & > p® L &) Oregfi g |
Burng;, = = o <% { West Ligin?Ci TN
Msige st S & o N3 N ieCity e ~7 o
% é E-Cotich St EBurmside S ’.’)%J} '..“'_ I/‘\—’ v~ - \\;I—:
_______ ~ L ol
W dlge, % i BRI %,
¢ . y 3 ’ 7
W . Bop s g % eq‘/@/L_ L 1. Q‘\(_,\ %4
¢ 2 Z Z Sl Il ¢
§, é Portlap@ SE Hawthorne Blv cz)o o :‘u- ’ ’l/__ / S /.\\,’(‘; @’ ;,I_‘ ': \\M ujp - A
S $ | a ; | . Y= ) '
8 5 E Heihito, ; (l-'/rﬂ A g W 2/ 0@
¢ 0 Wistst 15 J ‘ : @ i v
2\ %) % Wistst " :o ‘S \ ) ) i Ry D A\ DOR | N
QU oS Qe 5\
5] > e Ne Ot gﬁ,; Ny YO W
E 3 P = < 9 ~ iR S\w D A
al N ¢\ o = > 3 | ) AR
e @ }((QE ol \ S I.g - S AN CRd
L L Sbou, M \ 2 3o AETRCKAMAS ca” N 213 I
gl e = r"ﬁ 0 N =3 4 MARION cg™ " - e
< = 5 4 N\ & , R i
) 8 ; :.% ﬁ_{, _\?',év?\ \ ; ///;//\ A :o | NEA ngldge Rd 1 ‘.ﬁ 7~ .
5 =W SN oo £ ' =
3 | 0 $ e O e etro 0



1. North Portland Marine Terminals

u,
Ly, W,

""l, o ’
.., Mancoliver
N ‘r

= v,

(1]

SN LITY
A7 [

o> 75 (s

...
%,
klgl?'.'

o= T~ CL T
MiT=ARK “oxan
UTigno Vancduve
Ay C\o‘ ~

NE 122nd Ave JF

.
g:'.‘.w i

>
LICEY |

Interstate Ave

3. Portland International Airport

~~———-——___ CLARK cO
MULTNOMAR Co~~———-~

30

NE Martin Luther King J

-
.

]
lile : /

--......

|
Satewa ‘
i L Hﬂ"

(1}
"n......--------------,,,_

.
SLETY T
-

N

Sdnsef

zf‘s’
Ve

O
ot

%}

g

(\
/

LT
1
£

ﬂﬂ"‘—------:é!ljiglﬂlunl

/

(dotted lines are proposed projects
and do not identify specific alignments)

== Main Railroad

«« Branch Railroad

o=+ Main roadway routes
===> Roadway connectors

- Freight routes outside
MPA boundary

=== |ntermodal connectors

Marine Facility

[ Railyards

Urban centers

[ Industrial area

Employment area
—--— County lines

____ ! Urban growth boundary

"1 Metropolitan planning
area

SW Mui y Blvd




3.3.7 Regional active transportation network vision

WHAT’S CHANGED? No changes to the policies in this section are proposed. Information on the
Regional Active Transportation Plan was moved from the Bicycle Policies section into this section,
under 3.3.7.1.

A complete and welcoming active transportation network allows people of all ages, abilities,
income levels and backgrounds to access transit, walk and bike easily and safely for many of their
daily needs. The Regional Active Transportation Network vision was developed in the Regional
Active Transportation Plan and starts with the understanding that integrated, complete and
seamless regional pedestrian, bicycle and transit networks are necessary to achieve local and
regional transportation goals, aspirations and targets.

Active transportation is human-powered transportation that engages people in healthy physical
activity while they travel from place to place. People walking, bicycling, the use of strollers,
wheelchairs /mobility devices, skateboarding, and rollerblading are active transportation.

Active transportation supports public transportation because most trips on public transportation
include walking or bicycling. Many people in the region incorporate walking, transit and riding a
bicycle into daily travel. The regional active transportation network concept focuses on the
integration of bicycle, pedestrian and transit travel and connecting local pedestrian and bicycle
networks into a coordinated and complete regional network.

The regional active transportation network is composed of pedestrian-bicycle districts and
regional bikeways and walkways that connect to and serve high capacity and frequent transit.
Pedestrian-bicycle districts are urban centers and station communities. The following ten guiding
principles were developed in the Regional Active Transportation Plan to guide development of the
regional active transportation network.

1. Bicycling, walking, and transit routes are integrated and connections to regional centers
and regional destinations are seamless.

2. Routes are direct, form a complete network, are intuitive and easy-to-use and are
accessible at all times.

3. Routes are safe and comfortable for people of all ages and abilities and welcoming to
people of all income levels and backgrounds.

4. Routes are attractive and travel is enjoyable.

5. Routes are integrated with nature and designed in a habitat and environmentally sensitive
manner.

6. Facility designs are context sensitive and seek to improve safety and balance the needs of
all transportation modes.

7. Increases corridor capacity and relieves strain on other transportation systems.

3-129
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



8. Ensures access to regional destinations for people with low incomes, people of color,
people living with disabilities, people with low-English-proficiency, youth and older adults.

9. Measurable data and analyses inform the development of the network and active
transportation policies.

10. Implements regional and local land use and transportation goals and plans to achieve
regional active transportation modal targets.

Developing the regional active transportation network according to the guiding principles will
provide a well-connected network of complete streets and off-street paths integrated with transit
and prioritizing safe, convenient and comfortable pedestrian and bicycle access for all ages and
abilities. This will help make walking and bicycling the most convenient and enjoyable
transportation choices for short trips and provide access to regional destinations, jobs, regional
and town centers, schools, parks and essential daily services. It will also increase walking and
bicycling access for underserved populations and ensures that the regional active transportation
network equitably serves all people.*>

3.3.7.1 Regional Active Transportation Plan (2014)

The Regional Active Transportation Plan and the Designing Livable Streets and Trails Guide
provides recommended design guidance for trails/multi-use paths, and low volume and high-
volume streets. The appropriateness of each design is based on adjacent motor vehicle speeds and
volumes. It may be difficult on some arterial streets at present to provide a comfortable facility.
The RTP expects that these routes will eventually improve for bicycling, through better designs
and lower auto speeds accompanying a more compact urban form. In the short-term the RTP
recognizes the need to continue to build ridership through providing low-volume routes for
bicycle travel in the region.

Arterial streets provide direct routes that connect to 2040 Target Areas. Cyclists tend to travel on
arterial streets when they want to minimize travel time or access destinations along them. Oregon
State statutes and administrative rules establish that bicycle facilities are required on all collector
and higher classification arterial streets when those roads are constructed or reconstructed.

Low-volume streets often provide access to 2040 Target Areas as well as residential
neighborhoods, complementing bicycle facilities located on arterial streets. Though these routes
are often less direct than arterials, attributes such as slower speeds and less noise, exhaust and
interaction with vehicles, including trucks and buses, can make them more comfortable and
appealing to many cyclists. Recent research suggests that providing facilities on low-volume
streets may be a particularly effective strategy for encouraging new bicyclists, which helps
increase bicycle mode share in the region.

4> Underserved populations include low income, low-English proficiency, minority, solder adults (over 65) and youth (under 18).

3-130
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Regional trails typically provide an environment removed from vehicle traffic and function as an
important part of the larger park and open space system in a community and in the region. Trails
often take advantage of opportunities for users to experience natural features such as creeks,
rivers, forests, open spaces and wildlife habitats, as well as historic and cultural features, with
viewpoints and interpretive opportunities. In the highest use areas, regional trails should be
designed to provide separation between bicyclists and pedestrians.

Off-street facilities also complement on-street bikeways, providing access to 2040 Target Areas
while providing a travel environment with fewer intersecting streets than on-street bikeways,
thereby allowing for faster travel times. This makes off-street facilities especially attractive for
serving long distance bicycle trips. Similar to low-volume streets, off-street facilities provide an
environment more removed from vehicle traffic, which is appealing to families and new or less
confident cyclists.

3.3.8 Regional bicycle network concept and policies

WHAT’S CHANGED? No changes to the policies in this section are proposed.

Residents in the region have long recognized bicycling as an important form of transportation.
The RTP elevates the importance of supporting bicycle travel because of the mobility, economic,
environmental, health, and land use benefits it provides.

Sidewalks, trails, bicycle facilities and transit cannot achieve their full potential if they are treated
as stand-alone facilities - they must be planned and developed as part of a complete network.

Section 3.08.140 of the Regional Transportation Functional Plan requires that local jurisdictions
include a bicycle plan to achieve the following:

e an inventory of existing facilities that identifies gaps and deficiencies in the bicycle system;

e an evaluation of needs for bicycle access to transit and essential destinations, including direct,
comfortable and safe bicycle routes and secure bicycle parking;

e alist of improvements to the bicycle system;

e provision for bikeways along arterials, collectors and local streets, and bicycle parking in
centers, at major transit stops, park-and-ride lots and institutional uses; and

e provision for safe crossing of streets and controlled bicycle crossing on major arterials.
3.3.8.1 Regional bicycle network concept

The regional bicycle network concept includes:

e Abicycle parkway in each of the region’s Mobility Corridors within the MPA boundary to
provide transportation options in these corridors.

3-131
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



e Anetwork of bicycle parkways spaced approximately every two miles, that connect to and/or
through every town and regional center, many regional destinations and to most employment
and industrial land areas and regional parks and natural areas (all areas are connected by
regional bikeways, the next functional class of bicycle routes).

e Anetwork of regional bikeways that connect to the bicycle parkways, providing an
interconnected regional network. Local bikeways connect to bicycle parkways and regional

bikeways.

e Regional bicycle districts. Regional and town centers and station communities were identified
as bicycle districts, as well as pedestrian districts.

Figure 3-34 shows the components of the regional bicycle network concept and their relationship
to adjacent land uses. A region-wide bicycle network would be made up of on-street and off-street

routes with connections to transit and other destinations.

Figure 3-34 Regional bicycle network concept

Town

]

| [
8

ndustrial
Area

Regional
Center

J
v

X

Town
Center

Arterial streets

—I—‘—-I—I—I—I—l—l— Regional trail

3-132

Regional bicycle parkway

Low-volume streets and

bike boulevards

Bike-transit facility

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



3.3.8.2 Regional bicycle network policies

This section describes the policy framework of the Regional Bicycle Network Concept. Specific
actions that Metro, in partnership with cities, counties, agencies and other stakeholders can take
to implement the policies are identified in the Regional Active Transportation Plan.

Policy 1 Make bicycling the most convenient, safe and enjoyable transportation choice for
short trips of less than three miles

Policy 2 Complete an interconnected regional network of bicycle routes and districts that is
integrated with transit and nature and prioritizes seamless, safe, convenient and
comfortable access to urban centers and community places, including schools and
jobs, for all ages and abilities.

Policy 3 Complete a green ribbon of bicycle parkways as part of the region’s integrated
mobility strategy.

Policy 4 Improve bike access to transit and community places for people of all ages and
abilities.
Policy 5 Ensure that the regional bicycle network equitably serves all people.

Bicycle Policy 1. Make bicycling the most convenient, safe and enjoyable transportation choice for
short trips of less than three miles.

The average length of a bicycle trip in the region is about three miles.4 Nearly 45 percent of all
trips made by car in the region are less than three miles, and 15 percent are less than one mile.#”
With complete networks, education, encouragement and other programs, many short trips made
by car could be replaced with bicycle or pedestrian trips, increasing road capacity and reducing
the need to expand the road system. Technologies such as bike-sharing provide a new toolkit to
make bicycling even easier for short trips.

In 2011, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) established a formal policy on the eligibility of
pedestrian and bicycle improvements for FTA funding and defined the catchment area for
pedestrians and bicyclists in relation to public transportation stops and stations. The policy
recognized that bicycle and pedestrian access to transit is critical and defined a three mile
catchment area for bicycle improvements and a half mile catchment area for pedestrian
improvements. 48

Bicycle travel holds huge potential for providing transportation options that can replace trips
made by auto, especially for short trips. Bicycle trips made in the region for all purposes grew by

462011 Oregon Household Activity Survey.

472011 Oregon Household Activity Survey. Vehicle trips by length for trips wholly within Clackamas, Multnomah, Washington and Clark
Counties.

48 Final Policy Statement on the Eligibility of Pedestrian and Bicycle Improvements Under Federal Transit Law
3-133
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



190 percent since 1995.49 When bicycling is safe, comfortable, convenient and enjoyable, people
have the option of making some of those short trips by bicycle.

Actions to implement this policy can be found in Chapter 12 of the 2014 Regional Active
Transportation Plan.

Bicycle Policy 2. Complete an interconnected regional network of bicycle routes and districts that is
integrated with transit and nature and prioritizes seamless, safe, convenient and comfortable access
to urban centers and community places, including schools and jobs for all ages and abilities.

A well-connected bicycle network does not have gaps and is comfortable and safe for people of all
ages and abilities. Regional bicycle routes connect to and through urban centers increasing access
to transit, businesses, schools, and other destinations. Regional trails and transit function better
when they are integrated with on-street bicycle routes. Wherever possible, routes should connect
to and through nature and include trees and other green elements. Designing the network for
universal access will make the regional bicycle network accessible and comfortable for all ages
and abilities. The Regional Transportation Functional plan requires local Transportation System
Plans include an interconnected network of bicycle routes.

Bicycle Policy 3. Complete a green ribbon of bicycle parkways as part of the region’s mobility
strategy.

Regional bicycle parkways form the backbone of the regional bicycle system, connecting to 2040
activity centers, downtowns, institutions and greenspaces within the urban area while providing
an opportunity for bicyclists to travel efficiently with minimal delays. In effect, the bicycle
parkway concept mainstreams bicycle travel as an important part of the region’s integrated
mobility strategy. This concept emerged from work by the Metro Blue Ribbon Committee for
Trails as part of the broader Connecting Green Initiative in 2007-09 and further developed in the
Regional Active Transportation Plan adopted in 2014.

Key experiential aspects that bike parkways embody:

e A green environment with natural features such as trees or plantings (some will already be
green, while others will be made greener as part of bike parkway development)

o Comfort and safety provided by protection from motorized traffic

e Large volumes of cyclists traveling efficiently with minimal delays

The bicycle parkway also connects the region to neighboring communities, other statewide trails
and natural destinations such as Mt Hood, the Columbia River Gorge, and the Pacific Ocean.

Figure 3-35 illustrates this policy concept in the context of the regional bicycle parkway concept.

492011 Oregon Household Activity Survey.

3-134
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Figure 3-35 Bicycle parkway concept

Town
\ Center
L
=
l_l
- 1 1
Industrial Regional L Town
g Area T Center TTTTT\ Center
1 |
Y
PLACE PLACE
Activity center Greenspace
(2040 Centers, station communities, (Regional and local parks and natural areas)
employment areas and industrial
areas)
Green ribbon
Community | | | | | (Enhance green experience along route)
(Neighborhoods)
Gateway hub
. Institution (Connection to neighbor communities, state
(Schools, colleges and hospitals) network and natural areas outside the region)

A bicycle parkway serves as a green ribbon connecting 2040 activity centers, downtowns, institutions and
greenspaces within the urban area.

The experience of the cyclist will be optimized to such a high level that people will clearly know
when they are riding on a bicycle parkway. The specific design of a bike parkway will vary
depending on the land use context within which it passes through. The facility could be designed
as an off-street trail along a stream or rail corridor, a cycle track / protected / physically
separated bicycle lane along a main street or town center, or a bicycle boulevard through a
residential neighborhood. Priority treatments will be given to cyclists (e.g., signal timing) using
the bike parkway when they intersect other transportation facilities, and connections to/from
other types of bicycle routes will be intuitive. The Regional Active Transportation Plan provides
design guidance on the development of bicycle parkways.

Bicycle Policy 4. Improve bike access to transit and to community places for people of all ages and
abilities.

3-135
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Public transit and bicycling are complementary travel modes. Effectively linking bicycling with
transit increases the reach of both modes. It allows longer trips to be made without driving and
reduces the need to provide auto park-and-ride lots at transit stations.

Transit provides a fast and comfortable travel environment between regional destinations that
overcomes barriers to bicycling (hills, distance, and streets without bikeways); while bicycling
provides access from the front door to a transit station, is faster than walking and can sometimes
eliminate the need to transfer between transit vehicles.

A key component of the bike-transit connection is bicycle parking at transit stations and stops.
Bike-transit facilities provide connections between modes by creating a “bicycle park and ride.”
Both TriMet and SMART currently provide bicycle parking and storage at many transit stations
and stops. TriMet, with input from regional stakeholders, has developed Bicycle Parking
Guidelines. The guidelines consider station context and regional travel patterns and are focused
on three major factors for parking: location, amount and design. The guidelines will help TriMet,
and local jurisdictions determine the appropriate location, size and design of large-scale bike-
parking facilities, including Bike-Transit Facilities. The Regional Transportation Functional Plan
requires that local transportation system plans evaluate the needs for bicycle access to transit,
including secure bicycle parking.

Bicycle Policy 5. Ensure that the regional bicycle network equitably serves all people.

All people in the region, regardless of race, income level, age or ability should enjoy access to
complete and safe walking, bicycling and transit networks and the access they provide to essential
destinations, including schools and jobs. Currently the regional active transportation network is
incomplete in many areas of the region, including areas with low-income, minority and low-
English proficiency populations. Transportation is the second highest household expense for the
average American; providing transportation options in areas with low-income populations helps
address transportation inequities. Future planning, design and construction of the networks must
include consideration of the benefits and burdens of transportation investments to underserved
and environmental justice populations. In addition to infrastructure, technologies such as bike
sharing increase opportunities for all residents to bicycle. In Portland, the “Biketown for All"”
program provides discounted memberships, free helmets and bike safety education to low-
income people.

3.3.8.3 Regional bicycle network functional classifications and map

This section describes the regional bicycle network functional classifications shown on Figure
3-36, the Regional Bicycle Network. Click on 2023 for online zoomable version of map.

The regional bicycle network is composed of on street and off-street bikeways that serve the
central city, regional centers, town centers, and other 2040 Target Areas, providing a continuous
network that spans jurisdictional boundaries. Figure 3-36 is a functional classification map

3-136
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



illustrating how regional bicycle routes and districts work together to form a comprehensive
network that would allow people to bike to transit, schools, employment centers, parks, natural
areas and shopping.

The regional bicycle network has a functional hierarchy like that of the regional motor vehicle
network. Figure 3-36 provides a vision for a future bicycle network; for a map of current bicycle
facilities in the region, refer to Chapter 4.

The different functional elements of the regional bicycle network are:

Regional Bicycle Parkways are spaced approximately every two miles in a spiderweb-grid
pattern, and connect to and through every urban center, many regional destinations and to
most employment and industrial land areas, regional parks and natural areas. Each Mobility
Corridor within the urban area has an identified bicycle parkway. Bicycle parkways were
identified as routes that currently serve or will serve higher volumes of bicyclists and provide
important connections to destinations.

Regional Bikeways provide for travel to and within the Central City, Regional Centers, and
Town Centers. Regional bikeways can be any type of facility, including off-street trails/multi-
use paths, separated in-street bikeways (such as buffered bicycle lanes) and bicycle
boulevards. On-street Regional Bikeways located on arterial and collector streets are designed
to provide separation from traffic.

Local Bikeways are not identified as regional routes. However, they are very important to a
fully functioning network. They are typically shorter routes with less bicycle demand and use
than regional routes. They provide for door-to-door bicycle travel.

Bicycle Districts (and Pedestrian Districts) include the Portland Central City, Regional and
Town Centers and Station Communities. A bicycle district is an area with a concentration of
transit, commercial, cultural, educational, institutional and/or recreational destinations where
bicycle travel is intended to be attractive, comfortable and safe. Bicycle districts are also areas
with current or planned high levels of bicycle activity. All bicycle routes within bicycle
districts are considered regional and are eligible for federal funding. Bicycle facilities in
bicycle districts should strive to be developed consistent with the design guidance described
in Chapter 9.

Which areas are designated as bicycle districts should be considered further in future Regional
Transportation Plan and ATP updates. For example, areas around bus stops with high ridership
should be evaluated as potential bicycle districts (light rail station areas are currently identified as
bicycle districts); some Main Streets on the regional network may be considered for expansion as
bicycle districts, as well as other areas

o Bike-Transit Facilities are often referred to as Bike & Rides and are generally located at
transit centers and stations and provide secure, protected large-scale bike parking facilities.
Some facilities may include additional features such as showers, lockers, trip planning and
bicycle repair. These facilities have been built at transit centers and MAX stations throughout
the region- including in Wilsonville, Hillsboro, Beaverton, Portland and Clackamas County.

3-137

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Bicycle Parkways and Regional Bikeways typically follow arterial streets but may also be located
on collector and low-volume streets. On-street bikeways should be designed using a flexible
“toolbox” of bikeway designs, including bike lanes, cycle tracks /protected/physically separated
bicycle lanes, shoulder bikeways, shared roadway/wide outside lanes and bicycle priority
treatments (e.g. bicycle boulevards).

3-138
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Figure 3-36 Regional bicycle network map

3-139
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



NE 117th Avq

Bicycle Parkway

\ h Plain Bl
) A - - - ‘ T e lanned Bicycle Park
% NE5 = === Planned Bicycle Parkwa
ejl0 ¢ » o ot ds Py . oY y
() Regional Bikeway
205 - === Planned Regional Bikeway
- < Vancouver Employment/Industrial
(6) 2 ) ) Central city; Regional center; Town center
= —2\, 2
= ' =
Z 2 —--— County boundar
= : 5 - o ty Y
=\ -~ T~ __I'Urban growth boundary
| - \‘\‘\ ————— . .
{ 1 - ! | Metropolitan Planning Area
c? Lol '= s, ’ =
[} o N \\C 2
8 ! S M0y g Camas
o \ L o g M i
s P o S L0 & o™= SESth g
4 = b 7N I S/ " “mi »
i@ . T e N4 XK il T S Ng < — 14) Washougal
> — b - N
O/ ’\ e ! ... L Q < () ard& \
© L '® @ o ® W (e o o, I 2 -, . ~
> 1\ G I ot g = = { <4 _ ~
% T AN o* { ~afe = 7 o 3 \
(2 :_ =N | ‘ "- .'.; = N - \\
oo Ll ¢ o ~ 7 S \
/ ) A g ap A ° \
[
: L ‘;w"‘ ’6, E:omell ) Nj . IE 2 ;E g 84 l[\\\‘~\‘7 -
" f‘_J?'n\——‘) 2 Orepco . 9l N N\ - h;l oy ,H@[l'lfﬂ; ot~ S ! ﬁr@
X} = Cornelius gt &y, & | - Tandsbourne/Amber D lo e > 5 - i
T~ = Basel; T~ i Hillsboro o é[en ortlelndeF Lo Iﬁ 1 :
> . eling § S " §oet2 s\ 8} ) Byrnside St —r I
\__/ v} . $ %o L , - - = ’{éﬁ‘ V@tle‘N'@@ SE SIFR BT :"O(.k Q)d ! /7
\ o~ g % .~ p’ L -
n @ :-2@' ry . 3 a: Y, Tr@nght....'e%\ld; . y, Mddison St SE ihgton 3 -
\ R S “4 el ? AT Ell .. o S/ Y4 SHHwhoRE Bivd © 7] g
“ N 3 < ,J \‘\1/ ?. ”R 8 ¢ ‘. o : g o D’]' 2 !
\ RN ~\ S0 S Al‘OhCl 4 oRd - | E Divislon S 1
1 1Y N ol 0! 8) o 30T k] |
Vo3 [ - ” 0 e B S ! ow d S i
7 4 [u Fo s L = 5 2 \ - (
~ o' . - o
‘:I\“\'%,:‘ N ‘ot e |} —Beqverion Raleig '.. < & l 9 i
A I ? Bhills) peyeea™ T [ 205, :
A ., Y ; - = 2 (210 ! Hillsdale yz: o \r [-enis =R i
2 L ¢ s 2l | W3 i = ! i
g 4 _ "f 2 ‘ B I "
'-S .-zl .""W : = ] [> e e r—l
SW Unger Rd &S . = : ! A S\INgma bt = R H - _ = MULTN N £ Blyfy
- 9 S\NQ? \ = WOS'}lmgt@'n ‘W@'S“t‘P@)rtLOnd'." & Xy Y P = ACK == “—’**”—.—>—iﬁ)\z——]—-——— _________
2 T S ! \'. A\ \\ g & Z 3 \ —— N
. : N h f& “(43‘\\ — | - w o 1 : ==
. ap ook - L -o\’ Milweltl $ : I
X = @ %) o QRS 4 P i |
. P i, L "4 =~ I
. a;q = /l/@,p |gC|rC| — ,5__,‘\.,_ 0'7. Clackamas, lb..( . h F;—_J :
Wy % Q S I | b 6 ofes ¢ = =53 : SE Cb\mpton Rd [ =%,
% . \ A | Ub Rd2 . Sées E Juijoy . N 5 y
004 b, L c.\\\ - 5 Qs Kruse ) s . AN <<‘0
CANTANN \ N E . = -1 | %
ponchones’ 3 . : = .. : I Jow e 199 | T U NS ffsunmygsdc 4 __L_Jy | ] /"0"0
e < . = CROC . . : ) o | icakelGrove Lake Qswego \| &/ 1 T 2 =
708 ALEN S W e —KingiCity SWDLrhog) A i : . &
\Joughn St XN i 2] e Py 4 V4 5
| \ g2 ol H . P 8 A g =
“\ <'/ b UTRTOT IO &° S - T, yet
Z % N - NEBroadway = f 4 ] » = /,ars)g W @Pio”eerBlvd
§ "\‘ = eitter 3t o 3 " = .T.ml'@“t’i'n o : '-' = ‘LGQ L
e NS L = /" b ok SWNubbrg STt ¥ e R J 3 Glddstone? ~
NV Lqvejoy St = 3 \ '.“ e ° S .~ - PRS0 0'5(’8“ 3 g‘ SW Borlg/® g %! “’re 7@#{@&9
= = ) ‘o4 SV FaalatinShet A=t T A \B. Rt
&2 = < NI %o %\qﬁ - ~*he,[wood % : : ZJ, J/‘ ! 3 '_l,.\
W8 s 58 g L . 4 5 | ~--
“Nide st = N ¥ T I N | R R )
/o fhsiaedh - E Birhsi e S M-
OJIESiGeE AL o riside St i I = i oS
W WO~ Pl o T P 5 7R O
W, s, o Pogtland a—u i y [ - . __
$ or 3 a1 [ b e nal/ ! | e
7 @ 4 < | % igsenRdJ 1 1
| 2 SRR S 7] \
/ /A =P 5 I< S I b .
A E IC & 'O N e ™ - i
- s = Ij L 18 \ g "—‘; 1
S (] (& 3 b SE Hawthprae Blvd S - =g N 3 % |
. S oS = o T Sy 3 |
N /- = j Yy ! : IJ N : ' A
ES 3 Eg 0/ = = . )
Fo0 | | | g7 = Wik,
et Foncar. |2 | - | RANSPORTATIC
TR e 8 lo o '
% \ 0
[Hharise oot oY e {
Lo~ ( o\ % (= C i Lo » A
; 7 N\ = = X S
L i j \ 2 = Y
3 ¥ o o ~Nowel \ ) six al
) Ve . A 2, v S (o)
) S i 2 ~4 \YAMHILLco % 5 N SN
Lo (5 = WARION co > @ i~ Bridge Rd & NN S LI
B -\l s Metro D8ta Resourge Center \ i 2 &
>3 el -_—
0 O
= ource: Metro 0

boregonmetro.gov



3.3.9 Regional pedestrian network concept and policies

WHAT’S CHANGED? No changes to the policies in this section are proposed.

Walking contributes to a healthy lifestyle and supports vibrant local economies. Every trip begins
or ends with at least a short walk. Transit in particular is integrated with walking. However, while
everyone walks, walking is not a safe or convenient option for everyone in the region. Traffic
crashes involving people walking often end in a death or severe injury and pedestrian deaths are
rising.

Many streets are not ADA-compliant, sidewalk gaps remain on busy arterial roadways and along
bus routes, safe places to cross the street can be few and far between, and lack of street lighting
and other gaps make it dangerous and difficult to walk, especially for older adults, children and
people with disabilities. In marginalized communities, lack of safe walking routes can be worse.

In the Regional Pedestrian Network Vision, walking is safe and convenient. Section 3.08.130 of the
Regional Transportation Functional Plan requires that local jurisdictions include a pedestrian plan
to achieve the following:

o Sidewalks along all arterials, collectors and most local streets.

e Direct and safe pedestrian routes to transit and other essential destinations.

e Provision of safe crossings of streets and controlled pedestrian crossings on major arterials.
e Safe, direct and logical pedestrian crossings at all transit stops where practicable.

e Crossings over barriers such as throughways, active rail-lines and rivers provided at regular
intervals following regional connectivity standards.

e Regional multi-use trails and walking paths are completed.

3-141
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



3.3.9.1 Regional pedestrian network concept

The Regional Pedestrian Network Concept describes a well-connected grid of streets and multi-
use paths connecting to and intersecting through regional and town centers, employment areas,
station communities, parks and natural areas and connecting to transit and essential destinations.

Figure 3-37 shows the components of the regional pedestrian network and their relationship to
adjacent land uses.

Figure 3-37 Regional pedestrian network concept

( Town
Center

u \E N

=
3~ =
Industrial
Area Regional \ Town
Center S
*\//
Transit/mixed-use corridor Local streets
Arterial streets
Regional transit sto
RN B g p

1 Regional trail

The 2040 Growth Concept sets forth a vision for making walking safe, convenient and enjoyable to support walking as a legitimate travel choice
for all people in the region. The Regional Transportation Plan supports this vision with a region-wide network of on-street and off-street
pedestrian facilities integrated with transit and regional destinations.

3-142
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



3.3.9.2 Regional pedestrian network policies

Regional pedestrian policies help achieve the Regional Pedestrian Network Vision. Specific actions
that Metro, in partnership with cities, counties, agencies and other stakeholders, can take to
implement the policies are identified in the Regional Active Transportation Plan.

Policy 1 Make walking the most convenient, safe and enjoyable transportation choice for
short trips of less than one mile.

Policy 2 Complete a well-connected network of pedestrian routes and safe street crossings
that is integrated with transit and nature that prioritize seamless, safe, convenient
and comfortable access to urban centers and community places, including schools
and jobs, for all ages and abilities.

Policy 3 Create walkable downtowns, centers, main streets and station communities that
prioritize safe, convenient and comfortable pedestrian access for all ages and
abilities.

Policy 4 Improve pedestrian access to transit and community places for people of all ages
and abilities.

Pedestrian Policy 1. Make walking the most convenient, safe and enjoyable transportation choice for
short trips of less than one mile.

In addition to being the most basic form of transportation, walking is an important form of
exercise and is the most popular recreational activity in Oregon.>° The average length of a walking
trip in the region is about half a mile. Today 15 percent of trips made in an auto are less than one
mile. 51 Many of these trips could be made by walking if it were convenient, safe and enjoyable.
Fully implementing regional and local plans will help make this possible.

In 2011, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) established a formal policy on the eligibility of
pedestrian and bicycle improvements for FTA funding and defined the catchment area for
pedestrians and bicyclists in relation to public transportation stops and stations. The policy
recognized that bicycle and pedestrian access to transit is critical and defined a three-mile
catchment area for bicycle improvements and a half mile catchment area for pedestrian
improvements. 52

Ensuring all gaps and deficiencies on the regional pedestrian network have projects identified in
the Regional Transportation Plan and including wayfinding, street markings, lighting and other
elements that enhance connections and make the pedestrian network consistent, integrated, and
easy to navigate are key elements to implementing this policy. The Regional Transportation

50 Oregon's 2017 Statewide Outdoor Recreation Survey shows that 83 percent of Oregonians walk on local
streets and sidewalks for recreation, making this the most popular recreational activity in the state.
512011 Oregon Household Activity Survey.
52 Final Policy Statement on the Eligibility of Pedestrian and Bicycle Improvements Under Federal Transit Law
3-143
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Functional Plan includes specific requirements in the Pedestrian and Transit System Design
sections.

Actions to implement this policy can be found in Chapter 12 of the 2014 Regional Active
Transportation Plan.

Pedestrian Policy 2. Complete a well-connected network of pedestrian routes, including safe street
crossings, integrated with transit and nature that prioritize seamless, safe, convenient and
comfortable access to urban centers and community places, including schools and jobs, for all ages
and abilities.

A well-connected high-quality pedestrian environment facilitates walking trips by providing safe
and convenient access to essential destinations. The Regional Pedestrian Network provides the
plan for well-connected pedestrian routes and safe street crossings to provide access to transit
and essential daily needs. The Regional Transportation Functional Plan requires that local
Transportation System Plans include an interconnected network of pedestrian routes.

Section 3.08.130 of the Regional Transportation Functional Plan includes the requirements to
provide a well-connected pedestrian system, and Oregon State statutes and administrative rules
establish that pedestrian facilities are required on all collector and higher classification streets
when those roads are built or reconstructed. Exceptions are provided where cost is excessively
disproportionate to need or where there is an absence of need due to sparse population or other
factors.

Priority should be given to filling gaps and providing safe crossings of the busiest streets with
transit and other essential destinations. Deficient facilities in areas of high walking demand are
considered gaps.

Pedestrian Policy 3. Create walkable downtowns, centers, main streets and station communities
that prioritize safe, convenient and comfortable pedestrian access for all ages and abilities.

All centers and station areas are Regional Pedestrian Districts. The central city, regional and town
centers, main streets and light rail station communities are areas where high levels of pedestrian
activity are prioritized. In these areas, sidewalks, plazas and other public spaces are integrated
with civic, commercial and residential development. They are often characterized by compact
mixed-use development served by transit. These areas are defined as pedestrian districts in the
RTP.

Walkable areas should be designed to reflect an urban development and design pattern where
walking is safe, convenient and enjoyable. These areas are characterized by buildings oriented to
the street and boulevard-type street design features, such as wide sidewalks with buffering from
adjacent motor vehicle traffic, marked street crossings at all intersections with special crossing
amenities at some locations, special lighting, benches, bus shelters, awnings and street trees. All
streets within these areas are important pedestrian connections. Sections 3.08.120 (B) (2) and
3.08.130 (B) list requirements for pedestrian districts and new development near transit.

3-144
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Pedestrian Policy 4. Improve pedestrian access to transit and community places for people of all
ages and abilities.

Public transportation use is fully realized only with safe and convenient pedestrian and bicycle
connections, especially safe crossings and facilities that connect stations or bus stops to
surrounding areas or that provide safe and attractive waiting areas. Improving walkway
connections between office and commerecial districts and surrounding neighborhoods provides
opportunities for residents to walk to work, shopping or to run personal errands. Buildings need
to be oriented to the street and be well connected to sidewalks. Safe routes across parking lots
need to be provided. This reduces the need to bring an automobile to work and enhances public
transportation and carpooling as commute options. The Regional Transportation Functional Plan
requires that local Transportation System Plans include an evaluation of needs for pedestrian
access to transit for all mobility levels, including direct, comfortable and safe pedestrian routes.

Pedestrian access along transit-mixed use corridors is improved with features such as wide
sidewalks, reasonably spaced marked crossings and buffering from adjacent motor vehicle traffic.

Pedestrian Policy 5. Ensure that the regional pedestrian network equitably serves all people.

All people in the region, regardless of race, income level, age or ability should enjoy access to the
region’s walking and transit networks and the access they provide to essential destinations,
including schools and jobs. Currently the regional pedestrian network is incomplete in many areas
of the region, including areas where people with low-incomes, people of color and people with
language isolation live. Transportation is the second highest household expense for the average
American; providing transportation options in areas with low-income populations helps address
transportation inequities.

Section 3.08.120[C] of the Regional Transportation Functional Plan specifies that the needs of
youth, seniors, people with disabilities and environmental justice populations including people of
color and people with low incomes must be considered when planning transit.

Regional and local planning, design and construction of the networks must include consideration
of the benefits and burdens of transportation investments to underserved and environmental
justice populations and continue to collect data and monitor performance in accordance with
section 3.08.010 of the Regional Transportation Functional Plan.

Investment programs should set priorities for sidewalk improvements to and along major transit
routes and communities where physically or economically disadvantaged populations live.

3-145
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



3.10.3 Regional pedestrian network classifications and map

This section describes the regional pedestrian network functional classifications shown on Figure
3-38, the Regional Pedestrian Network. The regional pedestrian network mirrors the regional
transit network reflecting the important relationship of a complete walking network and transit.
Frequent transit routes and regional arterials comprise regional pedestrian streets. Regional trails
are also part of the regional pedestrian network. Centers and station areas are regional pedestrian
districts and include all streets of all functional classifications and paths within their boundaries.

The regional pedestrian network has a functional hierarchy like that of the regional motor vehicle
network. Figure 3-38 provides a vision for a future pedestrian network; for a map of existing
pedestrian facilities in the region, refer to Chapter 4.

The different functional elements of the regional pedestrian network are:

e Pedestrian Parkways are generally major urban streets that provide frequent and almost
frequent transit service (existing and planned). They can also be regional trails.

e Regional Pedestrian Corridors are any major or minor arterial on the regional urban
arterial network that is not a Pedestrian Parkway. Regional trails that are not Pedestrian
Parkways are classified as Regional Pedestrian Corridors.

e Local Pedestrian Connectors are all streets and trails not included on the Regional
Pedestrian Network.

o Pedestrian Districts are the Central City, Regional and Town Centers and Station
Communities shown on the Regional Pedestrian Network Map. A pedestrian district is an area
with a concentration of transit, commercial, cultural, institutional and/or recreational
destinations where pedestrian travel is attractive, comfortable and safe. Pedestrian Districts
are areas where high levels of walking exist or are planned. All streets and trails within the
Pedestrian District are part of the regional system.

Figure 3-38 applies the regional pedestrian network concept on the ground, illustrating how
different regional pedestrian facilities work together to form a comprehensive network that
allows people to walk to transit, schools, employment centers, parks, natural areas and shopping.
Click on RTP Regional Network Maps for online zoomable version of map. [LINK TO BE ADDED]

Figure 3-38 Regional pedestrian network map

3-146
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



e

e, B
- ULTNOMABM.CO

\ E:
» » \ = grouth Plan Bl —— Pedestrian Parkway
' = NEF .
~n0j[0 [ —~no[< [ - o \ % wessl  ----- Planned Pedestrian Parkway
\ ,
~ Orchards %, i )
AN B —— Pedestrian Corridor
75 . .
s1= s> 208/ ) ... Planned Pedestrian Corridor
e > s )
i P PoRcqtver Employment/Industrial
— j=3
N ' % . «
(6) E '~ 2 Central city; Regional center; Town center
= g r-——71 . .
= ! 3 ' ! Metropolitan Planning Area
—\_ XA _
h Ty "~ 7 Urban growth boundary
ol ¢ \\
=22 3 £ =
g ARA, \-S \ g T AR Y
S = ‘-%@Ohm 7 YTty o Camas
7 \’EE\ N\ ¢ Z M’q\/\/\ e
4/ ; k/&,\\ X TN = h S Co \\ W et AV SEGthAVe
4 = /,’( Y " g s Washougal
=} \ o@° Red | ” = - &
/‘?ro A 5 TR @00 i( £ -
% =
ap Q\IV
Q [
S )/ z
[\ =
Brodd IL| Uvood s
) .. ) S - |
TNET S o =
n@I E Burnfide St
ton St
[
= E Divi
e ;1 — SE PowdtBlvd E
- B X \ ;‘I
. i P 1
/I}/ Lol {1l T ! 3 \\ N
= T ) (219 ! Hillselalerye: x2 =SAlS T R
o> =! | ‘ 'y 'y e
=) @ . o I o
3 n § 1) .
| S

s
SW Unger Rd :23 1 i y T T ACKAMASICe T —
- s \ashington West-Reriland Lo ckamasico
Sguane , ) {
N gl . . H
.. H
~ (99 ! j
L W/ ¢
= urf%‘schous
a ()
=
5
__,‘:F !1*
<L N Nl '.. N -
T o) HEEE \ :_z_i [Eidter L
| [ d
7'| -tdverodfot 3 2222 EE B 2 Nubhrg ST
5 dH g = = e
' = 8
LEL : N1 X B
A 7 .
H =1 | I :- ; h ' ] ' @
\ 7 1 HBurhord q
l.\ % .. - .y =3 Y. | \y I J‘
NG ¢ ST %,
% Lo 5 = T O‘QI'VO
o T %
4 | D —oH S S/ﬁ
4 POwlAnc—— < i cen & ¢ \
o~ \ §> - e = iy %’ 7‘%of [
% na © %,
o8 it Uy, Z . : , YN A
] //70,& ) i — . ¢! 2
A - 0 = ' Wilsonville | N AD
3 1] o h N
T 1] Jor-X ] Hancog, S ilsonville®d _J-' - U - U
th - M8 lo K -
] SQ(\‘\ oY
7 S =z O|u » A
' : N = s
: i $, j \\ @ Eii o
) z ) Qe Y \ 2, 20
- ‘YAMHILL co % >j§ =§vﬁ~ - ()
=4 ~ v
ims MARION co - ! JBridge Rd
—




3.3.10 Transportation System Management and Operations Vision and Policies

WHAT’S CHANGED? Changes are recommended to the RTP TSMO policies to align with the 2021
TSMO Strategy, adopted by JPACT and the Metro Council in 2022. Changes also are made to only
include the references to transportation demand management (TDM) and parking policies as they
relate to TSMO. Pricing, TDM and parking related policies have been moved to other policy
sections in Chapter 3 of the RTP and are noted in those sections. The Oregon Transportation
Planning rule, as amended through the Climate Friendly Communities (CFEC) rulemaking in 2022,
was also reviewed and referenced.

The region’s Transportation System Management and Operations (TSMO) vision, concept and
policies reflect that the transportation system represents a significant public investment in capital
infrastructure that must be well-managed. Concerns about the social, environmental and financial
cost of larger-scale capital projects, such as building new lanes, lend support for first managing
the current system. Management can restore reliable travel and provide flexibility for travelers to
use a variety of travel options. OAR 660.012, the Oregon's Transportation Planning Rule (TPR),
stipulates that coordinated land use and transportation plans should increase transportation
choices and make more efficient use of the existing transportation system through transportation
system management and demand management.

The 2021 TSMO Strategy incorporated the policies and regionally desired outcomes of the 2018
RTP. The 2021 TSMO Strategy updated the region’s ten-year strategy, continuing an innovative,
holistic, multimodal and cost-effective approach to managing the region's transportation system.
An effective TSMO Strategy prioritizes optimization of the existing transportation system by
improving business practices and collaboration, encouraging behavior changes through
transportation demand management and using technology to understand and manage how the
system operates.

3.3.10.1 Transportation system management and operations vision
Regional stakeholders share a vision for TSMO:

Collaborate to provide reliable, agile, and connected travel choices so that all users are free from
harm, and to eliminate the disparities experienced by Black, Indigenous, people of color and
people with low incomes.

This vision reflects broad participation in planning for operations. TSMO participation is
multidisciplinary, and requires collaboration across several disciplines, including planners,
engineers, emergency responders, demand management specialists, operators, and maintenance
professionals. The region leads by aligning efforts with six TSMO Strategy goals:

e Provide a transportation system that is reliable for all users.

3-147
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



e Connect all people to the goods, services and destinations they need through a variety of
travel choices.

e Collaborate as effective stewards for the transportation system.

¢ Eliminate the disparities in the transportation system experienced by Black, Indigenous,
people of color and people with low incomes.

o (reate a transportation system where all users are free from harm.

e Manage the system to be agile in the face of growth, disruptions and changing technology.
3.3.10.2 Transportation system management and operations concept

The concept for TSMO was further refined by stakeholders to establish objectives, performance
measures and actions. The 21 actions in Table 3-11 show the range of regional work that connects
TSMO work to achieving outcomes aligned with the RTP.

Table 3-11 Examples of TSMO and investments in four strategic areas

Concepts, Capabilities, and Infrastructure

e Inventory and manage regional signal and Intelligent Transportation System
Communications Infrastructure

e Manage transportation assets to secure the network

e Continue freight technology and Intelligent Transportation Systems deployment

e Facilitate ground truthing of emerging technologies

e  Establish a Regional Transit Operators TSMO Group

e Unify and standardize fare subsidies for transit and Mobility on Demand

e Develop an Intelligent Transportation System travel time information data collection and
distribution plan for Regional Disaster Preparedness Organization regional emergency
routes

e Create continuous improvement process for existing and new signal systems and related
performance

o Deploy regional traveler information systems

e Implement integrated corridor management and mainstream into corridor planning

e Create a TSMO safety toolbox

e Build and use a TSMO Toolbox to connect gaps in bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure

Planning
e Develop a Mobility on Demand strategy and policy
e Pilot Origin-Destination data to prioritize TSMO investments
e Participate in regional public outreach to assist in guiding, listening and learning through
TSMO focused conversations
e Update the regional ITS Architecture

Listening & Accountability

e Track and prioritize TSMO investments for and with Black, Indigenous, people of color and
people with low incomes
e Create a community listening program

3-148
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Data Needs

Improve TSMO data availability to aid in traveler decisions and behavior

Establish TSMO performance measures baseline.
Explore new TSMO data sources

3.3.10.3 Transportation system management and operations (TSMO) policies

Policy 1

Policy 2

Policy 3

Policy 4

Policy 5

Manage the transportation system for the effective and efficient use of publicly
funded transportation assets while supporting mobility, multi-modal reliability,
racial equity, safety and reductions in carbon emissions.

Take actions from the regional TSMO Strategy by supporting a program that
conducts planning for operations, develops new operational concepts, assesses
future needs for capabilities, identifies gaps in data and establishes a process for
listening and accountability.

Optimize operations for reliability and mobility by coordinating and advancing
operator capabilities with shared tools and interoperable technologies.

Provide real-time traveler information data across devices and at physical locations
that is comprehensive in serving the needs of people, businesses and freight
movement.

Improve incident detection and clearance times on the region’s transit and motor
vehicle networks to reduce the impact of crashes on the transportation system.

TSMO Policy 1. Manage the transportation system for the effective and efficient use of publicly
funded transportation assets while supporting mobility, multi-modal reliability, racial equity, safety
and reductions in carbon emissions.

Consistent with RTP policy dating back to the 1990s, the region will apply transportation system
management to make the best use of existing infrastructure to delay or avoid large, higher-cost

3-149

Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



and potentially disruptive construction projects. This policy is applied using regional values and
desired outcomes for mobility, reliability, racial equity, safety and reduction in greenhouse gas
emissions.

TSMO is done at the regional level through collaboration to identify and scale up practices and
technologies that are effective at reducing vehicle miles traveled and crashes while increasing
reliability, connectivity, traveler information and investments that support racial equity. These
technologies also record data from the transportation system that supports effective operations,
planning and investments. Performance measures and targets for system management support
the RTP Congestion Management Process, Climate Smart Communities and the 2021 TSMO
Strategy.

Each step of implementing the strategy will use the TSMO Equity Tree (a branching diagram),
working up through a series of equity-focused questions. The last step is to evaluate the plan or
action be accountable. Each evaluation will ask “Did the outcomes help or hurt communities of
color?” and suggests next steps depending on the answer. TSMO Policy 2. Take actions from the
regional TSMO Strategy by supporting a program that conducts planning for operations, develops
new operational concepts, assesses future needs for capabilities, identifies gaps in data and
establishes a process for listening and accountability.

In 2010, the region completed a planning process to adopt the first ten-year strategy for
implementing TSMO. This formalized a regional TSMO Program to convene stakeholders and
support priorities with resources and partnerships. Metro convenes TransPort, the subcommittee
of Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee (TPAC). TransPort plays a major role to advance
the TSMO Strategy through monthly meetings for cooperative planning and deployment of
technologies and related procedures. Broad TransPort participation is encouraged. This regional
forum supports operators of greater Portland’s roads, highways, transit, shared-use mobility
services, transportation demand management, congestion pricing, parking management, freight,
active transportation facilities and digital infrastructure. Metro and TransPort form additional
work groups as needed.

Figure 3-39.shows where some of these actions and investments are envisioned to be applied in
the region to improve mobility, safety, efficiency, and reliability of the system.

3-150
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



TSMO Policy 3. Optimize operations for reliability and mobility by coordinating and advancing
operator capabilities with shared tools and interoperable technologies.

Transportation operators meet to share perspective on their “capability maturity” with regard to
their agency performance in operations and an overall performance of regional partners working
together. By reaching agreement on standards and procedures, transportation operators share
and advance capabilities. The end goal is to reach optimization across multiple categories such as
actively managing the transportation system, responding to incidents, participating in planning,
measuring performance, building a workforce with a culture of technical understanding and
leadership, and engaging in broad collaboration. In many cases, optimization requires formal
agreements, such as data sharing, that stem from regional policies. In other cases, the
conversations prepare for emerging technologies as well as retiring outmoded technology.

TSMO Policy 4. Provide real-time traveler information data across devices and at physical locations
that is comprehensive in serving the needs of people, businesses and freight movement.

[Narrative to be added]

TSMO Policy 5. Improve incident detection and clearance times on the region’s transit and motor
vehicle networks to reduce the impact of crashes on the transportation system.

TSMO Strategy is aligned with the region’s Safety Strategy to eliminate severe crashes (crashes
with major injuries or fatalities) by 2035. Crashes on the transportation network cause non-
recurring congestion, and fatal crashes result in longer clearance and recovery times with
sustained impacts. The 2021 TSMO Strategy aims to reduce harm, and reduce the non-recurring
congestion created by incidents, by improving the safety of the system overall. 53

53 “Ridesharing” in this context means traditional not-for-profit carpooling or vanpooling, not Transportation
Network Companies such as Uber or Lyft.
3-151
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



3.11.4 Transportation system management and operations map

The map for regional TSMO reflects Policy 1, manage the transportation system. Actively
managing the transportation system requires Intelligent Transportation Systems equipment along
throughways and arterials such as variable message signs that can alert travelers with
information or advise safe speeds. A variety of sensors help automate this process, but operators
also utilize cameras to solve problems remotely or deploy responders to an incident. A digital
infrastructure transmits data to and from transit and road operators who use central, shared
software to improve multimodal movement and safety at intersections with traffic signals. In
partnership with Portland State University, regional partners share data that can then be accessed
by academic researchers, planners, consultants and the public. In partnership with Oregon DOT
and the private sector, the region’s operators also use crowdsourced data. Crowdsourced data
helps evaluate reliability and also can inform current travel conditions and report crashes. Not all
of this can fit into one map.

Another map will be created in a parallel effort with the 2023 RTP update. TSMO stakeholders will
define system completeness as part of the Regional Mobility Policy. Stakeholders will map key
corridors, referring to existing conditions and gaps that need to be addressed. This map will be
used in Transportation System Plan updates and amendments.

Figure 3-39 Transportation system management and operations map

3-152
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



\
\‘\ = @® Operations center
rt i
. We Fo! lain Blvd ¢ Advisory speed sign
- . . . - - A \ NE 58th St @ Ramp meter
= N rchards
‘@ N\ AN M Variable message sign
NG, TN AN 0) NE 44th St
‘§\é‘\0 \ /’ \ mm= Throughway management
SIS N\ \ 7 N . ~ 205 Arterial management
L N , ~ = NEg . .
! < A s B Gncouver | © “ner py =+ Rail transit
| 3 >\ / ~ — Planned Rail transit
= o
@ 2 N\ S Employment/Industrial
=2 \ % Central city; Regional center; Town center
o
z 5 ; 5 — - - County boundary
i S § '-_-' Urban growth boundary
| ~ ) PR . .
- . — ~_ il \ I Metropolitan Planning Area
i 4 ~ &5 -
Lol =
' \ ’L{co Camas
AR
r——,—--L,_, =7 % Co \\ \NG““Ne
1 | ! ~ D) SE 6th 4
L, L NG ve 4a) Washougal
(c) a ~ "~ 1\4
ot/vd‘ ?\ < \\ = \\\
G | 1 % NE gy T~ - :
A T ~— "\ \
X i - e Bethan =2, e, - \ \
2 ) —~— .;lb Dy ; - 4/@ - \
TR s 2 g % !
\.:\’eé CreekR, N ) Orenco 3 ‘ E 2 84 % b .l T
Gal = SO - ~ L, (=] ' - o S S ﬁ\ e
- I D S z/ i L“*‘ch,em?\\’?"‘:.r ) " - Weidler § H' ollywood oi S ®-o-® Troutdale ' 84
5 e TN F Hi ‘ ‘ 1 4 Ak Sk ¥ x Gafeway w Eairview N '
'« Forest.Grove - g—=Cofnelius ‘ S s H'L;._leoroMH’ Tanasbieugne/Amber CedarMill ! Lo r]%?’”% o'y ’E‘ . *“0 0= Wood-Village ) :
- N £ T 2 b H L side St
e 1 = O Gle > o] QN Buriksi 0% d E-Couct 4 Q0 H 14 ! -
\ & SN A0 ™, .‘Sunset | RET (oo SEWSIGoT ST+ brmmtstRoekwood ¥ Iy
NSy @ A ) e B \ﬁ\‘_‘ A & ’ %ngit . © - T SEStark $t ¥ K
|| ~ SR \—\r/,‘ v, - ~Uedl "MWQW % SE Howthol e Blvd - ;,:g >’G\r’resl']@m | :_\:/
) < d 3 B ‘95 R o shy J
\ s ‘\—\'L/' \(\l, f ‘S‘E/e%‘\s) s L | el ¥ % Z!|__SE Division St = 75&" 4T :
-~ J o, % > n
(SN LR - P Aloha Q Qoﬂ‘éo(\ (8) ! 57 .J. - le Bl 2 ® MNE-Diagision St N i
VA 1 ) i S ® « w = )
R v i - Lo (O 1 & o < olvd o '
< r R . < VAL T Rd o 1y . L N % 1
A & N2 \) * ‘«\\(\g\oﬂ Beaverton Role|g|'n Hills ‘rm *-,c{% & s oL :
<L) @ \ | o S\ Y ¢ - - \= = 2 R ' !
o, 2 0 ] ) : Hillsdale g (2 B SE Foster Rd = o ‘
")9 v i kel b = ) = S I !
2 I~ E b | ) = ) Rleasant g I f
X S 8 4 =2 - N
= A 3 Washington | . 3): ¥ Valley ; : .
SW Unger Rd VAR = ! ] N i _MULTNOMAH co r Ef?lufq?
4 ! = f WesgRortland f _‘\# NAckgmasico TN T T TN T TR ! “‘hfd_"7""’__\\‘:t—_":____'\ ““““““
. | : e Ay ! ) 3 T
- Q> | " f43}\ -+ - o r | | i
ap ; . 2 SN Milwaukie = i -
E S/Pp | = AW Ooc /‘ [ > g | ! [
) ey N Murrat/Scholls . - QA TN & S : o
& | N ] A — - — - L —— AN = L.
M/y@ A = 4 \VF‘ Y )\,((aﬁ‘lg@rd al, & N : SEChmptonRd [ =
) @ | \s ferry, Iy Elub R B ! A -
P 9 o SO Y d Happy Valle N\
g\ é’?‘ = SwS” - yse WO!/ Lake PRY Y ! : Lo
N R -3 2 = _‘! Oswego [~ A —— | 2 ©
%o U =] 5 \E . ‘o 1 . =
LCE <§<</ < S Mol KinG.City—SW burh Lake Grove e & ) s - =
NW-Vertighd | D b , {\8‘@) /\\\ Rt~ ] ! - @
S X ; | fr=~ CaN _o L 2 I /T 264
1 E‘:H ’f: AR I beo Y -| {%/6 1 /’j C*%%.&Ver,’ﬁ \\\,,« - - - - ). ijloneer Blvd
| D < Ao Z3 e ~/ 1 <o
RN ¢ £ am P T N gy
B Ty 1 ¢ 21 . , O, ! RS < Gladstoner, Iy
& || N = -~ l‘~—| e’ T i ’ i ““00 2 A e i 2N ll ]
® T F / ~ SW Fualatin She e West Oreg,@n ——g Lo
3 S [ ai” i s p ] | X ) i ' [
it 7 QiR %i o= ! | Sherwood & \ " Linn, @@ty SN
um i 4 > ~ :
JLHH jﬁiﬁgz.' Hz ”H”‘,_Hj_jp ! 1 :. e N 205 ~" @
7 = <= . g | t i
7] %EF % _____________ . 1 [0} | ~- ¢
u r (o ———— |
e 0 ' a8 I L N B 4 S oWilEmete
- 74 f :‘:H: H‘ﬁ:ﬁ: ! y S ln (’;\' S = S,
—MRd ' il [ YRS %
I Z |2 R , %,
& | zs— | I W OOVT v , LT %
5 , b g i g 42 : < . % 3
SH E 3 R 2 1z )/ ! 7 | 2 » A
/ 1 - )
| ~ N @ / = 0 ,/)/ F e (Y _./V)'V\ll 4 : 29,, '
g | 0 i ille T | i G
j ¢ E Hancog, £ . 7 Wilsonville 1 | ‘?— ) " >OADTA
T v - % .‘3 i < #oville J-! | A . '
AV 2 I Portlend 38 lo S ~ '
" 1 SQ‘\“ 0Y :L\N —— L9 ~r e : »
_ E—‘ ] ) 5 ulg P\ ' g 7~...—_l e A
REss: —1 -2 A A
AT i ] , . Ei< 4 W I.—._J N
3 ’ > g 7\
N o 2 AXtaCkamas co | MR - Dl SN
p JYAMHILL co =3 4 MARION co ) 4 RN ~ o
> MARION co >~ ' <\ | Bridge Rd N 2
o —
0 P Mite ource: Metro, ODO 3/20



3.3.11 Transportation Demand Management Concept and Policies

WHAT’S CHANGED? Metro staff propose adding a new TDM policy section, separated out from
the TSMO policy section, to provide clearer direction for how TDM helps achieve regional policy
and which entities are responsible for delivering TDM programming. Several TDM-related policies
from the TSMO policy section have been moved into this section with refinements.

This proposed new policy reflects the expanded role of Transportation Demand Management
(TDM) in achieving multiple other regional policy outcomes. TDM is referenced as a means of
achieving goals in transportation equity, regional mobility, managing roadway capacity, reducing
greenhouse gas emissions, improving safety and implementing pricing strategies. This policy
section brings clarity to how TDM programs should be delivered to help meet these goals, broadly
defining the various approaches and partnerships required to implement a comprehensive TDM
effort throughout the region.

The Regional Travel Options (RTO) program is led by Metro and supports TDM work in the region
primarily through awarding grants to partners leading outreach and engagement programs. This
methodology has led to successful program implementation in the places and instances where it
has been used. But there remain significant gaps in where TDM is used in the region and limits on
expanding TDM efforts.

The RTO Strategy has established a goal of expanding the number of partners and programs to
support the region’s goals, but clearer policy direction is needed to better define how TDM is to be
implemented in the region and move TDM efforts beyond their current levels.

3.3.11.1 Transportation demand management concept

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) is a series of activities aimed at ensuring people are
aware of, understand and have access to the full variety of travel options available within the
region. Though the region has already done much and continues to work to improve and expand
travel options through capital investments in non-auto modes, the potential exists to increase the
public’s use of these non-SOV modes through TDM investments.

TDM complements and enhances other RTP policy areas by helping ensure our transportation
system is used in a balanced way to maximize our investments. TDM provides information,
encouragement, and incentives to help people make more of their trips safely and comfortably
without driving alone. TDM programs are developed and staffed by professionals trained in
understanding the travel needs of various groups, such as commuters or school children, and
creating methods of helping them make those trips without the need for an SOV trip.

A typical TDM program involves working with a defined group of people that have similar travel
needs or live in a specific place. Trained staff discuss the transportation needs and interests of the
group and provide information and incentives to encourage people to try a new travel mode. This
work can take many forms, from participation in GetThereOregon.org, a statewide website

3-153
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



provided by ODOT and dedicated to facilitating travel options use, to a localized outreach effort
specific to a single housing development.

Active involvement in delivering TDM programming is needed at the state, regional and local
levels. Certain programs are most effective when developed and led by local governments, school
districts, Transportation Management Associations (TMA), employers or community
organizations. Others are better suited to be conducted on a state or regional scale.

TDM is particularly effective when paired with other policies or capital investments. Building new
or improved active transportation infrastructure provides an opportunity for TDM efforts to help
people be aware of and use the new travel options available to them. Complementary TDM
activities should be planned and budgeted for in capital system improvement projects to ensure
people are aware of the new travel options available to them, and to help them create new travel
patterns and habits.

As the region considers roadway pricing and parking management as strategies for reducing auto
trips, TDM is an important component in ensuring that people’s mobility is maintained when
these strategies are implemented. Making people aware of the existent options to paying a toll or
fee can reduce the public’s financial burden and help improve reliability and efficiency of the
transportation network.

A significant portion of the region’s current TDM activities are coordinated through the Regional
Travel Options (RTO) program. This program, led by Metro on behalf of the entire region,
currently coordinates partner activities and provides grant funds for TDM activities throughout
the region. Through the RTO Strategy, the region’s TDM vision, goals, objectives, and needs are
defined. Roles for regional partners are defined, as is the grant funding methodology and criteria.

3.3.11.2 Transportation demand management policies

Policy 1 Develop and refine regional and local TDM policies and implementation and action
plans to help reach climate, mobility and modal targets.

Policy 2 Ensure adequate TDM resources and programming are deployed to meet the public’s
specific mobility needs for employment, education and essential services.

Policy 3 Provide and deliver TDM programming at a variety of scales: state, regional and
local.

Policy 4 Focus TDM efforts on improving access to travel choices and eliminating barriers for
marginalized communities, with a focus on communities of color and people with
low incomes.

TDM Policy 1. Develop and refine regional and local TDM policies and implementation and action
plans to help reach climate, mobility and modal targets.

3-154
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



TDM is a component of numerous federal, state and regional plans, including:
e (limate Friendly and Equitable Communities Rules

e ODOT Transportation Options Plan

o DEQ Employee Commute Options Rule

e Metro Climate Smart Strategies

e Metro Regional Travel Options Strategy

e Metro Transportation System Management & Operations Strategy

e (Congestion Management Process

These plans identify implementation of TDM programs as a part of the actions required for
objectives to be met. Sufficient policy development and planning must be in place so that the roles
and responsibilities of various entities are established and understood. Current local planning is
insufficient in defining how TDM is to be implemented at a local level. And regional TDM planning
is focused primarily on delivering grant funding through the RTO program.

Planning for TDM programs should be expanded and coordinated at the state, regional and local
levels to ensure programs exist and are effective at helping people drive less. For some TDM
programs, implementation at a regional scale is the most cost effective and efficient means of
delivery. Other TDM programming functions best at a local, county or school district scale. A
comprehensive regional TDM effort involves multiple levels of effort coordinated between
government and non-government partners.

TDM Policy 2. Ensure adequate TDM resources and programming are deployed to meet the public’s
specific mobility needs for employment, education and essential services.

TDM programs are most effective when they are tailored to the specific travel needs of a group or
community. The region has moved from a broad-based, one-size-fits all approach to TDM
messaging and outreach, to implementing specific approaches for different travel needs. For
example, helping commuters find other ways to get to work often involves working with
employers to establish programs of information and incentives at worksites. But for Safe Routes
to School programs, an entirely different approach is needed in working with parents and
children to help them see the fun and benefits of being able to safely walk, bike or roll to school.
The region should provide adequate funding, coordination and resources to effectively implement
TDM.

Often, TDM efforts are compromised by a lack of first/last mile connections to transit, or by a lack
of 24-hour transit service and vanpools. Many commuters live outside the region and have no
option other than driving to work. Improvements to the regional transit system, as outlined in the
transit policy section, are needed to improve TDM program effectiveness.

Regional funding for a portion of the region’s TDM actions is provided through the RTO program.
In its current form, the RTO program funds grants to partners conducting TDM activities. A

3-155
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



portion of grant funds are reserved for partners with defined TDM plans and programs to ensure
on-going funding is available. Other grant funds are aimed at pilot or one-time TDM projects, or to
develop partner capacity to plan for and deliver TDM programs on an on-going basis.

ODOT also provides funding to the RTO program to promote and expand use of the
GetThereOregon.org website.

Current funding levels are not sufficient to support an expanded TDM effort throughout the
region. Additional state, regional and local funding will be needed to support these efforts.

TDM Policy 3. Provide and deliver TDM programming at a variety of scales: state, regional and local.

A thorough regional TDM effort entails a variety of programs, at different scales and targeted
towards a spectrum of travel needs. Delivery of these programs is most effective when it is led by
the appropriate organization or government, depending on the program and its purpose.

Creation of TDM policy and ordinances through local TSPs is a successful approach to defining
how TDM programs can be tailored to fit local needs and infrastructure and be coordinated with
regional-scale efforts.

Providing a robust variety of successful TDM programs around the region comes from harnessing
the efforts and expertise of cities, counties, regional and state agencies, as well as non-
governmental organizations (NGO).

Government partners have oversight authority and responsibilities for managing parking and
roadway pricing. Their role in these initiatives put them in a position to also lead complementary
TDM efforts to help the public understand the travel alternatives available and ensure pricing
strategies are implemented to their fullest potential.

Non-governmental organizations (NGOs) have insights and relationships with communities that,
when combined with the capabilities and responsibilities of governments, can lead to more
effective and impactful TDM programming.

TDM Policy 4. Focus TDM efforts on improving access to travel choices and eliminating barriers for
marginalized communities, with a focus on communities of color and people with low incomes.

The negative impacts of auto-centric transportation investments in the region have fallen
particularly hard on BIPOC community members. TDM investments made through a racial equity
focus begin to correct these impacts and improve multiple regional priorities by addressing
known burdens on BIPOC community members in accessing travel options, which includes cost,
personal safety from harassment/bias, and physical access to travel options. TDM efforts should
focus on working with partners to learn together how to adapt and develop programming that is
inclusive of and meets the needs of BIPOC community members.

Implementing meaningful TDM programming in many areas of the region is constrained by the
lack of sidewalks, safe bicycling infrastructure or low levels of transit service. These same areas

3-156
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



are often those with high percentages of BIPOC and low-income residents. Continued focus and
prioritization of improvements in these areas is a key part of ensuring that TDM programs can
benefit everyone in the region.

3.3.12 Emerging Technology Policies

WHAT’S CHANGED? No changes are proposed to this policy. The policy section was moved out of
Section 3.2 as the policy area fits in with the TSMO and TDM policy sections.

Over the past several decades, new developments in technology have begun to reshape the way
that people travel. Over three-quarters of adults now own a smartphone, often including apps that
provide instant access to information on travel choices. Some new services combine smartphones
with social networking, online payment, and global positioning systems to connect people with
vehicles and rides. Most auto manufacturers now offer hybrid or electric vehicles, and the cost of
these vehicles has been falling, giving more people access to clean transportation options. Other
automakers have been working to develop vehicles that drive themselves, which could
dramatically transform our relationship with cars.

The Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) uses the blanket term emerging technology to
encompass all new developments and establishes a set of terms to describe and categorize them,
including:

e Advances in vehicle technology, such as automated vehicles (AVs) that operate independently
of any input from a human driver, connected vehicles (CVs) that communicate with each other
or with traffic signals and other infrastructure, and electric vehicles (EVs) that use electric
motors instead of or in addition to gasoline-powered motors.

o New mobility services that use smartphones and other new technologies to connect people
with vehicles and rides. These services include ride hailing companies that connect
passengers with drivers who provide rides in their personal vehicles; car, scooter, or bike
share that allow people to rent a nearby vehicle for short trips; and microtransit services that
operate vans or small buses, often tailoring schedules and routes to customers’ travel needs.
Traveler information and payment services that help people plan trips and compare different
ways of getting around, get detailed information on their mode of choice, track and share their
trips, and pay for trips.

3.3.12.1 Emerging technology principles

Unlike other aspects of the transportation system, which are largely built and operated by the
public sector, many emerging technology services are currently developed and operated by
private companies. Transportation agencies can work with private companies in a variety of
different ways - including contracting directly with companies and creating regulations that
govern how companies operate - to bring emerging technology services to their communities in a
way that benefits people. This work often happens more in the realm of partnerships and pilot
projects than in the realm of policy and regulation. The principles summarized in Table 3-12,

3-157
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



guide Metro and its partners in identifying companies that share common goals when developing
partnerships and pilot projects.

Table 3-12 RTP goals and corresponding emerging technology principles

RTP goal Emerging technology principle

Economy Emerging technology should create more efficient ways to meet the transportation
needs of local businesses and workers.

Emerging technology companies and users should contribute their fair share of the
cost of operating, maintaining and building the transportation system.

Climate Emerging technology should improve transit service or provide shared travel options
and support transit, bicycling and walking.

Mobility Emerging technology should promote shared trips, decrease vehicle miles traveled
and minimize conflicts between modes.

Safety Emerging technology should reduce the risk of crashes for everyone and protect users
from data breaches and cyberattacks.

Equity New mobility services should be accessible, affordable and available for all and meet

the transportation needs of communities of color and marginalized communities.

Companies and public agencies should collaborate and share data to help make the
transportation system better for everyone.

3-158
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



3.3.12.2 Emerging technology policies

Policy 1 Make emerging technology accessible, available and affordable to all, and use
technology to create more equitable communities.

Policy 2 Use emerging technology to improve transit service, provide shared travel options
throughout the region and support transit, bicycling and walking.

Policy 3 Use the best available data to empower travelers to make travel choices and to plan
and manage the transportation system.

Policy 4 Advance the public interest by anticipating, learning from and adapting to new
developments in technology.

Emerging Technology Policy 1. Make emerging technology accessible, available and affordable to all,
and use technology to create more equitable communities.

Metro and its partners are responsible for ensuring that the transportation system serves all
people, particularly those in the greatest need. New mobility services have the potential to bring
more flexible transportation options to marginalized communities, but not everyone can access
these services. Communities of color face the threat of discrimination from drivers or companies,
some older adults and people who speak limited English are not able to use apps, many low-
income people cannot afford costly data plans or lack access to bank accounts and people in
wheelchairs often struggle to find accessible shared vehicles. Removing these barriers can help to
bring better transportation choices to communities of color, night shift workers, people with
disabilities, people living in areas that lack frequent transit service and others.

Emerging Technology Policy 2. Use emerging technology to improve transit service, provide shared
travel options throughout the region and support transit, bicycling and walking.

Emerging technology has already given people in our region new ways to get around, whether by
taking car, scooter, or bike share, hailing a ride, or simply making it easier for people to learn about
and pay for public transportation. However, new mobility services are often concentrated in
communities where it is already easy to take transit, walk or bike, which can create more
congestion and pollution by attracting people away from more efficient modes and clogging streets
with vehicles looking for passengers. To make the most of emerging technology’s potential to
reduce congestion and pollution, the region’s transportation agencies need to prioritize and invest
in the modes that move people most efficiently; improve convenience and safety for transit riders,
pedestrians, and bicyclists; and direct new mobility services to provide options in places that
currently lack them in addition to adding options to communities that are already rich in travel
choices.

Emerging Technology Policy 3. Use the best data available to empower people to make travel
choices and to plan and manage the transportation system.

In today’s transportation system, data is almost as important as infrastructure. Smartphones enable
people to instantly book a transit trip or find a new route when they run into traffic, and new
mobility companies use real-time data to balance supply and demand. Metro and its agency
3-159
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



partners work to ensure that high-quality information is available for all transportation options in
the region, and that this information is presented in a way that allows travelers to seamlessly plan
and book trips. Transportation agencies also work to collect data on how travel patterns are
changing to plan the transportation system. This requires collecting data from companies that
operate emerging technologies in a way that helps agencies understand trip making without risking
users’ privacy, it also requires agencies to improve data on transit, bicycling and walking as well as
on new mobility options and create systems that allow us to share this data among public agencies.

Emerging Technology Policy 4. Advance the public interest by anticipating, learning from and
adapting to new developments in technology.

Our current planning process is designed around infrastructure projects designed to last for 50
years and an unchanging set of transportation services. It can take decades to plan and build a
project, and once it is built there is little room for change. This time-intensive, risk-averse approach
continues to make sense for major infrastructure projects, but to effectively plan for emerging
technology agencies need to test new services and approaches and learn from their experience.
Agencies in the region have used approaches like pilot testing and phased implementation of
regulations so that they can test new approaches to working with technology in a small-scale, low-
risk manner before applying what they learn to larger-scale efforts.

3-160
Draft 2023 Regional Transportation Plan
3/1/2023



Materials following this page were distributed at the meeting.



Metro Development Readiness

Assessment
Metro Technical Advisory Committee

Becky Hewitt, Project Director
March 15, 2023

ECONorthwest

ECONOMICS - FINANCE - PLANNING




Introductions / Agenda

Today’s Agenda
ECONorthwest | .
ECONOMICS - FINANCE - PLANNING = Qverview of the Project
= Overview of Development
@ Readiness Analysis
JOHNSON = Past Urban Growth Boundary
Economics Expansion Areas
= Metro Town Centers & Corridors
PG = Q&A



Metro Residential Readiness Project

Research and anaysisto 12 I
opulation evelopment Trends

Urban Growth UL : :

Updates to development

capacity / supply model ﬁ

/s

= < T




Development Readiness Analysis

= Goal is to illuminate the circumstances under which housing

and employment land development has or hasn’t happened
in past UGB expansion areas

= |dentify typical barriers to mixed-use development in urban
locations inside the UGB



Urban Growth Boundary Expansion Areas




Urban Growth Boundary
Expansion History

=

Metro UGB Expansions Over the Years

Focus on major UGB
expansions in:
1998-1999
2002-2005
2011-2014

2018

“Where are they now?”
approach for each
“cohort”

Data sources: Metro historical UGB
expansion area boundaries, tax lot data,
employment data (QCEW), CoStar




Housing Production in UGB expansions Has Lagged Targets

Estimated Housing Units Planned & Completed in Past UGB
Expansion Areas

45,000
40,000 38,700
North Bethany,
35,0 00 Bonny Slope West,
River Terrace, Frog
» 30,000 Pond, Damascus,
c Sherwood, Oregon
= 25000 23}000* City, North Cooper
DEB 20.000 Pleasant Valley, Mountain, etc.
g e 15900
T 15,000 (Hillsboro) ggzih C(')js;ro’
Mountain
10,000 6,100
4,400
5,000 1100
1998-1999 2002-2005 2011-2014

Urban Growth Boundary Expansion Area "Cohort"

m Units Planned Units Completed (as of 2022 taxrolls)



Take-aways: Key factors that influence development outcomes

Parcel size and developability

% . g
\¢ | Market alignment
7\ 2

Infrastructure serviceability, costs, and
) funding plans

®_©O :
»%a| Governance & local leadership




Key Factors: Parcel Size & Developability

What's the issue? What's working?

e Rural residential parcels are e Urban reserves - less reliance on
challenging;: exception land
e EXisting residents often oppose e Developers consolidating site control
urbanization to allow bigger master planned
» Less cost-effective to consolidate developments
and develop
e Harder to achieve scale for master
planning
* Not well suited for employment
uses

e Resource constraints can limit
development potential, fragment
buildable land



Key Factors: Market Alignment

What's the issue? What’s working?

e Demand for housing in many areas e Early involvement by developers in
(maybe stronger on west side) planning for expansion areas (prior to

e Commercial & employment more and following UGB decisions)
challenging * Expanding where the demand is for a
e Some areas not well-suited for given land use

employment uses(e.g., not flat
enough to cost-effectively develop
with larger employment uses, far
from major transportation facilities).

 Commercial generally follows
residential—need enough customers
to support new businesses.

10



Key Factors: Infrastructure

What's the issue? What's working?

e Infrastructure is a substantial e Early infrastructure assessment and
expense in nearly all expansion areas planning (prior to and following UGB

e Topography and physical conditions decisions)
increase cost and difficulty of e Bringing in areas that are easier to
building infrastructure serve

* Making initial investments to enable * Proactive role by cities in establishing
development requires proactive funding mechanisms & advancing
support and creative critical early infrastructure projects
funding/financing mechanisms * Experienced, well-capitalized land

 Major industrial & employment developers who can take on bigger
development often can’t front on-site infrastructure investments

infrastructure costs

11



Key Factors: Governance

What's the issue? What's working?

e Cities play a key role in e Updated process and
advancing development requirements for City
» Lack of clarity about Involvement in
which city is responsible €Xpansions
creates challenges  Cities being pro-active
* Pro-active planning about planning and
moves the process infrastructure

faster

12



Timing Considerations: UGB Expansion Areas

* Planning, adoption of development regulations, establishing
a viable infrastructure funding strategy take time given need
for community and stakeholder engagement

e Other steps (annexation, infrastructure programming, etc.)
generally follow planning, take additional time

 Development applications usually can’t proceed until other
nieces are in place

* Recessions or other market disruptions can delay things
further

13



Conclusions: UGB Expansion Areas

e Changes to rules and process are helping

e Developer interest and participation supports development
readiness

* Pro-active City leadership can move development forward
faster

 Metro can guide growth, but can’t create a market where it
doesn’t exist or overcome topographic, ownership, or
resource barriers to development

14



State of the 2040 Centers




2040 Centers: Key Questions

e Residential development trends in 2040 Centers

 What are the common regulatory, procedural, and market
barriers to residential development in 2040 centers?

16



Ls] (a7) Regional & Town Centers

Ca2

)
&)
%]

r:_.

Regional and Town

Centers

[ ] Regional Center

B Town Center
City Center

— Light Rail Line

275

Tanaskourna!

a .ﬁ.mhalr Glen Bathany
g

Ciranco
Cadar Mill

(L_li-::' Washington
Squane -

R

Murray/scholls

(}?;,;] "# Tigard
‘J:-Hirbg Ci

|
e Tualati

-
o

5
B /#:EHE

-_.E'“'-\.
=

; Wilsonwille
1 Miles L]

|
'
-

o

hf
-
\2

Willarraine

Ciregen Metrn, Dregan State Farks, State
5 =

99E)

West Linn -

_Cla.ckamas

ladstone

-Die-gnn City

e

A

Ly
—
Lad

COregen GECL, Esrl, HERE, Garmin, SafaGragh, HETh"l"'-I-ﬁ.S-J’-. LI'E-'FS Bar

Roclowaad
—_.

airview

Wood Village

resham

Happy Valley
Damascus
raFd
.h_s-J

ﬂﬂaz of Land
Mana ezﬂ_:f_EPP. 5, LS04,




Cirenco

ForestGrove  Comelius  ilisboro
o A _5':'_1':':_‘_

Urban Growth Boundary:
2007-2028 New & Proposed/
Under Construction Multi-
Family Units

o)

B Mew Units (2007-2022)
Proposed/Under Construction (2023-2028)

— FBO0
N

i s e
[ oo
w 110

Regional and Town Centers

== Light Rail Line

275 ! i 11 Miles

5t. Johns

Tanasbourne/ .
Amber

Glen Bethany
S
Cedar Mill

Sunset
W Transit

Regional & Town Centers
/ Recent & Proposed Multifamily Development

i Troutdale
Fairviey

Wood Village

resham

Fleasant

x‘u’alley

Clackamas
Happy Valley

. Clamascus

=

Source: CoStar
*City Center data not included due to scale

Cregen Metrt, Dregan State Parks, Stite of Oregen GED, Esrl, HERE, Garmin, SafaGragh, METI/MASA, USGS, Buri of Land
(o5 (2130 Managdpeit, ERS, HPS, LISDA




City Center and Other Areas

40,000

35,000

30,000

25,000

20,000

Housing Units

15.000

10,000

5,000

Pipeline Regulated

Pipeline Market

Completed Regulated
m Completed Market

Regulated Affordable & Market Rate Housing Units
Completed and in Pipleine by Region (2007-2022)

Rest of Region
1,485
3.257
3.868

26,641

Town Center
181
793
898
5,313

Regional Center
144
1,238
515
3,126

Central City
434
5,344
1,502
11,413

Strong residential
development in
Central City, especially
2007-2017

Source: CoStar. May exclude
some development where year
built data is unavailable. Note:
“Rest of Region” is all areas
within the Metro UGB that are
not part of a Regional Center,
Town Center, or the Central City.



2040 Regional & Town Centers: Observations

What Has Helped?

Lack of amenities, older auto- Strong public investment (e.g., TIF)
oriented development pattern -
need for investment in public realm

Historic downtowns / walkable
street networks

Older suburban development Code updates
regulations (e.g., high parking &

_ _ Streamlined regulations
landscaping requirements, etc.)

Reduced parking requirements

Rents too low to support vertical Development incentives (e.g.,
mixed-use or podium development VHDZ)

Market demand for parking Light rail, on-street parking

25



ECONorthwest

ECONOMICS « FINANCE < PLANNING

Los Angeles Portland Seattle



2023 Regional
Transportation Plan

Draft Chapter 3 —
System Policies

MTAC
March 15, 2023

@ Metro




Today’s purpose

Continue discussion of the draft
policies

* Do you have comments on the
policies overall?

Do you have comments on any

individual policies?

Comments on the policies and draft
Chapter 3 requested by March 24.




What is the Regional

Transportation Plan (RTP)?

20+ year transportation plan

 Sets the vision and goals for moving
people and goods safely, reliably and
affordably for decades to come

* Uses projections of future population
and job growth to identify travel
needs and solutions through 2045

2018 Regional

* Includes policies and projects Transportation Plan
* Coordinates local, regional, and state e portaniregon
inVEStmentS On regional System Adopted December 6, 2018 oregonmetro, -gov/rtp

e Establishes priorities for federal and
state funding



Timeline for the 2023 RTP update

SCOPING PLAN UPDATE

PLAN ADOPTION

Approved Initiate Release public Consider
work plan and Call for review draft adoption of
engagement plan Projects plan and 2023 RTP and

appendices appendices

PHASE
Oct. 2021 to January to July to
May 2022 June 2023 Nov. 2023

ENGAGEMENT =~ ===-===  <mmme—memmomme mmecmemmemeen cmmeemeemeeee Pl oomeeeeeoeee

H
=
e
m
=
m
E
3
o
2
]
=
o
2
|
o
=
=
(1]

Understand Trends Refine Vision, Update System Build RTP Public Review of
and Challenges Goals, Objectives, Needs and Revenue Investment Strategy Draft Plan
Develop Work Plan  Targets and Policies Forecast Create Draft Plan Plan Adoption

and Engagement Plan

o Key Milestone * Metro Council decision on JPACT action and MPAC recommendation



2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update
Where we have been

Research and policy development Project list update

RTP
Call for

Projects
Jan. 6 to Feb. 17

Engagement activities

JPACT and Metro Council accept policy
framework and support moving
forward with the Call for Projects




RTP document under development

Executive Summary Chapter 5: Our Transportation

Chapter 1: Toward A Connected | UNding Outlook

Region Chapter 6: Regional Programs
and Projects to Achieve Our

Chapter 2: Our Shared Vision o
Vision

and Goals for Transportation

Chapter 3: Transportation Chapter 7: Measuring Outcomes

System Policies to Achieve Our Chapter 8: Moving Forward
Vision Together (Implementation)

Chapter 4: Snapshot of Our Glossary of terms

Growing and Changing Region Appendices and supporting

documents




RTP outcomes-based framework

Vision Statement

' ‘1.
HQ: (W Establishes the overarching vision
of the plan

Goals
Expand on the Vision Statement to
describe outcomes of emphasis

Guides planning

and deCiSion- l,("éx? Deﬁng!z{ijtlxgirable

making in the \'J outcomes of the Goals

region ‘ Policies and Strategies
\ ¥» Detail an approach to meet desired

outcomes (Goals and Objectives)

/\/: Performance Measures

,Mil Track progress in achieving the
Objectives

/



Coordinated planning and

decision-making

Federal and state law define roles
and responsibilities and
expectations for coordinated
planning

Policies guide planning and
investment decisions for the parts
of the system they address

Plans identify needs and solutions




2023 RTP Policy Framework

Draft vision and goals for 2023 RTP

Equitable
Transportation

Vision -

Everyone in the greater Portland region
will have safe, reliable, affordable,
efficient, and climate-friendly travel
options that allow people to drive less
and support equitable, resilient, healthy

’ ‘ and economically vibrant communities
and region.

Developed in 2022 by JPACT and Metro Council with input from MPAC 9




2023 RTP Policy Framework

Draft Chapter 3 Policies

* New policies related to pricing, mobility and transit

* Updates to climate and motor vehicle policies
related to new policies and state Transportation
Planning Rules

* Minor updates/reformatting to transportation
equity, freight, design, transportation system
management and operations (TSMO) and
transportation demand management (TDM) policies

* No changes to safety, bike, pedestrian and emerging
technology policies 10



Draft Chapter 3 System Policies

Pricing Policies

New policies developed through year-long
process with multiple rounds of discussion
with policymakers and technical committees,
including TPAC and MTAC, and consultation
with ODOT

Revisions since Nov. align new policies with
ODOT/OHP tolling policies and regional
pricing discussions and address input
received last Fall

11



Draft Chapter 3 System Policies

Mobility Policies

Developed from 2019-2022 through multi-
agency process that involved policymakers,
TPAC, MTAC, practitioners, community
leaders and other stakeholders

Accepted by JPACT and Metro Council in
Nov. 2022

New policies and measures/targets
integrated in Chapter 3 for further testing
and refinement in RTP analysis 12



Draft Chapter 3 System Policies

Transit Policies

Developed by the High Capacity Strategy
work group through year-long, multi-agency
process

Reviewed by TPAC, MTAC, policymakers and
others last summer and fall

Policies incorporate elements that are
already part of the HCT assessment criteria
and regional goals and address previous
feedback 13



Draft Chapter 3 System Policies

Climate Policies

Changes address CFEC and reflect
JPACT/Council top priorities for climate smart
strategy implementation - transit, active
transportation and transportation technology

Parking management policy moved from
existing TSMO policy section to this section

Other updates to acknowledge important role
of land use, efficiency of streets/highways,
financial incentives and funding 14



Draft Chapter 3 System Policies

Motor Vehicle Policies

Updated to reflect new policy direction
in the draft pricing policies and new state
requirements related to motor vehicle
capacity in CFEC/Oregon Transportation
Planning Rule (OAR 660-012-0830)

Safety and design policies removed
because addressed by safety and design
policy sections

15



Draft Chapter 3 System Policies

Transportation Equity Policies

Removed “historically” from “historically
marginalized” communities

Clarified language around community
stability, engagement and use of data to
understand disparities, barriers, needs
and priorities

Updated policy 7 to better address work
force equity in transportation project
development and investments 16



Draft Chapter 3 System Policies

Freight Policies

Added new policy focused on addressing the
continued growth in e-commerce and
delivery trips

Developed in response to Regional Freight
Delay and Commodities Movement Study
research findings and stakeholder advisory
committee feedback

Policymakers and technical committees
discussed this work and trend over past year,



Draft Chapter 3 System Policies

Design Policies

Structured existing policies to mirror
format of other policy sections

Policy 5 came from existing motor
vehicle policies

18



Draft Chapter 3 System Policies
Transportation System Management

and Operations Policies

Updated to aligh with the TSMO Strategy
adopted by JPACT and the Metro Council
in 2022

Moved pricing, TDM and parking related
policies to other policy sections

TransPORT subcommittee to TPAC to
discussed draft policies on March 8

19



Draft Chapter 3 System Policies
Transportation Demand Management

Policies

Split out existing TDM-
related policies from existing
TSMO policies

Updated to provide clarity
on how TDM policies and
actions help achieve regional
goals

Transportation Demand
Management (TDM)
includes programs to
expand the use of travel
options, such as education
and outreach, commuter
programs, transportation
options information, trip
planning, rideshare support,
or Safe Routes to School
programs

20



What We’ve Heard from TPAC

Support for changes to transportation equity policies

No comments on safety, design, bike, pedestrian,
freight, TDM, TSMO and emerging technology policies

More discussion needed on specific climate, pricing,
motor vehicle, transit policies

Recognition of remaining work on mobility policy
measures post-RTP system analysis

More discussion needed on prioritization of
investments in policies and which policies support
thriving economy goal



Draft Chapter 3 System Policies

Climate Policy 3 and 9 and Resilience

Policy 3 Prioritize transportation investments that make
biking and walking safe and convenient to significantly
increase walking and bicycling mode shares.

Policy 9 Secure adequate funding for transportation
investments that support the RTP climate goal and
implementation of the climate smart strategy.

TPAC Comments on March 3 and 8:

* Be specific about meeting mode share targets

e Resilience is missing from policies

* Add resilience to Policy 9

* Add new policy for resilience to earthquakes and other hazards 22



Dratt Chapter 3 System Policies
Other RTP policies that address

resilience

These policies also address resilience:
Design policy 4
Motor vehicle policy 1

Transit policy 4

23



Draft Chapter 3 System Policies

Pricing Policy 4

Policy 4 Minimize diversion impacts created by
pricing programs and projects prior to
implementation and throughout the life of the
pricing program or project.

TPAC Comments on March 3 and 8:

* Localized impacts - Language doesn’t talk about localized impacts,
including how diversion is defined, what is too much diversion, what
can/should be done to address it and who has responsibility for
addressing it.

* Reconsider whether parking pricing should be in the pricing policies

* Questions about how the policies are implemented in local TSPs

o=



Terms and definitions - Diversion

Diversion means the movement of automobile trips from
one facility to another because of pricing implementation.
All trips that change their route in response to pricing are
considered diversion, regardless of length or location of the
trip, or whether they divert to or from the priced facility.

25



Draft Chapter 3 System Policies

Motor Vehicle Policies 6 and 9

Policy 6 If new capacity is being added, evaluate use of pricing and increased
transit service in conjunction with the new capacity to manage traffic
congestion and reduce VMT per capita.

Policy 9 Prior to adding new capacity demonstrate that system and demand
management strategies, including access management, transit and freight
priority, pricing, transit service and multimodal connectivity improvements
cannot meet regional mobility, safety, climate, and equity policies consistent
with OAR 660-012-0830.

3/3/23 TPAC Comments:

Overlap between the two policies.

Support for concepts and hierarchy of solutions but concern with how to address use of roadway
pricing for arterials and in local TSPs — seems more appropriate for throughways.

Add reference to mobility policy and congestion management process.

Concern policy would limit new roads in UGB expansion areas.

Concern with referencing administrative rule that could become outdated/change; seems
unnecessary given that -0830 directly applies to local and ODOT projects in local TSPs.



Terms and definitions - Capacity

Capacity is defined as motor vehicle capacity including: (A) a new or
extended arterial street, highway, freeway, or bridge carrying general
purpose vehicle traffic; (B) new or expanded interchanges; (C) an
increase in the number of general purpose travel lanes for any existing
arterial or collector street, highway, or freeway; and (D) new or
extended auxiliary lanes with a total length of one-half mile or more.

Not included: two-lane facilities with or without one turn lane,
roundabouts, access management, changes to signals, ITS, striping,
surfacing, safety modifications.

27



Comparison of draft 2023 RTP and draft

2023 OTP Policies

Draft 2023 Oregon Transportation Plan policy:
Prior to strategically adding new motor vehicle capacity, demonstrate that the capacity needs
cannot be reasonably addressed by one or a combination of the following:

 Multimodal investments (e.g., increased transit service, multimodal network completion, and
connectivity improvements),

* Transportation options programs (e.g., education and outreach, transportation options
information, trip planning, or rideshare support),

* Transportation system management improvements (e.g., ramp metering, signal coordination,
or roadway lane reconfiguration).

* Context-appropriate pricing strategies (e.g., roadway tolling, charging for parking, or
incentives)

Draft 2023 RTP motor vehicle policy 9:

Prior to adding new motor vehicle capacity, demonstrate that system and demand management
strategies, including access management, transit and freight priority, congestion pricing, and

transit service and multimodal connectivity improvements cannot meet regional mobility, safety,
climate, and equity policies consistent with OAR 660-012-0830. 28



Draft Chapter 3 System Policies

Transit Policy 5

Policy 5 Complete and strengthen a well-connected high
capacity transit network to serve as the backbone of the
transportation system. Corridors should generally be spaced at
least one half-mile to one mile or more apart and serve
mobility corridors with the highest travel demand. High
capacity transit prioritizes transit speed and reliability to
connect regional centers with the Central City, link regional
centers with each other, and link regional centers to major town
centers.

TPAC Comments on March 3 and 8:
* Policy calls for too dense of a HCT network.
* Concern with focused on areas of highest travel demand. 29



Draft Chapter 3 System Policies

Prioritization alighs with CFEC prioritization

framework and JPACT/Council priorities

Transportation equity policy 3
Safety policies 2, 3 and 8
Mobility policies 4 and 5
Motor vehicle policy 7

Transit policies 2, 3,5, 6 and 7
Climate policies 2, 3 and 5
Bicycle policy 2

Pedestrian policies 2 and 3

TPAC Comments on

March 3 and 8:

* Remove some
prioritization of
investments policies

30



2023 Regional Transportation Plan Update

Next steps for Chapter 3

March 3 & 8
March 8
March 15
March 24
April 19

June 15/29

Summer

Nov.

TPAC discussion of draft policies

TransPORT subcommittee discussion of draft TSMO policies
MTAC discussion of draft policies

Comments on draft policies/Ch. 3 due to Metro staff
TPAC/MTAC workshop discussion of revised draft policies

JPACT/Metro Council consider support releasing the draft RTP (and
projects) for public review

45-day public comment period on draft RTP (and projects)

JPACT and Metro Council consider public input and final RTP for
adoption

31



Discussion

Do you have comments on
the policies overall?

* Do you have comments on
any individual policies?

Comments on the policies and
draft Chapter 3 requested by
March 24.




Learn more about the Regional

Transportation Plan at:

Kim Ellis, AICP

RTP Project Manager

kim.ellis@oregonmetro.gov

oregonmetro.gov/rtp


kim.ellis@oregonmetro.gov

	MTAC agenda March 15, 2023 with notice.pdf
	MTAC Work Program 2023, as of March 8, 2023
	MTAC meeting minutes from January 18, 2023
	Construction-Career-Pathways-Framework-case-study-20220603
	090119 C2P2 Regional Framework - 2 pager So Sigs
	2023 RTP fact sheet_02082023
	2023 RTP Schedule030823
	TPAC-MTAC-RTP-DraftChapter3-030123
	2023-RTP-DRAFT-Chapter-3-Regional-System-Policies-03012023
	Materials following this page were distributed at the meeting
	Presentation: Metro Development Readiness Assessment
	Presentation: 2023 Regional Transportation Plan, Draft Chapter 3-System Policies



